
Board of Directors 
Ann Bailey, Chair AGENDA REGULAR MEETING 
Emily Baime Michaels, Vice-Chair 
Nick Avdis, Member 
Jose Bodipo-Memba, Member THE CAPITOL AREA DEVELOPMENT 
Bob Lagomarsino, Member 
Tara Gandara, Board Secretary AUTHORITY AND THE CAPITOL AREA 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
CADA/CACDC Administration BOARD OF DIRECTORS Danielle Foster, Executive Director 
(CADA)/President (CACDC) 
Josh Palmer, Deputy Director (CADA) FRIDAY, MAY 23, 2025 
Noelle Mussen, Finance Director (CADA)/ 10:00 A.M. Chief Financial Officer (CACDC) 
Marc de la Vergne, Director of CADA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
Sustainability, Placemaking, & Special 1522 14TH STREET, SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 
Projects (CADA)/Vice President (CACDC) 
Jill Azevedo, Director of Operations (CADA) 

Members of the Public are invited to 
Legal Counsel participate via ZOOM or in person. Jeff Mitchell 
Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann & Girard 

To join via Zoom: 
Phone: (916) 322-2114 Go to: https://zoom.us/join Web: www.cada.org Or join by phone: (669) 900-9128 (Pacific Coast) 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcoHLfF55h 
Meeting ID: 850 2154 4499 
Request Password (prior to start of meeting): 
urnndarn@cadn.org 

1. Roll Call and Just Cause/Emergency Teleconference Information (if applicable) 

2. Approval of Minutes: April 18, 2025 [CADA & CACDC] 

3. Chair's Oral Report 

4. Executive Director/President's Oral Report 

5. [CADA] CADA Financial Forecast (FY 2025-2026 Through FY 2034-2035) 

Recommended Action: Review and Comment. 

Contact: Noelle Mussen, Finance Director 

6. [CADA] Capital Improvements Program (CIP) Status Report & Five-Year Needs Assessment 
Report 

Recommended Action: Review and Comment. 

Contact: Josh Palmer, Deputy Director 

7. [CADA/CACDC] Numerous Actions to Close on Construction Financing and Break Ground 
on the Sakura Affordable Housing Project (2000 16th Street) 

[CADA] 
Recommended Action: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Executive Director to: 

1. Execute a gap financing residual receipts loan ("CADA Gap Loan") to 2000 
16th St Associates, LP for an amount not to exceed $4,000,000. 

2. Execute a purchase agreement for the sale of the Property to 2000 16th 
St Associates, LP. 

3. Execute a seller carry-back residual receipts loan ("CADA Land Loan") to 
2000 16th St Associates, LP for an amount not to exceed $3,280,000 for 
the sale of the Property. 

4. Execute a guaranty in favor of First Citizens Bank on behalf of 2000 16th 
St Associates, LP. 

5. Execute a guaranty in favor of NEF Assignment Corporation. 

CADA 

1

mailto:urnndarn@cadn.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcoHLfF55h
http:www.cada.org
https://zoom.us/join


6. Take any and all actions on behalf of CADA to close on financing for the 
Project, including execution of all necessary documents and Project loans. 

[CACDC] 
Recommended Action: Adopt a resolution authorizing the President to: 

1. Execute the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of 
2000 16th St Associates, LP ("Amended LPA") on behalf of 2000 16th St 
CACDC Association, LLC. 

2. Execute any and all documents necessary to consummate Project loans 
on behalf of 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC. 

3. Execute a General Contractor contract with Tricorp Group on behalf of 
2000 16th St Associates, LP for an amount not to exceed $32,000,000. 

4. Execute a contract with an environmental consultant not to exceed 
$200,000 for lead testing and soil excavation. 

5. Take any and all actions on behalf of CACDC to close on financing for the 
Project, including execution of all necessary documents. 

Contact: Jack Barnes, Development Manager [CADA] 
Josh Palmer, Deputy Director [CADA] 
Danielle Foster, Executive Director [CADA]/President [CACDC] 

8. [CADA] Third Amendment to Site SA Disposition and Development Agreement Between the 
Authority and Fremont/Downtown Sacramento Partners, LP. and Memorandum of Third 
Amendment 

Recommended Action: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Executive Director to execute a Third 
Amendment to the Site SA Disposition and Development Agreement between 
CADA and Fremont/Downtown Partners, LP. and a Memorandum of Third 
Amendment. 

Contact: Marc de la Vergne, Director of Sustainability, Placemaking, and 
Special Projects 

9. [CACDC] Appointment of the Vice President 

Recommended Action: Adopt a resolution appointing the Vice President of the CACDC 

Contact: Tara Gandara, Contracts and Office Manager/Board Secretary 
[CADA]/Secretary [CACDC] 

10, CLOSED SESSION 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957.S (a)) 
Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director 
Agency Designated Representative: Ann Bailey 

11. Oral Staff Reports/Updates 
A. Downtown Sacramento Partnership 
B. Downtown Sacramento Revitalization Corporation 
C. Midtown Association 
D. 0 Street Streetscape (7th - 17th Streets) 
E. Energy and Water Conservation 
F. Other Neighborhood Improvements 
G. 14th & N -The Cypress 
H. 1717 S Street - ARY Place 
I. 2000 16th Street - Sakura 
J. 805 R Street - Monarch 
K. R Street Partnership 

2



12. Transmittals 
A. CADA Strategic Plan Progress Report 
B. Status of Vacant Positions as Required by AB 2561 
C. CACDC Tax Form RRF-1 
D. Ombudsman Report: March and April 2025 
E. Apartment Status Report: April 2025 
F. Affordable Housing Report: April 2025 
G. Commercial Leases/Vacancies: April 2025 
H. CADA Neighborhood Incident Report: April 2025 
I. Contracts Log: April and May 2025 
J. Financial Report: None 
K. City Treasurer Monthly Investment Report: March 2025 

13. Opportunity for the Public to Address the Board Regarding Matters Not on the Agenda 

14. Adjournment 

NOTE: THE BOARD MAY TAKE ACTION ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA. ADDmONALLY, THE BOARD MAY TAKE ACTION 
ON ANY MATTER NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. 
PURSUANT TO STATE AND FEDERAL LAW, IF YOU HAVE A REQUEST FOR A DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR 
ACCOMMODATION IN ORDER TO ASSIST YOU IN PARTIOPATING IN THE MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT TARA GANDARA, BOARD 
SECRETARY AT (916) 322-2114 TO MAKE SUCH A REQUEST. IN ORDER TO ALLOW ADEQUATE TIME TO ACCOMMODATE ANY 
REQUESTS, CADA ASKS THAT THE REQUEST BE MADE AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 

3



 MINUTES 
OF 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
CAPITOL AREA DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (CADA) 

CAPITOL AREA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (CACDC) 
  

April 18, 2025 
 
ITEM 1 – ROLL CALL 
 
Chair Bailey called the Board Meeting of the CADA Board of Directors and the CACDC to order at 10:03 
a.m. at 1522 14th Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 and via public video conference. 
 
Present:   Avdis, Bodipo-Memba, Bailey 
Absent:     Baime Michaels, Lagomarsino 
 
ITEM 2 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   February 14, 2025 [CADA & CACDC] & March 21, 2025 
[CADA] 
 
Member Avdis moved approval of the February 14, 2025 [CADA & CACDC] and March 21, 2025 [CADA] 
Board Meeting minutes. Member Bodipo-Memba seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:   Avdis, Bodipo-Memba, Bailey 
NOES:      None 
 
ITEM 3 – CHAIR’S ORAL REPORT 
 
The Cypress Tour the was scheduled at the end of this meeting has been cancelled. It will be rescheduled 
to a later date. 
 
ITEM 4 — EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S ORAL REPORT/PRESIDENT’S ORAL REPORT 
 
Danielle Foster reported the following: 
 
• Reorganization of Staff – CADA’s reorganization of staff includes Josh Palmer being promoted to Deputy 

Director, continuing to oversee Maintenance, and managing Development and Resident Services 
Divisions as well. Marc de la Vergne is excited to focus on his work in Sustainability and other special 
projects, as well as furthering our work in Messaging and Marketing with the community in his role as 
Director of Sustainability and Special Projects. Karen Ulep will be reporting to him in these efforts. And 
lastly, Jill Azevedo was named Director of Operations and will continue her work in Human Resources 
and Risk Management while also overseeing CADA’s Leasing and Administrative Office staff. These 
adjustments will strengthen our team and coordination. CADA is currently recruiting for the two middle 
managers in our Maintenance Team into further refined positions that have more alignment in required 
skillsets for each of the job roles. 

• Teambuilding – CADA is hosting a number of teambuilding activities over the next few months, including 
a Roast Your Own Coffee event with the leadership team next week, an all-staff Sac Republic Soccer 
Game in June and staff Wellness Friday events with chair massages, craft days, reiki healing, and 
workout options at Iron Roots Fitness, among other options. 

• Current CADA News Articles: 
o 100 Most Powerful People in Sacramento – Ms. Foster was highlighted in Development 

4



o CADA's 842 units under construction as of July 2025 was noted in the recent Sacramento Bee 
article on the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA). This number represents more than 
one-third of the city’s total housing production in 2024, at 2,400 units. 

 
ITEM 5 — [CADA] FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 MARKET-RENT APARTMENT RENT SCHEDULE 
 
Recommended Action: By resolution, approve the following items for implementation in FY 25-26: 

1. FY 25-26 Proposed “not-to-exceed” Market Rent Schedule  
2. Rent increase limit for continuing market-rate residents 
3. Lease term premiums for new and continuing residents 

 
  Contact:  Kamerin Dames, Leasing Services Manager 
 
There was Board discussion regarding the number of tenants on section 8 vouchers and CADA’s internal 
scattered-site program. 
 
No public comments. 
 
Member Avdis moved approval of CADA Resolution 25-12 attached hereto and incorporated herein. 
Member Bodipo-Memba seconded the motion.   

  
AYES:   Avdis, Bodipo-Memba, Bailey 
NOES: None 

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR – ITEMS 6 THROUGH 7 
 
ITEM 6 — [CADA] HVAC UNIT REPLACEMENTS PROJECT AT 1515 8TH STREET 
ITEM 7 – [CADA] CHANGE ORDER #2 WITH CARTWRIGHT NOR CAL RELATED TO THE 14TH & 
O STREET BULB-OUTS AND CREATIVE CROSSWALKS PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $26,500 
 
Chair Bailey asked if there were any Board members who desired Item 6 through 7 to be taken off the 
Consent Calendar. None wished to do so. 
 
Member Avdis moved approval of CADA Resolutions 25-13 (Item 6) and 25-14 (Item 7) attached hereto 
and incorporated herein. Member Bodipo-Memba seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:   Avdis, Bodipo-Memba, Bailey 
NOES: None 

 
ITEM 8 - ORAL STAFF REPORTS/UPDATES 
 
A. Downtown Sacramento Partnership (DSP): Danielle Foster reported that their last meeting was held in 

Old Sacramento and discussed the positive impact on downtown of the A’s coming to West Sacramento. 
 
B. Downtown Sacramento Revitalization Corporation: Nothing to report.  
 
C. Midtown Association: Danielle Foster reported that they have the Second Saturday kickoff in May at the 

Midtown Love event on May 10th.  
 
D. O Street Streetscape (7th – 17th Streets): Danielle Foster reported the following: 

• Item 7 on consent included the creative crosswalk design with the mandala in the center of the 
intersection. Marc de la Vergne and Karen Ulep worked hard on the design. It has been well 
received at the City level. 

• CADA has been completing beatification and planting of succulents along O Street.  

5



• CADA is also looking at doing a mural on the east end of the Capitol Y where there is a grey wall. 
 

E. Energy and Water Conservation: Danielle Foster reported that the stormwater planters in Fremont Park 
are under construction. 

 
F. Other Neighborhood Improvements: Nothing to report. 
 
G. 14th & N – The Cypress: Nothing to report. 
 
H. 1717 S Street – ARY Place: Danielle Foster reported that ARY Place is almost fully occupied on the 

commercial spaces. Free People Movement has opened. ARY Place does have one small 800 square foot 
space left that may be taken by one of our current tenants. 

 
H. 2000 16th Street – Sakura: Danielle Foster reported that CADA is working hard on some deadlines with 

the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) under the Affordable Housing 
and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) grant funds. 

 
H. 805 R Street – Monarch: Danielle Foster reported that CADA/CACDC and Mutual are so close to closing 

on construction financing and that demolition will imminently follow. 
 
H. R Street Partnership: Danielle Foster reported that Marc de la Vergne will represent CADA on the R 

Street Business Improvement District (PBID) as part of his new role. 
 
ITEM 9 – TRANSMITTALS 
 
There was discussion regarding the CACDC tax forms and the improved vacancy rate. 
 
Received as transmitted.  
 
ITEM 10 – OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD REGARDING MATTERS 
NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
None. 
 
ITEM 11 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:37 a.m. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Tara Gandara 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 

6



7



8



9



 

 
May 16, 2025   
 
TO:    Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA) Board of Directors  
 
SUBJECT: May 23, 2025, Board Meeting 
  AGENDA ITEM 5 
 CADA FINANCIAL FORECAST (FY 2025-2026 THROUGH FY 2034-2035) 
 
CONTACT:     Noelle Mussen, Finance Director   
 
RECOMMENDATION:    
Informational only. This report provides CADA’s annual Ten-Year Financial Forecast for discussion as 
CADA plans its business priorities for Fiscal Year 25-26 through Fiscal Year 34-35.  
 
BACKGROUND  
Each year, CADA updates its ongoing Ten-Year Financial Forecast (Forecast) that analyzes and 
reflects changes in financial and economic conditions that affect CADA’s general operations and 
development projects. Development projects require advance funding, and the timing of the 
resulting tax increment is uncertain. The Forecast analyzes the impact of all development projects 
on CADA’s overall operations, including General Operations and Major Construction, and 
conservatively estimates future funding needs for development projects and resulting tax increment. 
The Forecast is a tool that aids in the preparation of the annual CADA budget proposal made by 
staff for approval by the Board in June.   
   
POLICY 
CADA is charged with implementing the residential and commercial components of the State’s 
Capitol Area Plan and the City of Sacramento’s R Street Corridor Master Plan in a manner that is 
fiscally, socially, and environmentally sustainable, and that results in an attractive urban 
neighborhood that is affordable to a diverse population. 
 
To accomplish its mandate, CADA must ensure that its property management activities are cost-
effective and that its urban development activities are fiscally prudent.  As a tool for ensuring that it 
is pursuing its mission in a fiscally-responsible manner, CADA prepares a Ten-Year Financial 
Forecast each year. The Forecast enables CADA to consider the needs of its aging housing stock and 
the implications of development and neighborhood investments on its long-term fiscal stability. The 
Forecast also provides the basis for CADA’s annual budget, which is presented to the CADA Board of 
Directors each June.  
 
Because Capitol Area tax increment (TI) cannot be used in the R Street Area without prior approval 
from the Department of General Services (DGS), and the two areas have different restrictions with 
regard to the use of 20% affordable housing set-aside funds, separate Forecasts are provided for 
the Capitol Area (Attachment 1) and the R Street Area (Attachment 3). Attachment 2 provides 
detailed assumptions regarding planned development projects in the Capitol Area. 
 
 

10



 

 
CAPITOL AREA FORECAST (ATTACHMENT 1) 
This Forecast presents CADA operations and fiscal responsibilities in the Capitol Area in three 
segments: General Operations, Major Construction, and Development.  With regard to Tax Allocation 
Bond activities, CADA’s ongoing bond debt service is reported as an expense within General 
Operations.  Bond proceeds are used to reduce project expenditures. These funds are not resources 
for General Operations. Therefore, they are only reflected in the Development project section of this 
Forecast.  
 
CADA has established a threshold for the Capitol Area below which its cash reserves should not fall. 
This threshold represents six months of expenses, or approximately $6 million. This is an increase 
from the $5.5 million threshold in the prior Forecast.  That Forecast, which was prepared in 2024, 
projected a slightly sharper decline in available funds from Year 1 through Year 4, with the decline 
flattening out through Year 10, with starting reserves at $20.9 million.  
 
This year’s Forecast has a similar decline in available funds from Year 1 through Year 4, with the 
decline flattening out in Year 4 to Year 5, but then declining from Year 6 through Year 10, with 
starting reserves at $21.7 million.  Similar to the prior year Forecast, the current Forecast projects a 
continued decrease over the 10-year period, but with more of a decline in the last 6 years and a 
projected available cash balance of $8 million. This is a decrease of $3 million over the prior year 
Forecast.  
 
The differences from the prior year are due to net changes in assumptions in General Operations, 
Major Construction, Development, project completions, economic changes, and changes in 
development project requirements and funding needs.   
 
Compared to the prior year, Year 1 in the current Forecast starts with a beginning balance of 
approximately $1.7 million more in available resources. This is a smaller increase than what CADA 
has seen in prior forecasts. This is mostly due to two large expenses occurring in the current Fiscal 
Year reducing the available funds, specifically, a downpayment of $750,000 was made for the 
purchase of the new Maintenance Warehouse, along with $1.4 million in debt was assumed and 
paid down for the purchase of the Terraces. 
 
Changes in assumptions were made to General Operations in regards to revenue and expense 
growth.  Rental Revenue has been kept to an increase of 2% per year similar to the prior Forecast.  
Interest rates are similar as compared to what was assumed in the prior year but the use of Bond 
proceeds is assumed to happen sooner, so those proceeds will accrue less interest income over the 
Forecast period. Along with the changes to development assumptions with the use of bond 
proceeds, the interest income in this Forecast has decreased.     
 
For Tax Increment (TI), collection has been steady, with higher growth in the past year, but in the 
current Forecast CADA staff still assumes the usual legally-permitted 2% increase per year, which 
has increased the projected revenue growth over the whole ten-year period.  
 
Changes in assumptions to expenditures for General Operations, Development and Major 
Construction is part of the reason for the sharper decline throughout the Forecast.   
 
Within General Operations, the major change in assumptions is an increase to operational expenses 
in Year 1 by 5%, but then continuing at only 3% thereafter.  Major Construction has changes due to 
the incorporation of the Capitol Needs Assessment (CAN) done by an asset management consultant, 
Artemis Construction Management. This evaluation has been incorporated into the Forecast, which 
has increased some projects and moved project timelines up earlier in the Forecast.  
 

11



 

For Development, there has been one major change in assumptions which has led to an overall 
positive effect on cash flow through Year 10. The East End Gateway Site 5-6-7 project has been 
changed from a two-part or phased project to a one-phase project while scope is further defined. 
This project could now potentially require additional gap financing, which would be funded with the 
remaining Bond proceeds. These proceeds in the prior year Forecast were reflected in the R Street 
Area Forecast, but in the current Forecast are replaced with Tax Increment funding, which allows 
these bond proceeds to be used for this project.   
 
While the Forecast projects a decline in available cash over the 10-year period, it still remains above 
the established threshold throughout the Forecast period, with available funds in year 10. This is 
due to the previously-mentioned changes within General Operations, Major Construction and 
Development, together with the removal of the $300,000 Eviva TI pledge; the DGS East End 
Gateway projects notes maturing in Year 4; fully funding the debt-sinking reserve for the HCD 
regulatory agreement properties in Year 2 instead of Year 5; no new development projects in later 
years; and projected additional TI from the Cypress project, offset by operational expenses 
increasing faster than revenue growth; and continued large expenditures for major construction in 
Year 1 through Year 5.  
 

 
 
The Capitol Area Forecast covering the period of FY 25-26 (Year 1) through FY 34-35 (Year 10) is 
presented in Attachment 1. In keeping with past Forecast practices, this Forecast does not include 
the operation of CADA’s Special Management properties. As reported in Attachment 1, the Forecast 
overall remains positive across the ten-year period. 
 
Key assumptions, by segment, having a financial impact on Capitol Area cash reserves during the 
Forecast period of FY 25-26 through FY 34-35 are as follows: 
 
 

12



 

GENERAL OPERATIONS 
General Operations consists of property management revenue and expenses (residential and 
commercial activity), tax increment revenue, and administrative and development support activities 
for the organization. General Operations can be impacted by major construction and development 
projects, increases or decreases in tax increment and property management revenue, and changes 
in the number of affordable housing units maintained within CADA-managed properties.     
 
Key Assumptions 

• The Forecast assumes Rental Income will increase 2% per year. In the prior Forecast it was 
assumed the Terraces might require renovation resulting in a loss of income in Year 5. This 
potential loss of revenue has been removed while scope is further defined, so this revenue 
has now been incorporated into the Forecast for the whole 10 years. 

 
• The Forecast assumes CADA’s Low Income Subsidy Program (Scattered-Site Program) will 

remain in place during the entire 10-year period, with the subsidy balance increasing 2% 
per year.   

 
• Tax Increment (TI) revenue in the Capitol Area in Year 1 is increased to reflect FY 24-25 

estimated levels and review of the current tax assessor’s reports, followed by a 2% increase 
each year thereafter.    

 
TI revenue generated by development projects that are in progress is not included in this 
segment of the Forecast, but is reported by project in the Development segment of the 
Forecast.  The Eviva Midtown TI pledge payment, which was included in the prior Forecast, 
has been removed from this Forecast as the building was sold and part of the sales 
agreement stops this payment.   

 
• Investment Earnings will continue to assume interest at the 2.5% rate through the Forecast. 

Consequently, the Forecast still assumes a decrease in the anticipated annual investment 
earnings over the 10-year period due to the decline in projected cash reserves. In addition 
to interest earned on operating reserves, the Forecast reflects investment earnings from the 
2020 unspent bond proceeds to fund major construction and development needs. This also 
declines over the first four years with the anticipated uses of these funds. 

 
• For Notes Receivable, the $1.5 million advance to Sonrisa from CADA has been added and is 

assumed to be paid off by Year 1, based on the anticipated cashflow of the remaining 
equity into the project. The Residual Receipt notes are not considered collectable for the 
purpose of the Forecast and were not included. 

 
• The Forecast assumes Salaries will increase 5% in Year 1 and 3% per year thereafter. 

Benefits assumes an increase of 3% per year, with the exception of Retirement Benefits and 
Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) liabilities. Those have been adjusted based on 
information from CalPERS, current actuarial reports, and CADA’s consultants.  There is no 
assumed change in staffing over the Forecast period.  

 
• For retirement benefits, according to the latest CalPERS actuarial report, CalPERS is billing 

CADA for the normal cost, or “retirement cost”, for active employees estimated to vest in a 
given year as a percentage of payroll, but any unfunded liability is being billed at the 
calculated annual dollar value, which currently is amortized over 25 years. 

 
In this Forecast, staff has incorporated assumptions from CalPERS actuarial reports 
pertaining to the normal cost rates. As new staff members have come on board, the number 
of PEPRA (Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act) employees has increased over Classic 

13



 

employees, and now comprises approximately 68% of CADA staff.  As a result, this Forecast 
considers both pools of employees.  This is important because the employer normal cost 
rate and the unfunded accrued liabilities are different for the two classifications, with the 
PEPRA employees being lower in both categories.  

 
For Classic members, the normal cost rate assumed in the CalPERS actuarial report is 13.4% 
in Year 1 through Year 6, with an assumed increase of .5% each year thereafter. For PEPRA 
members, the normal cost rate assumed in the CalPERS actuarial report is 8.27% in Year 1 
through Year 6, with an assumed increase of .5% each year thereafter.   
 

• For the Unfunded Liability for this Forecast, staff has kept the assumption from the CalPERS 
reports for the Classic members to reflect the “Fresh Start” proposal, which was reflected in 
the prior year Forecast.  For the Unfunded liability for PEPRA members, the adjusted 10-
year amortization schedule from the CalPERS actuarial report was used.  
 
The purpose of the Fresh Start proposal is to make an effort to reduce the unfunded liability 
balance and to reduce and take control of the annual required payments into the future to 
further the goal of bringing CADA’s pension trust to a fully-funded status. This would be 
accomplished by paying a large one-time additional discretionary payment into the trust and 
working with CalPERS to restructure the unfunded liability payment schedule.  
 
The Forecast moves the one-time payment of $500,000 to Year 1 instead of the current 
fiscal year, and keeps the annual payment at $565,155 each year.  This is a slightly higher 
payment than what CalPERS will require in the next year, but will potentially be less than 
what will be required in the years thereafter. Due to the current uncertainty within the 
economy, this was moved forward a year to allow staff time to reevaluate this strategy to 
verify that this is still a viable solution to bring down the unfunded liability and control 
future expenses.    

 
• OPEB Liabilities are projected to continue to be fully-funded in a trust fund established 

through CalPERS. CADA’s current OPEB annual amount is calculated by using the most 
current actuarial report estimated Annual Required Donation (ARD) for Year Ended 2026 
and 2027, and growing the liability 3% each year thereafter. The Forecast assumes CADA 
will continue to reimburse current retirement health benefits from the trust, starting at 
$225,000 per year and increasing by 3% per year thereafter.   
 

• The Forecast assumes all the expense categories in Year 1 will be increased by 5%, then 
3% each year after. This reflects the uncertainty of where prices maybe in to the next Fiscal 
Year for products, materials and services.    

 
• From Year 2 through Year 10, this Forecast assumes expenses will increase 3% per year. 

There is one exception within Overhead for CADA’s Administrative Office lease.  This lease 
was renegotiated in 2017 as part of the renovation of the space.  DGS approved tenant 
improvements done by CADA and they are being reimbursed through a rent reduction over 
10 years totaling $200,000.  This Forecast reflects the negotiated lease terms with rent at 
the negotiated term of $89,600 from Year 1 to Year 4, then the Forecast assumes a 3% 
annual increase from Year 5 to Year 10. 

 
• CADA Debt will increase in Year 1 from the current fiscal year reflecting the assumption of a 

prepayment for the 525 S Street Maintenance Warehouse. There is a required prepayment 
of $1.25 million in Year 1, with funding anticipated to be from the sale of the current 
Maintenance Office property, which has been included in revenue. With that pre-payment, it 
is anticipated this debt will be paid in full by Year 8.   

14



 

 
• Thereafter, CADA’s continuing debt will consist of the I-Bank loan, the 2017 private 

placement bond, and the land loan debt paid by CADA to DGS for the East End Gateway 
Sites 1- 3 projects, until Year 5 when the DGS loans will be paid off. 

 
• Tax Allocation Bond Debt Service includes the debt service payments from the 2020 taxable 

bond issued in December 2020. This will be a constant expense over the whole ten-year 
Forecast period based on the Bond debit service schedules. 

 
• Also included in the Forecast is the debt service reserve for two Special Management 

properties, Somerset Parkside and Biele Place. The existing annual reserves contributions 
are assumed to be $212,000 and will be set aside to pay the deferred debt CADA will owe 
to HCD at the end of the revised regulatory periods for these projects. The Forecast 
assumes the debt reserve will be fully-funded to pay the total debt due, including interest 
and estimated accrued HCD monitoring fees by FY 26-27 or Year 2.   

 
As reported in Attachment 1, the net cash flow of this segment of the Forecast has negative ending 
balances across the ten-year period.  
 
MAJOR CONSTRUCTION 
For Major Construction, the CADA Maintenance Department continues to review and update its 
needs for CADA’s whole portfolio. In the current year, CADA engaged an asset management 
consultant to prepare a needs assessment for CADA buildings. This evaluation identifies projects and 
sets priorities and timing for these projects. These assumptions have been incorporated into this 
Forecast, which has moved project timelines and expenditures to earlier in the Forecast as 
compared to the prior year.  
 
Typically, Special Management construction projects are funded through those properties’ 
operations or Replacement Reserves.  In this case, CADA’s three Special Management buildings 
(Somerset Parkside, Biele Place, and 17th Street Commons) will need to use Replacement Reserves 
to fund anticipated capital improvement projects over the ten-year period.   
 
Major Construction budgets remain active and open for three years and the cash flow for these 
expenditures is usually expensed over a three-year period.  Therefore, from Years 3 to 10, to better 
reflect the cash flow of CADA’s major construction projects, total estimated project expenditures in 
each Forecast year are expended over a three-year period, generally with 25% expended in the first 
year, 50% in the following year, and 25% in the 3rd year. For currently budgeted projects, it is 
assumed they will be completed in Years 1 and 2. 
 
These assumptions yield a total Major Construction outlay of $13.2 million over the ten-year period, 
with $8.6 million of these expenditures occurring between Years 1 through 5.  
 
DEVELOPMENT 
In this Forecast, Development projects are categorized as either “Current” or “Neighborhood and 
Infrastructure Improvement Projects.”  While the Forecast includes some of the same projects as in 
prior years, some projects have had modifications due to various issues including timing delays, 
project restructuring, and restructuring of financing.   
 
For the current Forecast, assumptions for each development project are estimates based on 
information received from CADA project managers as of the end of April 2025.  Therefore, changes 
to development project assumptions that have occurred since April may not be reflected in the 
Forecast. 
 

15



 

Bond proceeds are not included in the general available cash but are used to fund expenses by 
project in the Development segment of the Forecast. This is because the funds are assumed to be 
available for development projects and not funding for general operations. This Forecast also 
assumes all available bond proceeds will have been spent by FY 28-29. 
 
Key assumptions for development projects (timing, revenues, and expenditures) reflected in the 
current Forecast are shown below.  Further detail for each development project is provided in 
Attachment 2.   
 
Current CADA Development Projects 
Current CADA Projects consist of the Cypress - Site 21 (14th & N), and East End Gateway Site 5-7.  
 
For these projects, the Forecast projects $2.7 million in additional cash outflow needed from CADA 
in Years 1 through 4, which is similar in cash inflow from the prior Forecast. There was an additional 
gap funding need for the East End Gateway project 5-7 but there are remaining Bond proceeds to 
cover this gap that were assumed as funding in a model project in the R Street Area Forecast in the 
prior year. Therefore, the cash needs for Development have not change significantly from the prior 
year.  
 
There will be potential Tax Increment generated from the completed Cypress project from Years 5 
through 10 for a total of $3 million.  

Site 21 (the Cypress) 
• This Forecast assumes completion of a rental condominium project consisting of 97 market 

rate units with a small retail component at the northwest corner of the building, at 14th and 
N Streets.     
 

• Similar to the prior Forecast, tax increment is calculated using annual Net Operating Income 
(NOI) multiplied by a 5% cap rate. The estimated NOI is unchanged from the prior Forecast. 
There is currently no assumption for the sale of the six condos, thus the estimated TI is only 
based on the NOI of the project.    
 

• The Forecast assumes that construction will be completed in Summer 2025, the same timing 
as in the prior Forecast, and assumes the full annual amount of tax increment will begin in 
FY 27-28.     
 

• The negative affordable housing impact was removed as CADA currently has affordable units 
able to cover the 26 units this project will create. This is due to the additional units the 
Sonrisa project created since its occupancy.    

 
• The Forecast continues to assume a $400,000 CADA offsite subsidy to be paid in Year 1 to 

the developer from CADA as part of this project. This may not occur but will be kept in the 
Forecast until any final decision has been made on the inclusion of condominiums.  

East End Gateway Site 5-6-7 
• The Forecast for this project has changed from the prior year. It still assumes this will be an 

affordable tax credit financed project, but there are additional expenses and an increase in 
gap financing which was not part of the prior Forecast. 
 

• It is assumed this project will now be done in one phase, which is a change from the prior 
year, which assumed it would be a two-part or phased project. It is assumed the new one 
phase project will have construction starting in Year 4 and completed in Year 5. 
 

16



 

• For this project the Forecast now includes predevelopment expenses of $2 million expended 
over three years starting in Year 2 with gap financing of $12 million in Year 4, for a total 
project cost of $14 million.    

 
• In the prior Forecast, this project was assumed to be funded from a combination of bond 

proceeds and TI, with approximately $9 million in bond funds to be used for the gap 
financing. Now it is assumed the gap financing will be $12 million with the increase being 
funded by Bond proceeds that were incorporated in the prior year R Street Area Forecast. 
 

• There is no assumption for land acquisition as it is assumed this property would fall under 
the Governor’s executive order and will be leased to CADA for $1.     

Sonrisa 
• This project is now complete and has converted to its permanent mortgage financing. 

Sonrisa is an 100% affordable housing project using tax-credit financing and bond funds 
from CADA through the CACDC. This project meets its own affordable housing requirement 
and created an additional 42 affordable units in excess of this requirement. The Forecast 
assumes these additional affordable units will cover the additional requirement for affordable 
units created by the Cypress project, so no positive impact or negative affordable housing 
impact was included in this Forecast.   

 
Neighborhood and Infrastructure Improvement Projects 
Neighborhood and Infrastructure projects currently consist of Roosevelt Park, O Street Streetscape, 
16th Street and Fremont Park, the Dean, and the 10th Street Streetscape projects. For these projects, 
approximately $1.3 million in CADA net resources will be expended during the ten-year period, 
which is a similar estimate to the prior Forecast.  

 
• The infrastructure improvement projects in the Capitol Area – Roosevelt Park, 16th Street and 

Fremont Park, and 10th Street improvement – are collectively projected to require a $300,000 
investment for potential infrastructure and site improvement costs, expended in Year 1 
through Year 4.  
 

• This Forecast assumed the O Street project’s total estimated cost would be $2.6 million, with 
$1.8 million funded with the bond proceeds, and $830,000 remaining funds through TI.   
 

• The project at the Dean is assumed to draw on the current budget in Year 1 for upgrades to 
the building’s boiler system.  

 
• The 10th Street Streetscape project reflects small site improvements including recently 

installed landscaping on 10th Street and on the corner of 11th and P Street, to complement 
improvements planned within and around Roosevelt Park. This project is expected to be 
completed in Year 1. 
 

• The 16th Street and Fremont Park project reflects a new restroom and site improvements 
along 16th Street with a cost of $200,000. This is expected to be completed in Year 1.   

 
R STREET FORECAST (ATTACHMENT 4)  
Due to restrictions on CADA’s utilization of Tax Increment generated within the R Street Area, the R 
Street Area Forecast is presented separately from the Capitol Area Forecast.  The R Street Forecast 
includes two segments -- Unrestricted Funds (80% of TI) and Set-Aside Funds (20% of TI).  
 

17



 

As illustrated in the table below, the net result of the activities planned on R Street in this year’s 
Forecast is a positive cumulative fund balance in both the Unrestricted and the Affordable Housing 
Set-Aside segments throughout the ten-year period.   
 
The R Street Forecast, presented in Attachment 3, provides the revenue and expenses projected for 
this ten-year period.  Project-specific details for R Street Area Development Projects are provided in 
Attachment 4. 
 

 
 
UNRESTRICTED SEGMENT ASSUMPTIONS  

• For Tax Increment (TI), revenue in Year 1 is increased to reflect FY 24-25 estimated levels, 
followed by 2% increase each year thereafter.    
 

• Similar to the prior Forecast, R Street Unrestricted Funds have been incorporated for 
streetscape improvements at the 900 Block for $523,000 expended in Year 3.  

 
• Tax Allocation Bond Debt Service reflects the continuing debt service payments from the 

2020 taxable bond issued in December 2020 allocated to R Street’s unrestricted funds.  This 
will be a constant expense over the whole ten-year Forecast period based on the 2020 Debt 
Service schedules. 
 

• In this Forecast, there are pre-development projects included in this segment. With the 
projects in pre-planning, it is assumed they will be funded through Bond proceeds and 
unrestricted TI. Because they are affordable housing projects, set-aside funds can become 
possible funding sources if additional funding is needed for the project. 
 

18



 

o With the purchase of property at 16th and T Street for the 2000 16th Street project or 
Sakura, This Forecast is similar to the prior year Forecast, which assumes $900,000 
in predevelopment expenses, along with a gap financing of $4 million in Year 1. 
There is currently $93,000 budgeted for the maintenance and sale of the property at 
the time of construction. No project revenue has been incorporated into the Forecast.  
 

o With the Sakura project receiving the applied for ASHC funding, there will be an S 
Street Streetscape improvement project as part of the ASHC funding, which requires 
CADA to assist the City with improvements to S Street.  CADA’s portion would be 
$450,000 and it is assumed to be expended in Year 1.  
 

o The 805 R Street project, was incorporated in the prior year Forecast but the project 
construction financing closed in April 2025 with the development and bonds funds 
expedited in the current year, so it was removed from this Forecast. No project 
revenue has been incorporated into the Forecast.  

 
• The affordable housing project proposed in this Forecast is similar to the prior year Forecast 

to model the purchase of one property with an estimate for a possible affordable housing 
project.  For this project, it is assumed property would be purchased for $5 million in Year 4, 
with a total of $1 million of predevelopment expenditures over the next three years, and gap 
financing of $5 million expensed in Year 7.  This project is now assumed to use Unrestricted 
TI funds as compared to the prior year which assume the use of the remaining bond 
proceeds. This project would contribute to CADA meeting its R Street Area mandatory 
affordable housing requirements.  
 

• Added to this year’s Forecast is a new project in Year 1 for potential improvements to the 
public spaces along the R Street corridor.   
 

• Included in the Forecast are possible expenditures from the existing $350,000 fund for 
support of the middle-income housing project funded through R Street TI over the next four 
years.  

 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING SET-ASIDE SEGMENT ASSUMPTIONS  

• Tax Increment (TI) revenue in Year 1 is increased to reflect FY 24-25 estimated levels, 
followed by 2% increases each year thereafter.      
 

• Tax Allocation Bond Debt Service reflects the continuing debt service payments from the 
2020 taxable bond issued in December 2020 and allocated to R Street’s set-aside funds.  
This will be a constant expense over the whole ten-year Forecast period based on the 2020 
Debt Service schedules. 

 
• Aside from the Development expenses and assumptions previously mentioned above, the 

Forecast assumes no other major CADA projects will be funded through the set-aside for the           
next ten-year period.  As a result, remaining funds in the reserve should be approximately $7 
million by Year 10 and can be available to use for the other proposed projects above. 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
The Capitol Area Forecast indicates there will be sufficient funds to meet the projected needs of 
CADA’s General Operations and Development Projects during the ten-year Forecast period. It is 
important to note that, with the decrease in available funding over the Forecast period, available 
resources for larger expenditures in the future is reduced for any new projects or additional project 
subsidies funded through operational sources.    
 

19



 

However, with the current assumptions for Operations, Development, and infrastructure projects, 
continued major construction improvement needs for CADA’s aging buildings, and no new 
development or infrastructure projects planned to occur during the last five years of the Forecast 
period, it appears that expenses are still growing faster than revenue. Even with the overall decline 
the available funds still remain above our required minimum reserve balance at Year 10. This is 
similar to what we have seen in prior years. 
 
With the continued and anticipated fund balance decline throughout the Forecast period, CADA still 
needs to remain fiscally viable, so it is imperative that CADA continue to carefully consider its 
current and future commitments in both the Capitol and R Street Areas, that it secures 
infrastructure grants and outside development funding whenever possible, and that it undertakes 
actions to continue to keep revenue and expenses aligned to maintain a positive reserve balance 
into the future.  
 
The R Street Area Forecast indicates the affordable housing set-aside funds will be available for 
additional funding to current or new projects beyond those that are assumed in this Forecast. 
Unrestricted funds are available, but will be reduced to almost zero in Year 7 due to assumptions for 
a new affordable housing project.  
 
With much of the current R Street Area project expenses funded through the Tax Increment, there 
will be a period where no funds are available to assist new and current projects from the 
Unrestricted funds, but there still will be restricted funds available. So, it is crucial for the R Street 
Area that careful consideration and discussions occur regarding how, when and which funding 
sources should be utilized in the future. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN  
The Strategic Plan objective that is most directly pertinent to this action is Objective I: Ensure Fiscal 
Strength and Operational Excellence. Completing and reviewing a financial Forecast gives CADA the 
ability to make informed decisions on operational costs and development projects, while continuing 
to maintain a strong financial position so CADA continues to have the ability to meet its goals and 
mission objectives in the future.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT  
The purpose of the Financial Forecast is to provide the Board and staff with a broad understanding 
of the overall impact of currently envisioned projects and programs on CADA’s financial well-being.  
As with any Forecast, the impacts will be subject to refinement as projects are finalized and 
conditions change. Accordingly, while this document serves as a valuable reference, the specific 
financial impacts of proceeding on any project or program will be analyzed at the time decisions are 
made.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW   
Not applicable.  The action before the Board is an administrative matter and is not a project subject 
to the guidelines of the California Environmental Quality Act.  
 
CONTRACT AWARD CONSIDERATIONS  
Not applicable. The action before the board does not involve contract awards.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Capitol Area Forecast    
2. General Fund Development Detail  
3. R Street Area Forecast 
4. R Street Development Projects   

20



Capitol Area Forecast
2025 Financial Forecast

Attachment 1

CAPITOL AREA
0 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29 29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-34 34-35

 (exclusive of Special Management Operations) Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10

GENERAL OPERATIONS
Operation Revenue 8,701,040$             8,874,835$          9,052,103$         9,232,913$          9,417,335$         9,605,442$        9,797,307$        9,993,007$        10,192,617$      10,396,215$      
Low Income Subsidy (General Fund Only) (972,321)                 (991,767)              (1,011,602)          (1,031,834)           (1,052,471)          (1,073,520)         (1,094,990)         (1,116,890)         (1,139,228)         (1,162,013)         
Tax Increment Revenue 5,304,000               5,410,080            5,518,282           5,628,647            5,741,220           5,856,045          5,973,165          6,092,629          6,214,481          6,338,771          
Interest Income (from operations & unspent bond proceeds) 911,527                  747,599               661,383              254,833               186,119              179,662             156,066             125,051             90,082               51,969               
Notes Receivable Repayment 1,526,994               -                       -                      -                       -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Sale of 701 S street 1,250,000               -                       -                      -                       -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenue 16,721,240             14,040,747          14,220,166         14,084,559          14,292,203         14,567,629        14,831,548        15,093,797        15,357,952        15,624,942        

Operation Expense (12,397,142)            (12,340,235)         (12,697,606)        (13,065,600)         (13,444,207)        (13,833,945)       (14,237,287)       (14,650,814)       (15,076,748)       (15,515,460)       
Continuing Debt Service (1,603,126)              (353,022)              (352,914)             (352,804)              (220,091)             (145,078)            (39,309)              (39,186)              (39,060)              -                     
2016 & 2017 TAB Debt Service (766,531)                 (759,113)              (764,854)             (825,374)              (766,245)             (780,935)            (773,111)            (774,904)            (732,122)            (687,853)            
2020 Bond Debt Service (457,050)                 (458,040)              (457,105)             (456,887)              (456,069)             (456,084)            (455,744)            (456,346)            (455,178)            (454,769)            
Special management debt reserve (212,000)                 (212,000)              -                      -                       -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Expenses (15,435,849)            (14,122,410)         (14,272,479)        (14,700,665)         (14,886,612)        (15,216,042)       (15,505,452)       (15,921,250)       (16,303,108)       (16,658,082)       

Annual Net Cash Flow - General Operations 1,285,391$             (81,663)$              (52,313)$             (616,106)$            (594,409)$           (648,414)$          (673,903)$          (827,453)$          (945,156)$          (1,033,140)$       

MAJOR CONSTRUCTION
Annual Net Cash Flow - Major Construction (2,976,961)$            (3,058,657)$         (1,173,737)$        (766,127)$            (660,917)$           (725,605)$          (884,843)$          (938,084)$          (987,993)$          (994,733)$          

Annual Net Cash Flow after Major Construction (1,691,570)$            (3,140,320)$         (1,226,050)$        (1,382,233)$         (1,255,326)$        (1,374,019)$       (1,558,746)$       (1,765,537)$       (1,933,149)$       (2,027,873)$       

DEVELOPMENT (FN 1 - includes revenue loss and/or new debt service)
CADA Projects 

Site 21 (14th & N) (400,000)                 -                       500,000              510,000               520,200              530,604             541,216             552,040             563,081             574,343             
East End Gateway - Site 5/6/7, Hand in Hand, Enterprise Site & Simons -                          (305,000)              (715,000)             (1,020,000)           600,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Courtyard Site 16A -                          -                       -                      -                       -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

(400,000)                 (305,000)              (215,000)             (510,000)              1,120,200           530,604             541,216             552,040             563,081             574,343             
Neighborhood and Infrastrctrue Improvement Projects

Roosevelt Park -                          -                       (40,000)               (60,000)                -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
O Street Streetscape -                          -                       (680,590)             (149,000)              -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
16th Street Streetscape (200,000)                 -                       -                      -                       -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
10th Street Commerical (5,000)                     -                       -                      -                       -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
The Dean Improvement (174,062)                 -                       -                      -                       -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

(379,062)                 -                       (720,590)             (209,000)              -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Interest Expense - Opportunity Cost (27,267)                   (10,675)                (32,746)               (25,165)                39,207                18,571               18,943               19,321               19,708               20,102               
(27,267)                   (10,675)                (32,746)               (25,165)                39,207                18,571               18,943               19,321               19,708               20,102               

Annual Net Cash Flow - Development (806,329)$               (315,675)$            (968,336)$           (744,165)$            1,159,407$         549,175$           560,159$           571,361$           582,789$           594,445$           

ANNUAL NET CASH FLOW (2,497,899)              (3,455,995)           (2,194,386)          (2,126,398)           (95,919)               (824,844)            (998,587)            (1,194,176)         (1,350,360)         (1,433,428)         

1 to 5 Year Forecast 6 to 10 Year Forecast

21



Capitol Area Forecast
2025 Financial Forecast

Attachment 1

CAPITOL AREA
0 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29 29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-34 34-35

 (exclusive of Special Management Operations) Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10

1 to 5 Year Forecast 6 to 10 Year Forecast

(IN THOUSANDS)
ANNUAL NET CASH FLOW -$2,498 -$3,456 -$2,194 -$2,126 -$96 -$825 -$999 -$1,194 -$1,350 -$1,433

CUMULATIVE IMPACT ON AVAILABLE OPERATING RESERVES

Available Operating Reserves -Beginning of Forecast $24,241
Available Bond Funds $0 $0

Available Operating Reserves - End of Year $21,743 $18,287 $16,093 $13,967 $13,871 $13,046 $12,047 $10,853 $9,503 $8,069
Less:  Operating Reserve Threshold $5,500 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500 $5,500
Target Operating Reserve Excess <Shortfall> $16,243 $12,787 $10,593 $8,467 $8,371 $7,546 $6,547 $5,353 $4,003 $2,569

22



Capitol Area Development Authority
2025 Financial Forecast

GENERAL FUND DEVELOPMENT DETAIL

Attachment 2

Current Yr.

24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29 29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-24 34-35

CADA Projects  
D223-01 - Site 21 (14th & N) (D08 Project) Cypress  

FUNDING SOURCES
Tax Increment 500,000              510,000             520,200                530,604            541,216              552,040             563,081            574,343             

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                          -                                 -                                  -                 500,000              510,000                 520,200              530,604                541,216               552,040              563,081               574,343 

USES OF FUNDS
Developer Subsidy - offsite subsity (400,000)                   -                            
     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                          -                      (400,000)                                -                           -                          -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                          -                      (400,000)                                -                 500,000              510,000                 520,200              530,604                541,216               552,040              563,081               574,343 

D233-02 - EEG Site 5, 6 & 7 (D07 Project)
 

FUNDING SOURCES
 Bond funds -                            -                            -                     12,000,000        600,000                -                      

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                          -                                 -                                  -                           -           12,000,000                 600,000                       -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

USES OF FUNDS
4709 Funding Research & Application Cost -                       -                            (75,000)              (75,000)              -                       
4710 Engineering/Architecture (150,000)                   (500,000)            (650,000)            -                       
4720 Environment Assessment - Soil Mgmt. Plan; Asbestos Testing & Abatement -                       (10,000)                     (25,000)              (35,000)              -                       
4751 Legal Fees -                       (10,000)                     (25,000)              (35,000)              -                       -                    -                      -                     
4752 Financial Analysis (CADA Cost) -                       (20,000)                     (25,000)              (45,000)              -                       
4758 Other Professional Svcs-Other -                       (100,000)                   (50,000)              (150,000)            -                       
4775 Miscellaneous -                       (15,000)                     (15,000)              (30,000)              -                       

Gap Financing - $5M (poss $1M reimbure -                     (9,000,000)         -                    
Gap remaining -                            -                            -                     (3,000,000)         -                       
     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                          -                                 -                      (305,000)              (715,000)        (13,020,000)                           -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                          -                                 -                      (305,000)              (715,000)          (1,020,000)                 600,000                       -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

10th Street Commerical  (D19 Proposed Project)

FUNDING SOURCES
                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                          -                                 -                                  -                           -                          -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

USES OF FUNDS
4703 Site Improvements. -                       (5,000)                       -                     -                       

     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                          -                          (5,000)                                -                           -                          -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                          -                          (5,000)                                -                           -                          -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

\\CADA-FS02\Board Agendas\BOARD MEETINGS\05.23.2025 Board Meeting\Item 5 - Attachs 1-4 - 5.2025, CIP Devel Mar 2025 Board att Page:  1

23



Capitol Area Development Authority
2025 Financial Forecast

GENERAL FUND DEVELOPMENT DETAIL

Attachment 2

Current Yr.

24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29 29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-24 34-35

D807-00 - Roosevelt Park (D15 Project)

FUNDING SOURCES
                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                          -                                 -                                  -                           -                          -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

USES OF FUNDS
4758 Site Improvements - Other -                            (20,000)              (60,000)              
4758 Other Professional Services -                       -                            (20,000)              

     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                          -                                 -                                  -                  (40,000)               (60,000)                           -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                          -                                 -                                  -                  (40,000)               (60,000)                           -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

  
D801-00 - O Street Streetscape (D09 Project)

FUNDING SOURCES
Bond Funds -                            932,200                    857,910              -                     -                       

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                          -                                 -                        932,200               857,910                        -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

USES OF FUNDS
4703 Site Improvements - grant funded (712,200)                   (1,387,500)         (132,000)            
4709 Fundraising -                       -                            -                            -                     (5,000)                
4751 Legal ( Review of RT agreements -                       -                            -                            -                     (5,000)                
4758 Other Prof. Svcs - CADA funded - Const concept and drawings -                       -                            (220,000)                   (24,000)              (7,000)                -                       
5343 Permit & fees (127,000)            

     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                          -                                 -                      (932,200)           (1,538,500)             (149,000)                           -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                          -                                 -                                  -                (680,590)             (149,000)                           -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

  
D804-00 - 16th Street Streetscape (D10 Project)

FUNDING SOURCES
                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                          -                                 -                                  -                           -                          -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

USES OF FUNDS
4703 Site Improvements - other 16th street items - restroom fremont park (180,000)                   -                     
4758 Other Prof Svcs -                       (20,000)                     -                            -                     

     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                          -                      (200,000)                                -                           -                          -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                          -                      (200,000)                                -                           -                          -                             -                         -                            -                           -                         -                           -   

\\CADA-FS02\Board Agendas\BOARD MEETINGS\05.23.2025 Board Meeting\Item 5 - Attachs 1-4 - 5.2025, CIP Devel Mar 2025 Board att Page:  2

24



Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA)
2023 Long-Range Forecast

R STREET AREA FORECAST

Attachment 3

 24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29 29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-34 34-25

Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow
Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection

R STREET AREA (80% Unrestricted Portion)
Unrestricted (80%)
Revenue -                       

Tax Increment Revenue (2% annual increase) 2,565,000          2,616,300            2,668,626         2,721,999            2,776,438            2,831,967            2,888,607            2,946,379            3,005,306            3,065,412            3,126,721            
Taxable Bond Proceeds -                     -                       
Funding from the Set-a-side to partically fund affordable -                     -                       -                       
 -                     -                       

Expenses
2016 Bond Debt Service (34,904)              (34,012)                (33,611)             (33,928)                (33,954)                (33,698)                (34,429)                (34,338)                (34,430)                (34,449)                (34,393)                
2020 Bond Debt Service (1,015,668)         (1,017,867)           (1,015,789)        (1,015,305)           (1,013,487)           (1,013,521)           (1,012,765)           (1,014,103)           (1,011,507)           (1,010,597)           (1,011,518)           

1% Assistance to General Fund (Staffing Salaries & Benefits) (246,000)            (215,000)              (221,450)           (228,094)              (234,936)              (241,984)              (249,244)              (256,721)              (264,423)              (272,356)              (280,526)              
General R Street Projects -                     (110,000)              (110,000)           (110,000)              (110,000)              (110,000)              (110,000)              (110,000)              (110,000)              (110,000)              (110,000)              
R Street Improvement - 900 Block -                     -                       -                    (523,000)              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
16th & T Street - Sakura Housing Project -                     (93,000)                -                    -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
16T - S Street Improvement Project -                     (450,000)              -                    -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Middle Income Housing Progam Support -                     (150,000)              (100,000)           (100,000)              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Catalyst Affordable Housing Project -                     -                       -                    -                       (5,000,000)           (280,000)              (725,000)              (5,000,000)           -                       -                       -                       
R Street Public Space Improvement -                     (1,000,000)           -                    -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

(1,296,572)         (3,069,879)           (1,480,850)        (2,010,326)           (6,392,378)           (1,679,203)           (2,131,438)           (6,415,162)           (1,420,360)           (1,427,401)           (1,436,437)           

Cash Flow 1,268,428        (453,579)           1,187,776      711,672            (3,615,939)        1,152,764         757,169            (3,468,783)        1,584,946         1,638,011         1,690,283         

Cash Reserves Available - July 1, 2,598,254        

CUMULATIVE YEAR END FUNDS AVAILABLE 3,866,682        3,413,103$       4,600,879$    5,312,551$       1,696,612$       2,849,376$       3,606,545$       137,762$          1,722,708$       3,360,719$       5,051,003$       

R STREET SET-ASIDE (20% Portion)

Affordable Housing Related
Revenue

Tax Increment Revenue (2% annual increase) 641,000             653,820               666,896            680,234               693,839               707,716               721,870               736,308               751,034               766,054               781,375               
F20 CACDC funding -                     -                       

Expenses
2016 Bond Debt Service (6,981)                (6,803)                  (6,723)               (6,786)                  (6,791)                  (6,740)                  (6,886)                  (6,868)                  (6,887)                  (6,890)                  (6,878)                  
2020 Bond Debt Service (220,653)            (220,061)              (220,538)           (220,088)              (219,983)              (219,589)              (219,596)              (219,432)              (219,722)              (219,160)              (218,963)              
R Street Development Projects - 805 R St - CACDC -                     -                       -                    -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
R Street Development Projects - 1717 S St - CACDC -                     -                       -                    -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

(227,634)            (226,864)              (227,261)           (226,874)              (226,774)              (226,329)              (226,482)              (226,300)              (226,609)              (226,050)              (225,841)              

Cash Flow 413,366           426,956            439,636         453,361            467,065            481,387            495,388            510,007            524,424            540,004            555,535            
 

Cash Reserves Available - July 1, 1,699,949        -                    
-                   -                    

CUMULATIVE YEAR END FUNDS AVAILABLE 2,113,315        2,540,271$       2,979,906$    3,433,267$       3,900,332$       4,381,719$       4,877,107$       5,387,114$       5,911,539$       6,451,543$       7,007,078$       

1 to 5 Year Forecast 6 to 10 Year Forecast

Page 24
25



Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA)
2023 Long-Range Forecast

R STREET AREA FORECAST

Attachment 3

 24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29 29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-34 34-25

Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow Cash Flow
Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection Projection

CUMULATIVE YEAR END FUNDS AVAILABLE
(In Thousands)  24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29 29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-34 34-25

Unrestricted 3,866,682          $3,413 $4,601 $5,313 $1,697 $2,849 $3,607 $138 $1,723 $3,361 $5,051
Set-Aside 2,113,315          $2,540 $2,980 $3,433 $3,900 $4,382 $4,877 $5,387 $5,912 $6,452 $7,007

5,979,997     $5,953 $7,581 $8,746 $5,597 $7,231 $8,484 $5,525 $7,634 $9,812 $12,058

Page 25
26



Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA)
2025 Long-Range Forecast

R STREET DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

Attachment 4

 24-25  25-26  25-26  27-28  28-29  29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-34 34-25

 

D901-00 - R Street (D05 Project)
FUNDING SOURCES

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                     -                            -                       -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

Budgeted USES OF FUNDS
4211 Marketing & Media -                 (40,000)                (40,000)          (40,000)                (40,000)          (40,000)       (40,000)       (40,000)              (40,000)       (40,000)       (40,000)       
4703 Site Improvements -                 (20,000)                (20,000)          (20,000)                (20,000)          (20,000)       (20,000)       (20,000)              (20,000)       (20,000)       (20,000)       
4751 Legal - Dev Project Related -                 (10,000)                (10,000)          (10,000)                (10,000)          (10,000)       (10,000)       (10,000)              (10,000)       (10,000)       (10,000)       
4752 D&A Project Financial Analysis -                 (5,000)                  (5,000)            (5,000)                  (5,000)            (5,000)         (5,000)         (5,000)                (5,000)         (5,000)         (5,000)         
4758 D&A Other Professional Services - Other (Proj Dev; Envio Ass) -                 (10,000)                (10,000)          (10,000)                (10,000)          (10,000)       (10,000)       (10,000)              (10,000)       (10,000)       (10,000)       
4775 D&A Miscellaneous Expense -                 (25,000)                (25,000)          (25,000)                (25,000)          (25,000)       (25,000)       (25,000)              (25,000)       (25,000)       (25,000)       

 -                 
     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                     -                 (110,000)         (110,000)               (110,000)         (110,000)      (110,000)      (110,000)              (110,000)      (110,000)      (110,000)      (110,000)

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                     -                 (110,000)         (110,000)               (110,000)         (110,000)      (110,000)      (110,000)              (110,000)      (110,000)      (110,000)      (110,000)

   

R Street Public Space Improvement - 900 Block
FUNDING SOURCES

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                     -                            -                       -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

USES OF FUNDS -                       
4703 Site Improvments -                 -                       (450,000)              -                 
4758 Other profess -                 -                       -                 (73,000)                

     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                     -                            -                       -                 (523,000)                     -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                     -                            -                       -                 (523,000)                     -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

   

16T - 2000 16th Street - Sakura Housing Project
FUNDING SOURCES
Bond 4,000,000            
F60 for the project - prob to partnership reimburse 850,000               

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                     -               4,850,000                     -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

USES OF FUNDS
4601 Build/Land Acquisition -                 (93,000)                
4710 D&A Engin/Architectural -                 (400,000)              
4720 D&A Environmental Assessments -                 (50,000)                
4751 Legal - Dev Project Related -                 (70,000)                
4752 D&A Project Financial Analysis -                 (50,000)                
4758 D&A Other Professional Services -                 (3,000)                  
4775 D&A Miscellaneous Expense -                 (50,000)                
5343 Permits and Fees -                 (227,000)              

Project funding -                 (4,000,000)           -                 -                 
     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                     -              (4,943,000)                     -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                     -                   (93,000)                     -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

\\CADA-FS02\Board Agendas\BOARD MEETINGS\05.23.2025 Board Meeting\Item 5 - Attachs 1-4 - 5.2025, R St Devel March 2025 Board att Exhibit E, Page 1 of 2
27



Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA)
2025 Long-Range Forecast

R STREET DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

Attachment 4

 24-25  25-26  25-26  27-28  28-29  29-30 30-31 31-32 32-33 33-34 34-25

   

16T- S Street Project - required as part of 16T funding
FUNDING SOURCES

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                     -                            -                       -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

USES OF FUNDS
4710 D&A Engin/Architectural (325,000)              
4758 D&A Other Professional Services (125,000)              

     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                     -                 (450,000)                     -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                     -                 (450,000)                     -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

Middle Income Housing Program Support

FUNDING SOURCES
                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                     -                            -                       -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

USES OF FUNDS
Development Loan Funding (150,000)              (100,000)        (100,000)              -                 
     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                     -                 (150,000)         (100,000)               (100,000)                     -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                     -                 (150,000)         (100,000)               (100,000)                     -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

 

New/Catalyst Affordable Housing Project
FUNDING SOURCES

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                     -                            -                       -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

USES OF FUNDS
4601 Build/Land Acquisition -                 -                       -                 -                       (5,000,000)     
4709 Funding esearch & App Cost -                 (50,000)       
4710 D&A Engin/Architectural -                 -                       -                 (150,000)     (500,000)     
4720 D&A Environmental Assessments -                 -                       -                 (50,000)       (25,000)       
4751 Legal - Dev Project Related -                 -                       -                 (10,000)       (25,000)       
4752 D&A Project Financial Analysis -                 -                       (50,000)       (25,000)       
4758 D&A Other Professional Services -                 -                       -                 (10,000)       (50,000)       
4775 D&A Miscellaneous Expense -                 -                       -                 (10,000)       (50,000)       

Gap Financing -                 -                       (5,000,000)         
     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                     -                            -                       -                            -        (5,000,000)      (280,000)      (725,000)           (5,000,000)                 -                   -                   -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                     -                            -                       -                            -        (5,000,000)      (280,000)      (725,000)           (5,000,000)                 -                   -                   -   

   

R Street Public Space Improvement 
FUNDING SOURCES

                                             Total CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM - FUNDING SOURCES     TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES                     -                            -                       -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

USES OF FUNDS
4703 Site Improvments -                 (1,000,000)           -                 -                       -                 

     TOTAL USES OF FUNDS                     -              (1,000,000)                     -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

DEVELOPMENT CIP PROGRAM - Funding Sources, net of Uses                     -              (1,000,000)                     -                            -                       -                   -                   -                           -                   -                   -                   -   

\\CADA-FS02\Board Agendas\BOARD MEETINGS\05.23.2025 Board Meeting\Item 5 - Attachs 1-4 - 5.2025, R St Devel March 2025 Board att Exhibit E, Page 2 of 2
28



May 15, 2025 

TO: Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA) Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: May 23, 2025 Board Meeting 
Agenda Item 6 
 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM (CIP) STATUS REPORT & 
FIVE-YEAR NEEDS ASSESSMENT REPORT 

CONTACT:  Josh Palmer, Deputy Director 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Informational only. 

BACKGROUND 
Twice each year, in May and October, CADA staff prepares a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
Status Report and 5-Year Needs Assessment Report and presents them to the Board. This timing 
allows the Board to consider staff’s June and December budget proposals while taking into 
consideration the physical needs of CADA’s building stock.   

The CIP Program Status Report and Needs Assessment Report provide information on completed, 
current, and proposed major maintenance, rehabilitation and construction improvements to 
CADA-managed properties within the Capitol Area.  Work typically consists of improvements to 
residential buildings, commercial buildings, parking, landscape and infrastructure that the 2024 
Capital Needs Assessment, CADA staff’s field assessments, and CADA strategic planning have 
identified as being necessary.   

The report can be found in Attachment 1 - CIP Status Report (May 2025). The report is 
summarized below.  

Status of Budgeted CIP Projects 

Budgeted projects are shown in the first three shaded columns of Attachment 1, labeled “Current 
Budget C23 FY 2022/2023, Current Budget C24 FY 2023/2024, and Current Budget C25 FY 
2024/2025.” CADA’s multi-year capital budgeting process provides for fiscal year budgets to 
remain open for 3 years so the CIP Status Report includes fiscal year budgets for 3 years at any 
given time. The CIP Status Report is a working tool that enables staff to keep track of the status 
of the various projects and is presented to the Board to report on project status and to show the 
level of investment in individual buildings during those three fiscal years. 

In the columns marked “Completed,” the completed projects for each fiscal year starting in FY 
2022/2023 are shown with the expenditures to date. The open projects remaining to be finished 
are shown in the “Open” columns. The report presents the following information about each 
budgeted project:   

• Project Address

29



• Scope of Work 
• Budget Spent (“Completed”) 
• Budget Remaining (“Open”) 

 
CADA’s current CIP priorities include window replacement, roof replacement, repairing dry-rot, 
electrical service upgrades, exterior painting, and general carpentry. These repair priorities reflect 
the continued aging of CADA’s 52 apartment buildings and 21 commercial spaces, and CADA’s 
efforts to modernize building systems and make them more energy and water efficient.   
 
As illustrated in Table 1 below, to date CADA has completed $4,395,674 in CIP projects budgeted 
within fiscal years 2022/2023 through 2024/2025 out of a budget of $7,638,468, leaving 
$2,524,131 in open projects. As Attachment 1 shows, the three largest projects completed using 
FY 2022/2023 funds included window projects located at 1201 P Street, 1521 12th Street, and 
1517 12th Street. There is also a window project scheduled for 1522 N Street. CADA staff has 
completed a roofing project located at 1506 13th Street, as well as dry rot repair.    
 
The largest project using FY 2023/2024 funding was asbestos abatement at various apartments 
as part of CADA’s new effort to upgrade flooring in CADA apartments as part of the turn process. 
The new flooring ensures that the apartments are more sustainable, have a longer life on their 
finishes, and are more competitive in the current rental market.  
 
The largest projects using FY 2024/2025 funds included unit renovations at the Dean, located at 
1400 N Street, as well as a roof replacement at 1506 13th Street. Additionally, CADA completed a 
structural rehabilitation project at 1500 15th Street and recently, CADA completed a window 
project at 1228 O Street and 1517 12th Street. CADA staff has actively been working on the unit 
turns throughout the CADA portfolio, which have received a positive reaction from tenants. In 
commercial spaces, CADA recently completed a tenant improvement (TI) project to the former 
CLTRE CLUB space, which is now a gym operating under the name Iron Roots Fitness, which has 
been open since the beginning of April. CADA has also completed work in the former Simon’s 
space, which is scheduled to be open by July 1st under the new name Meza California which is a 
Persian fusion restaurant. The increased foot traffic in the area directly supports our other 
commercial tenants and residents in the area. CADA also completed TI work for the Capital YMCA 
to include a new boiler, significant electrical upgrades and a large HVAC project which is to 
commence immediately. Capital YMCA is currently open and operating.  
 
Table 1 – Budgeted CIP Projects Status Report Summary for FY 2022/2023 through 
FY 2024/2025* 
 

  FY 22/23 CIP Budget FY 23/24 CIP Budget FY 24/25 CIP Budget Grand 
  Completed Open Completed Open Completed Open  Total 
General 
Fund 

$528,664 $495,836 $461,166 $1,176,334 $2,053,350 $2,723,624 $7,438,974 

Special Mgt. - - - - $199,494 - 
 

$199,494 

TOTAL 
COMPLETED 

$528,664  $461,166  $2,252,844  $4,395,674 
 

TOTAL OPEN - $495,836 - $1,176,334 - $2,524,131  $3,242,674 
GRAND 
TOTAL 
(COMPLETED 
AND OPEN) 

$1,024,500 $1,637,500 $4,976,468 $7,638,468 

*Note: Expenses are indicated as projects are initiated, rather than invoiced, and therefore the project budgets may not match the financial reports due 
to timing differences from the start of project to invoicing.  

30



 

CADA’s Interim Facility Maintenance Superintendent, John Dodson, his manager, Josh Palmer, 
CADA’s Deputy Director, and the Maintenance Department are currently focusing on routine 
maintenance and time-critical CIP projects. Artemis Construction Management (CM) has 
completed a Capital Needs Assessment on CADA properties that supports project planning and 
identifies critical issues related to deferred maintenance, structural integrity, roofing and window 
projects, as well as any other less pressing issues identified by Artemis CM and projects to reduce 
water and energy usage.  
 
In addition, staff continues to work with Tremco Roofing, who have helped identify many leaking 
or aging roofs and assists in prioritizing roofs that should be replaced in the next five years.  
CADA’s top priority roofing projects currently include 1330 P, 1316 N, and 1212-1214 P, which 
will require approximately $400,000 in total to complete. This will help reduce the Table 1 open 
items balances in a meaningful way. To date, a total of 14 roofs have been replaced. Staff also 
completed a roof replacement at 525 S Street, the future home of CADA’s Maintenance warehouse 
and office.   
 
Another area of focus is replacing all single-pane windows with modern dual-pane glass windows 
that also have UV blocking. These efforts will reduce our carbon footprint by increasing heating 
and cooling efficiency. The current four priority window replacement projects include: 1317 15th 
Street, 1327 O Street, 1501 15th Street, 1506 13th Street, 1512 13th Street, and 1623 P Street.   
These projects are currently being reviewed with the hopes that CADA can complete these 
projects with a single contractor in order to reduce overall costs. The estimated cost of this project 
is still with the contract estimator.  
 
In conjunction with Artemis Construction Management, CADA staff is identifying additional 
projects to address deferred maintenance to include structural repairs, windows and 
waterproofing, exterior paint, and HVAC projects. CADA currently has a window project under 
contract at 1522 N Street and a roofing project at 1330 P Street. Staff is focused on an HVAC 
project at 1325 15th Street to replace the aging boiler, which is past is useful life. CADA has 
identified an additional 25 projects for the next fiscal year which will extend the life of our 
buildings.   
 
In addition to the usual water and energy conservation upgrades that are made when units are 
vacated and turned, CADA is also utilizing this time to modernize our portfolio by installing 
Laminated Vinyl Plank (LVP) flooring, upgraded Shaker-style cabinetry, quartz countertops and 5 
½” baseboards. To do this work in the current fiscal year, staff reprioritized selected budgeted 
projects to direct approximately $800,000 to these efforts. Again, this ongoing project has 
resulted in an improved leasing rate and a favorable response from tenants. 
 
5-Year CIP Needs Assessment 

• Inspections 
• Future needs  
 

CADA staff continues to perform routine exterior inspections of CADA residential properties and 
uses the Capitol Needs Assessment from Artemis Construction to plan for future property needs. 
The continuing inspections are an effort to more proactively identify and correct deficiencies, 
improve the appearance of CADA’s properties, and are used to adjust the 5-year CIP assessment. 
See Attachment 2, 5-Year CIP Needs Assessment (Calendar Years 2025 – 2029).   
 
Table 2 below this paragraph, summarizes the 5-Year Needs Assessment for CADA’s 52 apartment 
buildings and projected future Capital Improvement Program (CIP) spending the buildings will 
require.  It reflects proposed spending of $ $9,564,574 over the next five years, starting with FY 
2024/2025 which begins on July 1, 2024 and running through FY 2028/2029. The majority of this 

31



need ($9,564,574 of the $9,822,568) is for General Fund buildings. The remaining $257,994 is 
for Special Management Program buildings, which are buildings CADA operates under affordable 
housing regulatory agreements with various state and local public agencies. CIP projects for the 
succeeding five years provide the basis for future budgetary planning and consideration. Details 
of the future projects are shown in the Attachment 2 - 5 Year CIP Needs Assessment (Calendar 
Years 2025 – 2029). 
 
Table 2 – Five-Year CIP Needs Assessment Summary of Proposed Expenditures 
 

  FIVE YEAR CIP NEEDS ASSESSMENT   
FY 24/25 FY 25/26 FY 26/27 FY 27/28 FY 28/29 Total 

General 
Fund 

$4,776,974 $2,534,000 $661,200 $757,800 $834,600 $9,564,574 

Special 
Mgt. 

$199,494 $15,500 $0 $0 $43,000 $257,994 

GRAND 
TOTAL 

$4,976,468 $2,549,500 $661,200 $757,800 $877,600 $9,822,568 

 
 
Similar to the priorities reflected in Attachment 1 – May 2024 CIP - Status Report, the 5-Year CIP 
Needs Assessment (Calendar Years 2025 – 2029) reflects a focus on upgrading aging building 
systems.     
 
The projected five years’ needs will be updated soon with the current building assessments 
underway, and will become the basis for budget preparation in 2025 and each year thereafter. 
The FY 2025/2026 numbers shown above reflect the budget that staff will be asking the Board 
to approve at the June 2025 Board meeting. Projects may be added or removed based on the 
needs at the time of the new budget proposal. 
 
POLICY 
Staff presents the Five-Year CIP Needs Assessment to the Board bi-annually for information and 
discussion to ensure that these needs are appropriately and adequately addressed during the 
annual and mid-year budgeting processes.  The Board approves the CIP budget for the upcoming 
fiscal year in June.  This budget remains open for three years to allow sufficient time to prepare 
scopes of work, prepare and issue bid packages, obtain bids and complete the work.  
 
The overarching CIP strategy is to preserve, maintain and enhance existing structures unless 
building obsolescence or development strategies dictate otherwise.  Reinvestment decisions 
should be consistent with the State Capitol Area Plan and the CADA Strategic Plan.  Preventative 
maintenance and preservation of existing structures through appropriate maintenance are also 
consistent with state and general public policy regarding sustainable development.  To the extent 
possible, this type of preservation of materials and avoidance of demolition of structures reduces 
landfill and material waste.  All CIP projects are designed and constructed in compliance with 
current building codes and regulations, including California energy efficiency standards and 
regulations.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS 
Current and estimated future financial impacts are shown in Tables 1 & 2 above. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 
This item does not require CEQA review or certification. This project falls under the categorical 
exemption for existing facilities in class 1, section 15301. Class 1 consists of the operation, repair, 
maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private 

32



structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no 
expansion of existing or former use. 
 
CADA STRATEGIC PLAN  
Preparation of the CIP Status Report and the CIP Needs Assessment meets the Strategic Plan 
Objective to “Deliver Community Development Leadership” by allowing CADA to develop a 
comprehensive and detailed strategy to meet the capital improvement needs of its buildings, 
which will result in buildings that are more livable for tenants, more energy efficient, more resilient 
in the face of expected climate change impacts over the coming decades, and with systems that 
are better-prepared to continue to serve CADA’s tenants. This report and assessments will also 
inform our responsible use of resources, including with preventative maintenance that will lower 
long-term costs and the overall effective management of CADA’s assets. 
 
Attachments: 

1. 5-Year CIP Needs Assessment (Calendar Years 2025 – 2029) 
 
 

33



1
2
3
4

5
6

7

8

9
10
11
12

13

14

15

16

17
18

19
20
21

22
23

24

25

26

27
28
29

A B C D E F I J K L M N T W X Y Z AA AG
Balances Remaining 4,307,936$         172,985$         103,408$      119,000$      53,790$                  

Budget Added 701,500$             736,575$         773,404$      812,074$      852,678$                
Extra Funds Requested 1,501,940$         -$                  -$               -$               -$                         

Amount Remaining 172,985$             103,408$         119,000$      53,790$        78,176$                  

Priority
Within 
Larger 
Project

Address
 #

Address 
Street

Building Name
Job / Project

Type
 Project Description Acct FY

Acct 
Code

Acct 
Number

Projected 
Year

Project 
Completed

(*)
row blue

Hired 
Contractor

 2025/2026
uplift 

 2026/2027
uplift 

2027/2028
uplift

 2028/2029
uplift 

 2029/2030
uplift 

 Hired Contractor
w/uplift 

0 SS#1 1330 P St Palm Mansion Roof  Shingle and Roofing  C23 C284-10 007.3 2025/2026 128,000.00$       128,000$             128,000.00$                                

2 SS#1 1510 15th St The Victorian Exterior Paint
 Exterior Siding Replacement as 

needed; Exterior Paint (3,120 SF) 
 C23 C226-09 010.30 2025/2026 43,995.60$         43,996$               43,995.60$                                   

2 1506 O St Johnston House Windows 

 Replace Windows: Double Hung 
Vinyl (150 SF) / Exterior Paint 

(including wood stairs)  Window 
Sills  

C23 C232-18B 006.3 2025/2026 x 127,000.00$       127,000$             127,000.00$                                

2 1506 O St Johnston House Finishes
 Gutter Replacement /Dry Rot 
/repair damage at substrate 

C23 C232-18B 009.9 2025/2026 x 141,620.00$       141,620$             141,620.00$                                

1-4 1036 P St LeCroissant Sitework  Site Remediation C23 C333-11 002.1 2025/2026 5,000.00$           5,000$                 5,000.00$                                     
1-4 Varies Varies 16th Street Commercial Sitework  Planting and Rehab C23 C232-16 002.9 2025/2026 37,332.50$         37,333$               37,332.50$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies 16th Street Commercial Interior Paint  Interior Paint C23 C232-16 009.5 2025/2026 23,000.00$         23,000$               23,000.00$                                   

0 1510 O St Don Carlos Structural Repair Stairways/Decking/Walkways C24 C232-18C 010.30 2025/2026 78,200.00$         78,200$               
78,200.00$                                   

1 1506 13th St McCafferty Manor Flooring
Replace Carpet with LVT - tripping 
hazards  (3,636 SF)/Paint Interiors 

(32,724 SF)
C24 C222-10 009.6 2025/2026 85,070.00$         85,070$               85,070.00$                                   

2 SS#1 1327 O St Capri Windows / HVAC
 Replace Windows: Sliding Vinyl 

(1890 SF) /Upgrade to Mini-Split / 
Exterior paint (5,800 SF) 

C24 C223-10 008.5 2025/2026 95,400.00$         95,400$               95,400.00$                                   

2 SS#1 1506 13th St McCafferty Manor
Windows / 

Waterproofing

 Install 97 windows; Paint Exterior 
and Stucco Repair; Remove stucco 

up to 8" to avoid contact with 
ground and add weep screed per 

structural report 

C24 C222-10 008.5 2025/2026 225,926.10$       225,926$             225,926.10$                                

2 1625 O St Windows
 Replace Windows: Casement Vinyl 
(2330 SF); Exterior Paint (9,320 SF) 

C24 C233-14 008.4 2025/2026 236,262.00$       236,262$             236,262.00$                                

1-4 1401 16th St Enterprise Roof  Replace Roof C24 C233-27 007.00 2025/2026 25,000.00$         25,000$               25,000.00$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Commercial Tenant Improvements C24 C888-88 019.5 2025/2026 6,384.92$           6,385$                 6,384.92$                                     

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Contingency (5%) C24 C888-88 019.1 2025/2026 22,784.49$         22,784$               22,784.49$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Fire and Life Safety C24 C888-88 019.3 2025/2026 8,000.00$           8,000$                 8,000.00$                                     

3 SS#4 Varies P St Sitework
 123 lf of Landscaping Parkway Strip 

(1212-14, 1216-18, & 1220 P Str) 
C24 C281-06 002.9 2026/2027 19,926.00$         20,922$           20,922.30$                                   

3 1521 12th St Plumbing Replacement Boiler C24 C222-23 13.3 2028/2029 150,000.00$       172,500$      172,500.00$                                

3 SS#4 1201 P St Del Capri Sitework
 162 lf of Landscaping at Parkway 

Strip (including 1215 P) 
C24 C222-22 002.9 2026/2027 26,244.00$         27,556$           27,556.20$                                   

3 SS#4 1201 P St Del Capri Sitework
 Landscape improvements in 

courtyard 
C24 C222-22 002.9 2026/2027 70,920.00$         74,466$           74,466.00$                                   

2 SS#1 1327 O St Capri Windows / HVAC
 Replace Windows: Sliding Vinyl 

(1890 SF) /Upgrade to Mini-Split / 
Exterior paint (5,800 SF) 

C25 C223-12 008.5 2025/2026 106,719.30$       106,719$             106,719.30$                                

2 SS#1 1623 P St Lanai Apts Windows
Replace Windows: Casement (818 

SF); Exterior Paint (6,320 SF)
C25 C233-16 008.5 2025/2026 88,641.00$         88,641$               88,641.00$                                   

1-4 525 S St Maintenance Office Sitework  Improvements/Amenities C25 C555-01 002.8 2025/2026 1,945,150.00$   1,945,150$         2,345,150.00$                             
1-4 1515 8th St Capitol Athletic Club HVAC  HVAC Equipment C25 C515-01 015.7 2025/2026 427,150.00$       427,150$             427,150.00$                                

Attachment 1

34



1
2
3
4

5

A B C D E F I J K L M N T W X Y Z AA AG
Balances Remaining 4,307,936$         172,985$         103,408$      119,000$      53,790$                  

Budget Added 701,500$             736,575$         773,404$      812,074$      852,678$                
Extra Funds Requested 1,501,940$         -$                  -$               -$               -$                         

Amount Remaining 172,985$             103,408$         119,000$      53,790$        78,176$                  

Priority
Within 
Larger 
Project

Address
 #

Address 
Street

Building Name
Job / Project

Type
 Project Description Acct FY

Acct 
Code

Acct 
Number

Projected 
Year

Project 
Completed

(*)
row blue

Hired 
Contractor

 2025/2026
uplift 

 2026/2027
uplift 

2027/2028
uplift

 2028/2029
uplift 

 2029/2030
uplift 

 Hired Contractor
w/uplift 

30
31
32

33
34

35
36

37

38
39
40

41

42

43

44

45
46

47

48

49

50

51

1-4 1515 8th St Capitol Athletic Club TI  Tenant Improvements C25 C515-01 019.5 2025/2026 115,749.00$       115,749$             115,749.00$                                
1-4 1520-D 16th St TI  Tenant Improvements C25 C233-02 019.5 2025/2026 30,000.00$         30,000$               30,000.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Common Area Paint C25 C000-00 009.9 2025/2026 20,000.00$         20,000$               20,000.00$                                   

1-4 SS#2 Varies Varies Varies Unit Turn
 Annual Scattered Sites Contract 

with General Contracting for Unit 
Upgrades at Turn  

C25 C888-88 010.9 2025/2026 177,829.80$       177,830$             177,829.80$                                

2 Varies Varies Varies General  Toxic Abatement C25 C888-88 019.4 2026/2027 20,000.00$         22,000$           22,000.00$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Commercial Tenant Improvements C25 C888-88 019.5 2026/2027 18,182.00$         20,000$           20,000.20$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Contingency (5%) C25 C888-88 019.4 2026/2027 32,929.00$         34,575$           34,575.45$                                   

1-4 SS#2 Varies Varies Varies Unit Turn
 Annual Scattered Sites Contract 

with General Contracting for Unit 
Upgrades at Turn  

C25 C888-88 020.1 2026/2027 177,829.80$       186,721$         186,721.29$                                

3 SS#1 1615-17 P St Lanai Apts Windows
Replace Windows: Casement Vinyl 
(1,636 SF); Exterior Paint (12,364 

SF)
C25 C234-24 008.5 2027/2028 176,014.80$       193,616$      193,616.28$                                

0 1325 15th St Park Mansion Plumbing Add 12 to 15 Tankless WH 2025/2026 75,000.00$         75,000$               75,000.00$                                   
0 1400 O St TableVine Plumbing  Sewer Repair 2025/2026 50,000.00$         50,000$               50,000.00$                                   

1 SS#1 1317 O St The Valencia Structural Repair
Remove and reconstruct masonry 

wall
2025/2026 20,214.00$         20,214$               20,214.00$                                   

1 1400 N St The Dean Structural Repair
Replace water damaged wood 

framing in attic
2025/2026 9,200.00$           9,200$                 9,200.00$                                     

1 1501 15th St Dauger Manor Structural Repair
Repair floor joist bearing on 

concrete
2025/2026 11,500.00$         11,500$               11,500.00$                                   

1 SS#1 1506 13th St McCafferty Manor Structural Repair Repair exterior stair tread 2025/2026 6,750.00$           6,750$                 6,750.00$                                     

1 1506-22 17th St 17th St Commons Structural Repair Replace wood members 2025/2026 15,525.00$         15,525$               15,525.00$                                   

2 SS#1 1201 P St Del Capri Exterior Paint  Exterior paint (3960 SF) 2025/2026 18,176.40$         18,176$               18,176.40$                                   

2 SS#1 1317 15th St The Lombard
Windows / 

Waterproofing

 Replace Windows: Steel Windows / 
Glass Block (1,754 SF); Add 

expansion joint to stucco/wood 
transition, Exterior paint (9,632 SF) 

2025/2026 293,312.70$       293,313$             423,312.70$                                

2 SS#1 1317 O St The Valencia Exterior Paint
Exterior paint (6,520 SF) and repair 
cracks / Repair and extend gutter to 

divert water from foundation 
2025/2026 30,826.80$         30,827$               30,826.80$                                   

2 SS#1 1325 15th St Park Mansion Exterior
 Tuck point exterior/ Paint Exterior 

(9,250 SF) 
2025/2026 293,626.80$       293,627$             423,626.80$                                

2 1400 N St The Dean Waterproofing
 Remove stucco up to 8" to avoid 

contact with ground per structural 
report 

2025/2026 14,550.00$         14,550$               14,550.00$                                   

2 SS#1 1420 O St The Statesman
HVAC / 

Waterproofing

Upgrade to Mini-Split / Add weep 
screed and expansion joints to 
stucco; replace architectural 

plywood sheathing /Exterior Paint, 
including gas lines (9,900 SF)

2025/2026 248,763.60$       248,764$             248,763.60$                                

35



1
2
3
4

5

A B C D E F I J K L M N T W X Y Z AA AG
Balances Remaining 4,307,936$         172,985$         103,408$      119,000$      53,790$                  

Budget Added 701,500$             736,575$         773,404$      812,074$      852,678$                
Extra Funds Requested 1,501,940$         -$                  -$               -$               -$                         

Amount Remaining 172,985$             103,408$         119,000$      53,790$        78,176$                  

Priority
Within 
Larger 
Project

Address
 #

Address 
Street

Building Name
Job / Project

Type
 Project Description Acct FY

Acct 
Code

Acct 
Number

Projected 
Year

Project 
Completed

(*)
row blue

Hired 
Contractor

 2025/2026
uplift 

 2026/2027
uplift 

2027/2028
uplift

 2028/2029
uplift 

 2029/2030
uplift 

 Hired Contractor
w/uplift 

52
53
54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62
63

64

65

66

67
68

69
70
71
72
73

2 SS#1 1501 15th St Dauger Manor Windows

 Replace windows: Casement Vinyl 
(2,085 SF) / Wood sills replacement 
Repair Stucco Cracks/ Exterior paint 

(10,060 SF) 

2025/2026 196,713.90$       196,714$             196,713.90$                                

2 SS#1 1506 13th St McCafferty Manor Roof  Replace Roof 2025/2026 59,004.00$         59,004$               59,004.00$                                   
2 SS#1 1506 13th St McCafferty Manor Security Add Cameras at Parking 2025/2026 15,120.00$         15,120$               15,120.00$                                   

2 SS#1 1506 13th St McCafferty Manor Waterproofing
 Repair and extend gutter to divert 

water from foundation  
2025/2026 900.00$               900$                     900.00$                                        

2 SS#1 1506 13th St McCafferty Manor Waterproofing
 Repair concrete corner per 

structural recommendations 
2025/2026 6,750.00$           6,750$                 6,750.00$                                     

2 SS#1 1506 O St Johnston House Deck
 Repair Damage Deck Board, 

Repaint and Seal, Repair Splitting 
Wood at Stairs 

2025/2026 1,800.00$           1,800$                 1,800.00$                                     

2 SS#1 1512 13th St Structural Repair
Epoxy concrete crack in basement 

foundation wall
2025/2026 3,573.00$           3,573$                 3,573.00$                                     

2 SS#1 1512 13th St Waterproofing
 Remove stucco up to 8" to avoid 

contact with ground and add weep 
screed per structural report 

2025/2026 3,850.20$           3,850$                 3,850.20$                                     

2 SS#1 1512 13th St Waterproofing
 Repair and extend gutter to divert 

water from foundation  
2025/2026 900.00$               900$                     900.00$                                        

2 SS#1 1512 13th St Windows
 Replace Windows: Casement Vinyl 
(810 SF), Exterior Paint (4,280 SF) 

2025/2026 78,694.20$         78,694$               78,694.20$                                   

2 SS#1 1517 12th St HVAC
Upgrade to Mini-Split / Exterior 

Paint (6,600 SF)
2025/2026 64,775.70$         64,776$               64,775.70$                                   

2 SS#1 1517 12th St Security Add Cameras at Parking 2025/2026 1,719.00$           1,719$                 1,719.00$                                     

2 SS#1 1522 N St Judith House Windows
 Replace Windows: Sliding Vinyl 
(813 SF) /Upgrade to Mini-Split / 

Exterior paint (7,365 SF) 
2025/2026 241,838.10$       241,838$             241,838.10$                                

2 SS#1 1522 N St Waterproofing

 Remove stucco up to 8" to avoid 
contact with ground per structural 

report, add weep screed and  
replace decayed mudsill areas 

2025/2026 5,836.50$           5,837$                 5,836.50$                                     

1-4 SS#1 Varies Varies Varies Exterior
 General Contractor Fees for 

Scattered Sites #1 
2025/2026 369,256.00$       369,256$             369,256.00$                                

2 1330 P St Palm Mansion
Windows / 

Waterproofing

 Replace Windows: Vinyl (1175 SF) / 
Dry rot Throughout Exterior, 

Repair/Splitting Wood at Stairs/ 
Repair Stair Railing in Front and 
Back of Building / Exterior Paint 

(3678 SF) 

2026/2027 320,599.00$       336,629$         336,628.95$                                

2 Varies Varies Varies General  Tree Trimming  2026/2027 16,150.00$         16,958$           16,957.50$                                   

3 SS#4 Varies Varies Varies Sitework
 Contractor Fees for Scattered Sites 

#4 
2026/2027 31,194.00$         24,589$           24,589.00$                                   

3 Varies Varies Varies General  Roof Cleaning 2026/2027 -$                      -$                  -$                                               
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Additional Unit Turns 2026/2027 10,850.00$         11,935$           11,935.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Common Area Paint 2026/2027 20,000.00$         21,000$           21,000.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Fire and Life Safety 2026/2027 8,000.00$           8,800$             8,800.00$                                     

36



1
2
3
4

5

A B C D E F I J K L M N T W X Y Z AA AG
Balances Remaining 4,307,936$         172,985$         103,408$      119,000$      53,790$                  

Budget Added 701,500$             736,575$         773,404$      812,074$      852,678$                
Extra Funds Requested 1,501,940$         -$                  -$               -$               -$                         

Amount Remaining 172,985$             103,408$         119,000$      53,790$        78,176$                  

Priority
Within 
Larger 
Project

Address
 #

Address 
Street

Building Name
Job / Project

Type
 Project Description Acct FY

Acct 
Code

Acct 
Number

Projected 
Year

Project 
Completed

(*)
row blue

Hired 
Contractor

 2025/2026
uplift 

 2026/2027
uplift 

2027/2028
uplift

 2028/2029
uplift 

 2029/2030
uplift 

 Hired Contractor
w/uplift 

74
75
76
77

78
79
80
81

82
83
84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92
93

94
95
96
97

98
99

100
101

102

2 Varies Varies Varies General  Toxic Abatement 2027/2028 20,000.00$         22,000$        22,000.00$                                   
3 SS#3 Varies Varies Varies Fobs  Conversion to Fob Entry 2027/2028 195,075.00$       214,583$      214,582.50$                                
3 Varies Varies Varies General  Roof Cleaning 2027/2028 22,840.35$         25,124$        25,124.39$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Additional Unit Turns 2027/2028 19,160.00$         21,076$        21,076.00$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Commercial Tenant Improvements 2027/2028 20,000.00$         22,000$        22,000.00$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Common Area Paint 2027/2028 20,000.00$         22,000$        22,000.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Contingency (5%) 2027/2028 30,000.00$         33,000$        33,000.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Fire and Life Safety 2027/2028 8,000.00$           8,800$          8,800.00$                                     

1-4 SS#2 Varies Varies Varies Unit Turn
 Annual Scattered Sites Contract 

with General Contracting for Unit 
Upgrades at Turn  

2027/2028 177,829.80$       195,613$      195,612.78$                                

2 Varies Varies Varies General  Toxic Abatement 2028/2029 20,000.00$         23,000$        23,000.00$                                   
3 1317 15th St The Lombard Plumbing Water Heater Upgrade 2028/2029 24,472.00$         28,143$        28,142.80$                                   

3 1521 12th St Exterior Paint
Recent window installed, paint 

exterior (4,740 SF)
2028/2029 24,174.00$         27,800$        27,800.10$                                   

3 1631 P St 17th St Commons Stairs
 Replace wood stairs and landing, 

and paint as needed 
2028/2029 37,059.00$         42,618$        42,617.85$                                   

3 SS#5 Varies 12th St Sitework
 68 lf of Landscaping Parkway Strip 

(1517 and 1521 12th) 
2028/2029 11,016.00$         12,668$        12,668.40$                                   

3 SS#5 Varies 15th St Sitework
 160lf of General Landscaping (1317 

and 1321 15th) 
2028/2029 25,920.00$         29,808$        29,808.00$                                   

3 SS#5 Varies N St Sitework
 370 lf of General Landscaping  

(1500 N and 1522 N) 
2028/2029 59,940.00$         68,931$        68,931.00$                                   

3 SS#5 Varies Varies Sitework
 210 lf of General Landscaping  

(1326 P, 1330P, 1321-23 Q) 
2028/2029 34,020.00$         39,123$        39,123.00$                                   

3 SS#5 Varies Varies Sitework
 327 lf of General Landscaping at 

Front and Sides (1400 N and 1428 
14th) 

2028/2029 52,974.00$         60,920$        60,920.10$                                   

3 SS#5 Varies Varies Varies Sitework
 Contractor Fees for Scattered Sites 

#5 
2028/2029 40,451.00$         46,519$        46,518.65$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Additional Unit Turns 2028/2029 27,000.00$         31,050$        31,050.00$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Commercial Tenant Improvements 2028/2029 20,000.00$         23,000$        23,000.00$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Common Area Paint 2028/2029 20,000.00$         23,000$        23,000.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Contingency (5%) 2028/2029 30,000.00$         34,500$        34,500.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Fire and Life Safety 2028/2029 8,000.00$           9,200$          9,200.00$                                     

1-4 SS#2 Varies Varies Varies Unit Turn
 Annual Scattered Sites Contract 

with General Contracting for Unit 
Upgrades at Turn  

2028/2029 177,829.80$       204,504$      204,504.27$                                

2 Varies Varies Varies General  Tree Trimming  2029/2030 28,800.00$         34,560$                  34,560.00$                                   

2 Varies Varies Varies Structural Repair SB-721 Structural Assessment 2029/2030 24,000.00$         30,000$                  30,000.00$                                   

2 Varies Varies Varies General  Toxic Abatement 2029/2030 10,000.00$         12,000$                  12,000.00$                                   

3 1228 O St Gibson Arms HVAC
 Upgrade to Mini-Split / Exterior 

Paint (7,720 SF) 
2029/2030 112,060.80$       134,473$                134,472.96$                                

37



1
2
3
4

5

A B C D E F I J K L M N T W X Y Z AA AG
Balances Remaining 4,307,936$         172,985$         103,408$      119,000$      53,790$                  

Budget Added 701,500$             736,575$         773,404$      812,074$      852,678$                
Extra Funds Requested 1,501,940$         -$                  -$               -$               -$                         

Amount Remaining 172,985$             103,408$         119,000$      53,790$        78,176$                  

Priority
Within 
Larger 
Project

Address
 #

Address 
Street

Building Name
Job / Project

Type
 Project Description Acct FY

Acct 
Code

Acct 
Number

Projected 
Year

Project 
Completed

(*)
row blue

Hired 
Contractor

 2025/2026
uplift 

 2026/2027
uplift 

2027/2028
uplift

 2028/2029
uplift 

 2029/2030
uplift 

 Hired Contractor
w/uplift 

103
104
105

106
107

108
109
110
111

112

3 1212-14 P St Windows / HVAC

 Replace Windows: Double Hung 
Vinyl (150 SF) / Steel Replica (539 

SF) /Upgrade to Mini-Split / Exterior 
Paint (4,080 SF) /Exterior Paint 

(4,080 SF) & Gutter Replacement 

2029/2030 146,050.00$       175,260.00$          175,260.00$                                

3 Varies Varies Varies General  Roof Cleaning 2029/2030 22,840.35$         27,408$                  27,408.42$                                   
4 1228 O St Gibson Arms Flooring  Install new common area LVT  2029/2030 19,639.00$         23,567$                  23,566.80$                                   

4 1316 O St Exterior Paint 
Recent window installed; dry rot on 

siding; paint exterior (6,320 SF)
2029/2030 44,663.00$         53,596$                  53,595.60$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Additional Unit Turns 2029/2030 25,360.00$         30,432$                  30,432.00$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Commercial Tenant Improvements 2029/2030 20,000.00$         24,000$                  24,000.00$                                   

1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Common Area Paint 2029/2030 20,000.00$         24,000$                  24,000.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Contingency (5%) 2029/2030 30,000.00$         36,000$                  36,000.00$                                   
1-4 Varies Varies Varies General  Fire and Life Safety 2029/2030 8,000.00$           9,600$                    9,600.00$                                     

1-4 SS#2 Varies Varies Varies Unit Turn
 Annual Scattered Sites Contract 

with General Contracting for Unit 
Upgrades at Turn  

2029/2030 177,829.80$       213,396$                213,395.76$                                

38



4908-2842-7587.3 010080.089  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 15, 2025 
 
TO: Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA) Board of Directors 

Capitol Area Community Development Corporation (CACDC) Board of Directors 
 

SUBJECT: May 23, 2025 Board Meeting 
 AGENDA ITEM 7 
                     NUMEROUS ACTIONS TO CLOSE ON CONSTRUCTION FINANCING 

AND BREAK GROUND FOR THE SAKURA AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
PROJECT (2000 16TH STREET) 

  
CONTACT:   Jack Barnes, Development Manager (CADA) 

Josh Palmer, Deputy Director (CADA) 
Danielle Foster, Executive Director (CADA), President (CACDC) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends the CADA Board of Directors and CACDC Board of Directors authorize the Executive 
Director to take any and all actions necessary to close on construction financing and break ground for 
the construction of the 2000 16th Street Project (“Project”). 
 
[CADA] 
Adopt a resolution authorizing the Executive Director to:  

1. Execute a gap financing residual receipts loan (“CADA Gap Loan”) to 2000 16th St Associates, 
LP for an amount not to exceed $4,000,000. 

2. Execute a purchase agreement for the sale of the Property to 2000 16th St Associates, LP. 
3. Execute a seller carry-back residual receipts loan (“CADA Land Loan”) to 2000 16th St 

Associates, LP for an amount not to exceed $3,280,000 for the sale of the Property. 
4. Execute a guaranty in favor of First Citizens Bank on behalf of 2000 16th St Associates, LP. 
5. Execute a guaranty in favor of NEF Assignment Corporation. 
6. Take any and all actions on behalf of CADA to close on financing for the Project, including 

execution of all necessary documents and Project loans. 
 
[CACDC] 
Adopt a resolution authorizing the President to: 

1. Execute the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of 2000 16th St Associates, 
LP (“Amended LPA”) on behalf of 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC. 

2. Execute any and all documents necessary to consummate Project loans on behalf of 2000 16th 
St CACDC Association, LLC. 

3. Execute a General Contractor contract with Tricorp Group on behalf of 2000 16th St Associates, 
LP for an amount not to exceed $32,000,000. 

4. Execute a contract with an environmental consultant not to exceed $200,000 for lead testing 
and soil excavation. 

5. Take any and all actions on behalf of CACDC to close on financing for the Project, including 
execution of all necessary documents. 

 

39



4908-2842-7587.3 010080.089  
 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
On February 23, 2022, the CADA Board of Directors approved staff to close on escrow for the purchase 
of 2000 16th Street (“the Site”) for the purpose of developing affordable housing on the site. 
 
Later that year, on August 19, both the CADA and CACDC Boards of Directors approved a 
Memorandum of Understanding between CADA, CACDC, and Mutual Housing California (“Mutual”) that 
memorialized the parties’ good faith negotiations to partner on an affordable housing project at the 
Site. 
 
According to the California Department of Housing and Community Development’s (“HCD”) website, 
the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program (“AHSC”) provides funds to “projects 
that implement land-use, housing, transportation, and agriculture land preservation practices that 
reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.” Given the Site’s close proximity to light-rail and the appetite 
for public and active transit projects by partners like the City of Sacramento and Sacramento Regional 
Transit, CACDC and Mutual felt that the Project could be very competitive for AHSC funds. 
 
Between July 2023 and March 2024, CACDC and Mutual Housing worked to ensure the Project would 
meet all of the Program’s eligibility requirements and maximize its competitiveness under the AHSC 
scoring criteria. 
 
On March 15, 2024, CADA entered into an Option Agreement with the CACDC and Mutual to sell the 
Property to a limited partnership created by the two entities, which was approved by the CADA and 
CACDC Boards on August 16, 2024. An exhibit to the Option Agreement provides the business terms 
for the purchase agreement to be subsequently entered into by the parties. The parties are preparing 
the purchase agreement in accordance with the terms already approved by the Board and will execute 
the purchase agreement prior to closing on the construction financing.  
 
Also on March 15, 2024, CADA Executive Director Danielle Foster signed two loan commitment letters 
– a $4,000,000 gap loan for the Project’s construction and permanent financing and a residual receipts 
land loan in the amount of $3,280,000. The Boards of CADA and CACDC approved this measure the 
month prior on February 8, 2024. 
 
On August 22, 2024, CACDC and Mutual formally entered into a Limited Partnership Agreement (“initial 
LPA”) establishing an LLC managed by CACDC (“2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC) as the limited 
partnership’s managing general partner and an LLC managed by Mutual (2000 16th St Association, 
LLC) as the administrative general partner. In addition to managing the limited partnership’s managing 
general partner, CACDC is the limited partner entity. The Limited Partnership (“Partnership”) is called 
2000 16th St Associates, LP. 
 
On September 3, 2024, CACDC and Mutual Housing received a letter from HCD informing the partners 
that they received a conditional award under the Program consisting of a $25,300,000 housing loan 
and a $12,986,787 transportation grant. 
 
2000 16th St Associates, LP signed a letter of interest with National Equity Fund, Inc. (NEF) describing 
NEF’s desire to purchase 99.99% of the LP and utilize its corresponding tax credits on April 11, 2025 
and a separate letter with First Citizens Bank (First Citizens) summarizing the terms under which it 
would provide a tax-exempt construction loan for the Project.  
 
 
 

40



4908-2842-7587.3 010080.089  
 

 
ANALYSIS 

1. 2000 16th St Associates, LP Amended Limited Partnership Agreement 
 
In addition to the closing of escrow, the negotiations between CACDC, Mutual, NEF, First Citizens, and 
HCD will culminate in an Amended LPA in which NEF Assignment Corporation will purchase 99.99% 
of the partnership and replace CACDC as 2000 16th St Associates, LP’s limited partner. CACDC’s and 
Mutual’s project-specific LLCs will continue as the Project’s managing general partner and 
administrative general partner, respectively. 
 
Limited partnership structures protect limited partners from liability for the partnership’s debts. They 
feature at least one general partner, who remains liable for the undertakings of the partnership and 
are rewarded financially for the liability and management burden. In the case of affordable housing 
projects, the general partners are liable for completion of projects in accordance with approvals, and 
operation of projects in accordance with restrictive covenants that govern affordability. Financial 
rewards to the general partners take form in developer fees and management fees. 
 
Major sections in the Amended LPA include organization of partnership; capital contributions and 
project loans; allocation of profits, losses, and tax credits; distribution of cash flow; powers, rights, 
and duties of partners; accounting and fiscal affairs; transfer of partners’ interests; and dissolution of 
the partnership. In alignment with CADA and CACDC, the purpose of the Partnership is to develop and 
operate “decent, safe, and affordable housing for low-income persons.” 
 
Partners and Roles 
The percentage interest and capital contributions for each partner are as follows: 
  
Partner Percentage 

Interest 
Capital 
Contributions 

Managing General Partner: 2000 16th St CACDC Association, 
LLC 

0.005% $50 

Administrative General Partner: 2000 16th St Mutual Housing 
Association LLC 

0.005% $50 

Limited Partner: NEF Assignment Corporation 99.99% $17,000,000 
 
NEF, the limited partner’s parent company, will contribute approximately $17 million in five 
installments triggered by various conditions – $1.7 million will be disbursed when the Amended LPA 
is executed, $5.9 million when the Project reaches 95% occupancy, and $8.8 million when the Project 
closes on permanent financing. Once the Project’s placed-in-service package has been approved by 
the TCAC, Enterprise will sell the tax credits that the Project has been awarded. 
 
As the sole member manager of the managing general partner, CACDC will oversee many of the day-
to-day responsibilities of managing and operating the project on the Partnership’s behalf. This will 
include the property management contract and regulatory compliance. Mutual Housing California, as 
the sole member manager of the administrative general partner, will manage the limited partnership’s 
bank account. With respect to matters to be voted upon by all partners, 2000 16th St CACDC 
Association, LLC will have voting rights equal to its percentage interest. Mutual Housing and CACDC 
will each receive 50% of the development fee. 
 
 

2. Financing Sources and Uses 
 

41



4908-2842-7587.3 010080.089  
 

Construction financing escrow is expected to close on June 13, within the CDLAC deadline to issue its 
allocated bonds. 
 
Tables 1 and 2 below outline the construction financing sources and uses. Please note that these 
amounts are subject to change as negotiations with the lenders and investors have not yet concluded, 
and that the attached resolution does not contain final numbers. 
 

Table 1 – Construction Financing Sources 
First Citizens Bank Tax-Exempt Construction Loan $30,164,000 
First Citizens Bank Taxable Construction Loan $7,833,248 
CADA Gap Loan $4,000,000 
     Accrued Deferred Interest – CADA Gap Loan $182,688 
CADA Land Loan $3,280,000 
     Accrued Deferred Interest – CADA Land Loan $149,804 
Costs Deferred Until Conversion $2,245,116 
Deferred Developer Fee $3,351,372 
Capital Contributions  
     General Partners $100 
     Limited Partner $3,198,450 
Total $53,404,778 

 
 

Table 2 – Development Uses 
Acquisition Costs $4,830,000 
Design and Consulting $3,348,933 
Hard Construction Costs $29,059,678 
Contingency $2,498,582 
Insurance, Legal, and Fees $3,836,142 
Interest $3,804,385 
Developer Fee $6,027,058 
Total $53,404,778 

 
3. Contracts 

 
During construction, additional environmental work will be required to get construction underway and 
get to a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO). Additionally, the partnership will install an 
underground vapor intrusion mitigation system (VIMS) to continue vapor mitigation. Design and 
installation of the VIMS system and further environmental testing, plus the excavation of any 
contaminated soil necessitates a contract that is likely to exceed $100,000 and not to exceed $200,000 
which requires CACDC Board approval and is included in this reports authorizations. 
 
CACDC, on behalf of 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC, will also require Board approval to execute 
a general contractor contract with Tricorp Group not to exceed $32,000,000. This contract will be a 
stipulated sum, meaning Tricorp will commit to a fixed amount for the entire project, regardless of 
the actual cost. A stipulated sum contract is advantageous to the developer by providing upfront cost 
certainty and shifts risks related to materials and subcontractor pricing to the contractor. 

42



4908-2842-7587.3 010080.089  
 

 
4. Construction Schedule 

 
Table 3 below provides an outline of the construction schedule. The Project is currently scheduled to 
be complete in Summer 2027. 
 
Table 3 – Construction Schedule 

 
2025 2026 2027 
Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 

Grading, utilities, sitework         
Building construction         
Completion         

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Developer Fee 
CACDC will split the $6 million development fee 50%-50% with Mutual Housing. $3.4 million of the 
total development fee (56%) will be deferred and used as permanent financing for the Project. CACDC 
will receive its non-deferred $1.3 million over NEF’s first four installments. 
 
Project Guarantees 
Affordable housing projects require the project sponsor to provide various financial guarantees as a 
part of loan and investor agreements. The CADA Board recently authorized CADA’s Executive Director 
to execute guarantees in favor of Monarch’s lender and investor, which were made jointly and severally 
with Mutual Housing California. 
 
These guarantees largely mirror the Monarch Project – CADA will guaranty to NEF and First Citizens 
that the money they have put into the project will be repaid in the event the Project does not yield 
the anticipated tax credits. 
 
Like they did on Monarch, CADA and Mutual will enter into a contribution agreement making explicit 
that both parties will fund any call on the guarantee equally. 
 
CADA STRATEGIC PLAN 
The proposed action addresses the following 2024-2029 CADA Strategic Plan goals: “Ensure Fiscal 
Strength and Operational Excellence” and “Deliver Community Development Leadership.” 
 
Action #8 of CADA’s Strategic Goal to “Ensure Fiscal Strength and Operational Excellence” is to “seek 
financial partnerships with creative funding sources that further CADA’s mission.” The AHSC Program 
is an innovative one that requires partnerships with local transit agencies, which in our case has 
strengthened CADA’s and CACDC’s relationships with the City of Sacramento, Sacramento Regional 
Transit, and the San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority. 
 
By authorizing CADA and CACDC to take any and all actions to close on financing for and breaking 
ground on the Project, the Boards would also promote actions #1 and #8 of its Strategic Goal to 
“Deliver Community Development Leadership” to “seek opportunities for furthering ownership housing 
and housing serving a range of income levels to create diverse and inclusive neighborhoods” and to 
“identify opportunities to bring more housing online that addresses local needs and engage in a 
minimum of two active development projects per year,” respectively. This is a critical juncture that 
will bring 133 income-restricted units and one manager’s unit closer to reality for Sacramento’s urban 

43



4908-2842-7587.3 010080.089  
 

core. Moreover, the Project’s AHSC award will produce transit, anti-displacement, and job training 
benefits to residents and visitors of the Capitol Area. 
 
Attachments: 

1. First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of 2000 16th St Associates, LP 
(5/14/2025 Draft) 

2. CADA Authorizing Resolutions Re: Sale, Transfer & Financing of Sakura  
3. CADA Authorizing Resolutions Re: Syndication of Sakura 
4. CACDC Corporate, LLC and Partnership Authorizing Resolutions Re: Acquisition and Financing 

of Sakura  
5. CACDC Corporate, LLC and Partnership Authorizing Resolutions Re: Syndication of 2000 16th 

St Associates, L.P.  
6. Tricorp Group General Contractor Contract (5/14/2025 Draft) 
7. Incumbency and Secretary’s Certificate – Mutual Housing California 
8. Incumbency and Secretary’s Certificate – CADA 
9. Incumbency and Secretary’s Certificate – CACDC 

 
 
 

44



Draft 5/14/25 

60187061.1 

 

 

 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

OF 

2000 16TH ST ASSOCIATES, LP 

June [__], 2025 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL 
PARTNER: 

2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association LLC 
3321 Power Inn Road, Suite 320  
Sacramento, CA 98826 

 
MANAGING GENERAL PARTNER: 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC 

1522 14th Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

LIMITED PARTNER: NEF Assignment Corporation, as nominee 
10 South Riverside Plaza 
Suite 1700 
Chicago, Illinois 60606 

 

Partnership’s FEIN: 94-4836776 

 

45



 

-i- 
60187061.1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS .......................................................................................................1 
ARTICLE 2: ORGANIZATION ................................................................................................22 

Section 2.1 Continuation of Partnership. ..........................................................................22 
Section 2.2 Character and Purpose of Business. ..............................................................22 
Section 2.3 Name of Partnership. .......................................................................................22 
Section 2.4 Principal Place of Business. .............................................................................22 
Section 2.5 Principal Office. ...............................................................................................22 
Section 2.6 Agent for Service of Process. ..........................................................................22 
Section 2.7 Name and Address of General Partner. .........................................................22 
The name and the address of the Managing General Partner is: ...............................................22 
Section 2.8 Name and Address of Limited Partner. .........................................................23 
Section 2.9 Governmental Filings. .....................................................................................23 
Section 2.10 Term of Partnership. .......................................................................................23 
Section 2.11 Compliance with Laws. ...................................................................................23 
Section 2.12 Statutory Record Keeping...............................................................................23 
Section 2.13 Related Party Debt. ..........................................................................................24 
Section 2.14 Non Confidential Tax Shelter. ........................................................................24 
Section 2.15 Definitions. ........................................................................................................24 

ARTICLE 3: CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND PARTNER LOANS ..............................25 
Section 3.1 General Partner’s Capital Contributions. .....................................................25 
Section 3.2 Limited Partner’s Capital Contributions. .....................................................25 
Section 3.3 Intentionally Omitted. .....................................................................................33 
Section 3.4 Interest on Capital Contributions. .................................................................33 
Section 3.5 Withdrawal and Return of Capital Contributions. ......................................33 
Section 3.6 Capital Accounts. .............................................................................................33 
Section 3.7 Partnership Loans. ...........................................................................................34 
Section 3.8 Additional Capital Contributions. ..................................................................34 
Section 3.9 Limited Partner’s Withdrawal Option. .........................................................34 

ARTICLE 4: ALLOCATION OF PROFITS, LOSSES AND TAX CREDITS .....................36 
Section 4.1 Profit and Loss Allocations. ............................................................................36 

46



-ii- 
60187061.1 

Section 4.2 Special Allocations. ..........................................................................................36 
Section 4.3 Timing of Allocations. ......................................................................................40 
Section 4.4 Other Allocation Rules. ...................................................................................40 
Section 4.5 Tax Effect of Allocations. ................................................................................41 
Section 4.6 Limitations on Allocations. .............................................................................42 

ARTICLE 5: DISTRIBUTIONS ................................................................................................43 
Section 5.1 Distribution of Cash Flow. ..............................................................................43 
Section 5.2 Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings. .........................................................44 
Section 5.3 Timing of Distributions. ..................................................................................45 
Section 5.4 Treatment of Distributions. ............................................................................45 

ARTICLE 6: POWERS, RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF GENERAL PARTNER ....................46 
Section 6.1 Management of Partnership. ..........................................................................46 
Section 6.2 Restrictions on General Partner’s Authority. ...............................................46 
Section 6.3 Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the General Partner. .......50 
Section 6.4 Specific Obligations of General Partner. .......................................................63 
Section 6.5 Fees for Services Rendered. ............................................................................76 
Section 6.6 Outside Ventures of Partners. ........................................................................78 
Section 6.7 Dealing With Affiliates ....................................................................................78 
Section 6.8 Indemnification of Partnership and Limited Partner ..................................78 
Section 6.9 Credit Adjusters. ..............................................................................................80 
Section 6.10 Publicity and Promotional Events. .................................................................86 
Section 6.11 Co-General Partners. .......................................................................................86 
Section 6.12 Partnership Representative Rules. .................................................................86 

ARTICLE 7: POWERS, RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF LIMITED PARTNER ......................91 
Section 7.1 Limitation of Liability. ....................................................................................91 
Section 7.2 No Participation in Management. ..................................................................91 

ARTICLE 8: ACCOUNTING AND FISCAL AFFAIRS.........................................................91 
Section 8.1 Books of Account. ............................................................................................91 
Section 8.2 Management Reports. .....................................................................................92 
Section 8.3 General Disclosure. ..........................................................................................94 
Section 8.4 Tax Information. ..............................................................................................94 
Section 8.5 Review of Compliance. ....................................................................................97 
Section 8.6 Failure to Provide Information. .....................................................................98 

47



-iii- 
60187061.1 

ARTICLE 9: TRANSFER OF LIMITED PARTNER’S PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS ..100 
Section 9.1 Voluntary Transfers. .....................................................................................100 
Section 9.2 General Partner’s Consent to Substitution as a Limited Partner. ............101 
Section 9.3 Involuntary Transfers. ..................................................................................101 
Section 9.4 Distributions and Allocations with Respect to Transferred Partnership 

Interests. ......................................................................................................................101 
Section 9.5 Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal. ..............................................102 
Section 9.6 Disposition of Project. ....................................................................................102 
Section 9.7 Put Right. ........................................................................................................102 
Section 9.8 Intentionally Omitted. ...................................................................................103 
Section 9.9 Warehouse Lender. ........................................................................................103 
Section 9.10 Voluntary Withdrawal. .................................................................................104 

ARTICLE 10: TRANSFER OF GENERAL PARTNER’S PARTNERSHIP 
INTERESTS ...................................................................................................................104 

Section 10.1 Voluntary Transfers. .....................................................................................104 
Section 10.2 Involuntary Transfers. ..................................................................................105 
Section 10.3 Continuation of Partnership After Involuntary Transfer of General 

Partner’s Partnership Interests. ...............................................................................105 
Section 10.4 Distributions and Allocations with Respect to Transferred Partnership 

Interests. ......................................................................................................................105 
Section 10.5 Voluntary Withdrawal. .................................................................................106 
Section 10.6 Removal of General Partner. ........................................................................106 
Section 10.7 Nominee’s Enforcement Powers. ..................................................................109 

ARTICLE 11: DISSOLUTION, WINDING UP AND TERMINATION .............................109 
Section 11.1 Dissolution. .....................................................................................................109 
Section 11.2 Winding Up and Termination. .....................................................................110 
Section 11.3 Compliance with Liquidation Requirements of Regulations. ....................111 
Section 11.4 Rights and Obligations of Limited Partner Upon Dissolution. .................112 
Section 11.5 Waiver of Partition. .......................................................................................112 
Section 11.6 Final Accounting. ...........................................................................................112 

ARTICLE 12: MISCELLANEOUS .........................................................................................113 
Section 12.1 Notices and Addresses. ..................................................................................113 
Section 12.2 Pronouns and Plurals. ...................................................................................113 
Section 12.3 Counterparts. .................................................................................................113 

48



-iv- 
60187061.1 

Section 12.4 Applicable Law. .............................................................................................113 
Section 12.5 Successors. ......................................................................................................113 
Section 12.6 Severability. ....................................................................................................113 
Section 12.7 Exhibits. ..........................................................................................................113 
Section 12.8 Limitation of Benefits. ...................................................................................113 
Section 12.9 Entire Agreement. ..........................................................................................114 
Section 12.10 Broker’s Commission and Indemnity. .........................................................114 
Section 12.11 Amendment of Partnership Agreement. ......................................................114 
Section 12.12 Power of Attorney ..........................................................................................114 
Section 12.13 Third Party Beneficiary. ...............................................................................115 
Section 12.14 BOE Amendments .........................................................................................115 
 

  

49



-v- 
60187061.1 

Appendix I - Projections 

Exhibit A – Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal 

Exhibit B – Intentionally Omitted 

Exhibit C – Form of Final Lien Waiver and Release 

Exhibit D – Form of General Partner Certification 

Exhibit E – Development Fee Agreement 

Exhibit F – Guaranty 

 

 

50



 

-1- 
60187061.1 

AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 
OF 

2000 16TH ST ASSOCIATES, LP 
a California limited partnership 

June [__], 2025 

This Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement (this “Partnership 
Agreement”) of 2000 16th St Associates, LP, a California limited partnership (the “Partnership”), 
dated and effective as of the date first set forth above, is entered into by and between 2000 16th St 
CACDC Association, LLC, a California limited liability company (the “Managing General 
Partner”), 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association LLC, a California limited liability company 
(the “Administrative General Partner”) and NEF Assignment Corporation, an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation, as nominee (the “Limited Partner”). 

RECITALS 

In this Partnership Agreement, terms in initial capital letters that are not defined elsewhere 
shall have the meanings given to them in Article 1. 

The Partnership was formed as a limited partnership under the Act pursuant to the 
Certificate of Limited Partnership and the Initial Agreement.  The purposes of this Partnership 
Agreement are to (i) provide for the organization and continuation of the Partnership, (ii) provide 
for the admission of NEF Assignment Corporation, as nominee, as the Limited Partner, 
(iii) provide for the withdrawal of the Initial Limited Partner as a partner, and (iv) set forth more 
fully the rights, obligations, and duties of the Partners (as hereinafter defined). 

Accordingly, it is agreed that the Initial Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its 
entirety by this Partnership Agreement. 

ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS 

The capitalized words and phrases used in this Partnership Agreement shall have the 
following meanings (such meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms 
of such words and phrases): 

“50% Bond Test” means the determination, made in accordance with Section 42(h)(4)(B) 
of the Code, that fifty percent (50%) or more of the Project’s aggregate basis of any Building and 
the land on which the Building is located is financed by tax-exempt bonds subject to the Project 
State’s volume cap. 

“Accountant” means Lindquist, von Husen & Joyce, LLP, or such certified public 
accountant as is selected by the General Partner with the prior written approval of the Limited 
Partner or identified by the Limited Partner pursuant to Section 8.6.3 herein. 

51



-2- 
60187061.1 

“Act” means the California Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act, as the same may be 
amended from time to time (or any corresponding provisions of any successor law). 

“Actual Tax Credits” means the Tax Credits which the Partnership allocates to the Limited 
Partner (as determined by the Accountant and approved by the Asset Manager) with respect to any 
taxable year. 

“Adjusted Capital Account Deficit” means, with respect to any Partner, the deficit balance, 
if any, in such Partner’s Capital Account as of the end of the relevant fiscal period after giving 
effect to the following adjustments:  (a) the credit to such Capital Account of any amounts which 
such Partner is obligated to restore under any provision of this Partnership Agreement or is 
otherwise treated as being obligated to restore under Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-
1(b)(2)(ii)(c) or is deemed to be obligated to restore pursuant to the penultimate sentences of 
Treasury Regulations Sections 1.704-2(g)(1) and 1.704-2(i)(5); and (b) the debit to such Capital 
Account of the amounts described in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) and 
(6).  The foregoing definition of Adjusted Capital Account Deficit is intended to comply with the 
provisions of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d) and shall be interpreted 
consistently therewith. 

“Administrative Adjustment Request” means an administrative adjustment request under 
Section 6227 of the Code. 

“Administrative General Partner” means 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association LLC, 
a California limited liability company, which is wholly owned by Mutual Housing California, or 
any other Person who becomes a successor administrative general partner pursuant to Section 10.1, 
Section 10.2 or Section 10.3 

“Affected Partner” means at any point in time, with respect to any Administrative 
Adjustment Request or proposed Partnership Adjustment, any person who is a then current Partner 
or a Former Partner. 

“Affiliate” means, (a) with respect to any Person (or as to every Partner if no Person is 
specifically named), (i) such Person or any member of his Immediate Family; (ii) the legal 
representative, successor, or assign of, or any trustee of a trust for the benefit of, any such Person 
or member of his Immediate Family; (iii) any entity of which a majority of the voting interests is 
owned by any one or more of the Persons referred to in the preceding clauses (i) and (ii); (iv) any 
officer, director, trustee, employee, stockholder (10% or more) or partner of any Person referred 
to in the preceding clauses (i), (ii), and (iii); and (v) any Person directly or indirectly controlling 
(10% or more), controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with, any Person referred 
to in any of the preceding clauses; and (b) with respect to the Limited Partner, any limited liability 
company or limited partnership in which the managing member or general partner, as applicable, 
is NEF or an Affiliate of NEF. 

“Affordable Housing Project” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.2. 

“Annual Claim Form” means, collectively, the claim forms required to be submitted 
annually to the county assessor by which the Managing General Partner certifies that the use of 
the Project meets all of the requirements to qualify for the Welfare Exemption under Rule 140 of 

52



-3- 
60187061.1 

the BOE Regulations, which forms, at the current time, include, but may not be limited to, Forms 
(i) BOE-267-A, (ii) BOE-277-L1, (iii) BOE-267-L1 and (iv) BOE-278-OCC. 

“Applicable Federal Rate” means the “applicable federal rate” as defined in Code 
Section 1274(d). 

“Applicable Percentage” means the applicable percentage for the Project determined in 
accordance with Section 42(b)(1) of the Code. 

“Architect” means Kuchman Architects PC. 

“Architect Agreement” means that certain agreement, dated September 6, 2024, by and 
between the Partnership and the Architect in connection with the design of the Project. 

“Architect Certificate” means a certificate prepared and executed by the Architect 
certifying that construction of the Project Property has been completed in accordance with the 
Plans and Specifications.  An acceptable Architect Certificate may, in Asset Manager’s reasonable 
judgment, indicate punch list items which are not material and do not affect the rental of the space 
in the Project on a full rent paying basis, provided that the Partnership has delivered sufficient 
funds or cash equivalents in escrow, or has retained sufficient funds pursuant to the Construction 
Contract, to provide for the completion of such punch list items. 

“Asset Management Fee” means an annual fee of $7,500, to be increased annually by three 
percent (3%).  

“Asset Manager” means NEF Asset Manager LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, 
or any replacement or substitute entity selected by the Limited Partner in its sole and absolute 
discretion and identified in writing to the General Partner. 

“Assignee” means a Person to whom all or any part of a Limited Partner’s Partnership 
Interest has been transferred in a manner permitted under or contemplated by this Partnership 
Agreement, but who has not been admitted to the Partnership as a Substituted Limited Partner with 
respect to the transferred Partnership Interest. 

“BOE Forms” means the forms prescribed by the BOE, as amended and supplemented 
from time to time, including but not limited to the Organizational Clearance Certificate and the 
Supplemental Clearance Certificate. 

“BOE Regulations” means the regulations of the BOE, as amended and supplemented 
from time to time. 

“BOE” means California State Board of Equalization. 

“Building” means each building in the Project that is assigned a separate building 
identification number (BIN) in the documents evidencing the allocation of Tax Credits for the 
Project. 

53



-4- 
60187061.1 

“Business Day” means any day other than (i) a Saturday or a Sunday, or (ii) a day on which 
federally insured depository institutions in Chicago, Illinois are authorized or obligated by law, 
regulation, governmental decree or executive order to be closed. “Capital Account” means, with 
respect to any Partner, the capital account maintained for such Partner pursuant to Section 3.6. 

“Capital Contribution” means, with respect to any Partner, the total amount of cash or any 
cash equivalents contributed and/or agreed to be contributed to the Partnership, including all 
adjustments thereto, as provided in this Partnership Agreement.  Except for obligations incurred 
in connection with Section 6.4.6(i)-(iii), and any loans made in accordance with Section 3.7 hereof, 
any additional advances actually made by the General Partner shall be treated as a Capital 
Contribution of such General Partner for purposes of this Partnership Agreement.  Any reference 
in this Partnership Agreement to the Capital Contribution of a substituted Partner shall include all 
Capital Contributions previously made by any predecessor or former Partner in respect of the 
Partnership Interest acquired by the substituted Partner, subject to all adjustments thereto pursuant 
this Partnership Agreement. 

“CACDC” means Capitol Area Community Development Corporation, a California 
nonprofit public benefit corporation, which is the sole member of the Managing General Partner. 

“CADA” means the Capitol Area Development Authority, a joint powers authority 
between the State of California and the City of Sacramento. 

“CADA Gap Loan” means that certain [second priority nonrecourse construction to 
permanent loan from CADA in the amount of $[4,000,000], with a simple interest rate of 3% per 
annum, a 55 year term from Conversion, and payable from available Cash Flow]. 

“CADA Land Loan” means that certain [third priority nonrecourse construction to 
permanent loan from CADA in the amount of $[3,280,000], with a simple interest rate of [AFR]% 
per annum, a 55 year term from Conversion, and payable from available Cash Flow]. 

“CADA Loans” mean, together, the CADA Gap Loan and the CADA Land Loan. 

“Cash Flow” means, with respect to any Fiscal Year of the Partnership, the Gross Cash 
Receipts for such year, reduced by the sum of the following:  (a) Required Debt Service Payments; 
(b) all cash expenditures incurred incident to the Operating Expenses of the Partnership for that 
Fiscal Year; and (c) such cash as is necessary to (i) pay all accrued, outstanding trade payables, 
and (ii) establish any additional reserves as the Partners shall from time to time agree to establish. 

“Cash Flow Debt Service Payments” means all principal, interest and other charges and 
fees that are principal and interest payments which are payable in connection with the Construction 
Loan and, or, any Permitted Loan, and the payment or amount of which are contingent on available 
net operating receipts of the Partnership, including, but not limited to, payment with respect to 
(a) loans payable solely from Cash Flow, (b) loans to the Partnership from the General Partner 
(including loans made pursuant to Section 3.7 or Sections 6.4.6(i) or 6.4.6(ii) hereof), and (c) loans 
to the Partnership from the Limited Partner. 

54



-5- 
60187061.1 

“Certificate of Limited Partnership” means the Partnership’s certificate of limited 
partnership prepared in accordance with the Act, dated  and filed with the Filing Office on July 24, 
2024, as amended by [______]. 

“Certificate of Occupancy” means a certificate of occupancy issued by the local authority 
responsible for assuring compliance with building and zoning matters prior to occupancy of the 
Buildings in the Project.  If said local authority does not issue certificates of occupancy, then (i) all 
material permits and approvals required for the normal use and occupancy of the Project that have 
been issued by the appropriate local authority, which are in full force and effect, and (ii) an 
Architect Certificate (or certificate from another qualified professional acceptable to Asset 
Manager) certifying that the Project complies with the Plans and Specifications, may be submitted 
to Asset Manager to fulfill any requirement hereunder for a certificate of occupancy.  Temporary 
certificates of occupancy shall be acceptable if (i) such certificates permit occupancy of all of the 
Residential Units and any community building that is a part of the Project, (ii) the work remaining 
to be done is of a nature that would not impair the permanent occupancy of any of the Residential 
Units and/or any community building on a full paying basis, (iii) the conditions set forth for 
obtaining permanent certificates of occupancy for all Residential Units and any community 
building are readily achievable as determined by the Asset Manager in its reasonable discretion, 
and (iv) the Partnership has made adequate provision, to the reasonable satisfaction of the Asset 
Manager, for the payment and completion of any work that remains to be performed); provided 
however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, final certificates of occupancy are required to satisfy 
the Construction Completion requirement set forth in Section 6.4.6(i)(a) of this Partnership 
Agreement. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as the same may be amended from time 
to time (or any corresponding provisions of any successor law). 

“Compliance Period” means, with respect to any Building in the Project Property, the 
fifteen (15) taxable years beginning with the first taxable year of the Credit Period with respect 
thereto, as defined in Section 42(i)(1) of the Code. 

“CERCLA” means the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act of 1980, as amended (including the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act 
of 1986), 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq. 

[“Commercial Lease” means that certain triple net commercial lease between the 
Partnership and [____].] 

“Construction Completion” means the date upon which the Partnership has completed the 
construction of the Project in accordance with the Project Documents and the Loan Documents, as 
evidenced by (a) an Architect Certificate, (b) a Certificate of Occupancy for all Residential Units 
(and commercial units), and (c) construction disbursement documents (including, without 
limitation, the Contractor’s final pay application excluding retainage) approved by the Asset 
Manager’s construction inspector. 

55



-6- 
60187061.1 

“Construction Completion Date” means the date on which Construction Completion is 
achieved, which in any event shall not exceed the date required by any Lender or State Housing 
Finance Agency. 

“Construction Contract” means that certain agreement, dated [____________, 20__], by 
and between the Partnership and the Contractor in connection with the construction and/or 
rehabilitation of the Project. 

“Construction Lender” means First Citizens Bank, a national banking association, or 
another lender reasonably acceptable to the Limited Partner. 

“Construction Loan” means, collectively, (i) that certain loan in the original principal 
amount not to exceed $[30,164,000] from the Governmental Lender to the Partnership from 
proceeds of a loan from the Construction Lender financed by the Tax-Exempt Note, and (ii) that 
certain loan in the original principal amount not to exceed $[9,016,677] from the Governmental 
Lender to the Partnership from proceeds of a loan from the Construction Lender financed by the 
Taxable Note, which loans are evidenced by the Construction Loan Documents. 

“Construction Loan Documents” means any and all of the documents evidencing, securing, 
or related to the Construction Loan, including but not limited to the commitment letter, loan 
agreement, Tax-Exempt Note, Taxable Note, mortgage, and any assignment of such documents to 
the [Fiscal Agent]. 

“Contractor” means Tricorp Group. 

“Cost Certification” means the following documents which must be delivered to the 
Limited Partner after Placement in Service of the Project (a) a signed letter or certification from 
the Accountants in the form satisfactory to the State Housing Finance Agency and the Limited 
Partner certifying, among other things, that the Accountants have examined the books and records 
and will sign a tax return including the Project costs specified in the letter in Tax Credit basis, and 
a certification by the General Partner that the Accountants’ letter accurately reflects actual Project 
costs. 

“Credit Period” means, with respect to any Building in the Project the period of ten (10) 
taxable years beginning with (a) the taxable year in which the Building is placed in service or (b) at 
the election of the taxpayer, the next succeeding taxable year, but only if the Building is a qualified 
low-income building (as defined in the Code) as of the close of the first year of such period.  
Special rules apply to the determination of the Credit Period for multiple building Projects and the 
first year of the Credit Period pursuant to Code Section 42. 

“Credit Reduction Payment” shall have the meaning attributed thereto in Section 6.9 of 
this Partnership Agreement. 

“Credit Shortfall” shall have the meaning attributed thereto in Section 6.9.3 of this 
Partnership Agreement. 

56



-7- 
60187061.1 

“CTA” means, collectively, the Corporate Transparency Act (31 U.S.C. Section 5333, et 
seq.), regulations issued by the United States Department of the Treasury thereunder (31 C.F.R. 
Part 1010), and any other state or federal law relating to beneficial ownership disclosure. 

“Deferred Development Fee” means the Development Fees that are to be paid out of Cash 
Flow from the Project or the proceeds of sales and refinancings and not from the Capital 
Contribution of the Limited Partner or the Project financing.   

“Designated Individual” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.12.1 
hereof. 

“Developer” means Mutual Housing California, a California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation, and Capitol Area Community Development Corporation, a California nonprofit 
public benefit corporation. 

“Development Fee Agreement” means the Development Fee Agreement attached as 
Exhibit E entered into or to be entered into by the Partnership and the Developer pursuant to which 
the Developer shall have primary responsibility for the development of the Project Property. 

“Development Completion Guaranty” means all of the obligations of the General Partner 
as described in Section 6.4.6(i) of this Partnership Agreement. 

“Development Fee” and “Developer Fee” mean the fee in the amount of [Six Million Two 
Hundred One Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-Nine] and No/100 Dollars ($[6,201,989].00) 
described in the Development Fee Agreement, which shall be payable at the times and upon the 
conditions set forth in the Development Fee Agreement and Section 3.2 hereof, and as may be 
increased in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Development Fee Agreement. 

“Disposition Fee” means the fee described in Section 6.5.4. 

“Eligible Basis” means, generally, the adjusted basis of a Building for depreciation 
purposes determined as of the close of the first taxable year of the Credit Period, subject to certain 
exclusions as set forth in the Code. 

“Environmental Certification” means delivery to the Limited Partner, upon completion of 
rehabilitation or construction, of a certification by the General Partner that the Project has been 
completed in accordance with the recommendations contained in the environmental report(s) for 
the Project. 

“Environmental Law” means (a) CERCLA, (b) the Clean Air Act, as amended, 
42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq., (c) the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 
et seq., (d) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as amended, 39, U.S.C. 1801 et seq., 
(e) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq., (f) the 
Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 2601 et seq., (g) the Safe Drinking Water 
Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 300f et seq., (h) the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, 
42 U.S.C. 4821 et seq.; (i) the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, 29 U.S.C. 651 et seq.; 
(j) the Hazardous Substance Account Act, California Health and Safety Code Section 25300 et 
seq., (k) the Hazardous Waste Control Law, California Health and Safety Code Section 25100 et 

57



-8- 
60187061.1 

seq., (l) the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, California Water Code Section 13000 et 
seq., (m) any other similar state or local law, or (n) any regulation adopted or publication 
promulgated pursuant to any such laws”. 

“Event of Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.6 hereto. 

“Expense Coverage Ratio” shall be defined as the Gross Cash Receipts for a specified 
period (excluding for this purpose the amount of any income from tenant-based (not project-based) 
rent subsidy vouchers for Tax Credit Units to the extent that the income from any such unit exceeds 
the maximum applicable Tax Credit rent) divided by all Operating Expenses.  The Operational 
Costs of the Partnership shall be used to calculate Expense Coverage Ratio only for purposes of 
defining Stabilized Occupancy.   

“Extended Use Agreement” means the extended low-income housing commitment entered 
into between the Partnership and the State Housing Finance Agency pursuant to Section 42(h)(6) 
of the Code. 

“FEIN” means Federal Employer Identification Number. 

“Fifth Installment” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.5 of this Partnership 
Agreement. 

“Filing Office” means the Secretary of State of the Project State. 

“First Installment” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.1 of this Partnership 
Agreement. 

“First Year Tenant Files” means such information or documents that evidence the tenant’s 
qualification to occupy the Tax Credit Unit, including, but not limited to, tenant applications, 
executed tenant lease agreements, tenant income and asset certifications and verifications, student 
status verification, and rent rolls obtained by the Property Management Agent with respect to those 
tenants who occupy the Tax Credit Units during the period beginning with the date that the Project 
achieves Placement in Service and ending with the date that the Project achieves Qualified 
Occupancy. 

“First Year Timing Reduction” means the reduction in the Capital Contribution of the 
Limited Partner designed to compensate the Limited Partner for the reduced present value of 
delayed Tax Credits. 

[“Fiscal Agent” means [________].] 

“Fiscal Year” means the calendar year unless otherwise specified in writing by the Limited 
Partner.   

“Foreign Drywall” means drywall, plasterboard, gypsum board or sheetrock manufactured 
in or imported from China. 

58



-9- 
60187061.1 

“Form 8609” means the IRS Form 8609 (Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Allocation 
Certification) issued by the State Housing Finance Agency for each residential Building in the 
Project which finally allocates Tax Credits to such residential Building as evidenced by the 
execution of Part II of the form by the State Housing Finance Agency. 

“Former Partner” means any Person who was a Reviewed Year Partner but is not a Partner 
in the year of an Administrative Adjustment Request or proposed Partnership Adjustment. 

“Fourth Installment” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.4 of this Partnership 
Agreement. 

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles established by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board or the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in effect in 
the United States, as amended from time to time. 

“General Partner” means the Administrative General Partner and the Managing General 
Partner, referred to herein singularly and collectively as the General Partner, as the context may 
require or suggest. 

“Governmental Lender” means [_______]. 

[“Grants” means that (these) certain grant(s) to the Partnership from the following 
grantor(s) in the following amount(s): [__________________] and No/100 Dollars 
($________.00) from ________________.] 

“Gross Cash Receipts” means all cash received from the operations of the Partnership, 
including all government subsidies due and payable at such time but not yet received by the 
Partnership, but excluding Capital Contributions, loan proceeds, prepayment of rent, security 
deposits, insurance proceeds, condemnation awards, proceeds from Net Cash from Sales and 
Refinancings, and any other funds not generated from current Project operations, unless otherwise 
permitted by the Asset Manager in its sole discretion. 

“Guarantor(s)” means MHC and CADA.  

“Guaranty Agreement” means the Guaranty Agreement attached as Exhibit F between the 
Partnership and the Guarantor(s) dated as of the date hereof whereby the Guarantor(s) 
guaranty(ees) the obligations of the General Partner under the Partnership Agreement.   

“Hazardous Substance” means any substance defined in any Environmental Law as a 
hazardous substance, including, but not limited to, any hazardous material, hazardous waste, toxic 
substance or toxic waste lead-based paint, asbestos, methane gas, urea formaldehyde insulation, 
oil, toxic substances, petroleum, benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene or xylene (BTEX), methyl tertiary 
butyl ether (MTBE) underground storage tanks, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), radon, 
Microbial Matter, or any other pollutant that may have a material adverse effect on the Project. 

“HCD” means the California Department of Housing and Community Development. 

59



-10- 
60187061.1 

“HCD Loan” means that certain [first priority nonrecourse permanent loan from HCD 
made from Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities funds in the amount of 
$[25,300,000] bearing no interest but requiring payments of 0.42% of the original principal 
balance, having a 55 year term from Conversion, and payable from available Cash Flow.] 

“HCD Standard Agreement” means that certain Standard Agreement No. [  
 ] between MHC and HCD]. 

“HUD” means the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

“Immediate Family” means, with respect to any Person, his or her spouse, children, 
including adopted children, step-children, parents, parents-in-law, nephews, nieces, brothers, 
sisters, brothers-in-law and sisters-in-law, each whether by birth, marriage or adoption, as well as 
any inter vivos trusts created for the benefit of such Person or any of the foregoing. 

“Imputed Underpayment” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6225 of 
the Code. 

 “Incentive Partnership Management Fee” means the portion of Cash Flow that is paid to 
the General Partner pursuant to Section 5.1.1 and Section 6.5.5 as an additional fee for managing 
the affairs of the Partnership. 

“Initial Agreement” means the Partnership’s original limited partnership agreement 
entered into as of August 22, 2024, by and between the Managing General Partner, the 
Administrative General Partner and the Initial Limited Partner. 

“Initial Limited Partner” means collectively, 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC and 
2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association, LLC.  

“Institutional Investor “ has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.2. 

“Involuntary Event” means, with respect to any Partner any one of the following events:  
(a) the making of an assignment for the benefit of creditors by the Partner; (b) the filing of a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy by the Partner; (c) the adjudication of the Partner as a bankrupt 
or insolvent; (d) the filing of a petition or answer by the Partner seeking for itself a reorganization, 
arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similar relief under any 
statute, law or rule; (e) the seeking, consenting to or acquiescence of the Partner in the appointment 
of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator of the Partner or of all or any substantial part of the Partner’s 
properties; (f) the death of any Partner who is a natural person; or (g) the termination of the legal 
existence of any Partner who is other than a natural person. 

“Involuntary Transfer” means any transfer of any Partner’s Partnership Interest effected by 
operation of law as a result of the occurrence of an Involuntary Event. 

“IRS” means the Internal Revenue Service. 

“Lender” or “Lenders” means the Construction Lender and/or the Subordinate Cash Flow 
Lenders, as the context requires. 

60



-11- 
60187061.1 

“Limited Partner” means NEF Assignment Corporation, an Illinois not-for-profit 
corporation, as nominee, or any Person who becomes a Substituted Limited Partner pursuant to 
Section 9.1, Section 9.2, Section 9.3 or Sections 9.5, 9.6 or 9.7.  If there is more than one Limited 
Partner, they are referred to herein singularly and collectively as the Limited Partner, as the context 
may require or suggest. 

“Liquidation Manager” means any Person selected by the Limited Partner. 

“Loan Documents” means (a) the Construction Loan Documents, (b) the Subordinate Cash 
Flow Loan Documents; (c) the Regulatory Agreement; (d) any rent assistance agreement and any 
grant or subsidy agreement from a unit of local, state or federal government; and (e) any and all 
other documents executed by the Partnership evidencing, securing or related to such Loan 
Documents. 

“Market Rate Units” means Project units that are not subject to the Tax Credit income 
limitations under Section 42 of the Code. 

“Microbial Matter” means any fungi or bacterial matter which reproduces through the 
release of spores or the splitting of cell, including, but not limited to, mold, mildew, and viruses, 
whether or not such fungi or bacterial matter is living. 

“Mini Audit” means the audit procedures performed by the Limited Partner’s accountants, 
in accordance with Section 8.4.2(ii), of the Partnership’s financial books and records for the Fiscal 
Year in which the Project achieves Placement in Service, which procedures shall include, without 
limitation, review and analysis of Partnership trial balances, general ledger, bank statements, loan 
statements and documents, accounts payable and other payable schedules, Project cost 
certifications, rent rolls, depreciation/amortization schedules and material expenses. 

“MHC” means Mutual Housing California, a California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation, which is the sole member of the Administrative General Partner. 

“NEF” means National Equity Fund, Inc., an Illinois not-for-profit corporation. 

“Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings” means, with respect to any Fiscal Year of the 
Partnership, the cash proceeds from Partnership sales or refinancings reduced by (a) all reasonable 
costs and expenses incurred by the Partnership in connection with such sale (not including the 
Disposition Fee, if any) or refinancing, (b) all principal and interest payments and other sums paid 
on or with respect to any indebtedness of the Partnership, other than amounts treated as loans 
pursuant to the Partnership Agreement from the General Partner, the Developer, the Guarantor or 
the Limited Partner, (c) any amounts reasonably required to be set aside in reserves for the Project 
(which shall include funding the Operating Reserve up to the Operating Reserve Target Amount 
if applicable), and (d) application of the refinancing proceeds for the use for which they were 
obtained.  Net Cash from Sales and Refinancing shall include all principal and interest payments 
with respect to any note or other obligation received by the Partnership in connection with the sale 
or other disposition of Project Property. 

“Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2. 

61



-12- 
60187061.1 

“Nonrecourse Deduction” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.704-2(b)(1) of the 
Regulations.  The amount of Nonrecourse Deductions for any Fiscal Year of the Partnership equals 
the excess, if any, of the net increase, if any, in the amount of Partnership Minimum Gain during 
that Fiscal Year reduced (but not below zero) by the aggregate amount of any distributions during 
that Fiscal Year of proceeds of a Nonrecourse Liability that are allocable to an increase in 
Partnership Minimum Gain, determined in accordance with Section 1.704-2(c) of the Regulations. 

“Nonrecourse Liability” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.704-2(b)(3) of the 
Regulations. 

“Operating Deficit” means the amount by which the collected revenues of the Partnership 
from rental payments made by tenants of the Project (including governmental subsidies received 
during such period) and all other revenues of the Partnership (excluding Capital Contributions, 
proceeds of any loans to the Partnership, investment earnings on funds on deposit in the reserve 
fund for replacements and other such reserve or escrow funds or accounts, prepayment of rent, 
security deposits and any other funds not generated from current Project operations) for a particular 
period of time is exceeded by the sum of (i) all Operating Expenses, and (ii) all Required Debt 
Service Payments during the same period of time.  In computing the Operating Deficit, all cash 
expenditures or amounts budgeted to be spent for capital improvements (excluding payments for 
construction of the Project) during the period described above shall also be taken into account, 
unless such amounts are funded from Project reserves. Operating Deficits shall be measured on a 
monthly basis and funded as necessary during the Operating Deficit Guaranty Period. 

“Operating Deficit Guaranty” means all of the obligations of the General Partner as 
described in Section 6.4.6(ii) of this Partnership Agreement. 

“Operating Deficit Guaranty Amount” means [Six Hundred Ninety Thousand Six Hundred 
Ninety-Five and No/100 Dollars ($[690,695.00)]. 

“Operating Deficit Guaranty Period” means the period beginning with the date on which 
the Project achieves Stabilized Occupancy and ending on the date on which the Partnership has 
achieved an Expense Coverage Ratio of 1.10 or better, measured on an annualized basis, for a 
period of two consecutive years commencing on or after the third anniversary of achievement of 
Stabilized Occupancy, provided that that if the Operating Reserve is not funded on the last day of 
such period in an amount greater than or equal to the Operating Reserve Target Amount, then the 
Operating Deficit Guaranty Period shall be extended until such time as the Operating Reserve 
Account is funded in an amount that is greater than or equal to the Operating Reserve Target 
Amount.  Any amount funded by the General Partner into the Operating Reserve pursuant to the 
Development Completion Guaranty under Section 6.4.6(i)(b) will not be included in determining 
whether the Operating Reserve Target Amount has been funded as required by the preceding 
sentence. 

“Operating Expenses” means all expenses incurred incident to the operation of the Project 
and the Partnership including, without limitation, administrative expenses of the Partnership, 
Project maintenance costs, insurance premiums, amounts required to fund deductibles, claims and 
related expenses to the extent not funded from insurance proceeds, fees to lenders and/or any 
applicable mortgage insurance premium payments, utilities, Property Management Agent Fee, 

62



-13- 
60187061.1 

taxes, assessments, fees for Supportive Services, required deposits into the Replacement Reserve 
and other reserves or escrow accounts, including any arrearages that must be funded, capital 
expenditures not paid from any reserves, equity or development financing proceeds, and all other 
Partnership obligations or expenditures that become due and payable, excluding Required Debt 
Service Payments, Cash Flow Debt Service Payments, fees and other expenses and obligations of 
the Partnership to be paid from Capital Contributions and capital expenditures paid from reserves, 
equity or development financing proceeds. 

“Operating Reserve” means the amount required by the Partnership Agreement or the Loan 
Documents to be reserved by the Partnership to fund Operating Deficits arising with respect to the 
Project, which reserve shall be funded as described in Section 6.4.7(ii). 

“Operating Reserve Account” means a segregated Partnership bank account established by 
the General Partner to hold the Operating Reserve, as described in Section 6.4.7(ii). 

“Operating Reserve Target Amount” means [Four Hundred Sixty Thousand Six Hundred 
Fifty] and No/100 Dollars ($[460,650].00) and maintained as described in Section 6.4.7(ii). 

“Operational Costs of the Partnership” means Seasonally Adjusted Operating Expenses, 
but excluding the Deferred Development Fee, the Partnership Management Fee, the Incentive 
Partnership Management Fee, and the Asset Management Fee to the extent such fees are payable 
solely out of Cash Flow. The Operating Costs of the Partnership identified by the General Partner 
shall be evidenced by a certification of the General Partner confirming such matters and stating 
that all trade payables have been satisfied or will be satisfied by cash held by the Partnership on 
the date of such certification.  The Operational Costs of the Partnership for any period shall be the 
greater of (a) the Project’s actual Seasonally Adjusted Operating Expenses for such period, or 
(b) the anticipated operational costs of the Project for such period determined on an accrual basis 
in accordance with the operating expenses of the Project shown in the Projections for the applicable 
period (provided that if the actual Project property tax (based on an assessed value that reflects 
construction completion) and actual insurance expenses incurred by the Partnership for the subject 
period are available, then the actual Project property tax and insurance expenses shall be used in 
determining the Operational Costs of the Partnership). 

“Opt-Out Election” means action by the Partnership Representative that causes the 
Partnership to elect out of the Revised Partnership Audit Procedures if such election is available 
to the Partnership under Section 6221(b) of the Code and Regulations or other guidance issued by 
the IRS. 

“Owner’s Title Insurance Policy” means the fully executed, ALTA Owner’s Policy of Title 
Insurance in final form (which includes the customary “jacket” of preprinted terms and 
conditions), dated on or about the date hereof, which shall be consistent with the “marked-up” 
commitment or proforma approved by the Limited Partner on or prior to the date hereof. 

“Owner’s Title Report” means a title search report issued by the same title company that 
issued the Owner’s Title Insurance Policy that sets forth, among other things, the ownership of the 
Project Property, any liens of record, and any encumbrances affecting the Project Property as of a 
specified date after Construction Completion approved by the Limited Partner. 

63



-14- 
60187061.1 

“Partner” or “Partners” mean the General Partner and Limited Partner, either individually 
or collectively. 

“Partner Minimum Gain” means an amount, with respect to each Partner Nonrecourse 
Debt, equal to the Partnership Minimum Gain that would result if such Partner Nonrecourse Debt 
were treated as a Nonrecourse Liability, determined in accordance with 1.704-2(i) of the 
Regulations. 

“Partner Nonrecourse Debt” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.704-2(b)(4) of the 
Regulations. 

“Partner Nonrecourse Deductions” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.704-2(i)(2) of the 
Regulations. The amount of Partner Nonrecourse Deductions with respect to a Partner 
Nonrecourse Debt for a Partnership Fiscal Year equals the net increase during that Fiscal Year in 
Partner Nonrecourse Debt reduced (but not below zero) by the proceeds of the Partner Nonrecourse 
Debt distributed during that Fiscal Year to the Partner bearing the economic risk of loss for the 
Partner Nonrecourse Debt that are both attributable to the Partner Nonrecourse Debt and allocable 
to an increase in Partner Minimum Gain, as determined in accordance with Section 1.704-2(i)(2) 
of the Regulations. 

“Partnership” means 2000 16th St Associates, LP, a California limited partnership. 

“Partnership Adjustment” means any adjustment to any item of income, gain, loss, 
deduction, or credit of the Partnership, or any Partner’s distributive share thereof, in either case as 
described in any applicable Regulations or other guidance prescribed by the IRS. 

“Partnership Agreement” means this Amended and Restated Limited Partnership 
Agreement of the Partnership, as amended from time to time. Words such as “herein”, 
“hereinafter”, “hereof”, “hereto” and “hereunder” refer to this Partnership Agreement as a whole, 
unless the context otherwise requires. 

“Partnership Interest” means, as to any Partner, such Partner’s right, title, and interest in 
and to any and all assets, distributions, losses, profits, and shares of the Partnership, whether cash 
or otherwise, and any other interests and economic incidents of ownership whatsoever of such 
Partner in the Partnership under this Partnership Agreement and the Act. 

“Partnership Management Fee” means the fee for managing the affairs of the Partnership 
as described in Section 6.5 in the initial annual amount of $35,887 (increasing annually at 3%) that 
is paid to the General Partner from Cash Flow and/or Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings 
pursuant to Section 5.1.1 and Section 5.2.1 hereof. 

“Partnership Minimum Gain” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.704-2(d) of the 
Regulations. 

“Partnership Property” means all real and personal property acquired by the Partnership 
and any improvements thereto, and shall include both tangible and intangible property. 

64



-15- 
60187061.1 

“Partnership Representative” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in 
Section 6.12.1 hereof. 

“Permanent Credit Increase” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.9.4 hereto. 

“Permanent Credit Reduction” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.9.1 hereto. 

“Permanent Credit Reduction Adjustment” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.9 hereto. 

“Permitted Loan” means, collectively, (a)  the Subordinate Cash Flow Loans and (b) loans 
to the Partnership from the General Partner and/or the Limited Partner in accordance with this 
Partnership Agreement. 

“Person” means an individual or entity, such as, but not limited to, a corporation, general 
partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, limited liability company, trust, cooperative or 
association and the heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns 
of such Person where the context so admits. 

“Placement in Service” means occurrence of all of the following:  (a) substantial 
completion of rehabilitation or construction, (b) issuance of Certificate(s) of Occupancy for all 
Residential Units in the Project, and (c) placement in service as defined for purposes of 
determining qualified basis and Tax Credits under federal tax law. 

“Plans and Specifications” mean the plans and specifications attached and made a part of 
the Construction Contract, as supplemented by any change orders approved by the Limited Partner 
pursuant to Section 6.2 for the Project approved in writing by the Limited Partner. 

“Post-Closing Document Delivery Agreement” means that certain agreement by and 
between the General Partner and the Limited Partner, dated as of the date hereof, with respect to 
certain documents that are required to be delivered by the General Partner to the Limited Partner 
within a specified period of time after closing. 

“Prime Rate” means the interest rate announced from time to time by the Warehouse 
Lender, or its successor, or, if there is no Warehouse Lender, by JPMorgan Chase Bank, Chicago, 
Illinois, as its prime lending rate, expressed as a percent per annum.  The “Prime Rate” shall be 
determined on a daily basis. 

“Profits” and “Losses” mean, for each Fiscal Year of the Partnership, an amount equal to 
the Partnership’s taxable income or loss for such period from all sources, except as provided for 
in Section 4.2.13, determined in accordance with Section 703(a) of the Code, adjusted in the 
following manner:  (a) the income of the Partnership that is exempt from federal income tax shall 
be added to such taxable income or loss; (b) any expenditures of the Partnership which are not 
deductible in computing its taxable income and not properly chargeable to capital account under 
either Section 705(a)(2)(B) of the Code or the Regulations promulgated under Section 704(b) of 
the Code shall be subtracted from such taxable income or loss; (c) in the event any Partnership 
Property is revalued in accordance with Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f) of the Regulations, then the 
amount of any adjustment to the value of such Partnership Property shall be taken into account as 
gain or loss from the disposition of such Partnership Property for purposes of computing Profits 

65



-16- 
60187061.1 

or Losses; (d) gain or loss resulting from any disposition of Partnership Property which has been 
revalued pursuant to Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f) of the Regulations and with respect to which gain 
or loss is recognized for federal income tax purposes shall be computed by reference to the adjusted 
value of such Partnership Property, notwithstanding that the adjusted tax basis of such Partnership 
Property differs from the adjusted value; (e) any depreciation, amortization or other cost recovery 
deductions taken into account in computing such taxable income or loss shall be recomputed based 
upon the adjusted value of any Partnership Property which has been revalued in accordance with 
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f) of the Regulations; and (f) any items of income, gain, loss, deduction 
or credit which are specially allocated pursuant to Section 4.2.1 and Sections 4.2.4 through 4.2.15 
shall not be taken into account in computing Profits or Losses. 

“Prohibited Actor” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.2. 

“Project Closing Checklist” means the Limited Partner’s most recent checklist of items that 
must be submitted to the Limited Partner and approved by the Limited Partner before it will enter 
the Partnership. 

“Project Documents” means any or all of the agreements or contracts related to the 
construction, development, financing and operation of the Project, including Plans and 
Specifications, Loan Documents, Construction Contract, Architect Agreement, Regulatory 
Agreement, [the construction escrow agreement executed by the Partnership], Property 
Management Agreement, [Commercial Lease], fee agreements, and any other document or 
instrument executed in connection with the construction, development and operation of the Project. 

“Project Equity” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2. 

“Project Property” or “Project” means the affordable housing rental project to be known as 
Sakura, which project will be located at 2000 16th Street, Sacramento, CA 95818 and will be 
comprised of one (1) Building containing one hundred and thirty-five (135) Residential Units, 
[administration offices, community rooms, central laundry facilities, underground and surface 
parking, a playground, and all furnishings, equipment and personal property used in connection 
with the operation thereof].  It is expected that one hundred thirty-four (134) Residential Units will 
be Tax Credit Units,  no Residential Units will be Market Rate Units, and one (1) Residential Unit 
will serve as an unrestricted manager’s unit. [The Project will include approximately 2,500 square 
feet of ground floor commercial space.]  

“Project State” means California. 

”Projected First Tax Credit Year” means the first year, as set forth in the Projections, that 
Tax Credits are expected to be allocable to the Project during the Credit Period. 

“Projected Second Tax Credit Year” means the second year, as set forth in the Projections, 
that Tax Credits are expected to be allocable to the Project during the Credit Period. 

“Projected Stabilized Occupancy Date” means [April 1, 2028].   

“Projected Tax Credits” means the product of (i) 99.99%, multiplied by (ii) the Tax Credits 
shown in the Projections as expected to be allocable to the Project.  The Tax Credits expected to 

66



-17- 
60187061.1 

be allocable to the Project during each year of the Credit Period for purposes of making the 
calculation set forth in the preceding sentence are $[704,301] for the year 2027, $[1,871,928] for 
each year of [2028] through [2036], and $[1,167,627] for the year [2037], as shown in the 
Projections attached hereto.   

“Projected Third Tax Credit Year” means the third year, as set forth in the Projections, that 
Tax Credits are expected to be allocable to the Project during the Credit Period. 

“Projections” means the projections attached hereto as Appendix I, as they may be 
amended pursuant to this Partnership Agreement. 

“Property Management Agent” means initially Mutual Housing Management or such other 
Property Management Agent as is selected by the General Partner from time to time or identified 
by the Limited Partner pursuant to Section 6.4.9 with the prior written consent of the Asset 
Manager. 

“Property Management Agent Fee” means a fee of up to [8% of the gross collected rents] 
from the Project payable to the Property Management Agent, as described in the Property 
Management Agreement, of which, 50% will be subordinated, as long as the Property Management 
Agent is related to the General Partner, to maintain breakeven operations. 

“Property Management Agreement” means the Property Management Agreement entered 
into or to be entered into by the Partnership and the Property Management Agent pursuant to which 
the Property Management Agent shall have primary responsibility for overseeing the management 
of the Project Property, as described in Section 6.4.9. 

“Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement” has the meaning set forth in 
Section 9.5. 

“Push-Out Election” means an election by the Partnership Representative under 
Section 6226 of the Code with respect to any Imputed Underpayment(s) identified in a Partnership 
Adjustment for the Partnership. 

“QAP” means the Qualified Allocation Plan for the Project. 

“Qualified Basis” has the meaning set forth in Section 42(c)(1) of the Code. 

“Qualified Group” has the meaning set forth in Treas. Reg. Section 1.42-19(b)(2). 

“Qualified Occupancy” means the initial occupancy of 100% of the Tax Credit Units by 
qualified tenants pursuant to Section 42 of the Code. 

“Qualified Occupancy Date” means October 31, 2027. 

“Qualified Tax-Exempt Bond-Financed Project” means an affordable housing project in 
which a portion of the Eligible Basis of a Building is financed with certain tax-exempt bonds, 
which qualifies for Tax Credits pursuant to Section 42(h)(4)(A) and (B) of the Code. 

67



-18- 
60187061.1 

“Regulations” means the Federal Income Tax Regulations (including without limitation, 
Temporary Regulations) promulgated under the Code, as the same may be amended from time to 
time (including corresponding provisions of successor regulations). 

“Regulatory Agreement” means, to the extent applicable, and collectively, (a) the Extended 
Use Agreement, and (b) any regulatory agreements and/or any declaration of covenants and 
restrictions to be entered into between the Partnership and any Lender, or any applicable 
government agency setting forth certain terms and conditions under which the Project is to be 
developed and/or operated. 

“Replacement Reserve” means the amount of funds required by the Partnership Agreement 
or the Loan Documents to be reserved by the Partnership to fund capital replacement costs with 
respect to the Project, which reserve shall be funded as described in Section 6.4.7(iii). 

“Replacement Reserve Account” means a segregated Partnership bank account held by the 
General Partner and established to hold the Replacement Reserve, as described in 
Section 6.4.7(iii). 

“Required Debt Service Payments” means all principal, interest and other required 
recurring charges and fees that are required to be paid monthly, or at some other regular period, 
which are payable in connection with the Construction Loan and, or, any Permitted Loan, but only 
to the extent that payment of such amount is not contingent on available net operating receipts of 
the Partnership. 

“Residential Units” means the individual residential rental housing Tax Credit Units and 
the Market Rate Units located on the Project Property. 

“Reviewed Year” means the Partnership taxable year to which a Partnership Adjustment 
relates. 

“Reviewed Year Partner” means any Person who held an interest in the Partnership at any 
time during the Reviewed Year. 

“Revised Partnership Audit Procedures” means the revised partnership audit rules 
contained in Subchapter 63C of the Code, as amended by the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015, P.L. 
114-74 and the Protecting Americans from Tax Hikes Act of 2015, P.L. 114-113, and the 
Regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 “Right-Sized Escrow Amount” means cash to be escrowed by the General Partner in an 
amount necessary for the Partnership to achieve an Expense Coverage Ratio of at least 1.05 or 
better for a period commencing upon disbursement of the Third Installment and ending upon the 
expiration of the Compliance Period, all as determined by the Asset Manager in its reasonable 
discretion.  Calculation of the Expense Coverage Ratio for each such period shall be based upon 
the Operational Costs of the Partnership and Gross Cash Receipts, excluding any non-rental 
income that exceeds the amount of non-rental income specified in the Projections as adjusted 
utilizing a vacancy factor equal to the greater of the percentage set forth on the “Assumptions” 
page of the Projections  or the actual vacancy of the Project for the prior month’s operations and 
excluding the amount of any income from tenant-based (not project-based) rent subsidy vouchers 

68



-19- 
60187061.1 

with respect to Tax Credit Units to the extent that the income from any such unit exceeds the 
maximum applicable Tax Credit rent.] 

“Right-Sized Payment Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.4.6(i)(b). 

“RT Code” means the California Revenue and Taxation Code, as amended and 
supplemented from time to time. 

“Seasonally Adjusted Operating Expenses” means the Operating Expenses for a specified 
period as adjusted to take into account seasonal or periodic expenses incurred on an unequal basis 
during a full calendar year (such as utilities, maintenance expense and real estate taxes) and 
prorated evenly over the 12 month period, as reasonably determined by the Asset Manager. 

“Second Installment” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.2 of this Partnership 
Agreement. 

“Second Year Timing Reduction” means the reduction in the Capital Contribution of the 
Limited Partner designed to compensate the Limited Partner for the reduced present value of 
delayed Tax Credits. 

[“Section 163(j)(7)(B) Election” means the election made by the Partnership under 
Section 163(j)(7)(B) of the Code on the Partnership’s tax return for the year in which Placement 
in Service occurs to allow the Partnership to take interests deductions, as reflected in the 
Projections.]  

“Service Provider” means MHC. 

[“Service Provider Agreement” means that certain agreement by and between the Property 
Management Agent and the Service Provider pursuant to which the Service Provider shall have 
primary responsibility for providing certain services to the tenants of the Project.] 

[“Service Provider Documents” means the Service Provider Agreement and the following 
related documents : [service commitment letter, dated August 27, 2024, from MHC to the 
Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Authority; service amenities information sheet; service 
amenities budget; and resident service provider job description .] 

[“Services Reimbursement” means an annual, noncumulative reimbursement of up to 
$[19,152] [(increasing annually by __%)] paid from Cash Flow and/or Net Cash from Sales and 
Refinancings pursuant to Section 5.1.1 hereof to the Service Provider as a reimbursement for the 
actual costs of providing services to the residents of the Project.] 

“Sponsor” means MHC and CACDC, referred to herein singularly and collectively as the 
Sponsor, as the context may require or suggest. 

[“Sponsor Loan” means that certain [fourth priority recourse construction and permanent 
loan from [the Sponsor] made with Sacramento Municipal Utility District Go Electric multifamily 
property incentive funds in the amount of $507,678], bearing 0% interest, a 55 year term from 
Conversion, and payable from available Cash Flow.]  

69



-20- 
60187061.1 

“Stabilized Occupancy” means the date upon which all of the following conditions are 
satisfied:  (a) after Construction Completion, at least 90% of the Residential Units have been 
occupied for a period of three (3) consecutive months; and (b) the Gross Cash Receipts (excluding, 
unless otherwise permitted by the Asset Manager in its sole discretion, any non-rental income that 
exceeds the amount of non-rental income specified in the Projections, as adjusted utilizing a 
vacancy factor equal to the greater of the percentage set forth on the “Assumptions” page of the 
Projections or the actual vacancy of the Project, and excluding for this purpose the amount of any 
income from tenant-based (not project-based) rent subsidy vouchers for Tax Credit Units to the 
extent that the income from any such unit exceeds the maximum applicable Tax Credit rent) for a 
three (3) consecutive calendar month period after Construction Completion (and that Asset 
Manager and the General Partner agree is as close as practicable to the date of Project conversion) 
from those Residential Units collectively equal or exceed each of the following:  (i) the projected 
revenues as set forth in the Projections for the same three (3) month period; and (ii) an amount 
sufficient to yield an Expense Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.10 during each month of such 
three (3) consecutive month period based on the Operational Costs of the Partnership].   

“State Housing Finance Agency” means the agency controlling the allocation of Tax 
Credits and administering the Tax Credits for the Project State. 

“Subordinate Cash Flow Lender” means those lenders, together with any successors or 
assigns in such capacity, reasonably acceptable to the Limited Partner, that are expected to make 
the Subordinate Cash Flow Loan. 

“Subordinate Cash Flow Loan” means those loans expected to be made from the following 
lenders in the amount(s) set forth after their (its) name(s), which do not have any required payments 
from Gross Cash Receipts: 

 Lender Loan Amount 
1.  HCD $[25,300,000] - HCD Loan 
2. CADA $[4,000,000] - CADA Gap Loan 
3. CADA $[3,280,000] - CADA Land Loan 
4. [Sponsor] $[507,678] – Sponsor Loan 

 

“Subordinate Cash Flow Loan Documents” means any and all of those Subordinate Loan 
Documents evidencing, securing, or related to each of the Subordinate Cash Flow Loans, including 
but not limited to the commitment letter, agreement, note, and mortgage for each such loan. 

“Substituted Limited Partner” means a Person who is admitted as a Limited Partner to the 
Partnership pursuant to Section 9.2 or Section 9.3 in place of and with all the rights of a limited 
partner under the Partnership Agreement and the Act. 

“Supplemental Clearance Certificate” has the meaning prescribed by the BOE, as set forth 
in BOE Forms, as amended and supplemented from time to time. 

“Taxable Note” means [California Municipal Finance Authority Multifamily Housing 
Revenue Note (Sakura) 2025 Series [A-2] (Taxable)]. 

70



-21- 
60187061.1 

“Tax Credit” or “Credit” means the low income housing tax credit under Section 42 of the 
Code. 

“Tax Credit Units” means Project units that are subject to the Tax Credit income limitations 
under Section 42 of the Code as specified in the Projections. 

“Taxes” means any taxes, penalties, additions to tax, additional amounts and interest as 
described in Section 6226 of the Code. 

“Tax-Exempt Note” means [California Municipal Finance Authority Multifamily Housing 
Revenue Note (Sakura) 2025 Series [A-1]].  

“Temporary Permitted Investments” means (a) direct obligations of, or obligations 
unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America or any agency thereof; (b) certificates 
of deposit, in amounts not exceeding the federally insured amount, issued by any commercial bank 
organized and doing business under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof 
whose deposits are federally insured; (c) money market funds rated in the highest rating category 
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization; and/or (d) such other investment vehicle 
as shall be approved in writing by the Limited Partner.   

“Third Installment” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.3 of this Partnership 
Agreement. 

“Treasury” means the United States Department of the Treasury, including the United 
States of America acting through the Treasury. 

“Voluntary Transfer” means any sale, assignment, transfer, pledge, or hypothecation of 
any Partnership Interests by a Partner, except for (a) an Involuntary Transfer, (b) any transfer in 
connection with an LP Pledge under Section 9.9, (c) a voluntary withdrawal by the Limited Partner 
under Section 9.10 or (iv) the Limited Partner’s exercise of its Put Right under Section 9.7. 

“Warehouse Lender” means Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as agent (together with 
its successors and/or assigns in such capacity, “Morgan Stanley”).  For purposes of Section 9.7.5 
hereof, written notice shall be given to the Warehouse Lender as follows:  201 S. Main Street, Salt 
Lake City, Utah 84111, Attention:  Kisty Morris, Tel:  801-236-3691, Fax:  801-236-3687 and at 
1585 Broadway, New York, NY 10036, Attention:  Dan Heldridge, Vice President, Tel:  212-761-
2159, Fax:  917-760-9634, or at such other address as Warehouse Lender may from time to time 
designate. 

 

 

71



 

-22- 
60187061.1 

ARTICLE 2: ORGANIZATION 

Section 2.1 Continuation of Partnership.  The Partnership was formed by filing of the 
Certificate of Limited Partnership with the Filing Office on July 24, 2024, and by the execution of 
the Initial Agreement.  The Partners desire to continue the Partnership under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act. By executing this Partnership Agreement, the parties hereto agree that the 
Initial Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety and the Limited Partner is hereby 
admitted to the Partnership on the terms and conditions set forth herein, and by executing the 
withdrawal signature page hereof, the Initial Limited Partner hereby concurrently withdraws from 
the Partnership, all to become effective upon filing of an amended Certificate of Limited 
Partnership reflecting such changes if and to the extent required by the Act. 

Section 2.2 Character and Purpose of Business.  The general character and purpose 
of the business of the Partnership is:  (i) primarily to acquire, construct, own, finance, lease, and 
operate the Project Property in a manner that provides decent, safe and affordable housing for low-
income persons and ensures that the Project Property will be and remain a qualified low income 
housing project within the meaning of Section 42 of the Code; (ii) to eventually sell or otherwise 
dispose of the Project Property in a manner consistent with the provisions of this Partnership 
Agreement; and (iii) to engage in all other activities incidental or related thereto. 

Section 2.3 Name of Partnership.  The name of the Partnership is “2000 16th St 
Associates, LP”. 

Section 2.4 Principal Place of Business.  The address of the principal place of business 
of the Partnership shall be 1522 14th Street, Sacramento, CA 95814, or such other address as the 
Partners may select from time to time. 

Section 2.5 Principal Office.  The address of the principal office of the Partnership is 
1522 14th Street, Sacramento, CA 95814, or such other address as the Partners may select from 
time to time. 

Section 2.6 Agent for Service of Process. The Partnership’s agent for service of 
process is Danielle Foster, or such other agent as the General Partner may select from time to time 
with written notice to the Limited Partner. The address of the agent for service of process is 1522 
14th Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

Section 2.7 Name and Address of General Partner.  The name and address of the 
Administrative General Partner is:  

2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association LLC 
3321 Power Inn Road, Suite 320  
Sacramento, CA 98826 

The name and the address of the Managing General Partner is: 

2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC 
1522 14th Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

72



-23- 
60187061.1 

Section 2.8 Name and Address of Limited Partner.  The name and address of the 
Limited Partner is: 

NEF Assignment Corporation  
10 South Riverside Plaza  
Suite 1700  
Chicago, Illinois 60606  
Attention:  General Counsel  
Email:  projectnotices@nefinc.org with subject line of SMT# 83429 

NEF Assignment Corporation  
10 South Riverside Plaza  
Suite 1700  
Chicago, Illinois 60606  
Attention: SVP Asset Management 

Section 2.9 Governmental Filings.  The General Partner shall make all governmental 
filings as are necessary or appropriate to qualify the Partnership (i) to do or continue to do business 
in the Project State and any other jurisdiction or (ii) to otherwise carry out the purposes and intent 
of this Partnership Agreement.  In addition, the General Partner shall timely and properly file of 
record the Extended Use Agreement. 

Section 2.10 Term of Partnership.  The term of the Partnership began on July 24, 2024 
(the date on which the Certificate of Limited Partnership was first filed with the Filing Office) and 
the Partnership will continue in existence in perpetuity or such later date as the Partners agree, 
unless it is earlier dissolved and terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Partnership 
Agreement. 

Section 2.11 Compliance with Laws.  The Partnership shall comply with all applicable 
provisions of the Act, and any other applicable statutes and local ordinances governing limited 
partnerships in the Project State, as well as any other applicable laws of any federal, state, or local 
government or agency having legal jurisdiction over the Partnership and the Project (including 
without limitation, Environmental Laws). 

Section 2.12 Statutory Record Keeping.  The Partnership shall keep at its principal 
place of business the following and any and all other items required by the Act: 

2.12.1 a current list of the full name and last known address of each Partner, 
separately identifying each general partner and all limited partners in alphabetical order 
and setting forth the amount of cash and a description and statement of the agreed value 
of any other property or services contributed by each Partner and that each Partner has 
agreed to contribute in the future, and the date on which each became a Partner; 

2.12.2 a copy of the Certificate of Limited Partnership of the Partnership, as 
amended or restated from time to time, together with executed copies of any powers of 
attorney pursuant to which any such certificate has been executed; 

73

mailto:projectnotices@nefinc.org


-24- 
60187061.1 

2.12.3 copies of the Partnership’s federal, state, and local income tax returns 
and reports, if any, for the three (3) most recent years; 

2.12.4 a copy of the Partnership Agreement, any original or prior written 
partnership agreements of the Partnership, and any amendments thereto; 

2.12.5 financial statements of the Partnership for the three (3) most recent 
years. 

Section 2.13 Related Party Debt.  The Partners agree that any entity that is a lending 
institution having a direct or indirect ownership or beneficial interest in the Limited Partner (a 
“Related Lender”) may at any time make, guarantee, own, acquire, or otherwise credit-enhance, 
in whole or in part, a loan secured by a mortgage, deed of trust, or other security instrument 
encumbering the Project (a “Related Lender Loan”), subject to the provisions of the Subordinate 
Cash Flow Loan Documents.  Under no circumstances shall a Related Lender be considered to be 
acting on behalf or as an agent or the alter ego of the Limited Partner or any of its members, 
partners, or beneficiaries.  A Related Lender may in its discretion take any actions that it 
determines advisable in connection with a Mortgage Loan, including enforcement actions.  The 
Partners hereby acknowledges that no Related Lender owes the Partnership or any Partner any 
fiduciary duty or other duty or obligation whatsoever by virtue of such Related Lender’s direct or 
indirect ownership or beneficial interest in the Partnership (the “Related Lender’s Equity 
Interest”).  Neither the Partnership nor any other Partner shall make any claim against a Related 
Lender, or against the Limited Partner or any other entity through which the Related Lender owns 
the Related Lender’s Equity Interest, relating to a Related Lender Loan and alleging any breach of 
fiduciary duty, duty of care, or any other duty whatsoever to the Partnership, the Limited Partner, 
or such other Partner, based in any way upon the Related Lender’s Equity Interest.  As used herein, 
the term “Limited Partner” includes its successors and assigns, as applicable. 

Section 2.14 Non Confidential Tax Shelter.  Any obligations of confidentiality 
contained in or applicable to this Partnership Agreement shall not apply to the federal tax structure 
or federal tax treatment of the Partnership or the transactions contemplated herein.  Each Partner 
and its employees, representatives, and agents may disclose to any and all persons, without 
limitation of any kind, such federal tax structure and treatment and such transactions.  The 
Partnership interest shall not be treated as having been issued under conditions of confidentiality 
for purposes of Treasury Regulations Section 1.6011-4(b) or any successor provision.  Each 
Partner agrees that it has no proprietary or exclusive rights to the federal tax structure of the 
Partnership, the transactions contemplated herein, or federal tax matters or ideas related to such 
transactions. 

The General Partner shall promptly notify the Limited Partner if it learns that the 
Partnership has participated in any reportable transaction within the meaning of Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.6011-4(b)(3). 

Section 2.15 Definitions.  All capitalized words and phrases used in this Partnership 
Agreement (other than the full names and addresses of the Partners and governmental subdivisions 
and agencies) have the meanings set forth in Article 1. 

74



-25- 
60187061.1 

 
ARTICLE 3: CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND PARTNER LOANS 

Section 3.1 General Partner’s Capital Contributions. 

3.1.1 The General Partner shall make a cash Capital Contribution to the 
Partnership thirty (30) days prior to the Third Installment in the amount of One Million 
Five Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,500,000.00) in exchange for a 0.01% 
General Partner Partnership Interest, and, upon the execution of this Partnership 
Agreement, shall provide documentation to the Limited Partner evidencing the fact that 
the Capital Contribution has been made. 

3.1.2 The General Partner has assigned and hereby assigns, and has caused 
and shall cause its Affiliates to assign, to the Partnership all of its respective rights, title, 
and interest in, to, and under all agreements, licenses, approvals, permits, Tax Credit 
allocations, and any other tangible or intangible personal property related to the Project 
Property or required to permit the Partnership to pursue its business and carry out its 
purposes as contemplated in this Partnership Agreement.  Promptly upon the written 
request of Limited Partner, the General Partner (and if applicable, General Partner’s 
Affiliates) shall provide any documents, affidavits and instruments, and do such further 
acts as may be necessary, desirable, or proper in the reasonable determination of Limited 
Partner to evidence or perfect said assignments.  The General Partner’s Capital Account 
will not be credited with any amount as a result of its assignment to the Partnership of 
the various items referred to in the immediately preceding sentence. 

3.1.3 If the Partnership has not paid all amounts due as a Deferred 
Development Fee by the end of the twelfth (12th) year of the Compliance Period, the 
General Partner shall make an additional Capital Contribution to the Partnership in the 
amount of the outstanding balance of the Deferred Development Fee, and any accrued 
and unpaid interest thereon, and the Partnership shall use this Capital Contribution to 
pay the remaining balance of the Deferred Development Fee, and any accrued and 
unpaid interest thereon. 

Section 3.2 Limited Partner’s Capital Contributions.  The Limited Partner shall 
make Capital Contributions to the Partnership in the aggregate amount of Seventeen Million 
Thirty-Two Thousand Eight Hundred Forty and No/100 Dollars ($[17,032,840].00) in exchange 
for a 99.99% Limited Partner Partnership Interest in the Partnership (the “Limited Partner Capital 
Contribution”).  The Limited Partner Capital Contribution shall be paid as equity for Project related 
costs (other than Developer Fee approved by the Limited Partner) (“Project Equity”) and for the 
non-deferred portion of the Developer Fee (“Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity”).  Subject to 
Section 6.9 and the other terms and conditions of this Partnership Agreement, the Limited 
Partner’s Capital Contributions will be made as follows: 

3.2.1 First Installment.  The Limited Partner’s first installment of the 
Limited Partner Capital Contribution shall be in the amount of $[1,703,284] (“First 
Installment”), of which $70,000 shall be paid directly to the Limited Partner to 
reimburse it for its due diligence, inspection and closing costs in conjunction with its 

75



-26- 
60187061.1 

acquisition of an interest in the Partnership, and the remainder shall be payable in cash 
as follows: 

(i) Upon the satisfaction of all of the following conditions, the Limited 
Partner shall pay to the Partnership the Project Equity portion of the First 
Installment in the amount of $[1,041,389]: 

(a) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of all of the 
Limited Partner’s Project Closing Checklist requirements (except for those 
documents reflected in the Post-Closing Document Delivery Agreement), 
including the notice to proceed; 

(b) Admission of the Limited Partner to the Partnership. 

(ii) Upon the satisfaction of all of the requirements for payment of the 
Project Equity portion of the First Installment as set forth in Section 3.2.1(i) above 
the Limited Partner shall pay to the Partnership the Non-Deferred Developer Fee 
Equity portion of the First Installment in the amount of $[661,895]. 

3.2.2 Second Installment.  The Limited Partner’s second installment of 
the Limited Partner Capital Contribution, in the amount of $[441,263] (“Second 
Installment”) shall be payable in cash as follows: 

(i) Upon the satisfaction of all of the following conditions, the Limited 
Partner shall pay to the Partnership the Project Equity portion of the Second 
Installment in the amount of $[0]: 

(a) Satisfactory achievement of Construction Completion; 

(b) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of final (or, if 
unavailable, and meeting the requirements set forth in the Partnership 
Agreement), temporary Certificates of Occupancy for all Project 
Residential Units and, if applicable, all commercial space; 

(c) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of an Architect 
Certificate provided to, and approved by, the Asset Manager; 

(d) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of a conditional 
lien waiver from Contractor; 

(e) Receipt of a satisfactory draft Cost Certification for the 
Project prepared by the Project Accountant, verifying the Tax Credit basis,; 

(f) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of an updated 
financial model from California Housing Partnership, which shall include 
satisfactory evidence that the 50% Bond Test has been satisfied ; 

76



-27- 
60187061.1 

(g) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of all documents 
set forth in the Post-Closing Document Delivery Agreement; 

(h) [Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of draft Service 
Provider Documents;] 

(i) Satisfaction of all of the conditions to the payment of all 
prior installments; 

(j) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of any 
outstanding delivery items required by this Partnership Agreement, 
including, without limitation, any outstanding delivery items required by 
Article 8; and 

(k) June 1, 2027. 

(ii) Upon the satisfaction of all of the requirements for payment of the 
Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity portion of the First Installment as set forth in 
Section 3.2.1(ii) and the Project Equity portion of the Second Installment as set 
forth in Section 3.2.2(i) above, the Limited Partner shall pay to the Partnership the 
Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity portion of the Second Installment in the 
amount of $[441,263]. 

3.2.3 Third Installment.  The Limited Partner’s third installment of the 
Limited Partner Capital Contribution, in the amount of $[5,912,242] (“Third 
Installment”) shall be payable in cash as follows: 

(i) Upon the satisfaction of all of the following conditions, the Limited 
Partner shall pay to the Partnership the Project Equity portion of the Third 
Installment in the amount of $[5,912,242]: 

(a) Verification to the satisfaction of the Asset Manager that 
95% Qualified Occupancy of all Project Tax Credit Units has been 
achieved; 

(b) Verification to the satisfaction of the Asset Manager that the 
Project has achieved Stabilized Occupancy; 

(c) Completion of any outstanding punch list items to the 
satisfaction of the Asset Manager; 

(d) Receipt by the Asset Manager of an Owner’s Title Report, 
which must (1) be dated within thirty (30) days of the date of payment of 
the Capital Contribution for this installment, (2) state that all real estate 
taxes affecting the Project Property have been paid in full, (3) evidence the 
absence of any mechanic’s or other liens (except for liens bonded over in a 
manner as to preclude the claimant from having any recourse to the Project 
or Partnership for payment of the debt secured thereby), and (4) evidence 

77



-28- 
60187061.1 

the absence of any recorded judgments against the Partnership, which shall 
all be satisfactory to the Asset Manager; 

(e) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of an ALTA 
“As-Built” Survey of the Project that is certified by the surveyor not earlier 
than thirty (30) days prior to the date of payment of this installment (unless 
otherwise approved by the Asset Manager) and for which field work was 
conducted not earlier than sixty (60) days prior to the date of payment of 
this installment; provided however, that if field work was conducted earlier 
than 60 days prior to the date of payment of this installment, said survey (i) 
is accompanied by a certificate provided by the Architect certifying that no 
new buildings, other permanent structures or parking lots have been 
constructed on the Property and the footprints or location of any building(s), 
other permanent structures or parking lots comprising the Project, as 
completed, have not been expanded, reduced or otherwise changed in any 
manner since the completion of the field work that has caused said survey 
to inaccurately depict the footprint or location of said building(s), other 
permanent structures or parking lots comprising the Project, and (ii) 
references or depicts, as applicable, all plottable exceptions listed on the 
Owner’s Title Report required in Section 3.2.[3](i) above; 

(f) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of final lien 
waiver from the Contractor in the form attached as Exhibit [_]; 

(g) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of such evidence 
regarding the receipt, or evidence of filing, of the Project real estate tax 
abatement as the Asset Manager deems appropriate; 

(h) Receipt of a certification by the Project Accountant, 
verifying, with satisfactory evidence, that the 50% Bond Test has been 
satisfied; 

(i) [Receipt by the Asset Manager of fully executed Service 
Provider Documents;] 

(j) Satisfaction of all of the conditions to the payment of all 
prior installments; 

(k) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of any 
outstanding delivery items required by this Partnership Agreement, 
including, without limitation, any outstanding delivery items required by 
Article 8; 

(l) April 1, 2028. 

(ii) Upon the satisfaction of all of the requirements for payment of the 
Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity portion of the Second Installment as set forth 
in Section 3.2.2(ii) and the Project Equity portion of the Third Installment as set 

78



-29- 
60187061.1 

forth in Section 3.2.3(i) above, the Limited Partner shall pay to the Partnership the 
Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity portion of the Third Installment in the amount 
of $[0]. 

3.2.4 Fourth Installment.  The Limited Partner’s fourth installment of the 
Limited Partner Capital Contribution, in the amount of $[8,755,419] (“Fourth 
Installment”) shall be payable in cash as follows: 

(i) Upon the satisfaction of all of the following conditions, the Limited 
Partner shall pay to the Partnership the Project Equity portion of the Fourth 
Installment in the amount of $[5,912,242]: 

(a) [If the Construction Loan has not been repaid in full, receipt 
and approval by the Asset Manager of a letter from the Construction Lender 
setting forth the amount required for the repayment in full of the 
Construction Loan and the account wiring information to be used for the 
delivery of payment;] 

(b) Evidence to the satisfaction of the Asset Manager that all 
Subordinate Cash Flow Loans have been fully funded and receipt by the 
Asset Manager of executed Subordinate Cash Flow Loan Documents that 
have been previously approved by the Asset Manager and were not executed 
as of the date hereof, which evidence may be provided simultaneously with 
funding of the Fourth Installment;  

(c) Evidence to the satisfaction of the Asset Manager that the 
GP Capital Contribution was made, no later than 60 days prior to the 
payment of the Fourth Installment; 

(d) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of a completed 
Cost Certification for the Project prepared by the Accountant, verifying the 
Tax Credit basis; 

(e) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of final 
Certificates of Occupancy for all Project residential units [and, if applicable, 
all commercial space], if not previously provided; 

(f) Receipt by the Asset Manager of satisfactory evidence that 
all reserves, including, but not limited to, the Operating Reserve Account 
and Replacement Reserve Account have been established by the General 
Partner and funded in the amounts set forth in the Projections (such amounts 
may be met with funds from this installment); 

(g) [Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of satisfactory 
evidence that the Radon Testing Requirements has been satisfied;] 

(h) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of satisfactory 
Environmental Certification in the form provided by the Asset Manager; 

79



-30- 
60187061.1 

(i) Satisfaction of all of the conditions to the payment of all 
prior installments; 

(j) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of any 
outstanding delivery items required by this Partnership Agreement, 
including, without limitation, any outstanding delivery items required by 
Article 8; and 

(k) April 1, 2028. 

$[460,650]of this installment shall be used to fund the Operating Reserve 
Account. 

(ii) Upon the satisfaction of all of the requirements for payment of the 
Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity portion of the Third Installment as set forth in 
set forth in Section 3.2.3(ii) and the Project Equity portion of the Fourth Installment 
as set forth in Section 3.2.4(i) above, the Limited Partner shall pay to the 
Partnership the Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity portion of the Fourth 
Installment in the amount of $[2,382,526]. 

3.2.5 Fifth Installment.  The Limited Partner’s fifth installment of the 
Limited Partner Capital Contribution, in the amount of $[220,632] (“Fifth Installment”) 
shall be payable in cash as follows: 

(i) Upon the satisfaction of all of the following conditions, the Limited 
Partner shall pay to the Partnership the Project Equity portion of the Fifth 
Installment in the amount of $[0]: 

(a) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of the tax return 
and K-1 for the Partnership for the year in which Qualified Occupancy is 
achieved; 

(b) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of such evidence 
regarding the receipt of the approved Project real estate tax abatement; 

(c) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of a fully 
executed Form 8609 (including an executed Part 2) issued for each Building 
in the Project; 

(d) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of the recorded 
Extended Use Agreement; 

(e) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of recorded 
copies of all previously executed Subordinate Cash Flow Loans Documents. 

(f) Satisfaction of all of the conditions to the payment of all 
prior installments; 

80



-31- 
60187061.1 

(g) Receipt and approval by the Asset Manager of any 
outstanding delivery items required by this Partnership Agreement, 
including, without limitation, any outstanding delivery items required by 
Article 8; and 

(h) July 1, 2028. 

(ii) Upon the satisfaction of all of the requirements for payment of the 
Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity portion of the Fourth Installment as set forth 
in set forth in set forth in Section 3.2.4(ii) and the Project Equity portion of the Fifth 
Installment as set forth in Section 3.2.5(i) above, the Limited Partner shall pay to 
the Partnership the Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity portion of the Fifth 
Installment in the amount of $[220,632]. 

3.2.6 The following additional terms and conditions shall apply to payment 
of Capital Contributions: 

(i) The Asset Manager may, in its sole and absolute discretion, waive 
or defer any one or more of the requirements set forth in Sections 3.2.1 through 
3.2.5 above and pay that installment of Project Equity, provided any requirement 
that is waived or deferred must be satisfied prior to the payment by the Limited 
Partner of the respective Developer Fee Equity, unless a later date is agreed to in 
writing by the Asset Manager. 

(ii) Notwithstanding any reduction of the Limited Partner’s Capital 
Contribution installment next due, including a reduction to $0 of the installment 
next due or a reduction to $0 of all remaining Capital Contributions, that results 
from the operation of the provisions found in Sections 6.9.1 through 6.9.3, the 
General Partner shall remain obligated to satisfy on a timely basis all of the 
conditions related to the payment of the Project Equity and Non-Deferred 
Developer Fee portions of each installment of Capital Contribution as described in 
Sections 3.2.1 through 3.2.5 above. 

(iii) Any portion of the Development Fee that is not paid out of the 
Limited Partner’s Capital Contribution or the Project financing (currently projected 
to be $[3,706,315] as set forth in the Projections) shall be payable from available 
Cash Flow, and, if applicable, as provided in Section 3.1.3, above, subordinated to 
certain Cash Flow payments to be made to the Limited Partner. If any principal 
and/or accrued interest on the Deferred Development Fee remain unpaid by the end 
of the twelfth (12th) year of the Compliance Period, the General Partner shall make 
a Capital Contribution to the Partnership, as provided for in Section 3.1.3 above, in 
an amount sufficient to enable the Partnership to pay the outstanding amount of the 
Deferred Development Fee. 

(iv) The General Partner shall deliver to the Limited Partner, not more 
than thirty (30) days nor less than ten (10) Business Days prior to the due date of 
each installment of the Limited Partner’s Capital Contribution, the General 

81



-32- 
60187061.1 

Partner’s written certification in the form attached as Exhibit D that each of the 
applicable conditions set forth in Section 3.2.7, has been satisfied. 

(v) [The Limited Partner shall be deemed to have satisfied its obligation 
under this Partnership Agreement to fund an installment of Capital Contributions 
upon payment of such installment (a) into a construction escrow or similar account 
established pursuant to and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the  
[construction escrow agreement executed by the Partnership] or (b) directly to the 
Construction Lender for the purpose of repaying the Construction Loan.] 

(vi) If Asset Manager estimates in its reasonable judgment that a credit 
adjuster payment will be owed to Limited Partner pursuant to Section 6.9, then until 
such time as the amount of the credit adjuster payment can be determined with 
certainty based on a Form 8609, the Limited Partner may withhold from any Capital 
Contribution otherwise owing hereunder, an amount equal to 150% of the estimated 
credit adjuster payment. 

3.2.7 The obligation to pay the amounts due under Section 3.2.1 through 
Section 3.2.5 is expressly conditioned upon each of the following requirements, in 
addition to those requirements that are set forth above, being satisfied at all times prior 
to and including the due dates of the above payments: 

(i) The General Partner has fully complied with all of its covenants and 
obligations set forth in this Partnership Agreement (including, without limitation, 
those covenants, representations, and warranties set forth in Section 6.3); 

(ii) The representations and warranties of the General Partner set forth 
in the Partnership Agreement are true and correct as of the date of funding of the 
Limited Partner Capital Contribution payment (including, without limitation, those 
set forth in Section 6.3); 

(iii) The General Partner has fully complied with its obligation to furnish 
the Limited Partner with any reports or other information, in satisfactory form, 
required to be provided by the General Partner pursuant to Article 8 hereof, it being 
acknowledged and agreed that any penalty assessed against the General Partner 
under Section 8.6.1 for late delivery of reports shall be payable by the General 
Partner to the Limited Partner from any installment of the Developer Fee payable 
under Section 3.2, and the Limited Partner shall be entitled to deduct and pay such 
penalty amount from any installment due under Section 3.2 and the amount so 
deducted and applied shall be deemed for all intents and purposes to have been 
applied toward payment of the Developer Fee; and 

(iv) There has been no, and there is no imminent nor threatened, material 
adverse change in the General Partner’s financial or business condition or 
operations that affects (or with the passage of time will affect) its ability to perform 
its obligations hereunder. 

82



-33- 
60187061.1 

3.2.8 Subject to the provisions set forth above, if a Limited Partner’s 
interest in the Partnership is liquidated (within the meaning of Regulations 
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g)) prior to the payment of the Limited Partner’s entire Capital 
Contribution pursuant to this Section 3.2, the Limited Partner shall pay no later than the 
end of the taxable year of the Partnership in which the Limited Partner’s interest is 
liquidated or, if later, within ninety (90) days after the date of the liquidation the lesser 
of (1) the unpaid balance of its Capital Contribution; and (2) its negative Capital 
Account balance. 

Section 3.3 Intentionally Omitted.   

Section 3.4 Interest on Capital Contributions. The Partnership shall not pay any 
Partner interest on its Capital Contribution. 

Section 3.5 Withdrawal and Return of Capital Contributions.  Except as provided 
elsewhere herein, no Partner has the right:  (i) to withdraw any part of its Capital Contribution 
from the Partnership; (ii) to demand a return of its Capital Contribution; or (iii) to receive property 
other than cash in return for its Capital Contribution. 

Section 3.6 Capital Accounts. 

3.6.1 The Partnership shall maintain for each Partner a separate capital 
account in accordance with Section 1.704-1(b) of the Regulations.  The Capital Account 
of each Partner consists of the amount of its Capital Contribution, and will be 
(1) increased by (i) the fair market value of any property contributed by it to the 
Partnership, (ii) the amount of any Partnership liability assumed by such Partner or 
which is secured by any Partnership Property distributed to such Partner, and (iii) its 
allocable share of Profits and any items of income or gain specially allocated to it 
pursuant to Section 4.2.4 through Section 4.2.15, and (2) decreased by (i) the amount of 
any cash distributed to it, (ii) the fair market value of any Partnership Property 
distributed to it, (iii) the amount of any liability of such Partner assumed by the 
Partnership or which is secured by any property contributed by such Partner to the 
Partnership, and (iv) its allocable share of Losses and any items of loss or deduction 
specially allocated to it pursuant to Section 4.2.4 through Section 4.2.15. 

3.6.2 If any Partnership Interests are transferred in accordance with the 
terms of this Partnership Agreement, then the transferee will succeed to the Capital 
Account of the transferor to the extent it relates to the transferred Partnership Interest.  
Upon the occurrence of any of the following events, the Partnership shall revalue the 
Partnership Property and adjust the Partners’ Capital Accounts to reflect the gain (or 
loss) that would have been allocated to each Partner if all the Partnership Property had 
been sold at its fair market value immediately prior to the occurrence of any of the 
following events, and if required to cause the provisions herein regarding the 
maintenance of Capital Accounts to comply with Section 1.704-1(b) of the Regulations: 

(i) Any new or existing Partner acquiring an additional interest in the 
Partnership in exchange for more than a de minimis Capital Contribution; 

83



-34- 
60187061.1 

(ii) The Partnership distributing to a Partner more than a de minimis 
amount of property or money in consideration for an interest in the Partnership; or 

(iii) The “liquidation” of the Partnership within the meaning of 
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g) of the Regulations, other than a “liquidation” resulting 
from a termination under Section 1.708-1(b)(2) of the Regulations. 

The revaluation of the Partnership Property referred to in the immediately preceding sentence will 
be made in accordance with Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f) of the Regulations. 

The foregoing provisions and all other provisions of this Partnership Agreement relating to the 
maintenance of Capital Accounts are intended to comply with Section 1.704-1(b) of the 
Regulations and will be interpreted and applied in a manner consistent with such Regulations. 

Section 3.7 Partnership Loans.  Subject to the limitations set forth in 6.2.6, if from 
time to time the Partnership needs funds in excess of those provided by the Construction Loan, 
Subordinate Cash Flow Loans, Capital Contributions of the Partners, and funds required to be 
provided by the General Partner or any Affiliate of the General Partner pursuant to any obligation 
hereunder or any other agreement (such as pursuant to Sections 6.4.6(i) and 6.4.6(ii)), any Partner 
or other person, organization, or institution may loan such additional funds to the Partnership at an 
interest cost to the Partnership and upon such terms, as agreed upon by the General Partner in its 
reasonable discretion, subject to compliance with the terms of existing loan agreements and this 
Partnership Agreement.  Any loan made by a General Partner or an Affiliate of a General Partner 
will not bear interest in excess of the long term annual compounding Applicable Federal Rate.  
Any Partner making any loan to the Partnership will be considered, in its capacity as maker of the 
loan, a general creditor of the Partnership and not as a Partner.  Any loan made hereunder by a 
Partner will be repaid as provided in Section 5.1 and Section 5.2 hereof, or in the sole discretion 
of Asset Manager, may be repaid from a source of funds other than Cash Flow in accordance with 
Section 5.1 or Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings in accordance with Section 5.2, provided 
that such source of funds is acceptable to Asset Manager in Asset Manager’s sole discretion. 

Section 3.8 Additional Capital Contributions.  Except as expressly provided in this 
Partnership Agreement, no Partner is required to make contributions to the capital of the 
Partnership. 

Section 3.9 Limited Partner’s Withdrawal Option.  In the event that the following 
events have not occurred by the specified dates, unless such dates are waived or extended in writing 
by the Limited Partner, then the Limited Partner may, at its sole option and discretion, withdraw 
from the Partnership at any time unless and until it waives such withdrawal right in writing.  

Event Completion or Delivery Date 

1. Commencement of construction of the 
Project as evidenced in a manner as reasonably 
required by the Asset Manager. 

1. Thirty (30) days after the date of 
execution of the Partnership Agreement 

84



-35- 
60187061.1 

2. Submission of all outstanding items in 
the Post-Closing Document Delivery 
Agreement 

2. On or before the date specified in 
the Post-Closing Document Delivery 
Agreement for each post-closing delivery 
item 

  

Upon any such withdrawal, the Partnership shall (i) immediately return to the Limited Partner all 
Capital Contributions actually made to the Partnership by the Limited Partner, plus all expenses 
incurred by the Limited Partner in connection with entering into and withdrawing from the 
Partnership, and (ii) execute and file a release of the Limited Partner’s UCC Financing Statement 
securing its Capital Contribution obligation, the Partners shall execute an amendment to the 
Partnership Agreement and the General Partner shall execute, file, and record, as applicable, an 
amendment to the Partnership’s Certificate of Limited Partnership, reflecting the withdrawal of 
the Limited Partner and the release of all of the Limited Partner’s obligations and liabilities in 
connection with the Partnership, all of the foregoing documents to be in form and content 
satisfactory to the Limited Partner. Notwithstanding any failure or delay in such execution and 
delivery, however, the Partnership Agreement shall be deemed to have been amended in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section 3.9 once the Limited Partner has provided the 
General Partner with written notice of its intent to withdraw. Nothing herein shall be construed to 
diminish any of the General Partner’s obligations under the Partnership Agreement to issue final 
accounting and tax reports to the Limited Partner for all periods prior to its withdrawal and in 
which its withdrawal occurred. 

 

  

85



-36- 
60187061.1 

ARTICLE 4: ALLOCATION OF PROFITS, LOSSES AND TAX CREDITS 

Section 4.1 Profit and Loss Allocations.  Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2, 
Profits and Losses for any Fiscal Year of the Partnership are allocated among the Partners in 
accordance with the following percentages: 

Partner Percentage 

Administrative General Partner 0.005% 

Managing General Partner 0.005% 

Limited Partner 99.99% 

Total 100.00% 

  

Section 4.2 Special Allocations.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
in 4.1, the following special allocations in all events apply in determining the allocation of Profits 
and Losses among the Partners and are made prior to the allocations required under Section 4.1: 

4.2.1 Depreciation and Tax Credits. 

(i) Depreciation (cost recovery) deductions and Tax Credits are 
allocated 0.005% to the Administrative General Partner, 0.005% to the Managing 
General Partner, and 99.99% to the Limited Partner. 

(ii) Any recapture of Tax Credits is allocated to the Partners that were 
allocated (or whose predecessors-in-interest were allocated) the depreciation/cost 
recovery deduction or Profits and Losses, as applicable and Tax Credits associated 
therewith. 

4.2.2 Limitation on Allocations of Losses.  To the extent the allocation 
of any Losses to a Limited Partner would cause that Limited Partner to have an Adjusted 
Capital Account Deficit at the end of any Fiscal Year of the Partnership, then those 
Losses will not be allocated to that Limited Partner, but rather will be specially allocated 
to the General Partner. 

4.2.3 Profit Chargeback.  To the extent any Losses are allocated to the 
General Partner in accordance with Section 4.2.2 above, then Profits will thereafter first 
be specially allocated to the General Partner in proportion to and in an amount (1) up to 
but not exceeding the amount of any such allocations of Losses made to the General 
Partner under such Section 4.2.2, but (2) not to the extent that Losses would be allocated 
to the Limited Partner in excess of the amount permitted by such Section 4.2.2. 

4.2.4 Partnership Minimum Gain Chargeback.  Notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Article 4, if there is a net decrease in Partnership Minimum Gain 

86



-37- 
60187061.1 

during any Partnership Fiscal Year, then each Partner will be specially allocated items 
of Partnership income or gain for such Fiscal Year (and, if necessary, subsequent Fiscal 
Years) in an amount equal to the portion of such Partner’s share of the net decrease in 
the Partnership Minimum Gain (determined in accordance with Section 1.704-2(g) of 
the Regulations).  Any allocations made pursuant to this Section 4.2.4 are to be made in 
proportion to the respective amounts required to be allocated to each of the Partners 
pursuant thereto.  The items of Partnership income or gain specially allocated under this 
Section 4.2.4 are to be determined in accordance with Section 1.704-2(f) of the 
Regulations.  This Section 4.2.4 is intended to comply with the minimum gain 
chargeback requirements of Section 1.704-2(f) of the Regulations and will be 
interpreted consistently therewith. 

4.2.5 Partner Minimum Gain Chargeback.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Article 4 (except Section 4.2.4), if there is a net decrease in Partner 
Minimum Gain attributable to a Partner Nonrecourse Debt during any Partnership Fiscal 
Year, then each Partner who has a share of the Partner Minimum Gain attributable to 
such Partner Nonrecourse Debt (as determined in accordance with Section 1.704-2(i)(5) 
of the Regulations) will be specially allocated items of Partnership income and gain for 
such Fiscal Year (and if necessary, subsequent Fiscal Years) in an amount equal to the 
portion of such Partner’s share of the net decrease in Partner Minimum Gain attributable 
to such Partner Nonrecourse Debt (as determined in accordance with Section 1.704-
2(i)(4) of the Regulations).  Any allocations made pursuant to this Section 4.2.5 will be 
made in proportion to the respective amounts required to be allocated to each Partner 
pursuant thereto.  The items of Partnership income or gain specially allocated under this 
Section 4.2.5 will be determined in accordance with Section 1.704-2(i)(4) of the 
Regulations.  This Section 4.2.5 is intended to comply with the minimum gain 
chargeback requirements of Section 1.704-2(i)(4) of the Regulations and will be 
interpreted consistently therewith. 

4.2.6 Qualified Income Offset.  If a Limited Partner unexpectedly 
receives any adjustments, allocations, or distributions described in Section 1.704-
1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) or (6) of the Regulations, then items of Partnership income or gain 
will be specially allocated to that Limited Partner in an amount and manner sufficient to 
eliminate, to the extent required by the Regulations, the Adjusted Capital Account 
Deficit of that Limited Partner as quickly as possible.  The special allocations required 
pursuant to this Section 4.2.6 are made only if and to the extent that such Limited Partner 
would have an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit after all other allocations provided for 
in this Article 4 have been tentatively made as if this Section 4.2.6 were not in the 
Partnership Agreement.  This Section 4.2.6 is intended to comply with the qualified 
income offset requirements of Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d) of the Regulations and will 
be interpreted consistently therewith. 

4.2.7 Gross Income Allocation.  If a Limited Partner has a deficit balance 
in its Capital Account at the end of any Partnership Fiscal Year which exceeds the sum 
of (1) the amount that Limited Partner is obligated to restore pursuant to any provision 
of this Partnership Agreement and (2) the amount that Limited Partner is deemed to be 
obligated to restore pursuant to the penultimate sentences of Section 1.704-2(g)(1) and 

87



-38- 
60187061.1 

Section 1.704-2(i)(5) of the Regulations, then that Limited Partner will be specially 
allocated items of Partnership income or gain in the amount of such excess as quickly 
as possible.  The special allocations required pursuant to this Section 4.2.7 are made 
only if and to the extent that such Limited Partner would have a deficit Capital Account 
in excess of the aforementioned sum after all of the allocations provided for in this 
Article 4 have been tentatively made as if Section 4.2.6 and this Section 4.2.7 were not 
in the Partnership Agreement. 

4.2.8 Nonrecourse Deductions.  Nonrecourse Deductions are specially 
allocated among the Partners in accordance with the same percentages set forth in 
Section 4.1 with respect to Profits and Losses. 

4.2.9 Partner Nonrecourse Deductions.  Partner Nonrecourse 
Deductions are specially allocated to the Partner who bears the economic risk of loss 
with respect to the Partner Nonrecourse Debt to which such Partner Nonrecourse 
Deductions are attributable in accordance with Section 1.704-2(i) of the Regulations. 

4.2.10 754 Adjustment.  If, pursuant to Section 6.2.10, the Limited Partner 
consents to an election under Section 754 of the Code, then to the extent an adjustment 
to the adjusted tax basis of any Partnership Property undertaken pursuant to 
Section 734(b) or 743(b) of the Code is required to be taken into account in determining 
the Capital Accounts of the Partners under Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m) of the 
Regulations, the amount of such adjustment to the Capital Accounts will be treated as 
an item of gain (if the adjustment increases the basis of the asset) or loss (if the 
adjustment decreases such basis) and such gain or loss will be specially allocated to the 
Partners in a manner consistent with the manner in which their Capital Accounts are 
required to be adjusted pursuant to the aforementioned section of the Regulations. 

4.2.11 Imputed Interest.  To the extent the Partnership has taxable interest 
income with respect to any Capital Contribution pursuant to Section 483 or 
Sections 1271 through 1288 of the Code, then (i) such interest income will be specially 
allocated to the Partner to whom such Capital Contribution relates, and (ii) the amount 
of such interest income will be excluded from the Capital Contributions credited to such 
Partner’s Capital Account in connection with the payments of principal with respect to 
such Capital Contribution. 

4.2.12 Curative Allocations.  The special allocations set forth in 
Section 4.2.4 through Section 4.2.9 are intended to comply with the requirements of 
Section 1.704-1(b) of the Regulations.  These special allocations may lead to results, 
which are inconsistent with the Partners’ intentions concerning their sharing in 
Partnership distributions.  Accordingly, the General Partner is hereby authorized and 
directed to specially allocate other items of Partnership income, gain, loss, and 
deduction among the Partners so as to prevent the special allocations required under 
Section 4.2.4 through  Section 4.2.9 of this Section 4.2 from distorting the Partners’ 
understanding of the manner in which Partnership distributions are to be made to the 
Partners upon the dissolution and termination of the Partnership.  In general, it is 
anticipated that the special allocations, if any, made under this Section 4.2.12 are made 

88



-39- 
60187061.1 

by specially allocating other items of Partnership income, gain, loss, and deduction 
among the Partners so that the sum of the special allocations made to each Partner 
pursuant to Section 4.2.4 through Section 4.2.9 of this Section 4.2 equals the sum of the 
special allocations made under this Section 4.2.4.  In order to preserve its Capital 
Account to allow the allocation of Tax Credits to the Limited Partner in accordance with 
Section 4.2.1, the Limited Partner may select certain classes of deductions (but not 
depreciation deductions) to be allocated solely to the General Partner.  The Limited 
Partner shall notify the General Partner in writing no later than the due date (without 
extension) of the Partnership tax return for any fiscal year of  the deductions to be 
allocated to the General Partner in this manner, and the General Partner and Limited 
Partner shall cause the Partnership Agreement to be amended to reflect the special 
allocation described in the preceding sentence.  Such amendment shall be considered 
effective as of the first day of the year for which such return relates. 

4.2.13 Matching Income Allocation of Income or Gain from Sales and 
Refinancing Proceeds.  All items of Partnership income or gain arising from events 
resulting in Net Cash from Sales or Refinancings are allocated: 

(i) first, as specified in Sections 4.2.4 through 4.2.7, Section 4.2.10 and 
Section 4.2.12 and Section 4.4.3 of this Partnership Agreement; 

(ii) second, if after the allocation of Profits and Losses for the Fiscal 
Year in which the gain arose, any Limited Partner has a negative Capital Account 
balance, 99.99% to the Limited Partner and 0.01% to the General Partner, until each 
Limited Partner’s negative Capital Account is equal to zero; 

(iii) third, to any General Partner that has a negative Capital Account 
balance after the allocation of Profits and Losses for the Fiscal Year in which the 
gain arose, until its Capital Account balance is equal to zero; 

(iv) fourth, 99.99% to the Limited Partner and 0.01% to the General 
Partner, until each Limited Partner’s positive Capital Account balance equals any 
amount to be distributed to the Limited Partner pursuant to Section 5.2.1(i) and 
Section 5.2.1(ii); and 

(v) fifth, to the Partners in accordance with the percentages specified in 
Section 5.2.2. 

4.2.14 Income Other Than From Operations.  Any income (other than 
from Project operations and otherwise not reflected in the Projections) recognized by 
the Partnership, including, without limitation, as a result of (a) any receipt of grants by 
the Partnership, (b) any forgiveness or deemed forgiveness of debt,  or (c) Bond related 
income such as from arbitrage or premiums, shall be allocated ninety percent (90%) to 
the General Partner.  Any such income not allocated to the General Partner, or in the 
event that such allocation is not respected by the IRS, and such income is instead 
allocated to the Limited Partner, or if the General Partner does not pay all required taxes 
on such income and such taxes are assessed against the Partnership (i) the General 

89



-40- 
60187061.1 

Partner, and the Guarantor pursuant to the Guaranty, shall indemnify and hold harmless 
the Limited Partner and the Partnership for any tax, interest and penalties owed by the 
Limited Partner or Partnership as a result of such income on an after-tax basis and 
(ii) during any time that such indemnity remains unpaid, any payments or other 
distributions payable to the General Partner, Guarantor or any Affiliate of General 
Partner or Guarantor, including amounts payable or distributable to the General Partner, 
Guarantor or any Affiliate of General Partner or Guarantor as an Operating Expense or 
pursuant to Section 5.1.1 of this Partnership Agreement, will for accounting purposes 
be treated as paid or distributed to such party, but will be paid to the Limited Partner in 
an amount equal to the tax, interest and penalties owed by the Limited Partner as a result 
of such income (on an after-tax basis) in each year of the Partnership until paid in full.   

4.2.15 Special Adjustment.  The special allocations in this Section 4.2.15 
shall apply notwithstanding any provision of this Partnership Agreement to the contrary.  
Prior to making any special allocations set forth in this Section 4.2, items of expenses 
and other deductions (other than depreciation, amortization, cost recovery deductions 
and Nonrecourse Deductions) equal to the sum of the amount of any loans to the 
Partnership made by the General Partner or any of its Affiliates pursuant to or for the 
purposes described in Section 3.7 and Sections 6.4.6(i) and 6.4.6(ii) may, with the 
consent of the Limited Partner, be specially allocated to the General Partner in each tax 
year in which any such loan is made if Limited Partner considers such special allocation 
to be necessary for the Limited Partner to maintain a positive Adjusted Capital Account 
through the end of the Credit Period.  Further, if any loans of the General Partner or its 
Affiliates are repaid by the Partnership from Cash Flow pursuant to Section 5.1.1 and 
the General Partner was previously specially allocated items of expense and other 
deductions related to such loans, the General Partner shall be specially allocated an 
amount of gross income equal to the lesser of (i) the amount of such repayment, or 
(ii) the aggregate amount of expenses and deductions specifically allocated to the 
General Partner under this Section 4.2.15. 

4.2.16 Allocation of Expenses.  Beginning in the first year of the Credit 
Period and continuing each year thereafter, [20]% of all of the “General & 
Administrative”, the “Payroll & Related”, and the “Maintenance & Repair” expenses 
reflected in the Projections shall be allocated to the General Partner provided that in no 
event shall the General Partner be specially allocated any depreciation or other 
Nonrecourse Deductions. The Partners agree that, if needed to prevent the Limited 
Partner’s Capital Account from going negative during the Credit Period, they will 
consider in good faith specially allocating other expenses and deductions to the General 
Partner. 

Section 4.3 Timing of Allocations.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 
Partnership Agreement, all allocations of Profits, Losses, and Tax Credits are to be made as of the 
last day of each Fiscal Year of the Partnership. 

Section 4.4 Other Allocation Rules.  The following rules apply for the purpose of 
interpreting and applying the provisions of this Article 4 relating to the allocation of Profits, 
Losses, and Tax Credits among the Partners: 

90



-41- 
60187061.1 

4.4.1 Excess Nonrecourse Liabilities.  Solely for purposes of determining 
a Partner’s proportionate share of the “excess nonrecourse liabilities” of the Partnership 
within the meaning of Section 1.752-3(a)(3) of the Regulations, the Partners’ respective 
interests in Partnership Profits shall be those percentage interests set forth in Section 4.1 
(determined without regard to Section 4.2). 

4.4.2 Effect of Cash Distributions.  To the extent permitted by 
Sections 1.704-2(h) and 1.704-2(i)(6) of the Regulations, the General Partner shall 
endeavor to treat distributions of Cash Flow as having been made from the proceeds of 
a Nonrecourse Liability or a Partner Nonrecourse Debt only to the extent that such 
distributions would cause or increase an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit for any 
Limited Partner. 

4.4.3 Recharacterization of Fee as Distribution.  If any fee or portion 
thereof payable to any Partner or any Affiliate thereof is determined to be a 
nondeductible distribution from the Partnership to a Partner for federal income tax 
purposes, there will be allocated to such Partner an amount of gross income equal to 
such distribution. 

Section 4.5 Tax Effect of Allocations.  Except as otherwise required under the second 
paragraph of this Section 4.5, the allocation of Profits, Losses, and Tax Credits to any Partner 
under this Article 4 is deemed an allocation to that Partner of the same proportionate part of each 
separate item of Partnership taxable income, gain, loss, deduction, or credit comprising such 
Profits, Losses, and Tax Credits, including, without limitation, any “unrealized receivable” or 
“substantially appreciated inventory item” under Section 751 of the Code.  The Partners are aware 
of the income tax consequences of the allocations made pursuant to this Article 4 and hereby agree 
to be bound by the provisions of this Article 4 in reporting their respective shares of Partnership 
income, gain, loss, deduction, and credit for income tax purposes. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Article 4, income, gain, loss, 
deduction, and credit with respect to any Partnership Property contributed to the capital of the 
Partnership by any Partner is, solely for tax purposes, allocated among the Partners so as to take 
into account any variation between the adjusted tax basis of such Partnership Property to the 
Partnership for federal income tax purposes and the value assigned to such Partnership Property 
for the purposes of the computation of the Partners’ Capital Accounts.  If any revaluation of the 
Partnership Property is made by the General Partner (which revaluation may only be made with 
the consent of the Limited Partner) then any subsequent allocations of income, gain, loss, 
deduction, and credit with respect to such Partnership Property will take into account any variation 
between the adjusted tax basis of such Partnership Property for federal income tax purposes and 
the value assigned to such Partnership Property as a result of such revaluation.  All allocations 
required under this paragraph of Section 4.5 are solely for purposes of federal, state, and local 
income taxes.  These allocations do not affect and must not in any way be taken into account in 
computing any Partner’s Capital Account or any Partner’s share of Profits, Losses, Tax Credits or 
other items or distributions required or permitted to be made pursuant to any provision of this 
Partnership Agreement.  This Section 4.5 is intended to conform to Section 704(c) of the Code. 

91



-42- 
60187061.1 

Section 4.6 Limitations on Allocations.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained in this Article 4, except as required under Section 704(b) of the Code and the 
Regulations promulgated thereunder, provided that if the General Partner is (i) a “tax-exempt 
entity” within the meaning of Section 168(h)(2) of the Code, or (ii) a “tax-exempt controlled 
entity” within the meaning of Section 168(h)(6)(F)(iii) of the Code and has not made a valid 
election under Section 168(h)(6)(F)(ii) of the Code, the allocations to the General Partner under 
this Section 4.2 and Section 4.3 shall be limited to the highest percentage of the Partnership’s 
property treated as tax-exempt use property, as reflected in the Projections. 

 

 

  

92



-43- 
60187061.1 

ARTICLE 5: DISTRIBUTIONS 

Section 5.1 Distribution of Cash Flow. 

5.1.1 Cash Flow shall be paid, prior to the making of any distributions 
pursuant to Section 5.1.2 hereof, in the following order and priority: 

(i) First, to the Limited Partner to the extent of any amount which the 
Limited Partner is entitled to receive in order to satisfy any and all amounts owed 
to it pursuant to this Partnership Agreement, including, without limitation, under 
Section 6.8 and Section 6.9 hereof (other than Section 3.7 hereof); 

(ii) Second, to the Asset Manager to pay any accrued and payable Asset 
Management Fees; 

(iii) Third, to pay any accrued and unpaid principal and interest on loans 
made by the Limited Partner pursuant to Section 3.7; 

(iv) Fourth, to the Operating Reserve Account until such time as such 
account is replenished up to the Operating Reserve Target Amount; 

(v) Fifth, to the Developer to pay any unpaid balance on the Deferred 
Development Fee; 

(vi) Sixth, to pay any accrued, unpaid Property Management Agent Fee 
subordinated in a prior year as a result of the application of the last paragraph of 
Section 6.4.9; 

(vii) Seventh, to repay any accrued and unpaid principal and interest on 
loans made by the General Partner pursuant to Section 3.7; 

(viii) Eighth, to the General Partner (in the order of loans made, with 
earlier loans repaid in full before subsequent loans are repaid) to repay any amounts 
treated as loans to the Partnership (without interest) by the General Partner pursuant 
to Section 6.4.6(i) or 6.4.6(ii) and not yet repaid; 

(ix) Ninth, to [the General Partner] to pay the Partnership Management 
Fee, on a cumulative basis; and  [ 

(x) Tenth, to the payment of any then payable Cash Flow Debt Service 
Payments, in accordance with the applicable Loan Documents; 

(xi) Eleventh, until the end of the Compliance Period, ninety percent 
(90%)  of the balance, if any, to [the General Partner] as an Incentive Partnership 
Management Fee, on a non-cumulative basis.  

93



-44- 
60187061.1 

5.1.2 After making the payments described in Section 5.1.1 hereof, the 
remaining Cash Flow, if any, shall be distributed to the Partners in accordance with the 
following percentages:   

Administrative General Partner 0.005% 

Managing General Partner 0.005% 

Limited Partner 99.99% 

Total 100.00% 

  

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 5.1 to the contrary, for each Fiscal 
Year a sufficient amount of Cash Flow shall be distributed to the Limited Partner such that, when 
such distribution is added to all other distributions of Cash Flow made to the Limited Partner with 
respect to such Fiscal Year, the Limited Partner will have received an amount of Cash Flow equal 
to at least 10% of all Cash Flow which remains after repayment of the loans referred to in 
Section 5.1.1(vii) with respect to such Fiscal Year. 

Section 5.2 Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings.  Subject to the terms of the 
Subordinate Cash Flow Loan Documents, except as otherwise provided in Article 11 of this 
Partnership Agreement (pertaining to the liquidation and dissolution of the Partnership), Net Cash 
from Sales and Refinancings shall be paid or distributed to the Partners as provided in this 
Section 5.2. 

5.2.1 Payments.  Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings shall be paid in 
the following order and priority: 

(i) First, to the Limited Partner to the extent of any amount which the 
Limited Partner is entitled to receive in order to satisfy any and all amounts owed 
to it pursuant to this Agreement, including, without limitation, under Section 6.8 
and Section 6.9 hereof (other than Section 3.7 hereof); 

(ii) Second, to the Limited Partner an amount equal to the amount of 
taxes which would be imposed upon the Limited Partner as a result of the sale or 
refinancing, assuming that the Limited Partner is subject to the highest marginal 
federal, state and local income tax rates in effect at such time for corporations; 

(iii) Third, to the payment of current and accrued Asset Management 
Fees, if outstanding; 

(iv) Fourth, to pay any accrued and unpaid principal and interest on loans 
made by the Limited Partner pursuant to Section 3.7; 

(v) Fifth, to the Developer to pay any unpaid balance, if any, on the 
Deferred Development Fee; 

94



-45- 
60187061.1 

(vi) Sixth, to the Asset Manager to pay the Disposition Fee; 

(vii) Seventh, to repay any accrued and unpaid principal and interest on 
loans made by the General Partner pursuant to Section 3.7; 

(viii) Eighth, to [the General Partner] to pay any accrued and unpaid 
Partnership Management Fee; and 

(ix) Ninth, to the General Partner (in the order of loans made, with earlier 
loans repaid in full before subsequent loans are repaid) to repay any amounts treated 
as loans to the Partnership (without interest) by the General Partner pursuant to 
Section 6.4.6(i) or 6.4.6(ii) and not yet repaid. 

5.2.2 Distributions.  After making the payments specified in Section 5.2.1 
hereof, the balance of Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings, if any, shall be distributed  
10% to the Limited Partner and [90% to the General Partner.]   

Section 5.3 Timing of Distributions.  Distributions of Cash Flow shall be made 
annually within ninety (90) days after the end of each Fiscal Year of the Partnership.  The 
determination of the amount of Cash Flow distributable annually to the Partners under this 
Article 5 shall be based upon the state of facts existing on the last day of each Fiscal Year of the 
Partnership. 

Section 5.4 Treatment of Distributions.  Distributions to a Partner of Cash Flow are 
considered draws against such Partner’s allocable share of the Partnership’s Profits and Losses. 

 

  

95



-46- 
60187061.1 

ARTICLE 6: POWERS, RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF GENERAL PARTNER 

Section 6.1 Management of Partnership.  The Partnership is managed by the General 
Partner, who exercises full and exclusive control over the affairs of the Partnership, subject, 
however, to the limitations on its authority set forth in this Partnership Agreement (including, 
without limitation, Section 6.2 and Section 6.3).  The General Partner is under a fiduciary duty to 
conduct and manage the affairs of the Partnership in a prudent, businesslike, and lawful manner 
and will devote such part of its time to the affairs of the Partnership as is deemed necessary and 
appropriate to pursue the business and carry out the purposes of the Partnership as contemplated 
in this Partnership Agreement.  The General Partner shall use its best efforts and exercise good 
faith in all activities related to the business of the Partnership.  The General Partner shall perform 
services in connection with the acquisition of the Project Property, including, if applicable, 
negotiating the purchase agreement with the seller of the Project Property, acting on behalf of the 
Partnership with federal, state and local authorities with respect to the Project Property, monitoring 
compliance with zoning, land use and other requirements with respect to the Project Property, and 
preparing or causing to be prepared such third-party studies as it deems necessary in connection 
with the acquisition of the Project Property. 

Section 6.2 Restrictions on General Partner’s Authority.  Notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary contained in this Partnership Agreement, the General Partner does not have the 
authority to take any of the actions set forth below without the prior written consent of the Limited 
Partner: 

6.2.1 Do any act in contravention of or inconsistent with this Partnership 
Agreement or any other agreement to which the Partnership is a party (including, 
without limitation, those relating to the Project Documents, Construction Loan,  and 
Subordinate Cash Flow Loans); 

6.2.2 Do any act making it impossible to carry on the ordinary business of 
the Partnership; 

6.2.3 Initiate any litigation or administrative proceedings on behalf of the 
Partnership (other than proceedings initiated in the ordinary course of the Partnership’s 
business such as evictions) or confess a judgment against the Partnership; 

6.2.4 Use Partnership Property or assign rights in specific Partnership 
Property for other than a Partnership purpose; 

6.2.5 Incur any debt or liability (or enter into any agreement resulting in 
any such debt or liability being incurred) on behalf of the Partnership (i) that is not in 
ordinary course of the Partnership’s business or (ii) any debt or liabilities in the ordinary 
course of the Partnership’s business, in excess of Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 
Dollars ($25,000.00) other than the Construction Loan and the Subordinate Cash Flow 
Loans, and those liabilities (or agreements relating thereto) which have been disclosed 
to and approved in writing by the Limited Partner, provided that in all events a Project 
loan or other form of financing that is secured by a mortgage, deed of trust, trust deed 
or other security instrument encumbering the Project or any interest therein, including 

96



-47- 
60187061.1 

without limitation any refinancing of any existing Project debt, shall be subject to the 
prior, written approval of the Limited Partner; 

6.2.6 Sell or otherwise transfer any interest in the Project Property or any 
material asset of the Partnership (other than leases of Residential Units or, where 
applicable, commercial space, in the ordinary course of the Partnership’s business, and 
a transfer pursuant to Article 9 below); 

6.2.7 Acquire any interest in real property or acquire any item of personal 
property on behalf of the Partnership having a purchase price of more than Ten 
Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($10,000.00), unless such acquisition is part of the 
development budget or annual operating budget that has been approved in writing by 
the Limited Partner; 

6.2.8 Refinance, prepay (except as permitted by the Loan Documents and 
in accordance with Sections 5.1 and 5.2 of this Partnership Agreement), amend or 
modify any mortgage or long term liability of the Partnership, including, without 
limitation the Subordinate Cash Flow Loans; 

6.2.9 Compromise any claim or liability in excess of Twenty-Five 
Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) owed by or to the Partnership; 

6.2.10 Make, amend or revoke any tax election required of or permitted to 
be made by the Partnership under the Code or the Regulations, including, without 
limitation, any election under Section 42 or Section 754 of the Code.  In this regard, the 
General Partner shall make (and the Limited Partner consents thereto) any elections 
required or permitted under Section 42 or Section 754 of the Code requested in writing 
by the Asset Manager; 

6.2.11 Change any accounting method or practice of the Partnership; 

6.2.12 Take any action that would cause the termination of the Partnership 
for federal income tax purposes or the dissolution of the Partnership for state law 
purposes; 

6.2.13 Construct any improvements on the Project Property other than those 
contemplated in the Plans and Specifications (or any modification thereof if such 
modification is expressly approved in writing by the Limited Partner); 

6.2.14 Lease or otherwise operate any Tax Credit Unit in such a manner that 
such Tax Credit Unit would fail to be treated as a “low-income unit” under 
Section 42(i)(3) of the Code, or operate the Project in such a manner that the Project 
would fail to be treated as a qualified low-income housing project under Section 42 of 
the Code; 

6.2.15 Except for the Construction Loan and Subordinate Cash Flow Loans 
(including any regulatory agreements or declarations governing such loans), mortgage, 

97



-48- 
60187061.1 

pledge or encumber any interest in any Partnership Property, including, without 
limitation, the Project Property; 

6.2.16 Cause the Partnership to make a loan of any funds belonging to the 
Partnership or cause the Partnership to provide a guarantee of the indebtedness of any 
other Person; 

6.2.17 Change the nature of the business or purpose of the Partnership; 

6.2.18 Hire or retain any Person to manage the Project Property or the 
Partnership’s business other than the Property Management Agent.  The Project’s 
management agreement with Property Management Agent as the Project Property 
manager will contain the provisions specified in this Partnership Agreement, including 
those specified under “Property Management Agent” in the Article 1 hereof; 

6.2.19 Take any action (or fail to take any action) causing or resulting in a 
breach of any of the representations, warranties or covenants of the General Partner set 
forth in this Partnership Agreement, including, without limitation, those set forth in  
Section 6.3; 

6.2.20 Admit any other person or entity as a Partner, except as specifically 
permitted herein; 

6.2.21 Except as permitted by Section 11.1 (pertaining to dissolution of the 
Partnership), take any action that may cause the dissolution of the Partnership; 

6.2.22 Perform any act subjecting any Limited Partner to liability as a 
general partner in any jurisdiction; 

6.2.23 Deposit any Partnership funds in any bank, savings and loan, or other 
financial institution whose accounts are not fully insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation; 

6.2.24 Commingle any Partnership funds with the funds of (1) any other 
partnership or limited liability company in which a General Partner is a partner or 
managing member, as the case may be, (2) a General Partner or any of its affiliates, or 
(3) any other entity; 

6.2.25 Execute or deliver any assignment for the benefit of creditors; 

6.2.26 Become or permit any Affiliate or any other Person related to the 
General Partner (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 1.752-4(b)) to 
become personally liable on, or in respect of, or guarantee all or any portion of the 
indebtedness evidenced by the Loan Documents (other than the Construction Loan, the 
Sponsor Loan [and the CADA Loans]); 

6.2.27 Modify or amend this Partnership Agreement except as authorized 
herein, or materially amend any Project Document; 

98



-49- 
60187061.1 

6.2.28 After the Construction Completion Date, construct any 
improvements on the Project Property other than those contemplated in the Plans and 
Specifications (or any modification thereof if such modification is expressly approved 
in writing by the Limited Partner) with a cost basis in excess of $50,000.  Prior to the 
Construction Completion Date, materially deviate from the Plans and Specifications for 
the construction of the Project from those provided to the Limited Partner prior to its 
admission to the Partnership.  If prior to the Construction Completion Date there are 
change orders for the approved Plans and Specifications for the Project Property, such 
change orders shall be permitted only with the consent of the Limited Partner, unless all 
of the following are satisfied:  (i) an individual change is for an amount not in excess of 
$50,000 and, when combined with all prior change orders, does not cause the aggregate 
amount of change orders to exceed $250,000, (ii) the change order does not cause a 
material diminishment in the construction materials or methods approved in the Plans 
and Specifications, and (iii) when combined with all prior change orders, the change 
order will not extend by more than thirty (30) days the initial scheduled date for 
Construction Completion as specified in the Project documents; 

6.2.29 Acquire or purchase on behalf of the Partnership any automobiles; 

6.2.30 Hire any person or persons as an employee of the Partnership; 

6.2.31 Other than any Service Provider Agreement, enter into any 
contractual arrangement on behalf of the Partnership for the provision of medical 
services, medication management, home health care or related personal care services to 
the tenants of the Project.  The Limited Partner shall have no obligation to consent to 
any such arrangement at any time and may withhold any consent for such activities in 
its sole discretion; 

6.2.32 Other than any Service Provider Agreement, enter into any 
contractual arrangement on behalf of the General Partner for the provision of medical 
services, medication management, home health care or related personal care services to 
the tenants of the Project without the prior written consent of the Limited Partner.  The 
Limited Partner shall have no obligation to consent to any such arrangement at any time 
and may withhold any consent for such activities in its sole discretion; 

6.2.33 Bring any claim based on any right or interest of the Partnership 
except in the name and for the benefit of the Partnership; 

6.2.34 Cause the Partnership to pay any compensation to the General Partner 
or any General Partner Affiliate additional to the amounts permitted by this Partnership 
Agreement; 

6.2.35 Do anything contrary to, or fail to take, any action deemed necessary 
or appropriate by the Limited Partner’s tax counsel to cause the Partnership to be treated 
as a partnership for federal income tax purposes; 

99



-50- 
60187061.1 

6.2.36 File or cause to be filed on behalf of the Partnership a voluntary 
petition in bankruptcy or a petition or answer seeking a reorganization, liquidation, 
dissolution or similar relief under any statute, law, rule, or regulation; and 

6.2.37 Cause the conversion, merger, or consolidation of the Partnership 
into or with another entity. 

The Limited Partner may specify conditions for its review of any 
matter requiring Limited Partner consent hereunder, including 
without limitation payment of fees to the Limited Partner and 
reimbursement of third party costs related to such review. 

Section 6.3 Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the General Partner.  
As an inducement to the Limited Partner to enter into this Partnership Agreement, and in addition 
to the representations, warranties, and covenants set forth elsewhere in this Partnership Agreement, 
each General Partner  hereby makes the following representations, warranties, and covenants to 
and with the Limited Partner.  All of the representations and warranties are deemed given as of the 
date hereof and as of every date thereafter throughout the term of the Partnership’s existence and 
may be relied upon by counsel to the Limited Partner in connection with the Limited Partner’s 
investment in the Partnership.  In addition, each General Partner  hereby agrees that all of the 
representations, warranties, and covenants made herein may be relied upon by the Limited 
Partner’s tax counsel in rendering its tax opinion to the Limited Partner.  The General Partner shall 
fully comply with and abide by all of these covenants at all times throughout the term of the 
Partnership’s existence. 

6.3.1 The Partnership has received a letter (the “42(m) Letter”) from the 
State Housing Finance Agency, dated December 11, 2024, indicating that the Project 
meets the State Housing Finance Agency’s Qualified Allocation Plan, and requires 
$2,022,553 in annual Tax Credits in order to be financially feasible, and has or will 
timely comply with all requirements necessary to receive an allocation of Tax Credits 
in an amount that will deliver no less than the Projected Tax Credits to the Limited 
Partner; 

6.3.2 At all times following the completion of the contemplated 
improvements to the Project Property, the General Partner shall operate the Project 
Property in order to qualify one hundred thirty four (134) of the Residential Units in the 
Project Property for the Tax Credit with one-hundred percent (100%) of the tenants 
thereof qualifying under the appropriate income and rent restrictions of Section 42 of 
the Code as the same may be modified pursuant to the Extended Use Agreement 
(assuming no repeal or amendment of Section 42 of the Code renders such qualification 
impracticable), and in all other respects shall comply with the provision of Section 42 
of the Code; 

6.3.3 To the best of the General Partner’s knowledge, after due inquiry, 
and except as otherwise disclosed and certified in writing to the Limited Partner prior to 
the date of this Partnership Agreement, there are no actions, suits, or proceedings 
pending, threatened, by any person or governmental authority against or affecting the 

100



-51- 
60187061.1 

Project Property, the General Partner or any of its Affiliates that may have a material 
adverse effect on the Project Property or the Partnership or on the ability of the General 
Partner to perform its obligations hereunder; 

6.3.4 The Partnership is not liable (nor has any claim been made against it) 
for any expense, debt, cost, liability, or other charge other than costs incurred in 
connection with the acquisition and construction of the Project Property, operating 
expenses arising in the normal course of business, and those relating to the Construction 
Loan and Subordinate Cash Flow Loans; 

6.3.5 All current leases (if any) for the Residential Units in the Project 
Property are and all future leases will be for an initial term of at least six (6) months; 

6.3.6 The General Partner hereby represents and warrants as follows: 

(i) To the best of its knowledge, after due inquiry and investigation, 
except to the extent, if any, disclosed in the environmental report(s) for the Project 
heretofore delivered to the Limited Partner: 

(a) the Project does not contain any Hazardous Substance; 

(b) the Project is not in violation of any Environmental Law or 
any amendments of these acts or successor statutes, has occurred or is 
continuing; and 

(c) the General Partner has no knowledge and has not received 
any notice from any source whatsoever of the actual or potential existence 
of any Hazardous Substances on the Project, or of a violation of any 
Environmental Law, and the General Partner shall throughout the term of 
the Partnership, notify the Limited Partner in writing of any notice it may 
receive that such a condition or violation exists or may exist. 

(ii) If any such hazardous condition or violation, or the presence of any 
Hazardous Substance, is disclosed in the aforesaid environmental report(s) for the 
Project and such condition, violation or substance has not already been properly 
encased, encapsulated or otherwise corrected in a manner consistent with federal, 
state and local law: 

(a) the Project budget includes an amount necessary for 
recommended removal, encapsulation, or other remediation of such 
condition or substance or correction of such violation, and 

(b) the General Partner will verify that rehabilitation or 
construction of the Project has been or is being completed in accordance 
with the recommendations for removal, encapsulation, or remediation of 
such conditions or substances or correction of such violation and will certify 
to such in writing to the Limited Partner, upon completion of the 
rehabilitation or construction. 

101



-52- 
60187061.1 

(iii) The General Partner will deliver to the Limited Partner copies of all 
test results of materials or soils that are indicated in the environmental report(s) for 
the Project to be potentially hazardous or copies of any supplemental environmental 
report(s) that discuss the results of such tests. 

(iv)   The General Partner will take all actions within its control 
necessary to comply with and continue to comply with all ongoing or newly arising 
monitoring, maintenance, inspection, reporting, and remediation requirements of 
any applicable federal, state, or local environmental laws and regulations and if any  
bona fide prospective purchaser or innocent purchaser environmental liability 
defenses under state and federal law are available to the General Partner, then the 
General Partner shall take all necessary actions to satisfy the requirements of said 
defenses. 

(v) If the Project has received project-based or tenant-based Section 8 
rental subsidies, the Project operating budget shall include sufficient funds for the 
Project to comply with all applicable federal, state and local lead based paint laws 
and regulations. 

(vi) Unless otherwise approved by the Limited Partner in writing, the 
aforesaid environmental report(s) are based on assessments of the Project that were 
performed or recertified not more than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the 
date of execution of the Partnership Agreement by the Limited Partner and that 
include, but are not limited to, a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment that meets 
the requirements for All Appropriate Inquiries at 40 CFR §312.20 and all similar 
requirements under applicable state law. 

(vii) The General Partner shall, to the extent any such recommendation 
is set forth in any of the environmental report(s) for the Project, (A) cause a 
qualified environmental consultant to prepare a lead and/or asbestos operations and 
maintenance plan for the Project Property, and (B) ensure that such plan is located 
in a readily accessible and appropriate area on the Project Property. 

For purposes of the representations contained in this Section 6.3.6, 
Hazardous Substances shall not include small amounts of chemicals, 
cleaning agents, or similar substances employed in routine 
household uses in a manner typical of occupants in other residential 
properties, or incidental cleaning supplies, provided that they are 
used at all times in strict compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations and industry standards. 

6.3.7 The Partnership is a duly organized limited partnership, validly 
existing under the Act, and has complied with all filing requirements necessary under 
the Act for the preservation of the limited liability of the Limited Partner; 

6.3.8 No event has occurred that has caused and the General Partner will 
not act in any manner that will cause (i) the Partnership to be treated for federal income 

102



-53- 
60187061.1 

tax purposes as an “association” taxable as a corporation, rather than as a partnership, 
(ii) the Partnership to fail to qualify as a limited partnership under the Act, or (iii) any 
Limited Partner to be liable for Partnership obligations in excess of its Capital 
Contribution, plus the limited dollar amount of any deficit restoration obligation agreed 
to by such Limited Partner pursuant to Section 11.4 and any amount required to be 
repaid by such Limited Partner to the Partnership pursuant to Section 7.1 hereof and the 
Act; 

6.3.9 The Partnership owns the fee simple interest in the Project Property 
including the improvements in fee simple free and clear of all liens, charges, and 
encumbrances other than mortgages and other security instruments securing any of the 
Construction Loan or the Subordinate Cash Flow Loans and those liens, charges, and 
encumbrances expressly agreed to in writing by the Limited Partner and the General 
Partner and set forth in the owner’s title insurance policy for the Project; 

6.3.10 The Project Property conforms (or will timely conform) in all 
respects to all applicable laws, including, without limitation, all zoning, building, health, 
fire, and environmental rules and regulations and there are no laws, planning rules, 
regulations, ordinances, requirements, or environmental laws, regulations, or procedures 
applicable to the Project Property that would materially inhibit or materially adversely 
affect the operation of the Project Property as a low income housing development; 

6.3.11 The General Partner:  (i) has caused and will cause the Partnership to 
maintain with financially sound insurers with a rating of A VIII or better, as designated 
by A.M. Best & Company, all insurance coverage required by the Limited Partner in 
accordance with the Limited Partner’s current insurance standards, as posted on the NEF 
website (www.nefinc.org) under the portal for developers or made available to the 
General Partner in another manner specified in writing by the Asset Manager (or the 
Asset Manager’s designated insurance consultant), (ii) shall deliver to the Limited 
Partner, at least ten (10) Business Days prior to the date such insurance policy expires, 
a certificate of insurance for each insurance coverage required by the Limited Partner as 
evidence of renewal; and (iii) shall collect from any commercial tenants that contract 
with the Partnership to utilize the Project Property, proof of general liability insurance 
and, if applicable, workers compensation or other insurance coverage that said 
commercial tenant is required by law to maintain; 

6.3.12 Neither the execution or delivery by the Partnership or the General 
Partner of the Project Documents, nor any loan or other agreement to which the 
Partnership or the General Partner is a party, nor the performance by the Partnership or 
the General Partner of its obligations thereunder or hereunder, violates or constitutes a 
default under any provision of law, order of court, indenture, or other instrument 
affecting the General Partner, the Partnership, or the Project Property or, except for the 
Loan Documents, result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge, or 
encumbrance on the Project Property; 

6.3.13 The General Partner has provided the Limited Partner with the Plans 
and Specifications (including, without limitation, all working drawings) and all 

103



-54- 
60187061.1 

construction schedules, approved construction draws, certifications concerning 
occupancy, lien notices, project inspection reports, proposed changes and modifications 
to the Plans and Specifications, all available documents pertaining to the Construction 
Loan and Subordinate Cash Flow Loans and any other information which is relevant to 
the construction and development of the Project Property; 

6.3.14 All material information concerning the Project Property known to 
the General Partner or any of its Affiliates, or which should have been known to any of 
them in the exercise of reasonable care, has been disclosed by the General Partner to the 
Limited Partner and there are no facts or information known to the General Partner or 
any of its Affiliates, or which should have been known to any of them in the exercise of 
reasonable care, which would make any of the facts or information submitted by the 
General Partner to the Limited Partner with respect to the Project Property inaccurate, 
incomplete, or misleading in any material respect; 

6.3.15 Except with respect to the [CADA Loans and] the Sponsor Loan, 
none of the Partnership or any Partner (nor any Affiliate of any Partner) has or will have 
direct or indirect personal liability as maker, guarantor, partner, or otherwise with 
respect to the payment of principal or interest or any other sum due under the 
Subordinate Cash Flow Loans except as a consequence of certain bad acts such as gross 
negligence and willful misconduct, which are carved-out in the non-recourse provisions 
of such loans.  The Construction Loan is recourse as to the Partnership and the General 
Partner and/or its Affiliate is a guarantor thereof.  As of the date of this Partnership 
Agreement, there are no outstanding loans or advances from the General Partner nor any 
of its Affiliates to the Partnership and the Partnership has no unsatisfied obligations to 
make any payments of any kind to the General Partner or any of its Affiliates;  

6.3.16 The execution and delivery of all instruments and the performance of 
all acts heretofore or hereafter made or taken or to be made or taken pertaining to the 
Partnership by the General Partner have been or will be duly authorized by all necessary 
corporate or other action and the consummation of any such transactions with or on 
behalf of the Partnership will not constitute a breach or violation of, or a default under, 
the  articles of organization or operating agreement of either General Partner or any 
agreement by which either General Partner or any of its properties is bound, nor 
constitutes a violation of any law, administrative regulations or court decree; 

6.3.17 Neither the Partners nor any Affiliate of a Partner is a lender to the 
Partnership unless, based upon the advice of tax counsel or adviser satisfactory to the 
Limited Partner, such loan will not likely adversely affect or cause a material 
reallocation among the Partners of Tax Credits or Profits and Losses; 

6.3.18 The General Partner has no knowledge of, and has not received any 
notices with respect to, any violations by the Partnership or the Project of federal or state 
law or municipal ordinances or orders or requirements of any governmental body or 
authority in whose jurisdiction the Project Property is subject, and the General Partner 
shall furnish to the Limited Partner, immediately but no later than five (5) Business Days 
of receipt thereof, a copy of any notice of default (or other notice of a failure to perform) 

104



-55- 
60187061.1 

under any of the Project Documents or Loan Documents given to the Partnership or the 
General Partner by any of the Lenders or any other party thereto; 

6.3.19 There is no default existing, pending or threatened under any 
provision of the Construction Loan Subordinate Cash Flow Loans, the Project 
Documents or any other agreement to which the Partnership is a party and the General 
Partner shall take all requisite action to comply with the provisions of all such loans and 
agreements; and, if any such default is alleged, the General Partner shall notify the 
Limited Partner of such alleged default within five (5) days of any General Partner’s 
receipt of notification of the alleged default; 

6.3.20 All appropriate roadway and public utilities, including, without 
limitation, telephone, sewer, water, electricity and gas, are available in sufficient volume 
to the Project Property, and all easements required in connection therewith have been 
obtained and filed of public record and the General Partner shall use its best efforts to 
keep all such utilities operating in a manner sufficient to service the Project Property 
and the Residential Units contained therein; 

6.3.21 The construction of the Project Property will be completed in a timely 
and workmanlike manner by the Construction Completion Date and in compliance with:  
(i) applicable requirements of the Construction Loan, any Subordinate Cash Flow Loans 
and the Project Documents; (ii) the Plans and Specifications; (iii) the Projections; 
(iv) the QAP (to the extent applicable); and (v) the requirements of all governmental 
agencies with jurisdiction over the Project Property and the development and 
construction thereof; 

6.3.22 All building permits, environmental permits or other clearances, 
easements and governmental permits, licenses, and approvals required in connection 
with the construction, development, ownership, operation, use, and occupancy of the 
Project Property and all Residential Units contained therein, have been or will be timely 
obtained and the General Partner shall take all actions necessary to maintain such 
approvals in full force and effect; 

6.3.23 Intentionally Omitted; 

6.3.24 No General Partner is under any commitment to any real estate 
broker, rental agent, finder, syndicator, or other intermediary with respect to the Project 
or any portion thereof, except for arrangements disclosed in writing to the Limited 
Partner prior to the date hereof; 

6.3.25 Intentionally Omitted; 

6.3.26 Each General Partner (i) is a limited liability company duly 
organized, in good standing, and validly existing under the laws of the Project State, and 
(ii) has full power to enter into this Partnership Agreement and to perform its obligations 
hereunder, and the consummation of all transactions contemplated herein and in the 
Loan Documents and the Project Documents to be performed by the General Partner 
does not and will not result in any breach or violation of, or default under, any 

105



-56- 
60187061.1 

agreements by which the General Partner is bound, or under any applicable law, 
administrative regulation or court decree; 

6.3.27 Each General Partner has previously provided a true, complete, and 
current copy of the Partnership’s original limited partnership agreement, together with 
all amendments thereto, to the Limited Partner, which original limited partnership 
agreement and amendments reflect all agreements among the Partners of the Partnership 
prior to its amendment hereby; 

6.3.28 The execution and delivery of this Partnership Agreement and each 
of the other documents and agreements described in or contemplated by this Partnership 
Agreement by the General Partner, and the performance of the transactions 
contemplated herein and in each such other document have been duly authorized by all 
requisite limited liability company or corporate actions, as applicable, and will not result 
in the breach of or default under any agreement, mortgage or other instrument to which 
any General Partner is a party or by which any General Partner is bound; 

6.3.29 This Partnership Agreement is binding upon and enforceable against 
the General Partner in accordance with its terms; 

6.3.30 The General Partner will not transfer a controlling interest in itself 
without the consent of the Limited Partner; 

6.3.31 The General Partner shall not, and shall cause the Property 
Management Agent not to, (i) cause or permit any waste or damage to the Project 
Property, or (ii) allow any tenant to use a Residential Unit, or, if applicable, commercial 
space, within the Project Property or any of the common areas in any manner which is 
unlawful, hazardous, unsanitary, noxious, or offensive or which unreasonably interferes 
with the use of the Project Property by the other tenants; 

6.3.32 The General Partner shall maintain the Project Property in a decent, 
safe and sanitary condition; 

6.3.33 The General Partner shall operate the Project Property in accordance 
with, and lease the Residential Units within the Project Property in compliance with, all 
applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, the Loan Documents, and the QAP (to the 
extent applicable); 

6.3.34 To the best of the General Partner’s knowledge after due inquiry 
(including, but not limited to, consulting with the Accountant regarding the Projections), 
the Projections attached hereto as Appendix I are accurate, and the financial 
assumptions upon which such Projections are based are true and correct in all material 
respects as of the date hereof; 

6.3.35 The General Partner has determined that neither the General Partner, 
Sponsor, or any Guarantor, nor any of the officers, directors, principals, employees or 
owners of the General Partner, Sponsor or any Guarantor is on the list of Specially 
Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons promulgated by the U.S. Department of the 

106



-57- 
60187061.1 

Treasury pursuant to Executive Order 13224 and located on the internet at 
http://www.treasury.gov/resource-center/sanctions/SDN-List/Pages/default.aspx; 

6.3.36 The General Partner shall, and shall cause the Property Management 
Agent to, operate the Project in accordance with, and lease the Residential Units in 
compliance with, the provisions of all federal, state and local fair housing laws 
prohibiting discrimination in housing on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, 
familial status, national origin, or handicap, including, without limitation, Title VIII of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing Act), as amended, Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-353, 78 Stat. 241), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975; 

6.3.37 The General Partner shall obtain from the Property Management 
Agent and maintain copies of the First Year Tenant Files in a secure location under its 
control in accordance with requirements of Section 42 of the Code; 

6.3.38 The General Partner shall deliver to the Asset Manager evidence 
satisfactory to the Asset Manager that the Partnership has (i) timely prepared and filed, 
on an annual basis if applicable, all necessary documentation for the Project to receive 
real estate tax abatement or other real estate tax relief; and (ii) received, on an annual 
basis if applicable, such real estate tax abatement or other real estate tax relief, within 
10 Business Days of its receipt; 

6.3.39 If there are any building, multiple dwelling and/or other municipal 
violations filed or noted against the land on which the Project is located or the Project, 
including any unsafe building violation or lien, such violation will be corrected upon 
completion of the construction substantially in accordance with the Plans and 
Specifications; 

6.3.40 To the best of the General Partner’s knowledge after due and diligent 
inquiry, the General Partner, the Partnership, its Property Management Agent, the 
Project Property, and all Loan Documents and Project Documents are in compliance 
with all applicable federal, regional, state and local laws, rules, regulations, statutes, 
decisions, orders, judgments, directives, decrees, codes guidelines or ordinances of any 
governmental or regulatory authority, court or arbitrator; 

6.3.41 Neither the General Partner nor any of its Affiliates have (a) made an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors; (b) filed a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; 
(c) been adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent; (d) filed a petition or answer seeking for 
itself a reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution 
or similar relief under any statute, law or rule; (e) sought, consented to or acquiesced in 
the appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator of it or of all or any substantial part 
of its properties; or (f) suffered the filing of a bankruptcy petition or similar creditor’s 
action by or against it that has not been dismissed; 

6.3.42 Intentionally Omitted; 

107



-58- 
60187061.1 

6.3.43 The General Partner shall promptly deliver or cause to be delivered 
to the Limited Partner, for its review and approval, prior to its execution or 
implementation, the following Project related documents:  Service Provider Documents, 
residency service plan agreement, certificate or license, Property Management 
Agreement, and any other agreements or documents related to the administration of 
health care services to residents of the Project, provided if any such agreement is dated 
prior to the date hereof, the parties hereto agree that, to the extent required by the Limited 
Partner, such agreement shall be re-negotiated to the satisfaction of the Limited Partner 
[Primary Lease, sub-tenant lease, easement agreement, and insurance policy for the 
[primary tenant] and/or sub-tenant, in connection with the commercial use component 
of the Project Property];  

6.3.44 The General Partner shall cause the Partnership to enter into a 
Property Management Agreement with the Property Management Agent pursuant to the 
provisions set forth in Section 6.4.9 below and, if the Property Management Agent is an 
Affiliate of the General Partner, the General Partner shall ensure that such Property 
Management Agreement provides for the subordination of the Property Management 
Agent’s Fee to the payment of Operating Deficits until such time as funds are available 
to pay such fees; 

6.3.45 Any counseling, healthcare, housekeeping or similar supportive 
services (“Supportive Services”) to be provided to the residents of the Project shall be 
performed, unless otherwise approved by the Asset Manager, in writing, under service 
agreements between the General Partner, the Partnership, or residents receiving such 
Supportive Services and the provider of such Supportive Services.  The service provider 
shall be a third party other than the Partnership or the General Partner.  To the extent 
that any services are required to be provided to the tenants of the Project by any Lender 
or any Project Document (including, but not limited to any Supportive Services), the 
General Partner shall be responsible for ensuring that such services are made available 
by one or more service providers to the tenants and a failure to do so will be a default 
under Section 10.6.1 hereof to the extent that it creates a default under any Project 
Document.  If the costs of such services are not included in the Projections, the General 
Partner shall be responsible for ensuring that all such required services continue at no 
cost to the Partnership, except to the extent that the Project Documents are modified, 
waived or released such that some or all of the services are no longer required to be 
provided to the tenants of the Project.  In addition, to the extent any Supportive Services 
are provided at the Project, the General Partner shall require the Property Management 
Agent to include in all residential leases for the Project a provision (to be approved by 
the Asset Manager prior to the provision of such services) that releases the Partnership 
from any liabilities or damage caused to the residents as a result of the provision of such 
services; 

6.3.46 The Project complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, all federal, state and local laws and 
ordinances related to disabled access, and all statutes, rules, regulations, and orders of 
governmental bodies and regulatory agencies or orders or decrees of any court adopted 
or enacted with respect thereto including, without limitation, the American with 

108



-59- 
60187061.1 

Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities, as now existing 
or hereafter amended or adopted; 

6.3.47 The General Partner shall cause the Partnership to satisfy the 
requirements pursuant to Code Section 42(h)(4) with respect to the financing of 50% or 
more of the Project’s Building and the land on which the Building is located with tax-
exempt bonds subject to the volume cap under Code Section 146; 

6.3.48 The rents charged to the tenants of the Tax Credit Units will not 
exceed 30% of the applicable income limitation as determined under Code 
Section 42(g)(1); 

6.3.49 All requirements under Code Section 42 will have been met at the 
time of the Project’s Placement in Service so that the Project’s Tax Credit Units will 
qualify for the Tax Credits if leased to qualified tenants pursuant to Section 42 of the 
Code; 

6.3.50 The land on which the Project is located is, and will be at all times, 
properly zoned, and the General Partner will not act or omit to act in a manner that would 
cause such proper zoning to be terminated; 

6.3.51 The General Partner shall promptly correct all building code and 
Environmental Law violations, including any such violations that occur during the 
construction or rehabilitation of the Project; 

6.3.52 The General Partner shall and shall cause the Partnership to perform 
all radon mitigation, testing, evaluation and/or remediation pursuant to and in 
accordance with all appropriate federal, state, and local laws, regulations, guidelines, 
and requirements; 

6.3.53 The General Partner shall and shall cause the Partnership to comply 
with all provisions contained in the application for Tax Credits submitted to the State 
Housing Finance Agency as to which the State Housing Finance Agency awarded points 
pursuant to its scoring or award procedures; 

6.3.54 The General Partner shall and shall cause the Partnership, the General 
Partner, each Affiliate of the General Partner, the Sponsor and each Guarantor to comply 
with the Money Laundering Control Act, Executive Order 13224, USA Patriot Act of 
2001 (Public Law 107-56), and all federal regulations issued with respect thereto, which 
shall include, but not be limited to, providing to each Project lender the names, 
addresses, tax identification numbers and/or such other identification information 
concerning the Partnership, the General Partner, any Affiliate of the General Partner, 
the Sponsor and each Guarantor as shall be necessary for each Project lender to comply 
with federal law; 

6.3.55 The General Partner shall cause the Accountant to prepare the 
Partnership’s financial statement in accordance with GAAP and to comply with any 

109



-60- 
60187061.1 

instructions received from the Limited Partner concerning depreciation periods to be 
used for real and personal property in accordance with GAAP. 

6.3.56 No Foreign Drywall was used or will be used in the construction 
and/or rehabilitation of the Project; 

6.3.57 The General Partner shall deliver to the Limited Partner within thirty 
(30) days of the date first set forth above, the Owner’s Title Insurance Policy; 

6.3.58 The General Partner shall (i) cause the Partnership to pay, on or prior 
to any applicable due date related thereto, any and all taxes, fees, and impositions, 
including but not limited to, transfer taxes, stamp taxes, and other related costs or 
charges incurred by or to be incurred by the Partnership in connection with the 
Partnership’s acquisition, either in fee simple or through a leasehold interest, of the land 
underlying the Project Property; and (ii) promptly deliver to the Limited Partner 
satisfactory evidence of such payments, including but not limited to, any state and/or 
local transfer tax declarations, provided that if the acquisition, either in fee simple or 
through a leasehold interest, of the land underlying the Project Property is exempt from 
any such aforementioned taxes, then the General Partner’s counsel shall deliver a letter 
to the Limited Partner (and its successors and/or assigns) setting forth the basis of such 
exemption, which shall also include a copy of any filings required to support such 
exemption; 

6.3.59 To the extent not inconsistent with the Loan Documents and unless 
otherwise directed in writing by the Limited Partner, the General Partner shall promptly 
apply all proceeds of insurance and condemnation awards to the restoration and 
rebuilding of the Project, provided that such proceeds shall be applied in accordance 
with (i) all requirements of any applicable laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances, and 
(ii) plans and specifications previously approved by the Limited Partner; 

6.3.60 The aggregate Tax Credits applicable to the Project which are 
anticipated to be available to the Partnership for the Credit Period is $[18,719,278]; 

6.3.61 All of the infrastructure constituting the “Off-Site Work” (as referred 
to in the Projections) will be owned by [the ____], and [the _____ ]will have 
responsibility for maintenance of such Off-Site Work. 

6.3.62 There is a reasonable relationship between the scope and character of 
the Off-Site Work and the residential rental building constituting the Project. 

6.3.63 If any General Partner is required by the terms of this Agreement to 
make an additional Capital Contribution in the performance of its obligations hereunder, 
such General Partner shall give the Limited Partner ten (10) Business Days’ prior written 
notice and the Limited Partner shall have the right, based on the advice of its tax counsel, 
to provide written direction to such General Partner within such ten (10) Business Day 
period confirming that the action to be taken shall be structured as the making of a 
Capital Contribution or redirecting the General Partner to structure the action as a non- 
interest bearing loan to the Partnership in the same amount in lieu of a Capital 

110



-61- 
60187061.1 

Contribution.  Such General Partner agrees to abide by such direction from the Limited 
Partner, provided that if the Limited Partner fails to respond to such General Partner’s 
notice within such ten (10) Business Day period, such General Partner may proceed to 
satisfy its obligations by making the additional Capital Contribution in accordance with 
the terms of this Partnership Agreement; 

6.3.64 The General Partner shall cause all Project-related financing to be 
closed in accordance with the Projections and the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, and in furtherance of the foregoing, the Limited Partner hereby 
acknowledges the General Partner’s authority to execute the Loan Documents on behalf 
of the Partnership; 

6.3.65 The General Partner hereby represents and warrants as follows: 

(i) The General Partner shall not engage, has not engaged and does not 
engage, in any business other than being the General Partner of the Partnership; 

(ii) The General Partner shall not enter into and has not entered into any 
contract or agreement with any affiliate of the General Partner, any constituent 
party of the General Partner, or any affiliate of any constituent party, except upon 
terms and conditions that are intrinsically fair and substantially similar to those that 
would be available on an arm’s length basis with third parties other than any such 
party; 

(iii) To the extent that the General Partner and any of its Affiliates:  
(a) occupy any premises in the same location; (b) share the same officers and other 
employees; (c) jointly contract or do business with vendors or service providers or 
share overhead expenses; and (d) contract or do business with vendors or service 
providers where the goods or services are wholly or partially for the benefit of its 
Affiliates, the General Partner, to the extent that the General Partner is liable for 
any such expenses, has and shall always allocate fairly, appropriately and non-
arbitrarily any expenses and costs among and between such entities with the result 
that each entity bears its fair share of all such rent and expenses; 

(iv) The General Partner has and shall continue to pay its debts and 
liabilities from its own assets as the same shall become due, provided that the 
foregoing shall not be construed as a guaranty of the Partnership’s obligations 
except as expressly provided in this Partnership Agreement.  No Affiliate has paid 
any debts or liabilities on behalf of the General Partner; 

(v) The General Partner has and shall continue to maintain books, 
financial records and bank accounts that are separate and distinct from the books, 
financial records and bank accounts of any other Person including any Affiliate; 

(vi) The General Partner has and shall continue to maintain separate 
annual financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP, showing its assets 
and liabilities separate and distinct from those of any other entity; in the event the 
financial statements of the General Partner are consolidated with the financial 

111



-62- 
60187061.1 

statements of any other entity, the General Partner has and shall continue to cause 
to be included in such consolidated financial statements:  (a) a narrative description 
of the separate assets, liabilities, business functions, operations and existence of the 
General Partner to ensure that such separate assets, liabilities, business functions, 
operations and existence are readily distinguishable by any entity receiving or 
relying upon a copy of such consolidated financial statements; and (b) a statement 
that the General Partner’s assets and credit are not available to satisfy the debts of 
such other entity or any other person; 

(vii) The General Partner has and shall continue to file its own tax returns 
and pay its own taxes required to be paid under applicable law; 

(viii) The General Partner has and shall continue to (a) hold itself out as 
an entity separate and distinct from any other Person; (b) not identify itself or any 
of its Affiliates as a division or part of the other; (c) correct any known 
misunderstanding regarding its separate status; and (d) use separate stationery, 
invoices, checks, and the like bearing its own name; 

(ix) The General Partner has and shall continue to conduct its business 
in its own name so as to avoid or correct any misunderstanding on the part of any 
creditor concerning the fact that any invoices and other statements of account from 
creditors of the General Partner are to be addressed and mailed directly to the 
General Partner, though this provision shall not prohibit such mail to be delivered 
to the General Partner c/o any other entity; 

(x) The General Partner has and intends to maintain adequate capital for 
the normal obligations reasonably foreseeable in a business of its size and character 
and in light of its contemplated business operations consistent with the 
requirements of this Partnership Agreement; 

(xi) The General Partner has not and shall not commingle any of its 
assets, funds or liabilities with the assets, funds or liabilities of any other Person or 
Affiliate; 

(xii) The General Partner has and shall continue to maintain its assets in 
such a manner that it will not be costly or difficult to segregate, ascertain or identify 
its individual assets from those of any party; 

(xiii) Except pursuant to the Loan Documents approved by the Limited 
Partner, t he General Partner has not and shall not (a) assume or guaranty the debts 
of any other Person in a manner that includes a pledge, encumbrance, transfer or 
hypothecation (whether by operation of law or otherwise) of any assets or interests 
of the Partnership, (b) hold itself out to be responsible for the debts of another 
Person in a manner that includes the pledge, encumbrance, transfer or 
hypothecation of any assets or interests of the Partnership (whether by operation of 
law or otherwise), (c) otherwise pledge, encumber, transfer or hypothecate the  
assets of the Partnership for the benefit of another Person or permit the same to 

112



-63- 
60187061.1 

occur, or (d) hold the Partnership’s credit as being available to satisfy the 
obligations of any other Person; and 

(xiv) All transactions carried out by the General Partner have been and 
will be, in all instances, made in good faith and without intent to hinder, delay or 
defraud creditors of the General Partner. 

6.3.66 Intentionally Omitted; 

6.3.67 The General Partner shall pay, if and when due after an event of 
default by the Partnership, any amounts it is liable for on the Subordinate Cash Flow 
Loans as a result of such loans being recourse obligations of the General Partner or of 
the Partnership; 

6.3.68 Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, each General 
Partner, collectively with its successors and assigns, waives, for the benefit of Limited 
Partner, its beneficiaries, successors and assigns, any right (a “Qualified Contract 
Right”) that each General Partner or the Partnership may have to request that the State 
Housing Finance Agency procure or assist in procuring a “Qualified Contract,” as 
defined in Section 42(h)(6)(F) of the Code, with respect to the Project Property or any 
portion thereof (the “Qualified Contract Waiver”). The right to enforce the Qualified 
Contract Waiver is personal to and enforceable by Limited Partner and will remain 
effective notwithstanding any assignment or transfer of the rights or obligations of any 
Partner hereunder. 

6.3.69 The General Partner has and will at all times file all necessary 
information required by the CTA with respect to itself and the Partnership. 

6.3.70 The General Partner, on behalf of the Partnership and at the 
Partnership’s reasonable expense, shall file any and all information required by the CTA 
within the time frames required by the CTA and shall provide the Limited Partner with 
proof of such filing and a copy of the same. 

Section 6.4 Specific Obligations of General Partner.  The General Partner shall, on 
behalf of and in the name of the Partnership and in addition to any obligations placed upon it 
elsewhere in this Partnership Agreement, have the following specific obligations: 

6.4.1 Securities Law and Corporate Transparency Act Matters. 

(i) The General Partner shall prepare and file appropriate reports for the 
Partnership, if any, with the Securities and Exchange Commission and state 
securities administrators. 

(ii) General Partner shall be required to timely file any information 
required by the CTA.  Each Partner hereby consents to any filings required to be 
made by the Partnership under the CTA.  Each Partner shall provide such 
information concerning itself and its beneficial owners as is reasonably required in 
order to comply with the CTA.  The Limited Partner will timely provide to the 

113



-64- 
60187061.1 

General Partner either its Reporting Company FinCen ID or a statement that it 
reasonably believes it is an exempt entity for CTA reporting purposes. 

6.4.2 Limited Partnership Status.  The General Partner shall (i) file such 
certificates and do such other acts as may be required to qualify and maintain the 
Partnership as a limited partnership under the Act and to qualify the Partnership to 
transact business in all such jurisdictions as may be required under applicable provisions 
of law and (ii) take or cause the Partnership to take all reasonable steps deemed 
necessary by counsel to the Partnership to assure that the Partnership is at all times 
classified as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. 

6.4.3 Intentionally Omitted. 

6.4.4 Governmental Filings.  The General Partner shall prepare, sign, and 
submit to the IRS, the State Housing Finance Agency, and any other governmental 
authority having jurisdiction over the Project Property, on a timely basis, any and all 
annual reports, information returns, and other certifications and information required by 
any such governmental agency.  The General Partner shall comply with all other 
applicable requirements of any federal, state, or local agency having jurisdiction over 
the Project Property, including, without limitation, any requirements of any such 
governmental agency with respect to the funding and maintenance of any operating or 
replacement reserves for the Project Property. 

6.4.5 Bank Accounts.  The General Partner shall establish in the name and 
on behalf of the Partnership such bank accounts as shall be required to facilitate the 
operation of the Partnership’s business.  The Partnership’s funds shall not be 
commingled with any other funds of the General Partner or any of its Affiliates, 
including without limitation, any other partnership in which the General Partner is a 
general partner.  Funds of the Partnership held in bank accounts shall be deposited in 
one or more interest bearing accounts maintained in FDIC insured banking institutions, 
with no such account having a balance in excess of the maximum insured amount, or in 
Temporary Permitted Investments.  If the Partnership incurs any loss due to any 
Partnership funds being deposited in FDIC insured accounts with balances in excess of 
the maximum insured amount, the General Partner and the Guarantor (pursuant to the 
Guaranty Agreement) shall be absolutely and unconditionally liable to the Partnership 
and the Limited Partner with respect to any such loss.  Promptly upon the request of the 
Limited Partner, the General Partner shall obtain and deliver to the Limited Partner full, 
complete, and accurate statements of the amount and status of all Partnership bank 
accounts and all withdrawals therefrom and deposits thereto. 

6.4.6 Guaranties.  The General Partner shall have the following guaranty 
obligations. 

(i) Development Completion Guaranty. 

(a) The General Partner hereby absolutely and unconditionally 
guaranties to the Partnership and the Limited Partner that the Project 

114



-65- 
60187061.1 

Property will be constructed in a good and workmanlike manner free and 
clear of all mechanics’, materialmen’s, and similar liens, in accordance with 
the Plans and Specifications and in accordance with the terms, conditions 
and provisions of the Construction Loan Subordinate Cash Flow Loans and 
this Partnership Agreement, will be equipped with all necessary and 
appropriate fixtures, equipment and personal property on or before the 
Construction Completion Date, and the Project will be leased-up in 
accordance with the Projections.  The obligations of the General Partner 
under the Development Completion Guaranty shall be unlimited in amount 
and shall include, without limitation, the obligation to provide all funds 
(a) required of the Partnership to achieve Construction Completion of the 
Project Property and to repair any latent defects that occur within one year 
of Construction Completion (to the extent not then available under the 
Construction Loan Subordinate Cash Flow Loans or Capital Contributions), 
(b) needed for unanticipated or additional development or construction 
costs, on and off  site escrows, taxes, insurance premiums, interest, funding 
of Operating Deficits, reserves, escrows, legal expenses, accounting 
expenses until the Project achieves Stabilized Occupancy, (c) needed for 
repayment in full of the Construction Loan and (d) required to pay the 
Right-Sized Payment Amount and any other amounts due from the General 
Partner under Section 6.4.6(i)(b) hereof.  The repayment of any borrowings 
arranged by the General Partner to fund its obligations under this 
Section 6.4.6(i) are the sole obligation of the General Partner.  Funds made 
available by the General Partner to fulfill its obligations pursuant to this 
Section 6.4.6(i) shall be accounted for as unsecured loans to the Partnership 
by the General Partner and may be reimbursed to the General Partner, 
without interest, in accordance with Section 5.1 hereof, or out of the 
proceeds of refinancing or sale pursuant to Section 5.2 hereof, or in the sole 
discretion of Asset Manager, may be repaid from a source of funds other 
than Cash Flow in accordance with Section 5.1 or Net Cash from Sales and 
Refinancings in accordance with Section 5.2, provided that such source of 
funds is acceptable to Asset Manager in Asset Manager’s sole discretion.  If 
the construction cost overruns are due to the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of the General Partner or any of its Affiliates, then any guaranty 
advances made by the General Partner to cover such costs shall be deemed 
to be capital contributions. 

(b) If, immediately prior to the disbursement of the Third 
Installment, Asset Manager determines that (i) that the Project has not 
achieved Stabilized Occupancy and (ii) the Right-Sized Escrow Amount is 
necessary for the Partnership to achieve an Expense Coverage Ratio of at 
least 1.10 or better for a period commencing upon disbursement of the Third 
Installment and ending upon the expiration of the Compliance Period, then 
the General Partner shall be required, as part of its Development 
Completion Guaranty, to deposit the Right-Sized Escrow Amount into the 
Operating Reserve Account to Asset Manager’s satisfaction. 

115



-66- 
60187061.1 

(ii) Operating Deficit Guaranty. 

(a) The General Partner shall be required , upon the reduction of 
the Operating Reserve Account to zero, to promptly provide funds to the 
Partnership from time to time as needed in an amount up to the Operating 
Deficit Guaranty Amount for Operating Deficits occurring during the 
Operating Deficit Guaranty Period.  Repayment of any letters of credit or 
other borrowings arranged by the General Partner to meet its obligations 
under this Section 6.4.6(ii) (a) shall be the sole obligation of the General 
Partner. Subject to Section 6.4.6(ii)(b) below, funds made available by the 
General Partner to fulfill its obligations pursuant to this Section 6.4.6(ii)(a) 
shall be accounted for as unsecured loans to the Partnership by the General 
Partner and may be reimbursed to the General Partner, without interest, in 
accordance with Section 5.1 hereof, or out of the proceeds of refinancing or 
sale pursuant to Section 5.2 hereof.   

(b) If the Operating Deficits overruns are due to the gross 
negligence or willful misconduct of a General Partner, then any guaranty 
advances made by such General Partner to cover such costs shall be deemed 
to be capital contributions. 

(iii) Cumulative Guaranty Obligations.  The various guaranty 
obligations under this Section 6.4.6 are cumulative, not concurrent. Any limitation 
of liability under one guaranty shall not affect the amount of liability under any 
other guaranty, and any payment of obligations under one guaranty shall not reduce 
the amount of liability under any other guaranty. 

6.4.7 Required Reserves. 

(i) Operating Reserve.  The General Partner shall establish an 
operating reserve (the “Operating Reserve”) to fund Operating Deficits incurred by 
the Partnership.  The Operating Reserve shall be funded from Limited Partner’s 
Fourth Installment of Project Equity in the amount of Four Hundred Sixty 
Thousand Six Hundred Fifty and No/100 Dollars ($460,650), held in a separate 
bank account (the “Operating Reserve Account”), controlled by the General Partner 
(or a Project lender, if required by such lender), and maintained until the end of the 
Project’s Compliance Period.  Throughout the Compliance Period, the General 
Partner shall also be obligated, to the extent funds are available, to replenish the 
Operating Reserve Account up to the Operating Reserve Target Amount out of 
Cash Flow in accordance with Section 5.1 hereof or from sales or refinancings 
(prior to the distribution of Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings). Withdrawals 
from the Operating Reserve Account will require the prior written approval of the 
Asset Manager.  If the Operating Reserve Account is under the control of a Project 
lender, the General Partner shall first obtain the approval of the Asset Manager prior 
to obtaining the consent of the Project lender.  Within thirty (30) days of receipt by 
the Asset Manager of such request, the Asset Manager shall notify the General 
Partner whether the request has been approved, disapproved or whether additional 

116



-67- 
60187061.1 

information is needed to evaluate the request.  If the Asset Manager does not 
respond within such thirty (30) day period, the withdrawal request will be deemed 
to be approved.  Upon depletion of all of the funds in the Operating Reserve 
Account, any continuing shortfalls shall be funded pursuant to the Operating Deficit 
Guaranty described above in Section 6.4.6(ii).  Notwithstanding any language to 
the contrary in Section 6.4.7[(vi)] of this Partnership Agreement, any withdrawal 
from the Operating Reserve shall require the prior written approval of the Asset 
Manager. 

(ii) Replacement Reserve.  The General Partner shall establish a 
replacement reserve (the “Replacement Reserve”) to fund capital improvements 
and repairs to the Project.  The General Partner shall fund the Replacement Reserve 
with proceeds from Gross Cash Receipts beginning on January 1st of the year 
immediately following the year in which the Project is Placed in Service. The 
Replacement Reserve shall be held in a separate bank account (the “Replacement 
Reserve Account”), controlled by the General Partner (or a Project lender, if 
required by such lender), and maintained throughout the Project’s Compliance 
Period.  The General Partner will also be required to fund the Replacement Reserve 
Account on a cumulative basis, annually, in an amount equal to the greater of $500 
per unit per year (not to be increased annually) or such amount as required by any 
Project lender, from Gross Cash Receipts prior to distribution of Cash Flow.  
Withdrawals from the Replacement Reserve Account during any calendar year that 
in the aggregate exceed the lesser of Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($5,000.00) or ten percent (10%) of the amount of any remaining funds in the 
Replacement Reserve Account at such time, shall require the written approval of 
the General Partner and the Asset Manager.  Within ten (10) Business Days of 
receipt by the Asset Manager of such request, the Asset Manager shall notify the 
General Partner whether the request has been approved, disapproved or whether 
additional information is needed to evaluate the request.  If the Asset Manager does 
not respond within such ten (10) Business Day period, the withdrawal request will 
be deemed to be approved.  After the completion of the seventh (7th) year of the 
Project’s Compliance Period, the Asset Manager shall have the right to require a 
physical assessment of the Project pursuant to which the amount required to be 
maintained in the Replacement Reserve Account may be increased at the discretion 
of the Asset Manager.       (iv) Notwithstanding any language to the contrary 
in this Partnership Agreement, for the full term of the Extended Use Agreement, all 
funds in project reserve accounts described in this Partnership Agreement shall 
remain with the Project Property to be used for the benefit of the Project and/or its 
residents.  The only exception to the foregoing is with the prior written consent of 
the Limited Partner, the release of Operating Reserve to pay Deferred Development 
Fee following the achievement of a minimum annual Expense Coverage Ratio of 
1.05 for two (2) consecutive years following the third anniversary of the date 
Stabilized Occupancy is achieved. 

(iii) Notwithstanding any language to the contrary in this Partnership 
Agreement, for the full term of the Extended Use Agreement, all funds in project 
reserve accounts described in this Partnership Agreement shall remain with the 

117



-68- 
60187061.1 

Project Property to be used for the benefit of the Project and/or its residents.  The 
only exception to the foregoing is with the prior written consent of the Limited 
Partner, the release of Operating Reserve to pay Deferred Development Fee 
following the achievement of a minimum annual Expense Coverage Ratio of 1.15 
for three (3) consecutive years following Stabilized Occupancy. 

The above reserves shall be held in segregated interest bearing 
accounts.  Any failure to obtain any required approval of the Asset 
Manager or failure to provide the Asset Manager with proper notice 
shall constitute an Event of Default under Section 10.6 below.  Any 
interest earned with respect to any of the above reserve accounts 
shall be deposited into that respective reserve account for the benefit 
of the Partnership. 

6.4.8 Qualified Occupancy.  The General Partner shall use its best efforts 
to cause the Project Property to achieve Qualified Occupancy on or before the Qualified 
Occupancy Date. 

6.4.9 Property Management.  The General Partner, on behalf of the 
Partnership, shall enter into a Property Management Agreement with the Property 
Management Agent for the physical property management and leasing of the Project, in 
form and of content as set forth in a separate document approved in writing by the 
General Partner and the Asset Manager.  The General Partner, on behalf of the 
Partnership, shall diligently enforce all of the obligations of the Property Management 
Agent under the Property Management Agreement and shall perform all of the 
Partnership’s obligations as owner thereunder, subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 

(i) Renewal or Successor Agreements.  Upon the termination of such 
Property Management Agreement or any subsequent Property Management 
Agreement, the General Partner shall renew the same or enter into an agreement 
that does not differ materially from the initial Property Management Agreement in 
Property Management Agent obligations and owner remedies, or in any other 
respect, with the same Property Management Agent or another Property 
Management Agent of at least comparable ability and experience who can 
reasonably be expected to perform at least as well, subject to the requirements of 
subparagraphs (ii) and (iii) hereinbelow. 

(ii) Notice and Consultation.  If the General Partner wishes to enter 
into a new form of management agreement or retain the services of a different 
Property Management Agent, it shall give the Asset Manager at least thirty (30) 
Business Days’ prior written notice of the proposed change, accompanied by a copy 
of any proposed new Property Management Agreement and a written description 
of the identity and qualifications of any proposed new Property Management 
Agent, and the General Partner shall consult with the Asset Manager regarding the 
proposed change. 

118



-69- 
60187061.1 

(iii) Asset Manager Consent.  Under any circumstances, the General 
Partner shall not enter into a new management agreement materially different from 
the initial Property Management Agreement in any respect without the prior written 
consent of the Asset Manager as to the form and content of such new management 
agreement, nor shall the General Partner retain the services of a property 
management agent other than a property management agent previously approved 
by the Asset Manager without the prior written consent of the Asset Manager as to 
the identity and qualifications of such new property management agent, provided 
such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. For 
purposes of this provision, a management agreement shall be deemed to be 
materially different if the agreement involves a change in the parties, services or 
fees to be provided to the Property Management Agent. 

(iv) Termination of Non-Performing Property Management Agent.  
If the Property Management Agent fails to perform any of its obligations under the 
Property Management Agreement, whether general or specific obligations, in any 
material respect, including without limitation, in Limited Partner’s judgment, 
failure to capably manage the Project as measured by sustained high Project 
vacancies, delinquent rents, or Operating Deficits (in each case beyond levels 
specified in the Projections), inadequate maintenance, or failure to qualify tenants 
under low-income housing tax credit requirements, or repeated failure to provide 
or unreasonable delay in providing accurate financial or operating reports to the 
General Partner and the Limited Partner, the General Partner shall promptly comply 
with the terms of the Property Management Agreement regarding notice to the 
Property Management Agent and its opportunity to cure.  The General Partner shall 
also simultaneously provide the Asset Manager with a copy of this notice and any 
documentation explaining why the Property Management Agent should not be 
terminated for cause.  Upon expiration of the applicable cure period, and the failure 
of the Property Management Agent to cure its breach of the Property Management 
Agreement, the General Partner shall consult with the Asset Manager as to whether 
or not the Property Management Agent should be retained and, if so, under what 
terms and conditions.  Unless within ten (10) Business Days of the delivery of this 
notice the Asset Manager consents in writing to the retention of the managing agent, 
the General Partner shall terminate the Property Management Agent for cause, in 
accordance with the terms of the Property Management Agreement.  The General 
Partner shall also immediately enter into a new Property Management Agreement 
with a substitute Property Management Agent, subject to the prior written consent 
of the Asset Manager.  For purposes of this Section 6.4.9(iv), “cause” shall include, 
but not be limited to, any one of the following:  (a) failure to promptly and 
competently perform (after any applicable notice and within the applicable cure 
period) all duties of the Property Management Agent under the Property 
Management Agreement with the Partnership, (b) failure of the Project to generate 
at least 80% of the Projected Tax Credits in any calendar year, (c) failure to 
materially comply with the record keeping, tenant qualification and rental 
requirements of the Extended Use Agreement and Section 42 of the Code and the 
Regulations, rulings, and policies related thereto, (d) material mismanagement of 

119



-70- 
60187061.1 

the Project, or (e) if the Property Management Agent is an Affiliate of the General 
Partner, removal of the General Partner pursuant to Section 10.6 hereof. 

(v) Removal of Non-Complying General Partner.  If the General 
Partner fails to comply with any of the requirements of this Section 6.4.9, it may be 
removed for cause pursuant to Section 10.6 hereof. 

All Property Management Agreements shall contain specific 
provisions requiring the Property Management Agent to comply 
with the requirements for the operation of the Project contained in 
the Project Documents, including the requirements to rent to low-
income tenants at the level required to maintain Qualified 
Occupancy, to obtain prior written approval of the General Partner 
for any deviation from such level, to obtain tenant income 
certifications and employer and/or other relevant verifications of 
tenant income, to determine low-income tenant eligibility for tax 
credit purposes, to deliver certifications of its compliance with these 
requirements and of Project rent rolls upon Qualified Occupancy 
and annually prior to the times such information is required for low-
income housing tax credit purposes, to keep records of such low-
income rental and occupancy and deliver copies of leases, 
certifications, and verifications to the Partnership, and to prepare 
elections, certifications, and any other materials contemplated by 
Section 6.4.12 hereof, to the extent necessary or advisable to qualify 
for and maintain the Tax Credit and any other available tax benefits 
in connection with such rental and occupancy.  Where the Property 
Management Agent is the General Partner or its Affiliate, each 
management agreement shall provide that the property management 
agent’s monthly fees are accrued and subordinated to payment of 
Operating Deficits until funds are available to pay such fees. 

6.4.10 Cooperation with Asset Manager.  The General Partner shall 
cooperate and shall cause the Property Management Agent to cooperate fully with the 
Asset Manager so that the Asset Manager may carry out its duties and obligations.  In 
the event that the Asset Manager is replaced or substituted by the Limited Partner, in its 
sole and absolute discretion, all rights, duties and obligations of the Asset Manager shall 
be assumed by and inure to the benefit of any such substitute or replacement Asset 
Manager upon delivery of notice by the Limited Partner to the General Partner of such 
replacement or substitution. 

6.4.11 Rental Program.  The General Partner shall cause the Project to be 
rented to Code Section 42 qualified low-income tenants to the extent required in the 
Extended Use Agreement and projected in the Projections.  Without limitation of the 
foregoing, the General Partner shall (i) use its best efforts to achieve Qualified 
Occupancy (as defined in Article I) within the time specified in the Projections; 
(ii) comply with the rent schedule set forth in the Projections; (iii) cause to be kept all 
records of rental and occupancy throughout the Compliance Period; (iv) cause the 

120



-71- 
60187061.1 

Property Management Agent to comply with all income certification or other record-
keeping requirements of the Code and Regulations, any Regulatory Agreement, and of 
prudent management accounting practices, to support the claim of a low-income housing 
tax credit based on the occupancy requirements for the Project and any other material 
tax benefits resulting from such low-income occupancy of the Project; and (v) take such 
other actions required under Section 6.4.12 below to claim all available tax benefits in 
connection therewith.  The General Partner and the Property Management Agent shall 
comply with all income certification or other record-keeping requirements of the Code 
and Regulations, any Regulatory Agreement, and of prudent management accounting 
practices, to support the claim of a Tax Credit based on the occupancy requirements for 
the Project and any other material tax benefits resulting from such low-income 
occupancy of the Project. 

6.4.12 Tax Benefits Requirements.  The General Partner acknowledges 
that it is of great importance that the Tax Credits and all other tax benefits contemplated 
in the Projections be achieved and maintained.  Accordingly, the General Partner agrees 
as follows: 

(i) No Delays.  The General Partner shall not cause or suffer any delay 
in Placement in Service or Qualified Occupancy that would reduce such anticipated 
tax benefits. 

(ii) Record-Keeping.  The General Partner shall cause to be kept all 
records and cause to be made all elections and certifications, pertaining to the 
number and size of apartment units, occupancy thereof by tenants, income levels of 
tenants, set-aside for low-income tenants, and any other matters now or hereafter 
required to qualify for and maintain the Tax Credits and any other available tax 
benefits in connection with low-income occupancy of the Project. 

(iii) Set-Aside Election.  The General Partner shall elect the minimum 
low-income set-aside requirement specified in the Projections within twelve (12) 
months after Placement in Service or such other time period as may hereafter be 
required by the Code or Regulations thereunder for such Tax Credits, provided that 
in the event it becomes reasonably certain that such set-aside either will not be met 
or will be exceeded, the General Partner shall promptly so notify the Partners in 
writing and shall proceed to elect such other minimum set-aside requirement as will 
best protect or enhance the projected tax benefits to the Partners under the 
circumstances. 

(iv) Initial Tax Credit Year.  The General Partner shall elect, upon the 
request of the Limited Partner or subject to the approval of the Limited Partner, to 
claim such Tax Credits for each Building in the Project commencing with the earlier 
of the year in which Qualified Occupancy for such Building is achieved or (if the 
Partnership, with the express consent of the Limited Partner, makes a timely 
election pursuant to Code Section 42(f)(1)(B)) the year succeeding the year in 
which Placement in Service occurs.  The General Partner shall develop and lease 

121



-72- 
60187061.1 

the Project so that the initial year during which such Tax Credit is claimed will be 
no later than the year specified in the Projections. 

(v) Annual Compliance Procedures.  As soon as feasible after 
Qualified  Occupancy has occurred and annually thereafter, prior to the times such 
information is required for Tax Credit reporting purposes, the General Partner shall: 

(a) cause the Partnership’s Property Management Agent to 
submit to the Partnership the certifications and all other applicable materials 
related to low-income leasing described in Section 6.4.11 hereof; 

(b) check and verify the same against leases, certifications, and 
other appropriate back-up materials to the extent necessary or advisable to 
determine with reasonable assurance that the low-income leasing 
requirements have been met for Tax Credit purposes; and 

(c) execute and deliver to the Limited Partner a certification, in 
form reasonably acceptable to the Limited Partner, stating that the General 
Partner has complied with the foregoing requirements and attaching copies 
of the managing agent’s certification and rent roll in a format reasonably 
acceptable to the Limited Partner. 

The General Partner’s initial certification following Qualified 
Occupancy shall also specify the Qualified Occupancy Date. 

(vi) Cost Accounting.  As soon as feasible after Placement in Service 
has occurred, prior to the time such information is required for Tax Credit reporting 
purposes, the General Partner shall: 

(a) cause the Accountant to submit to the General Partner a 
letter, as required by the State Housing Finance Agency and in a form and 
content reasonably acceptable to the Limited Partner, certifying that the 
Accountant has examined the Partnership’s books and records for the 
Project and, subject to any changes in facts or applicable law, is prepared to 
sign a tax return for the Partnership reflecting that all costs specified in the 
letter or in an attached schedule are includable in qualified basis for the Tax 
Credits; and 

(b) execute and deliver to the Limited Partner a Cost 
Certification, in form and content reasonably acceptable to the Limited 
Partner, stating that the amounts described in the Accountant’s letter 
accurately reflect Project costs incurred and attaching a copy of such letter. 

(vii) Tax Filings.  The General Partner shall properly reflect all Tax 
Credits and other tax benefits in preparing and filing federal return of income forms 
on behalf of the Partnership in accordance with Section 8.4 hereof.  
Notwithstanding anything in this Partnership Agreement to the contrary, in no event 
shall the General Partner cause or suffer any delay in the filing of such form 

122



-73- 
60187061.1 

covering the year in which Qualified Occupancy occurred.  The General Partner 
shall obtain and deliver to the Limited Partner at the earliest feasible time a fully 
executed Form 8609. 

(viii) [Section 163(j)(7)(B) Election.  The General Partner shall cause the 
Partnership to make a Section 163(j)(7)(B) Election on the Partnership’s tax return 
for the first taxable year in which Limited Partner has been admitted as a partner of 
the Partnership.] 

(ix) Compliance Certifications. The General Partner shall certify 
compliance with the elected set-aside requirement and report the dollar amount of 
Qualified Basis, maximum Applicable Percentage and Qualified Basis under the 
State Housing Finance Agency allocation, date of Placement in Service, and any 
other information required for the aforesaid Tax Credit within ninety (90) days after 
the end of the first taxable year for which such Tax Credit is claimed and for each 
taxable year thereafter during the Compliance Period for such Tax Credit, or such 
other time periods as may hereafter be required by the Code or Regulations 
thereunder for such Tax Credit. 

(x) Notice of Tax Benefits Reduction.  In the event at any time it 
becomes apparent that the tax benefits projected in the Projections are likely to be 
reduced, the General Partner shall promptly notify the Limited Partner of the 
circumstances. 

(xi) Consequences of Tax Benefits Reduction or Delay.  In the event 
there is a reduction or delay of tax benefits, then the provisions of Section 6.9 hereof 
relating to reduction in the amount of remaining installments of Limited Partner’s 
Capital Contributions and other consequences described therein shall govern where 
applicable. 

(xii) Extended Use Agreement.  The General Partner, on behalf of the 
Partnership, shall enter into an Extended Use Agreement pursuant to 
Section 42(h)(6) of the Code, in the form of an agreement between the Partnership 
and the State Housing Finance Agency that is acceptable to Limited Partner and 
that has allocated or will allocate Tax Credits to the Project, and shall cause such 
agreement to be recorded pursuant to state law as a restrictive covenant as soon as 
feasible but in any event prior to the end of the tax year during which the Project is 
deemed to achieve Placement in Service under Section 42 of the Code. 

(xiii) Local Code Compliance.  The General Partner shall maintain the 
Project in compliance with rules prescribed by the Secretary of Treasury pursuant 
to Section 42(i)(3)(B)(ii) of the Code.  The General Partner shall also promptly 
provide the Limited Partner with any notice or other documentation sent by any 
federal, state or local governmental agency that the Project may be in violation of 
any health, environmental, safety, building, or other federal, state or local statute, 
regulation, or ordinance.  With respect to building code or Environmental Law 
violations that are to be corrected during the construction or rehabilitation of the 

123



-74- 
60187061.1 

Project, the General Partner shall certify or shall cause the Architect or the project 
general contractor to certify upon completion of the Project that such building code 
and Environmental Law violations have been corrected.  In lieu of a certification 
regarding the correction of building code violations, the General Partner may obtain 
or cause to be obtained an indemnity, bond or other security acceptable to Limited 
Partner in an amount that Limited Partner considers to be adequate to cover possible 
fines and costs associated with said building code violations, and a current owner’s 
title insurance policy indicating that no building code violations exist at the time 
construction or rehabilitation is completed. 

(xiv) Tax-Exempt Bond Allocation.  The General Partner shall obtain 
(i) documentation from the State Housing Finance Agency stating that the Project 
satisfies the State Housing Finance Agency’s low-income housing tax credit 
allocation plan and project feasibility requirements and (ii) a letter from the bond 
issuer or a tax opinion stating that the tax-exempt bond allocation is subject to the 
Project State’s volume cap restrictions. 

(xiv) Depreciation Schedule.  The General Partners shall take all acts 
and make any necessary filings or elections to cause the Project’s improvements to 
be depreciated for tax purposes in accordance with the Projections and shall not 
take any action or permit any event or circumstances to occur which would cause 
depreciation of the Project’s improvements to be changed therefrom.  The General 
Partners shall cause to be kept adequate records of any such filings or elections and 
all other matters applicable to the Partnership’s depreciation of the Project’s 
improvements. 

6.4.13 Mold Inspections.  The General Partner agrees to inspect the Project 
Property at least once annually for the presence of any Microbial Matter including mold 
or fungus, or moisture buildup in or on the Project Property.  In the event any Microbial 
Matter including mold or fungus, or moisture buildup is identified in or on the Project 
Property, the General Partner shall notify the Limited Partner within ten (10) Business 
Days and shall consult with the Limited Partner regarding the need to hire an 
environmental consultant to evaluate the mold, fungus or moisture buildup and the need 
to prepare and implement a remediation plan. 

6.4.14 BOE Regulations.  For purposes of Section 6.4.14, 6.4.15, and 
6.4.16, the Managing General Partner shall be the “managing general partner” of the 
Partnership, as such term is used in Section 214(g) of the RT Code, and as further 
defined in the BOE Regulations.  Except as otherwise set forth in this Partnership 
Agreement, the Managing General Partner, within the authority granted to it under this 
Partnership Agreement, shall Materially Participate in the control, management and 
direction of the Partnership’s business to the best of its ability.  In so doing, the 
Managing General Partner shall take all actions necessary or appropriate to protect the 
interests of the Partners and of the Partnership.  The Managing General Partner shall 
devote such time as is necessary to the affairs of the Partnership.  The Managing General 
Partner shall undertake and actually perform the following management duties on behalf 
of the Partnership: 

124



-75- 
60187061.1 

(i) execute and deliver all Project Documents on behalf of the 
Partnership (BOE Rule 140.1(a)(10)(D)); 

(ii) execute and enforce all contracts executed by the Partnership (BOE 
Rule 140.1(a)(10)(C)); 

(iii) participate in hiring, and overseeing the work of all Persons 
necessary to provide services to the Partnership for the management and operation 
of the Partnership business (BOE Rule 140.1(a)(10)(B); 

(iv) monitor and document compliance with all government regulations 
and file or supervise the filing of all required documents with any Authority (BOE 
Regulation 140.1(a)(10)(G)); 

(v) ensure and document that charitable services or benefits, such as 
appropriate cultural activities, transportation, meals, and linkages to health and/or 
social services are provided or information regarding charitable services or benefits 
is made available to tenants qualifying under the appropriate income and rent 
restrictions of Section 42 of the Code (BOE Rule 140.1(a)(10)(L)); 

(vi) rents, maintains and repairs the Project, or if such duties are 
delegated to a property management agent, participates in hiring and overseeing the 
work of the property management agent(BOE Rule 140.1(a)(10)(A)); 

(vii) acquires, holds, assigns or disposes of the Property or any interest in 
the Property (BOE Rule 140.1(a)(10)(H)); 

(viii) borrows money on behalf of the Partnership, encumbers Partnership 
assets, places title in the name of a nominee to obtain financing, prepays in whole 
or in part, refinances, increases, modifies or extends any obligation (BOE Rule 
140.1(a)(10)(I)); 

(ix) determines the amount and timing of distributions to partners and 
establishes and maintains all required reserves (BOE Rule 140.1(a)(10)(K)); 

(x) prepare and maintain records and documents evidencing the duties 
which it performs and provide copies of such records to all Partners, at least 
annually along with IRS Forms K-1, to each Partner (BOE Rule 140.1(b)); and 

(xi) on behalf of, and in the name of the Partnership, apply for, use best 
efforts to obtain and maintain the eligibility of the Partnership with respect to the 
Welfare Exemption or similar status for the Project, and any savings to the 
Partnership and the Project attributable to the Welfare Exemption shall be used in 
accordance with Section 214 of the RT Code, as amended, and this Partnership 
Agreement. 

 The Managing General Partner may delegate some or all of its “substantial management 
duties” assigned to it under this Section 6.4.14, to Persons who, under its continuing supervision, 

125



-76- 
60187061.1 

agree to perform such duties for the Partnership, subject to the supervision of the Managing 
General Partner.  The Managing General Partner shall meet the requirements of BOE’s Rule 
140.1 and Rule 140.2 

6.4.15 Welfare Exemption.  The Managing General Partner shall obtain 
and maintain the Welfare Exemption for so long as the Project and the Partnership are 
eligible for such Welfare Exemption.  Any savings to the Partnership and the Project 
attributable to the Welfare Exemption shall be used to maintain the affordability of, or 
reduce rents otherwise necessary for, the units occupied by lower income individuals or 
otherwise be passed onto the low income tenants of the Project in accordance with all 
applicable provisions of Section 214 of the RT Code. 

6.4.16 Nonprofit Status.  Throughout the Compliance Period, the 
Managing General Partner shall maintain its federal tax exempt status and take such 
other actions, if any, as may be required to qualify as a “qualified non-profit 
organization” under Section 42(h)(5)(c) of the Code.  In accordance with the BOE 
Regulations, the Managing General Partner shall Materially Participate (as defined in 
this Partnership Agreement) in the control, management and direction of the 
Partnership’s business for the purposes stated in Section 2.2 of this Partnership 
Agreement. 

6.4.17 Administrative General Partner Duties.  Subject to the terms 
hereof and in addition to and not limitation of any other duties, powers or obligations of 
the Administrative General Partner pursuant to this Partnership Agreement the 
Administrative General Partner shall perform the following duties on behalf of the 
Partnership: 

(i) renting, maintaining and repairing the low-income housing property 
(or if these duties are delegated to an agent, hiring and overseeing the agent’s 
duties); 

(ii) acquiring, holding, assigning or disposing of property or any interest 
in property; 

(iii) borrowing money on behalf of the special purpose entity, 
encumbering the special purpose entity’s assets, placing title in the name of a 
nominee to obtain financing, preparing items in whole or in part, in connection to 
refinancing, increasing, modifying or extending any obligation; and 

(iv) determining the amount and timing of distributions to partners and 
establishing and maintaining all required reserves. 

Section 6.5 Fees for Services Rendered.  The Partnership shall pay the following 
described fees to the Partners or Affiliates of one or more Partners indicated below: 

6.5.1 Development Fee.  As provided in the Development Fee Agreement 
and Section 3.2 hereof, the Partnership shall pay the Developer Fee to the Developer for 
the services and obligations described in the Development Fee Agreement. 

126



-77- 
60187061.1 

6.5.2 Partnership Management Fee.  The Partnership shall pay to the 
General Partner a Partnership Management Fee, on an annual, cumulative basis, in the 
amount and priority specified in Section 5.1.1 from Cash Flow and in Section 5.2.1 from 
Net Cash from Sales and Refinancing to compensate the General Partner for managing 
the Partnership’s operations and assets and coordinating the preparation of the required 
State Housing Finance Agency, federal, state, and local tax and other required filings 
and financial reports. 

6.5.3 Asset Management Fee.  The Partnership shall pay the Asset 
Management Fee annually to the Asset Manager for property management oversight, 
tax credit compliance monitoring, and related services.  The Asset Management Fee 
shall begin accruing on the day that the Limited Partner funds any portion of the Second 
Installment.  The Asset Manager will not incur any liability to the General Partner or the 
Partnership as a result of the Asset Manager’s performance of or failure to perform its 
asset management services.  The Asset Manager owes no duty to the General Partner or 
the Partnership and may only be terminated by the Limited Partner. 

6.5.4 Disposition Fee.  The Partnership shall pay a Disposition Fee in the 
amount of [$____________] which shall be divided evenly between the Asset Manager 
and the Sponsor at the time of closing of the sale of the Project or the Limited Partner’s 
interest in the Project. 

6.5.5 Incentive Partnership Management Fee.  The Partnership shall pay 
an Incentive Partnership Management Fee, on an annual, non-cumulative basis, in the 
amount and priority specified in Section 5.1.1 hereof to compensate the General Partner 
for monitoring the activities of the Partnership, supervising the Property Management 
Agent, and reporting to the Asset Manager so as to enable the Partnership to comply 
with all Code requirements for the Tax Credit and to establish eligibility for such Tax 
Credit with respect to the Project and avoid recapture thereof during the Compliance 
Period. 

6.5.6 [Services Reimbursement.  The Partnership shall pay to the Service 
Provider a Services Reimbursement as reimbursement for costs actually incurred 
associated with providing social services to residents on an annual, non-cumulative 
basis, as supported by invoices and documentation submitted to the General Partner and 
the Asset Manager.  The Services Reimbursement shall be payable only as provided in 
Section 5.1.1, to compensate the Service Provider for the actual cost of providing 
required services to the Project.] 

6.5.7 Other Considerations. 

(i) The Development Fee Agreement and any other agreements entered 
into by the Partnership and the General Partner or any Affiliate thereof will 
specifically provide that such agreement shall be terminable at the election of the 
Limited Partner if any General Partner is removed pursuant to Section 10.6 hereof 
and that, upon the delivery of notice of such removal pursuant to Section 12.1 
hereof, the General Partner’s obligation to make an additional Capital Contribution 

127



-78- 
60187061.1 

in accordance with Section 3.1.3 in the amount of the outstanding balance of the 
Deferred Development Fee and any accrued and unpaid interest thereon shall be 
accelerated, and the General Partner shall be obligated to make such additional 
Capital Contribution within five (5) Business Days after delivery of notice of 
removal.  The Partnership shall use this Capital Contribution to pay the remaining 
balance of the Deferred Development Fee and any accrued and unpaid interest 
thereon, and if the General Partner fails to pay this additional Capital Contribution 
in full within such five (5) Business Day period, the Partnership shall receive a 
dollar credit for payment of the Deferred Development Fee and accrued and unpaid 
interest thereon for each dollar by which the amount of the additional Capital 
Contribution so paid by the General Partner is less than the required payment 
amount.  Once proceeds of the General Partner’s additional Capital Contribution or 
any such credits, or both, have been so applied, the Partnership shall have no 
obligation to make any further payments to the General Partner or any Affiliate 
thereof for fees that would otherwise be due and payable pursuant to such 
agreement. 

(ii) None of the fee payments or reimbursements to any of the Persons 
indicated in Section 6.5 or elsewhere in this Partnership Agreement will be 
considered a distribution of Cash Flow to any Partner pursuant to Section 5.1.2, 
and, except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the General Partner may 
make any such reimbursement or fee payment prior to any distribution of any Cash 
Flow to the Partners. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the sum of (a) the 
Partnership Management Fee, plus (b) the Incentive Partnership 
Management Fee, plus (c) any other incentive fees, plus (d) if the 
Property Management Agent is an Affiliate of the General Partner, 
the fee payable to the Property Management Agent pursuant to the 
Property Management Agreement, shall not exceed 12% of the gross 
income of the Partnership. 

Section 6.6 Outside Ventures of Partners.  Any Limited Partner or Affiliate of the 
General Partner may engage in or possess an interest in any other business venture of any type or 
description, independently or with others (including, without limitation, any venture which may 
be competitive with the business being conducted by the Partnership) and neither the Partnership, 
nor any General Partner will, by virtue of this Partnership Agreement, have any right, title or 
interest in or to such outside ventures or the income or other benefits derived therefrom. 

Section 6.7 Dealing With Affiliates  The General Partner may employ or retain in any 
capacity any Partner or Affiliate of any Partner so long as the terms upon which such Partner or 
such Affiliate is employed or retained are commercially reasonable under the circumstances and 
comparable to those terms which could be obtained from an independent person for comparable 
services in the area where the Project is located or the Partnership has its principal office. 

Section 6.8 Indemnification of Partnership and Limited Partner    

128



-79- 
60187061.1 

The General Partner hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Partnership 
and the Limited Partner and their successors and assigns, from and against any loss, claims, 
demands, liabilities, lawsuits and other proceedings, judgments, awards, costs, and expenses 
including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees or damages (including foreseen and unforeseen 
damages and consequential damages) arising directly or indirectly out of the presence on, under 
or about the Project Property of any Hazardous Substance, or the use, release, generation, 
manufacture, storage, or disposal of any Hazardous Substance on, under or about the Project 
Property. 

6.8.1 In the event the Partnership or the Limited Partner becomes liable, 
due to the presence of any Hazardous Substance in the Project, under any statute, 
regulation, ordinance, or other provision of federal, state, or local law pertaining to the 
protection of the environment or otherwise pertaining to public health or employee 
health and safety, including without limitation protection from hazardous waste, lead-
based paint, asbestos, methane gas, urea formaldehyde insulation, oil, toxic substance, 
underground storage tanks, PCBs, and radon, the General Partner shall indemnify and 
hold harmless the Limited Partner and the Partnership for any and all actual out of pocket 
costs, expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), damages, or liabilities incurred 
by the Limited Partner upon demand by the Limited Partner at any time and from time 
to time, to the extent that the Partnership or the Limited Partner is required to discharge 
such costs, expenses, damages, or liabilities in whole or in part from any source.  The 
foregoing indemnification obligations of the General Partner shall be limited if and to 
the extent the Limited Partner participates in the control of the Partnership’s business 
after the formation of the Partnership and such participation is the direct cause of the 
conditions affecting the Project that resulted in such liability under applicable law and 
the consequent costs, expenses, damages, or liability of the Limited Partner.  References 
in this Section 6.8.2 to the Limited Partner shall include each of the Limited Partner’s 
assignee(s) (and their respective partners, if any).  The foregoing indemnification shall 
be a recourse obligation of the General Partner and shall survive the dissolution of the 
Partnership and/or the death, retirement, incompetency, insolvency, bankruptcy, or 
withdrawal of the General Partner.  The indemnification authorized by this Section 6.8.2  
shall include, but not be limited to, the costs and expenses (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees) of the removal of any liens affecting any property of the indemnitee as 
a result of such legal action.  The parties hereto agree and acknowledge that the Limited 
Partner’s exercise of the rights and approvals reserved to the Limited Partner under this 
Partnership Agreement shall not constitute participation in the control of the 
Partnership’s business for purposes of this paragraph. 

6.8.2 The General Partner shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
Partnership, the Limited Partner, its beneficiaries and their respective successors and 
assigns from and against any claims, demands, losses, damages, liabilities, lawsuits and 
other proceedings, judgments, awards, costs, and expenses including, without limitation, 
attorneys’ fees, arising directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, out of the General 
Partner’s gross negligence, fraud, willful misconduct, malfeasance, breach of fiduciary 
duty or actions performed outside the scope of the authority of the General Partner, or 
breach of any or all of the representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements 
contained in this Partnership Agreement, including, without limitation, those contained 

129



-80- 
60187061.1 

in Section 6.3 hereof, including any breach of any CTA requirement.  In addition to the 
foregoing indemnification, the Partnership and/or the Limited Partner may pursue any 
other available legal or equitable remedy against the General Partner with respect to the 
General Partner’s breach of any of the representations, warranties, or covenants 
contained herein, including, without limitation, the Limited Partner’s deferral of the 
payment of its Capital Contribution pursuant to Section 3.2.  The General Partner shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Limited Partner for any liability incurred by it 
for Partnership obligations (including, without limitation, the Loan Documents), except 
to the extent that either (i) a court of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) a mediator mutually 
selected by both the General Partner and the Limited Partner, has made a determination 
that such liability is the result of actions taken by the Limited Partner or rights exercised 
by the Limited Partner with respect to the operation of the Limited Partner in excess of 
those actions and rights granted or allowed under this Partnership Agreement or the Act.  
The General Partner’s obligations described in this Section 6.8 shall survive the 
termination and/or liquidation of the Partnership. 

Section 6.9 Credit Adjusters. 

6.9.1 Permanent Reduction in Tax Credits.  If, as of the end of the first 
year of the Credit Period and based upon the Cost Certification prepared by the 
Accountant or the IRS Form(s) 8609 for the Project, it is determined that the amount of 
Actual Tax Credits over the Credit Period for the Project will be less than the Projected 
Tax Credits over the Credit Period (a “Permanent Credit Reduction”), then there will be 
a reduction (the “Permanent Credit Reduction Adjustment”) in the Limited Partner’s 
Capital Contribution in an amount equal to the product of (i) the Permanent Credit 
Reduction and (ii) $0.91.  The Permanent Credit Reduction means the amount by which 
the Actual Tax Credits are or will be less than the Projected Tax Credits over the Credit 
Period due to (a) the actual Applicable Percentage being less than projected; (b) the 
actual Eligible Basis being less than projected; (c) the actual Qualified Basis as of the 
end of the first year of the Credit Period being less than the projected Qualified Basis; 
(d) the actual final allocation of Tax Credits as indicated on Form 8609 being less than 
the Projected Tax Credits; or (e) any combination of the above. This Permanent Credit 
Reduction Adjustment shall be made, at the option of the Limited Partner, by first 
decreasing the amount, if any, of the Limited Partner’s Capital Contribution installment 
next due, and, if necessary, further installments (reducing the earliest ones first) by the 
amount of the Permanent Credit Reduction Adjustment. In the event that there are no 
remaining Limited Partner Capital Contributions, or the Permanent Credit Reduction 
Adjustment required hereunder exceeds the remaining Capital Contributions of the 
Limited Partner, or the Limited Partner elects not to offset the Permanent Credit 
Reduction Adjustment against the remaining Limited Partner Capital Contribution 
installments, the General Partner shall immediately make a Capital Contribution to the 
Partnership in an amount necessary for the Partnership to make the Permanent Credit 
Reduction Adjustment, followed by an immediate distribution in such amount by the 
Partnership to the Limited Partner, unless it is determined by the Limited Partner’s tax 
counsel that such a distribution would cause the Partnership profits, losses, and credits 
to be allocated other than in accordance with the percentage interests of the Partners, in 
which event the General Partner shall pay directly to the Limited Partner an amount 

130



-81- 
60187061.1 

which, on an after-tax basis, will be equal to the Permanent Credit Reduction 
Adjustment. 

6.9.2 Timing Difference in Tax Credits (Downward). If with respect to 
any Building: 

(i) If for the Projected First Tax Credit Year of a Building, any portion 
of the Projected Tax Credits cannot be claimed with respect to such Building (as 
determined by the Accountant) by the Limited Partner during such Projected First 
Tax Credit Year, but must be delayed and may be taken in a later year or years of 
the Compliance Period, then the Limited Partner shall be entitled to reduce its 
Capital Contribution by an amount equal to $0.40 times the amount by which the 
Projected Tax Credits for such Building for the Projected First Tax Credit Year 
exceed the Actual Tax Credits for such Building for such year (the “First Year 
Timing Reduction”).  This First Year Timing Reduction is intended to compensate 
the Limited Partner for the reduced present value of such delayed Tax Credits, 
while taking into account the Tax Credits the Limited Partner may be entitled to 
receive with respect to such Building no later than the 11th year of the Compliance 
Period.  No adjustment shall be made under this Section 6.9.2 for any shortfall in 
Tax Credits for which an adjustment is already made pursuant to Section 6.9.1.  In 
the event that there are no remaining Limited Partner Capital Contributions, or the 
First Year Timing Reduction required hereunder exceeds the remaining Capital 
Contributions of the Limited Partner, or the Limited Partner elects not to offset the 
First Year Timing Reduction against the remaining Limited Partner Capital 
Contribution installments, the General Partner shall immediately make a Capital 
Contribution to the Partnership in an amount necessary for the Partnership to make 
the First Year Timing Reduction, followed by an immediate distribution in such 
amount by the Partnership to the Limited Partner, unless it is determined by the 
Limited Partner’s Tax counsel that such a distribution would cause the Partnership 
profits, losses, and credits to be allocated other than in accordance with the 
percentage interests of the Partners, in which event the General Partner shall pay 
directly to the Limited Partner an amount which, on an after-tax basis will be equal 
to the First Year Timing Reduction.   

(ii) If for the Projected Second Tax Credit Year for the Project, any 
Building has its first Tax Credit year and any portion of the Projected Tax Credits 
with respect to such Building cannot be claimed (as determined by the Accountant) 
by the Limited Partner during such Projected Second Tax Credit Year, but must be 
delayed and may be taken in a later year or years of the Compliance Period, then 
the Limited Partner shall be entitled to reduce its Capital Contribution by an amount 
equal to $0.40 times the amount by which the Projected Tax Credits for the 
Projected Second Tax Credit Year exceed the Actual Tax Credits for such year (the 
“Second Year Timing Reduction”).  This Second Year Timing Reduction is 
intended to compensate the Limited Partner for the reduced present value of such 
delayed Tax Credits with respect to a Building in its first Tax Credit year, while 
taking into account the Tax Credits the Limited Partner may be entitled to receive 
no later than the 11th year of the Compliance Period for such Building.  No 

131



-82- 
60187061.1 

adjustment shall be made under this Section 6.9.2 for any shortfall in Tax Credits 
for which an adjustment is already made pursuant to Section 6.9.1.  In the event 
that there are no remaining Limited Partner Capital Contributions, or the Second 
Year Timing Reduction required hereunder exceeds the remaining Capital 
Contributions of the Limited Partner, or the Limited Partner elects not to offset the 
Second Year Timing Reduction against the remaining Limited Partner Capital 
Contribution installments, the General Partner shall immediately make a Capital 
Contribution to the Partnership in an amount necessary for the Partnership to make 
the Second Year Timing Reduction, followed by an immediate distribution in such 
amount by the Partnership to the Limited Partner, unless it is determined by the 
Limited Partner’s Tax counsel that such a distribution would cause the Partnership 
profits, losses, and credits to be allocated other than in accordance with the 
percentage interests of the Partners, in which event the General Partner shall pay 
directly to the Limited Partner an amount which, on an after-tax basis will be equal 
to the Second Year Timing Reduction.   

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if there is an upward basis adjuster 
pursuant to Section 6.9.4, the Projected Tax Credits shall be deemed revised to take 
into account such increased total amount of Tax Credits prior to the application of 
this Section 6.9.2. 

(iv) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if there is a downward basis adjuster 
pursuant to Section 6.9.1, the Projected Tax Credits shall be deemed revised to take 
into account such decreased total amount of Tax Credits prior to the application of 
this Section 6.9.2. 

6.9.3 Ongoing Tax Credit Shortfall.  If, for any Fiscal Year after the 
Projected First Tax Credit Year (unless otherwise taken into account in Sections 6.9.2(ii) 
or 6.9.2(iii)), for any reason whatsoever (including any change to or removal of a Unit 
from a Qualified Group, if applicable) (1) the Actual Tax Credits  are less than the 
Projected Tax Credits  (as adjusted in any revised Projections prepared pursuant to 
Section 6.9.1 or Section 6.9.2) for such Fiscal Year or there is a loss or recapture as 
provided in Section 6.3,[70], if applicable; (2) a Limited Partner is required to recapture 
(resulting from other than a transfer of part or all of the Limited Partner’s Partnership 
Interest) all or any part of the Tax Credits claimed by it in any prior Fiscal Year of the 
Partnership (the “Credit Shortfall”), then, at the option of the Limited Partner, the 
Limited Partner’s Capital Contributions shall be reduced in chronological order in an 
amount (the “Credit Reduction Payment”) equal to the sum of (i) One Dollar ($1.00) 
times the difference between (A) the Projected Tax Credits  (as adjusted in any revised 
Projections prepared in connection with Section 6.9.1 or Section 6.9.2) for the Fiscal 
Year and all subsequent Fiscal Years, and (B) the Actual Tax Credits  for such Fiscal 
Year and the Tax Credits projected by the Accountant as being available to the Limited 
Partner for all subsequent Fiscal Years, and (ii) the amount of the Credits recaptured in 
such Fiscal Year or otherwise reduced from those taken on a tax return in a prior year, 
plus the amount of any interest or penalty payable by the Limited Partner as a result of 
the recapture or reduction in the Credit.  In the event there are no remaining Capital 
Contributions or the Credit Reduction Payment exceeds the amount of remaining 

132



-83- 
60187061.1 

Capital Contributions of the Limited Partner, or the Limited Partner elects not to offset 
the Credit Reduction Payment against the remaining Limited Partner Capital 
Contribution payments, the General Partner shall immediately [or in no event later than 
provided in Section 6.3.[70]] make a Capital Contribution to the Partnership in an 
amount equal to the Credit Reduction Payment or the unpaid portion thereof, and the 
Credit Reduction Payment shall be immediately distributed to the Limited Partner and 
shall neither constitute nor be limited by the distribution limits for Cash Flow, pursuant 
to Section 5.1, hereof, or for Net Cash from Sales and Refinancings,  pursuant to 
Section 5.2, hereof, unless it is determined by the Limited Partner’s Tax counsel that 
such a distribution would cause the Partnership profits, losses, and credits to be allocated 
other than in accordance with the percentage interests of the Partners, in which event 
the General Partner shall pay directly to the Limited Partner an amount which, on an 
after-tax basis will be equal to the Credit Reduction Payment. 

6.9.4 Permanent Increase in Tax Credits.  If it is determined that the 
amount of Actual Tax Credits over the Credit Period for the Project will be greater than 
the Projected Tax Credits over the Credit Period (such difference being defined herein 
as the “Permanent Credit Increase”) and the Asset Manager is provided with satisfactory 
written documentation to evidence the allocation of the Permanent Credit Increase, the 
Limited Partner will increase its Capital Contribution by an amount that is equal to the 
product of (i) the Permanent Credit Increase, and (ii) $0.91, subject to the limitations 
described in Section 6.9.6. 

6.9.5 Increase in First and/or Second Year Tax Credits.  If it is 
determined that the amount of Actual Tax Credits for the period prior to the end of the 
Projected First Tax Credit Year and Projected Second Tax Credit Year if it is the first 
Credit Year for a Building will be greater than the Projected Tax Credits for the period 
prior to the end of the Projected First Tax Credit Year and Projected Second Tax Credit 
Year, respectively (such difference being defined herein as the “Projected First and 
Second Tax Credit Year Increase”), and the Asset Manager is provided with satisfactory 
written documentation to evidence the allocation of the Projected First and Second Tax 
Credit Year Increase, the Limited Partner will increase its Capital Contribution by an 
amount that is equal to the product of (i) the Projected First and Second Tax Credit Year 
Increase, and (ii) $0.40.  Such increase will be subject to the limitations described in 
Section 6.9.6.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if there is an upward basis adjuster 
pursuant to Section 6.9.4, the Projected Tax Credits shall be deemed revised to take into 
account such increased total amount of Tax Credits prior to the application of this 
section 6.9.5. 

6.9.6 Limitation on Upward Adjuster.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained herein, the Limited Partner will increase its Capital Contribution only 
once during the 90-day period following the later of (i) achievement of Stabilized 
Occupancy or (ii) the allocating agency’s issuance of the Form 8609 for all Buildings.  
The Limited Partner will increase its Capital Contribution under Sections 6.9.4 and 6.9.5 
only if the Limited Partner, in the exercise of its sole discretion, determines that is has 
sufficient funds to make the additional Capital Contribution. In no event shall the 
increase in the Limited Partner’s Capital Contribution pursuant to Sections 6.9.4 and 

133



-84- 
60187061.1 

6.9.5 [and 6.9.8 and 6.9.9] exceed, in the aggregate, five percent (5%) of the Limited 
Partner’s Capital Contribution as set forth in the Projections in effect on the date of this 
Partnership Agreement (i.e., no subsequent increases in the Limited Partner’s Capital 
Contribution shall be taken into account for purposes of calculating the five percent 
(5%) limitation). 

6.9.7 Intentionally Omitted.. 

6.9.8 Intentionally Omitted.  

6.9.9 Intentionally Omitted.  

6.9.10 Intentionally Omitted.  

6.9.11 Repurchase.  Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the 
contrary, in the event that (i) any Building does not generate any Tax Credits during the 
taxable year succeeding the taxable year in which such Building is placed in service or 
the Project Property does not generate any Tax Credits during calendar year [2028] for 
any reason whatsoever, (ii) Construction Completion and Placement in Service of all 
Buildings are not achieved, or in the reasonable judgment of the Limited Partner, based 
on all of the relevant facts and circumstances, will not be achieved on or before 
December 31,2027 (which in no event shall exceed the end of the second year after the 
year in which the Project receives a Tax Credit allocation pursuant to 
Section 42(h)(1)(E) of the Code or by the date required by any Lender or State Housing 
Finance Agency), (iii) the Partnership fails to comply with the minimum set-aside test 
and/or the rent restriction test (as described in Section 42(g) of the Code) before the end 
of the year in which the Building is placed in service or, at the election of the General 
Partner pursuant to Section 42(f)(i)(B) (which election shall be made in accordance with 
Section 6.4.12(iv) hereof), the end of the succeeding taxable year, (iv) Stabilized 
Occupancy does not occur within six (6) months of the Projected Stabilized Occupancy 
Date, (v) intentionally omitted, (vi) proceedings have been commenced, filed or 
initiated to foreclose the Construction Loan mortgage or permanently enjoin 
construction or rehabilitation of the Project and such proceedings have not been stayed 
or vacated within thirty (30) days of commencement, filing or initiation, (vii) if the 
Project is financed with tax-exempt bonds, the Project fails to meet the 50% Bond Test 
on or before the end of the year in which the Building is placed in service or, at the 
timely election of the General Partner pursuant to Code Section 42(f)(1)(B) (which 
election shall be made only with the consent of the Limited Partner), the end of the 
succeeding taxable year, (viii) the General Partner fails to deliver to the Asset Manager 
a Form 8609 for each Building in the Project on or before the date by which the General 
Partner is required to deliver to the Asset Manager the Tax Return Documents for the 
first year of the Credit Period pursuant to Section 8.4.3, (ix) [intentionally omitted], 
(x) upon the Partnership’s receipt of a Form 8609 for each Building in the Project, it is 
determined that the Project will deliver less than 80% of the aggregate Projected Tax 
Credits over the Credit Period to the Limited Partner, or (xi) the General Partner fails to 
perform any obligation under its Development Completion Guaranty that is not fully 
performed within any applicable cure period contained in the Guaranty Agreement, if 

134



-85- 
60187061.1 

applicable, then, in the event any of the conditions described in clauses (i) through 
(xi) above occurs, upon the written notice of the Limited Partner, the General Partner 
shall purchase the Limited Partner’s entire interest in the Partnership for an amount 
equal to (x) the sum of (1) all Capital Contributions actually made to the Partnership by 
the Limited Partner, plus (2)  all expenses incurred by the Limited Partner in connection 
with entering into the Partnership, minus (y) an amount equal to the purchase price paid 
by the Limited Partner for any Tax Credits already received by the Limited Partner, net 
of any amounts that the Limited Partner has paid or may have to pay as the result of any 
recapture of any portion of the Tax Credits that the Limited Partner has received, and 
(z) any amounts that have already been reimbursed to the Limited Partner by the 
Partnership and/or the General Partner (the “Repurchase Amount”).  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this Partnership Agreement, the Limited Partner may, in its 
sole discretion and at any time following any of the events described in this 
Section 6.9.11, after any applicable notice and cure period and regardless of whether the 
Repurchase Amount or any portion thereof has been received by the Limited Partner at 
such time, withdraw from the Partnership as the Limited Partner.   

6.9.12 Failure to Pay; Remedies.  If the General Partner fails to pay any 
amount payable pursuant to Section 6.9.1, 6.9.2 or 6.9.3 above, or the Repurchase 
Amount pursuant to the preceding section owing to the Limited Partner within ten (10) 
days after written demand by the Limited Partner, then, in addition to any other rights 
the Limited Partner may have, any sums payable to the General Partner (or any Affiliate 
thereof) pursuant to the terms of this Partnership Agreement (including, without 
limitation, Cash Flow and any fees payable by the Partnership to the General Partner or 
its Affiliates) will instead be paid to the Limited Partner until such time as all amounts 
owing to the Limited Partner pursuant to this  Section 6.9 are fully repaid.  For purposes 
of this Partnership Agreement, any sums distributed to the Limited Partner pursuant to 
the immediately preceding sentence are deemed to have been paid to the General Partner 
(or its Affiliates) and subsequently paid by the General Partner to the Partnership as a 
capital contribution, followed by a distribution to the Limited Partner from the 
Partnership of such capital contribution proceeds in satisfaction of the General Partner’s 
obligations hereunder, unless it is determined by Limited Partner’s tax counsel that such 
a distribution would cause Partnership profits, losses, and credits to be allocated other 
than in accordance with the percentage interests of the Partners, in which event the 
amount payable to the Limited Partner in accordance with the preceding sentence shall 
be an amount that, on an after-tax basis, will be equal to the Permanent Credit Reduction 
Adjustment, a First Year Timing Reduction or Second Year Timing Reduction pursuant 
to Section 6.9.2, Credit Reduction Payment or Repurchase Amount, as applicable, and 
such amount shall be deemed to have been paid directly by the General Partner to the 
Limited Partner.  The rights and remedies granted to the Limited Partner by this 
Section 6.9 are not exclusive of, but are in addition to, any other rights and remedies 
granted to the Limited Partner under this Partnership Agreement or by applicable law.  
The obligations of the General Partner under this Section 6.9 are deemed to have arisen 
as a consequence of a transaction between the General Partner and the Limited Partner 
other than in their capacities as Partners and the Capital Accounts or loans of the Partners 
are not affected in any way as a result of the making of any credits or payments 
hereunder. 

135



-86- 
60187061.1 

6.9.13 Survival.  The obligations of the General Partner and its Affiliates 
prescribed or described in this Section 6.9 will survive the termination and/or liquidation 
of the Partnership. 

Section 6.10 Publicity and Promotional Events.  The General Partner shall be obligated 
to notify the Asset Manager at least thirty (30) days in advance of any (i) groundbreaking, (ii) open 
house, (iii) public relations event or other similar activities related to the Project.  Representatives 
of the Limited Partner (including any beneficial owners thereof), the Asset Manager, and any 
investors who have provided funds that have been invested in the Project by the Limited Partner 
(collectively, the “Publicity Parties”) shall be entitled to attend such events.  The General Partner 
shall also be obligated to place the names of any entities that the Asset Manager might designate 
on any signage that is erected for publicity purposes during the construction of the Project.  Any 
costs related thereto shall be paid by the Partnership.  The General Partner shall notify the Asset 
Manager when any such signage is being prepared and provide the Asset Manager with a 
reasonable amount of time to provide the names it wants included on the signs.  The General 
Partner acknowledges that it will benefit from any publicity generated by the Publicity Parties with 
respect to the Project.  In consideration thereof, the General Partner hereby consents, grants, and 
releases to the Publicity Parties all rights related to the use of the Project, including, but not limited 
to, the use of the name of the Project, any photographs of the Project, and any written materials 
related to the Project, in any commercial, promotional or marketing materials such as press 
releases, publications, and publicity events that any of the Publicity Parties may wish to issue or 
conduct. 

Section 6.11 Co-General Partners.  If there is more than one General Partner, or if the 
General Partner is a joint venture or partnership in which there is more than one general partner, 
then all general partners of the partnership or of such joint venture of partnership shall be jointly 
and severally liable to the Partnership, to the Limited Partner, and to its successors and assigns for 
all obligations of the General Partner, and for any damages that may arise from the acts or 
omissions of any of such general partners in their performance or breach of the guaranties, 
management, and all other obligations and the representations and warranties of the General 
Partner, whether now existing or hereafter created, under this Partnership Agreement as the same 
may from time to time be amended and under applicable law.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary herein, no General Partner shall be liable to the Partnership or to the Limited Partner for 
the fraud of any other General Partner. 

Section 6.12 Partnership Representative Rules. 

6.12.1 Appointment and Designation.  Subject to the terms and conditions 
of this Section 6.12, the General Partner shall serve as the partnership representative of 
the Partnership (“Partnership Representative”) pursuant to Section 6223(a) of the Code.  
The Partnership Representative shall timely designate, subject to the Limited Partner’s 
approval in its sole and absolute discretion, an individual (who is an officer of the 
General Partner or an Affiliate thereof) through whom the Partnership Representative 
will act at any time for all purposes of the Revised Partnership Audit Procedures (the 
“Designated Individual”).  The Designated Individual must agree in writing with the 
Partnership to be bound by the same obligations and restrictions imposed on the 
Partnership Representative under this Section 6.12 prior to and as a condition of such 

136



-87- 
60187061.1 

designation.  The Limited Partner in its sole and absolute discretion shall appoint a 
Partnership Representative and Designated Individual or replacement Partnership 
Representative and Designated Individual of the Partnership for all taxable years of the 
Partnership during which the Limited Partner held for any period a Partnership Interest 
if, at any time, the General Partner is removed as Partnership Representative as provided 
below or does not qualify as a partnership representative under the Code, provided that 
the General Partner shall be responsible for appointing a Partnership Representative and 
Designated Individual for any subsequent taxable year occurring after the last taxable 
year during which the Limited Partner held for any period a Partnership Interest.  The 
timing of any change in the Partnership Representative and Designated Individual 
pursuant to this Section 6.12 shall be subject to all applicable requirements of the Code 
and Regulations. 

6.12.2 Resignation and Removal.  If the Partnership Representative or 
Designated Individual, or both, resign, or if the General Partner is removed in 
accordance with any provision of this Agreement, or if for any other reason the General 
Partner no longer serves as general partner of the Partnership, then the Limited Partner 
in its sole and absolute discretion shall designate a replacement Partnership 
Representative or Designated Individual or both for all taxable years of the Partnership.  
If the Partnership Representative or Designated Individual fails to obtain the Limited 
Partner’s prior written consent as to any filing, election, or course of action in 
accordance with this Section 6.12 or if the Partnership Representative or Designated 
Individual fails to perform or observe any other covenant, term or condition to be 
performed or observed by the Partnership Representative or Designated Individual, 
respectively, under this Section 6.12, then the Limited Partner, whether or not it 
exercises its right to remove the General Partner under Section 10.6 in connection with 
such Event of Default, shall have the right any time thereafter to remove and replace the 
General Partner as Partnership Representative and the individual serving as the 
Designated Individual for any and all taxable years during which the Limited Partner 
held or holds for any period a Partnership Interest.  If a Designated Individual becomes 
unable to perform the tasks required of a Designated Individual, ceases to be an officer 
of the General Partner or an Affiliate thereof, or the Partnership Representative 
otherwise determines that such individual should be removed as the Designated 
Individual, the Partnership Representative shall promptly notify the Limited Partner of 
such determination and take all necessary actions to effectuate the resignation of such 
individual as Designated Individual for all applicable taxable years.  The General 
Partner shall be responsible for providing notice of any revocation of a Partnership 
Representative or Designated Individual to the IRS in the time and manner prescribed 
by the IRS and shall include the designation of another Person selected by the Limited 
Partner as the successor Partnership Representative and/or the designation of another 
Person selected by the Partnership Representative (with the consent of the Limited 
Partner, which consent may be granted or withheld in the sole and absolute discretion 
of the Limited Partner) as the successor Designated Individual. The resigning or 
removed Partnership Representative and/or Designated Individual shall remain 
obligated hereunder in such capacity until the replacement is acknowledged by the IRS.  
The General Partner hereby constitutes and appoints the Limited Partner, with full 
power of substitution, its true and lawful attorney-in-fact in its name, place and stead to 

137



-88- 
60187061.1 

carry out fully the provisions of this Section 6.12.2 and take any action which the 
Limited Partner may deem necessary or appropriate in connection herewith, including, 
without limitation, removal and replacement of the Partnership Representative or 
Designated Individual or both.  The power of attorney hereby granted shall be deemed 
to be coupled with an interest, shall be irrevocable and shall survive and shall not be 
affected by the subsequent incapacity, dissolution, resignation, revocation or other 
termination of the General Partner as the Partnership Representative. 

6.12.3 Notice of Communication; Cooperation.  The General Partner shall 
keep the Limited Partner advised of any dispute the Partnership may have with the IRS 
or any state or local taxing authority, and, to the extent permitted by applicable rules of 
procedure adopted by such taxing bodies, shall afford the Affected Partners the right to 
participate directly in negotiations with any such taxing authority in an effort to resolve 
any such dispute.  In addition, within five (5) Business Days after the receipt of any 
correspondence or communication relating to the Partnership or a Partner from the IRS 
or any state or local taxing authority, the General Partner or Partnership Representative 
shall forward to the Limited Partner a photocopy of all such correspondence or 
communication(s).  The General Partner or Partnership Representative shall, within five 
(5) calendar days thereafter, advise the Limited Partner in writing of the substance and 
form of any conversation or communication held with any representative of the IRS or 
any state or local taxing authority. 

6.12.4 Authority of Partnership Representative.  Subject to the limitations 
set forth in this Partnership Agreement, the Partnership Representative and Designated 
Individual shall have all of the power and authority of a partnership representative and 
designated individual, respectively, under the Revised Partnership Audit Procedures and 
shall represent the Partnership in all dealings with the IRS and state and local taxing 
authorities for all taxable years during which they serve in in such positions in 
accordance with this Section 6.12, provided that (a) the Partnership Representative and 
Designated Individual shall give prior written notice to the Affected Partners of any 
administrative or judicial proceeding (“Proceedings”) involving the adjustment of any 
tax items affecting the Partnership or the Affected Partners and obtain the prior written 
consent of the Affected Partners (which consent may be granted or withheld in the sole 
and absolute discretion of the Affected Partners) regarding the course of action to be 
taken in such Proceedings, and (b) neither the Partnership Representative nor the 
Designated Individual shall enter into or consent to a settlement with the IRS that binds 
the Partnership or the Affected Partners with respect to any Partnership item without 
obtaining the prior written consent of the Affected Partners (which consent may be 
granted or withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the Affected Partners). 

6.12.5 Duty to Comply with Limited Partner’s Direction.  The Partnership 
Representative and Designated Individual shall comply with any written direction given 
by the Limited Partner at any time with regard to making an Opt-Out Election, Push-
Out Election, Administrative Adjustment Request or any other tax decisions and 
elections on behalf of the Partnership or the Limited Partner for any taxable year and 
shall not make an Opt-Out Election, Push-Out Election, Administrative Adjustment 
Request or any other tax decisions and elections on behalf of the Partnership or the 

138



-89- 
60187061.1 

Limited Partner for any taxable year without obtaining the Limited Partner’s prior 
written consent (which consent may be granted or withheld in the sole and absolute 
discretion of the Limited Partner).  If requested to do so by the Limited Partner, the 
Partnership Representative shall request modification of an Imputed Underpayment 
(a) in accordance with any applicable Regulations, forms, instructions, and other 
guidance prescribed by the IRS or (b) based on an amended return (or, to the extent 
permitted by law, any similar statement) filed by the Limited Partner (or the owner of 
any interest therein or thereunder) that takes account of all of the Partnership 
Adjustments properly allocated to the Limited Partner (or such owners).  In either case, 
the Limited Partner shall describe the modifications or adjustment factors that the 
Limited Partner believes affect the calculation of the Imputed Underpayment. 

6.12.6 Additional Limitations on Authority.  In addition to the other 
limitations on the Partnership Representative’s authority set forth herein, the Partnership 
Representative shall not take any of the following actions without obtaining the prior 
written consent of the Limited Partner (and, in the case of (ii) and (iii), the Affected 
Partner for the Reviewed Year) (which consent may be granted or withheld in the sole 
and absolute discretion of the Limited Partner or the Affected Partner, as applicable): 

(i) Extend the statute of limitations for assessing or computing any tax 
liability against the Partnership (or the amount or character of any Partnership tax 
item); 

(ii) Settle any audit or Proceeding with the IRS or any state or local 
taxing authority; 

(iii) File a request for an administrative adjustment of any kind with the 
IRS or any state or local taxing authority at any time or file a petition for judicial 
review with respect to any adjustment made by the IRS or any state and local taxing 
authority; 

(iv) Initiate or settle any judicial review or action concerning the amount 
or character of any Partnership tax item; 

(v) Select any judicial forum for the litigation of any Partnership tax 
dispute; 

(vi) Intervene in any action brought by any other Partner for judicial 
review of a final adjustment of any Partnership tax item; or 

(vii) Take any other action that would have the effect of finally resolving 
a tax matter affecting the rights of the Partnership and the Affected Partners or 
otherwise have a material effect on any tax matters affecting the Partnership and 
the Affected Partners. 

6.12.7 Fiduciary Relationship.  The relationship of the Partnership 
Representative to the Limited Partner shall be that of a fiduciary, and the Partnership 

139



-90- 
60187061.1 

Representative shall have a fiduciary obligation to perform its duties in such manner as 
will serve the best interests of the Limited Partner. 

6.12.8 Reimbursement of Expenses.   To the extent of available funds, the 
Partnership shall indemnify and reimburse the Partnership Representative and the 
Designated Individual for all reasonable expenses, including legal and accounting fees, 
claims, liabilities, losses and damages incurred by the Partnership Representative and 
Designated Individual, respectively, solely in their respective capacities as Partnership 
Representative and Designated Individual, with respect to the tax liability of the 
Affected Partners and/or the Partnership in connection with any audit or administrative 
or judicial proceeding, provided that the Partnership Representative and Designated 
Individual will not be entitled to indemnification for  fraud, gross negligence, willful 
misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty or breach of its obligations under this Section 6.12.  
The Partnership’s indemnification and reimbursement obligations under this 
Section 6.12.8 shall constitute Operating Expenses payable solely from Gross Cash 
Receipts (before any distributions are made from Cash Flow or any discretionary 
reserves are set aside by the General Partner) or the Operating Reserve. 

6.12.9 Liability for Taxes and Imputed Underpayment.  Except as 
hereinafter provided, if a Push-Out Election is made, each Reviewed Year Partner shall 
take into account its allocable share of the Partnership Adjustments that relate to the 
specified Imputed Underpayment (as determined with the consent of the Limited Partner 
for such Reviewed Year) (which consent may be granted or withheld in the sole and 
absolute discretion of the Limited Partner)) and shall be liable for any Taxes as described 
in Section 6226 of the Code and any applicable Regulations or other guidance by the 
IRS.  If the Partnership becomes obligated to make an Imputed Underpayment under 
Code Section 6225, each of the Affected Partners to whom such liability relates (as 
determined with the consent of the Limited Partner) (which consent may be granted or 
withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the Limited Partner)) shall be obligated 
to pay an amount that is equal to its allocable share of such amount to the Partnership, 
provided that if and to the extent that the Partnership’s liability for an Imputed 
Underpayment results from a loss, disallowance or recapture of Tax Credits for which a 
payment is due from and has not been paid by the General Partner or any Guarantor 
under this Partnership Agreement (the amount of such payment being referred to herein 
as the “Unpaid Obligation”), then the amount otherwise allocable to and payable by the 
Affected Partners with respect to such Imputed Underpayment shall be reduced by such 
Unpaid Obligation (or the Affected Partner’s allocable share thereof) and the General 
Partner shall be responsible for payment of all or such portion of the Imputed 
Underpayment equal to such Unpaid Obligation. 

6.12.10 Amendments.  The General Partner shall cooperate with the Limited 
Partner to amend this Partnership Agreement if, after promulgation of final or amended 
Regulations or other guidance or rules issued by the IRS implementing the Revised 
Partnership Audit Procedures, the Limited Partner determines in good faith that an 
amendment to this Partnership Agreement is required in order to maintain the intent of 
the Partners as expressed in this Section 6.12 with respect to any issues raised by such 
final or amended Regulations or other guidance or rules. 

140



-91- 
60187061.1 

6.12.11 Continuing Obligations.  The Partners acknowledge and agree that 
nothing in this Section 6.12 is intended, nor shall it be construed, to limit or waive any 
obligations of the General Partner set forth under any other section of this Partnership 
Agreement, including, without limitation, the General Partner’s payment obligations 
under Sections 6.4.6 and 6.9 of this Partnership Agreement. 

6.12.12 Survival.  The rights and obligations of each Partner or Former 
Partner under this Section 6.12 shall survive the transfer, redemption or liquidation by 
such Partner of its Partnership Interest and the termination of this Partnership Agreement 
or the dissolution of the Partnership. 

6.12.13 State and Local Income Tax Matters.  The provisions of this 
Section 6.12 shall also apply to state and local income tax matters affecting the 
Partnership to the extent the terms and conditions hereof have any application to audit 
procedures at the state and local level. 

ARTICLE 7: POWERS, RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF LIMITED PARTNER 

Section 7.1 Limitation of Liability.  Except as otherwise required under the Act 
(relating to a limited partner’s liability under certain circumstances to refund to the Partnership 
distributions of cash previously made to it as a return of capital), the Limited Partner shall not be 
personally liable for any loss or liability of the Partnership beyond the amount of such Limited 
Partner’s agreed upon Capital Contribution. 

Section 7.2 No Participation in Management.  Except as otherwise expressly 
provided in this Partnership Agreement, the Limited Partner shall not participate in the operation, 
management, or control of the Partnership’s business, transact any business in the Partnership’s 
name, or have any power to sign documents for or otherwise bind the Partnership. 

 
ARTICLE 8: ACCOUNTING AND FISCAL AFFAIRS 

Section 8.1 Books of Account.  The General Partner shall keep proper books of account 
for the Partnership. Such books of account shall be kept at the principal office of the Partnership 
and the General Partner shall make them available during normal business hours for examination 
and copying by the Limited Partner or its authorized representatives.  The General Partner shall 
retain such books of account for six (6) years after the termination of the Partnership.  The fiscal 
year of the Partnership shall be the calendar year, unless otherwise specified in writing by the 
Limited Partner, and all Partnership accounts shall be maintained on an accrual basis.  Decisions 
as to other accounting methods to be used by the Partnership shall be made only with the prior 
written consent of the Limited Partner. 

The General Partner shall retain all documentation with respect to initial qualification of 
the Project as a qualified Tax Credit project until the later of six (6) years after completion of the 
Project’s Compliance Period or any longer period required under applicable law.  The General 
Partner shall retain such other documentation relating to the continuing Tax Credit qualification 
of the Project for at least six (6) years, unless requested by the Asset Manager or required by 
applicable law to retain such documentation for a longer period. 

141



-92- 
60187061.1 

The General Partner shall cooperate fully and in good faith, and shall instruct and cause 
the Property Management Agent to cooperate fully and in good faith, with the Asset Manager and 
the Limited Partner with respect to their monitoring of the Partnership’s operation of the Project 
Property, including the review of and compliance with Tax Credit related laws and regulations. 

Section 8.2 Management Reports.  The General Partner shall deliver or cause to be 
furnished to the Asset Manager any periodic financial or performance report provided by the 
Partnership to any federal, state, or local governmental agency or to any Lender or any compliance 
monitoring report provided to the Partnership by the State Housing Finance Agency responsible 
for compliance monitoring or its designee.  The General Partner shall deliver any such report to 
the Asset Manager within twenty (20) days after such report is filed with any such governmental 
agency, a Lender or provided to the Partnership. 

The General Partner shall also prepare and deliver to or shall cause to be prepared and 
delivered to the Asset Manager the following reports: 

8.2.1 Monthly Development Reports.  During the Project development 
period and through completion of lease-up of the Project, within ten (10) days after the 
end of each month, the General Partner shall provide a monthly status report on the 
development of the Project, containing information on development costs, completion 
schedule, projected occupancy, operating income and expenses, accounts payable, and 
any difficulties encountered or anticipated in conjunction with any of these matters.  The 
General Partner shall also submit, such additional documentation or supporting 
documentation as the Limited Partner may reasonably request. 

8.2.2 Quarterly Management Reports.  Before and after lease-up of the 
Project, as soon as practicable after the end of each calendar quarter but in no event later 
than fifteen (15) days thereafter, the General Partner shall provide a management report 
on the Project and any other Partnership affairs, containing such information as is 
reasonably necessary to advise the Asset Manager about its investment in the 
Partnership and the development or operation of the Project (including, to the extent 
now or hereafter requested by the Asset Manager, a rent roll containing tenant names 
and addresses, monthly rent, maximum allowable Tax Credit rent, area median income 
designation per unit, security deposit, lease renewal date; an income and expense 
statement with budget comparison, a balance sheet and a NEF quarterly status report).  
The General Partner shall also submit such additional documentation or supporting 
documentation as the Asset Manager may request. 

8.2.3 Annual Budget.  Annually, no later than October 15th of each 
calendar year, throughout the term of the Partnership, the General Partner shall prepare 
and submit, for approval by the Asset Manager, a proposed operating budget for the 
Project that provides budget projections based upon anticipated Project revenues and 
expenses, beginning with the first full calendar year after the year of Placement in 
Service, and for each succeeding year thereafter.  The proposed budgets shall include 
without limitation an itemized account of projected operating income, expenses, an 
analysis prepared by the General Partner in a form satisfactory to the Asset Manager of 

142



-93- 
60187061.1 

reserve sufficiency for the period covered by the budget, and a copy of the most recent 
rent roll for the Project. 

(i) The Asset Manager shall review and approve or disapprove the 
proposed budget based on the financial statements for preceding operating years, 
the anticipated increases in operating expenses, the current and projected operating 
income, and the completeness of the documentation provided by the General 
Partner. 

(ii) The Asset Manager shall submit to the General Partner, in writing, 
any comments on the proposed budget within thirty (30) days after receipt of same.  
If the Asset Manager does not submit comments on the proposed budget within said 
30 day period, the proposed budget shall be deemed to be approved by the Asset 
Manager. 

(iii) The General Partner shall have fifteen (15) days to submit a 
response, in writing, to the Asset Manager’s comments on the proposed budget.  If 
the Asset Manager does not respond in writing to the General Partner’s comments 
within 15 days after receipt of same, the proposed budget shall be deemed approved 
by the Asset Manager. 

(iv) If the Asset Manager responds in writing to the General Partner’s 
comments within fifteen (15) days after receipt of same, the General Partner shall 
submit a revised proposed budget within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the Asset 
Manager’s comments, responding to same. 

8.2.4 Annual Real Property Tax-Exemption or Abatement.  To the 
extent the Partnership is expected to receive, on an annual basis, an abatement or 
exemption from real property taxes in respect of the Project, the General Partner shall, 
no later than the applicable due date of each calendar year throughout the term of the 
Compliance Period, prepare and submit to the appropriate agency or authority and the 
Asset Manager such documents as may be required to permit the Partnership to receive 
the abatement or exemption from real property taxes. 

8.2.5 Evidence of Insurance.  The General Partner shall deliver to the 
Limited Partner, at least ten (10) Business Days prior to the date such insurance policy 
expires, a certificate of insurance for each insurance coverage required by the Limited 
Partner as evidence of its renewal. 

8.2.6 Other Information.  Upon request from time to time, the General 
Partner shall provide such information and reports as may be reasonably requested by 
the Limited Partner with respect to the Partnership and the Project. 

8.2.7 Annual Certification of Compliance.  The General Partner shall 
deliver to the Asset Manager, within five (5) days after submission, a copy of the 
Project’s annual certification of compliance that was submitted to the State Housing 
Finance Agency. 

143



-94- 
60187061.1 

Section 8.3 General Disclosure. 

8.3.1 The General Partner shall deliver to the Asset Manager a detailed 
report of any of the following events or receipt of the following information as quickly 
as possible but no later than five (5) days after the occurrence of such event or receipt 
of such information: 

(i) a material default by the Partnership under any loan, grant, subsidy, 
construction or property management documents or in payment of any mortgage, 
taxes, interest, or other obligation on secured or unsecured debt; 

(ii) receipt by the General Partner of any information regarding any 
lawsuits to which the Partnership has been made a party, any claims against the 
Project’s hazard or liability insurance, any tax liens filed against the Project or the 
Partnership, or any notices of violations pertaining to the Project or the Partnership; 

(iii) receipt of any notice, including any Form 8823, Report of 
Noncompliance or Building Disposition from the State Housing Finance Agency, 
together with a copy of any such notice; 

(iv) receipt of any notice of any IRS or State Housing Finance Agency 
audit or proceeding involving the Partnership, together with a copy of any such 
notice; and 

(v) the occurrence of any natural disaster or incident of widespread 
property damage having an impact on the Project, containing the following 
information to the extent available:  (a) the extent of the damage to the Project, 
(b) any expected delays in construction or rehabilitation, (c) the effect that the 
damage sustained, if any, may have on marketing and lease-up activity, and (d) the 
amount that is anticipated to be recoverable under available insurance policies. 

8.3.2 The General Partner shall deliver to the Asset Manager a detailed 
report of any of the following events with ten (10) days after the end of any calendar 
quarter during which such event occurred: 

(i) any reserve has been reduced or terminated by application of funds 
therein for purposes materially different from those for which such reserves was 
established; or 

(ii) any General Partner has received any notice of a material fact which 
may substantially affect further distributions. 

Section 8.4 Tax Information. 

8.4.1 Tax Credit Eligible Basis.  Within forty-five (45) days after 
substantial completion of the Project’s construction, a Tax Credit Eligible Basis 
worksheet for each Building of the Project shall be provided to the Asset Manager by 
the General Partner, in a form specified by the Asset Manager. 

144



-95- 
60187061.1 

8.4.2 Financial Reports. 

(i) The General Partner shall, within fifteen (15) days after each 
calendar quarter, submit or cause to be submitted to the Asset Manager unaudited 
financial statements, prepared in accordance with GAAP, for the Partnership.  With 
respect to each taxable year of the Partnership, the General Partner shall submit or 
cause to be submitted to the Asset Manager (a) on or before February 15 of the 
following calendar year, a draft of the audited financial statements prepared by the 
Accountant in accordance with GAAP for review and comment by the Asset 
Manager, and (b) on or before February 28 of the following calendar year  (the 
“Submission Date”), a written report prepared by the Accountant, which shall 
include which shall include a Schedule K-1 or its successor form for preparing 
federal income tax returns and audited financial statements, prepared in accordance 
with GAAP, certified by the Accountant, and reflecting the comments received 
from the Asset Manager to the draft documents (the “Report”).  The Report’s 
audited financial statement shall include the following:  a balance sheet of the 
Partnership as at the end of such year; an itemized statement of income, expenses, 
surplus and deficits; a financial summary which reconciles and summarizes the 
financial statements and bank statements as of the end of such year; changes in fund 
balances and changes in financial position for such year; supporting schedules; a 
statement of Partners’ capital; the status, amount, and timing of the Projected Tax 
Credits and other tax benefits from the Project as compared with the Projections; 
and such additional statements with respect to the status of the Partnership and the 
distribution of profits and losses therefrom as are considered necessary by the 
General Partner or the Accountant to advise all Partners properly about their 
investment in the Partnership for federal income tax reporting purposes.  
Submissions required by this section also may include such supplemental or 
alternative audit-related documentation as the Limited Partner may request.  If the 
General Partner fails to submit the Report to the Asset Manager by the Submission 
Date, the General Partner shall be assessed a penalty of $100 per day pursuant to 
Section 8.6 below.  Without limiting the right of the Limited Partner under 
Section 8.6.3 below, the Limited Partner shall have the right to require the General 
Partner to remove the Accountant and the right to approve or identify a replacement 
accountant if the Accountant fails to submit the Report to the Asset Manager by the 
Submission Date. 

(ii) In addition to the requirements set forth in Section 8.4.2(i) above, 
the General Partner shall submit or cause to be submitted to the Asset Manager, (a) 
on or before December 31st of the year the Project achieves Placement in Service, 
an “interim” audited financial statement, prepared in accordance with GAAP, 
which shall reflect the financial status of the Project as of September 30th of that 
year, and (b) at any time after the first calendar quarter of each year within thirty 
(30) days after notice from the Asset Manager, (1) unaudited or, at the election of 
the Asset Manager, audited financial statements, prepared in accordance with 
GAAP, of the General Partner for the prior calendar year, (2) tax returns of the 
General Partner and Guarantor for the preceding calendar year and (3) such other 

145



-96- 
60187061.1 

financial information documenting the current financial condition of the General 
Partner and Guarantor as the Asset Manager may reasonably require. 

(iii) At the request of the Asset Manager, the General Partner shall 
submit or cause to be submitted to the Asset Manager within (a) fifteen (15) days 
after each calendar quarter, unaudited financial statements, prepared in accordance 
with GAAP, for the Guarantor(s); (b) forty-five (45) days after each calendar year, 
audited financial statements, prepared in accordance with GAAP, [and a schedule 
of Real Estate Owned] for the Guarantor(s), until such time as all of the “General 
Partner Obligations” or “Guaranteed Obligations” (as such terms are defined in the 
Guaranty Agreement) have been fully performed or paid; and (c) within forty-five 
(45 days) after the end of each fiscal year, or at the option of the Asset Manager, in 
its sole discretion, within fifteen (15) days after each calendar quarter, a schedule 
of real estate owned by Sponsor, or at Asset Manager’s request, any Sponsor 
Affiliate, that lists all real estate developments owned by Sponsor or its Affiliate 
and contains sufficient information to provide Asset Manager a reasonable 
understanding of the financial health of Sponsor’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s real 
estate portfolio. 

(iv) If the date of Placement in Service occurs after September 30  of the 
Fiscal Year in which Placement in Service occurs (the “Subject Fiscal Year”), then 
the General Partner shall have the option to participate in a Mini Audit performed 
by the Limited Partner’s accountants for the Subject Fiscal Year, in lieu of 
submitting annual audited financial statements for such year in accordance with 
Section 8.4.2(i) and the interim audited financial statements in accordance with 
Section 8.4.2(ii)(a).  The cost of the Mini Audit shall be a Partnership expense.  If 
the final Cost Certification of the Project prepared by the Accountant is not 
submitted and approved by the Asset Manager by February 15  of the year 
following the Subject Fiscal Year, then performance of the Mini Audit will require 
submission by the General Partner of such additional audit-related documentation 
as the Limited Partner’s accountants may request to complete the Mini Audit in the 
absence of the final and approved Cost Certification. 

8.4.3 Tax Returns.  With respect to each taxable year of the Partnership, 
the General Partner shall (i) deliver to the Asset Manager, for its review and approval, 
within forty-five (45) days after each taxable year ends, drafts of Form 1065 and 
Schedule K-1 or any successor federal return of income forms required to be filed on 
behalf of the Partnership, and any and all other forms, schedules, materials required in 
connection therewith (the “Tax Return Documents”), and (ii) cause to be prepared and 
filed with the appropriate agencies within sixty (60) days after each taxable year ends, 
the Tax Return Documents, which shall be revised or amended to include any comments 
made by the Asset Manager.  Within such sixty (60) day period, the General Partner 
shall deliver a copy of the filed Tax Return Documents to the Asset Manager.  The 
General Partner shall cause the Accountants to include in the Tax Return Documents 
(a) a capital account analysis that includes a calculation of Partner Minimum Gain and 
Partnership Minimum Gain for the current taxable year and all prior taxable years, (b) a 
GAAP-to-tax reconciliation of the Capital Accounts, and (c) for the first and second 

146



-97- 
60187061.1 

taxable year in which the Partnership claims Tax Credits, a schedule describing the 
Accountant’s calculation of the Tax Credits claimed by the Partnership for such tax year.  
In addition, the General Partner shall comply with all requirements of Section 6.3.2 
hereof with respect to anticipated Tax Credits and other tax benefits. 

8.4.4 Tax Returns Due to Termination.  If, pursuant to Section 9.1 
below, there are subsequent transfers of Limited Partner’s beneficial interests or 
partnership interests which cause a termination of the Partnership pursuant to 
Section 708(b) of the Code (“Termination”), the General Partner shall (i) deliver to the 
Asset Manager, for its review and approval, within thirty (30) days after receipt of 
written notice from the Limited Partner of such Termination, a draft of Form 1065 and 
Schedule K-1 or any successor federal return of income forms required to be filed on 
behalf of the Partnership, and any and all other forms, schedules or materials required 
in connection therewith (the “Termination Tax Return Documents”), and (ii) cause to 
be prepared and filed with the appropriate agencies within the time period prescribed 
under the Code, the Termination Tax Return Documents, which shall be revised or 
amended to include any comments made by the Asset Manager.  Any costs associated 
with the General Partner’s satisfaction of this Section 8.4.4 shall be paid in accordance 
with Section 9.1 below. 

8.4.5 Estimated Tax Credits.  Prior to October 15th of each year, 
throughout the Compliance Period, the General Partner shall send to the Asset Manager 
an estimate of the Limited Partner’s share of Tax Credits by each Building of the Project, 
estimate of total Tax Credits, and estimates of Profits and Losses for federal income tax 
purposes in a form specified by the Limited Partners.  The General Partner and the 
Accountant shall prepare this estimate. 

8.4.6 Tax Information Required by Partnership Representative.  The 
General Partner shall deliver, or shall cause the Accountant to deliver, to the Partnership 
Representative, within the timeframes established by the Partnership Representative 
pursuant to its obligations under Section 6.12 hereof and the Code and Regulations, all 
information and documentation required by the Partnership Representative for the 
performance of its duties as Partnership Representative under Section 6.12 hereof and 
the Code and Regulations. 

Section 8.5 Review of Compliance. 

8.5.1 The General Partner shall, seventy-five (75) days after the end of 
each Fiscal Year of the Partnership, certify to the Asset Manager in the same scope and 
manner that it is required to certify, if requested, to the applicable State Housing Finance 
Agency, that the Partnership is in compliance with all regulations and procedures 
relating to the operation of the Project as a qualified Tax Credit project within the 
meaning of Section 42(h) of the Code.  Upon initial lease-up of the Project and 
thereafter, but no more frequently than annually, the Limited Partner may, at the 
Partnership’s expense, conduct or cause to be conducted an audit or review (which may 
include an on-site inspection of the Project) of the Partnership’s compliance with all 
regulations and procedures relating to the operation of the Project as a qualified Tax 

147



-98- 
60187061.1 

Credit project within the meaning of Section 42(h) of the Code.  This audit or review 
will be conducted not less than thirty (30) nor more than ninety (90) days following a 
written request by the Limited Partner for such audit or review.  The General Partner 
shall cooperate with any such audit by making appropriate personnel of the General 
Partner and the Property Management Agent and all books and records (including, 
without limitation, copies of initial tenant files, any IRS Forms 8823 issued to the 
Partnership, and other applicable related documents and reports) of the Project and 
Partnership available to the Limited Partner or its representatives at the offices of the 
Partnership during regular business hours. 

8.5.2 The General Partner shall, within thirty (30) days following 
achievement of Qualified Occupancy, deliver to the Asset Manager one or more 
electronic files containing scanned copies of the First Year Tenant Files. 

8.5.3 The General Partner shall provide access to the Project at all 
reasonable times and upon reasonable advance notice and shall extend full cooperation 
to the Asset Manager in connection with such physical inspections of the Project and 
any records as the Asset Manager may wish to conduct in order to monitor the General 
Partner’s performance of its obligations under this Partnership Agreement. 

Section 8.6 Failure to Provide Information. 

8.6.1 Failure by the General Partner to provide the reports required under 
this Article 8 will result in the assessment of a $100 per day penalty, due and payable to 
the Limited Partner, until the reports are received in a form that is acceptable to the 
Limited Partner.  This penalty will not be applicable if (i) waived by the Limited Partner, 
or (ii) the required information is received within seven (7) Business Days of receipt of 
a written notice of demand from the Limited Partner. 

8.6.2 If the General Partner fails to provide in a timely manner any 
information, report or data required to be provided by the General Partner under this 
Article 8, or otherwise fails to perform its obligations under this Article 8, then, in 
addition to any other remedies the Limited Partner may have under this Partnership 
Agreement or applicable law, the Partnership shall not make any distributions or 
payments to the General Partner pursuant to Section 5.1 or Section 5.2 hereof until such 
time as such information, report, or data have been provided or such other obligations 
have been fulfilled. 

8.6.3 Regardless of whether the penalties are paid or waived, the Limited 
Partner shall have the right to require the General Partner to remove the Accountant and 
the right to approve or identify a replacement accountant if any of the above applicable 
reporting requirements are not met.  The failure on the part of the General Partner to 
remove the Accountant and replace it with an accounting firm that is acceptable to the 
Limited Partner within thirty (30) days of a written request to do so from the Limited 
Partner shall be an Event of Default under Section 10.6.1 hereof. 

148



-99- 
60187061.1 

8.6.4 If the General Partner causes or suffers repeated or unreasonable 
delay in providing any reports or information required to be submitted to the Limited 
Partner under Article 8, and fails to provide such report or information within ten (10) 
Business Days after receiving notice of such delay from the Limited Partner, such delay 
shall constitute an Event of Default under Section 10.6.1 hereof. 

  

149



-100- 
60187061.1 

ARTICLE 9: TRANSFER OF LIMITED PARTNER’S PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS 

Section 9.1 Voluntary Transfers.  A Limited Partner may at any time make a 
Voluntary Transfer of all or any part of its Partnership Interest, so long as such Voluntary Transfer 
complies with the following conditions:  (i) the General Partner has received a written instrument 
of transfer of all such Partnership Interest, which instrument shall be signed by the transferor 
Limited Partner and the transferee and shall contain the name and address of the transferee and the 
transferee’s express acceptance of and agreement to be bound by all of the terms and conditions 
of this Partnership Agreement; (ii) all requirements of applicable state and federal securities laws, 
if any, have been complied with; (iii) such Voluntary Transfer will not result in the Partnership’s 
loss of any exemption (federal or state) from the registration of the sale of securities relied upon 
in its offering of the Partnership Interest; and (iv) such Voluntary Transfer will not result in the 
Partnership being classified as an “association” which is taxable as a corporation for federal 
income tax purposes.  Upon compliance with all of the conditions of this Section 9.1, such 
Voluntary Transfer of a Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest binds the Partnership and the 
General Partner.  No such transfer may cause the dissolution and termination (other than tax 
termination) of the Partnership and the transferee shall automatically be deemed to be an Assignee 
with respect to such Partnership Interest. If any transfer of a Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest, 
including the transfer of beneficial interests, results in a tax termination of the Partnership, the 
Limited Partner shall be responsible for the cost of preparing and filing any additional tax returns. 

9.1.1 The Limited Partner intends to either (i) hold only bare legal title to 
its Partnership Interest and will ultimately transfer beneficial interests in its Partnership 
Interest to one or more Persons, or (ii) ultimately transfer its Partnership Interest to an 
investment fund managed by an Affiliate of the Limited Partner and transfer partner or 
member interests in such fund to one or more Persons, and in either case, the Limited 
Partner or such Persons or investment fund may also sell, transfer, or, as security for 
debt, assign or pledge such beneficial interests, Partnership Interest or partner or 
member interests in the investment fund without the consent of the General Partner.  
Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 9.1, the General Partner hereby 
acknowledges and consents to any such transfers, assignments or pledges, and agrees 
that, upon any such transfer or any foreclosure or other enforcement under any such 
assignment or pledge, it will recognize the assignee of the (a) beneficial interests as the 
owner of such beneficial interests in the Partnership Interest, or (b) Partnership Interest 
as the Substituted Limited Partner. 

9.1.2 Transfers by Limited Partner of its Partnership Interest, including 
beneficial interests, directly to a Prohibited Actor shall require General Partner’s written 
consent.  “Prohibited Actor” shall mean any Person that (i) is the subject of any 
conviction, order, judgment, decree, suspension, expulsion, or bar with respect to any 
program administered by a State Housing Finance Agency from participating in any 
such program, or (ii) has instituted an unsuccessful lawsuit against a developer of an 
Affordable Housing Project or a syndicator investing in such Affordable Housing 
Project, for the purpose of, or having the effect of, prohibiting a developer of an 
Affordable Housing Project from exercising said developer’s rights under (x) an option 
to purchase an Affordable Housing Project or an investor’s interest in the owner of an 
Affordable Housing Project and/or (y) a right of first refusal to purchase an Affordable 

150



-101- 
60187061.1 

Housing Project if such Person is not a bank, savings and loan association, insurance 
company, public utility, or employee benefit plan with assets greater than 
$1,000,000,000 (an “Institutional Investor”) or a Person controlled by an Institutional 
Investor.  “Affordable Housing Project” shall mean any affordable housing project that 
is or has benefited from Tax Credits. 

Section 9.2 General Partner’s Consent to Substitution as a Limited Partner. 

9.2.1 In addition to the requirements set forth in Section 9.1, an Assignee 
of a Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest in connection with a Voluntary Transfer, 
other than an assignee of a beneficial interest, will not become a Substituted Limited 
Partner, unless and until the General Partner consents in writing to such substitution, 
which consent may not be unreasonably withheld and is hereby granted for the transfers, 
assignments and pledges described in Section 9.1.1, provided that no such consent shall 
be required for the (i) substitution of an Assignee that is an Affiliate of the Limited 
Partner, or (ii) any transfer by the Limited Partner of its Partnership Interest after its 
Capital Contribution has been paid in full.  The General Partner shall duly file for record 
any required amendment to the Certificate of Limited Partnership reflecting such 
substitution in such public offices as shall be required under the Act.  The effective date 
of the substitution of the Assignee as a Substituted Limited Partner shall be the date on 
which the General Partner provides its consent if required or the date of the assignment 
to such Affiliated Assignee, as the case may be. 

9.2.2 If the General Partner’s consent is required but the General Partner 
does not consent to the substitution of an Assignee of a Limited Partner’s Partnership 
Interest in connection with a Voluntary Transfer, then the transferor Limited Partner 
retains all the rights of a transferor of a limited partnership interest under the Act and, 
except as otherwise provided in Section 9.4, the Assignee shall not be treated as owning 
any interest in the Partnership.  In particular, an Assignee of a Limited Partner’s 
Partnership Interest in connection with a Voluntary Transfer, other than an assignee of 
a beneficial interest, who is not admitted as a Substituted Limited Partner under this 
Section 9.2 shall not be entitled to:  (i) require any accounting of the Partnership’s 
transactions; (ii) inspect the Partnership’s books and records; (iii) require any 
information from the Partnership; or (iv) exercise any privilege or right of a Limited 
Partner that is not specifically granted to a nonsubstituted transferee of a limited 
partnership interest under the Act. 

Section 9.3 Involuntary Transfers.  The Involuntary Transfer of all or any part of any 
Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest will not cause the dissolution and termination of the 
Partnership, but rather the business of the Partnership is continued without interruption in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section 9.3.  Upon an Involuntary Transfer of all or any part 
of any Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest, such Limited Partner’s successor or legal 
representative shall automatically be deemed to be a Substituted Limited Partner. 

Section 9.4 Distributions and Allocations with Respect to Transferred Partnership 
Interests.  Upon any transfer (whether a Voluntary Transfer or Involuntary Transfer recognized 
by the Partnership or other transfer) of the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest under this 

151



-102- 
60187061.1 

Article 9, all allocations of Profits and Losses attributable to the transferred Partnership Interest 
shall be divided and allocated between the transferor and the transferee by taking into account their 
varying interests during such fiscal period, using any convention or method of allocation selected 
by the General Partner which is then permitted under Section 706 of the Code and the Regulations 
promulgated thereunder.  All distributions of Cash Flow made prior to the effective date of any 
such transfer shall be made to the transferor and any such distributions made after the effective 
date of such transfer shall be made to the transferee. 

Section 9.5 Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal.  The Partnership, as grantor, 
and Sponsor, as grantee (“Grantee”), shall execute that certain Purchase Option and Right of First 
Refusal Agreement dated on or about the date hereof (the “Purchase Option and Right of First 
Refusal Agreement”), pursuant to which the Partnership has granted to Grantee an option to 
purchase the Project or the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest and a right of first refusal to 
purchase the Project, on the terms and conditions set forth therein, provided that the General 
Partner remains in good standing as General Partner without the occurrence of any event described 
in Section 10.6 hereof, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 9.6 Disposition of Project.  A sale of the Project by the General Partner shall 
cause the dissolution and liquidation of the Partnership only if required by the provisions of 
Article 11 hereof.  Upon any sale of the Project (which term, as used in this Section 9.6, shall 
include any portion of the Project containing one or more rental units and any related assets or 
business of the Partnership), the net proceeds thereof shall be distributed in accordance with 
Section 5.2 or Section 11.2 hereof, as applicable.  Except as specifically provided in the Purchase 
Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement or this Section 9.6, the General Partner shall not sell 
the Project or the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest without the prior written consent of the 
Limited Partner. 

Section 9.7 Put Right. Commencing upon the expiration or termination of the options 
and right of first refusal to purchase the Project or Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest granted 
in the Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement, the Limited Partner shall have the 
right to require the General Partner to purchase the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest (the “Put 
Right”) for a purchase price of One Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($100.00) (the “Purchase Price”), 
plus any unpaid obligations owed to the Limited Partner and the Asset Manager under this 
Partnership Agreement, including, but not limited to, repayment of outstanding loans made by the 
Limited Partner to the Partnership and any credit adjuster payments pursuant to Section 6.9 of the 
Partnership Agreement.  The Put Right may be exercised by the Limited Partner by giving written 
notice to the General Partner at any time after the expiration or termination of the options and right 
of first refusal to purchase the Project or Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest granted in the 
Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement.  In the event that the Limited Partner 
exercises its Put Right pursuant to this Section 9.7, the Purchase Price shall be paid to the Limited 
Partner in cash or immediately available funds, unless otherwise mutually agreed, at a closing to 
occur on the first Business Day following the date that is thirty (30) days after the Limited Partner 
has given notice to the General Partner of the exercise of the Put Right.  All costs of the purchase 
of the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest pursuant to this Section 9.7 shall be paid by the 
General Partner, including, without limitation, any transfer taxes charged by any taxing authority 
in connection with the Put Right.  Upon receipt of the Purchase Price, the Limited Partner shall 
transfer the Partnership Interest free and clear of any liens, charges, encumbrances or interests of 

152



-103- 
60187061.1 

any third party and shall execute or cause to be executed any documents required to fully transfer 
such Partnership Interest.  As of the effective date of such closing, the Limited Partner shall have 
no further interest in the Partnership. 

Section 9.8 Intentionally Omitted. 

Section 9.9 Warehouse Lender.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this 
Article or any other provision of this Partnership Agreement: 

9.9.1 The General Partner acknowledges and consents to (i) the Limited 
Partner’s pledge and collateral assignment of its Partnership Interest (the “LP Pledge”) 
to the Warehouse Lender; 

9.9.2 The Warehouse Lender shall have the rights of a secured party to 
retain, sell or transfer the Partnership Interest so pledged in accordance with the LP 
Pledge, including, without limitation, the right to transfer or assign its rights hereunder 
and under the LP Pledge without the consent of the Partnership, any Partner or any other 
Person, subject only to  Section 9.9.6; 

9.9.3 Upon the enforcement of the LP Pledge and the foreclosure upon the 
Partnership Interest pledged thereunder, the Warehouse Lender (or its nominee or 
transferee) shall be immediately, automatically and unconditionally admitted as a 
Substituted Limited Partner, subject only to Section 9.9.6; 

9.9.4 Neither the Partnership nor any Partner shall cause the Partnership 
Interest to be or become, a “security”, “investment property” or held in a “securities 
account” (within the meaning of Articles 8 and 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code of 
the State (the “UCC”)) and the Partnership Interest will be, and will remain, “general 
intangibles” within the meaning of Article 9 of the UCC, and any action by the 
Partnership or any Partner to cause any of the Partnership Interest to be deemed to be or 
to be treated other than as general intangibles within the meanings of Article 9 of the 
UCC shall be void and of no effect; 

9.9.5 The Partnership and the Partners agree (i) to notify the Warehouse 
Lender in writing at the applicable addresses provided in the definition of “Warehouse 
Lender” of any default by the Limited Partner of any of its obligations hereunder, (ii) to 
refrain from exercising any rights or remedies as a result of such default (whether 
hereunder or otherwise at law or in equity) until the Warehouse Lender has received 
such notice and has been given 60 days to cure such default, and (iii) that the Warehouse 
Lender can cure such default by paying only those portions of the Limited Partner’s 
Capital Contribution for which the conditions to payment set forth in Sections 3.2 have 
then been satisfied; 

9.9.6 The Warehouse Lender’s rights hereunder are subject to compliance 
with all HUD requirements regarding transfer of physical assets and submission and 
approval of a HUD Prior Participation Certificate, and/or obtaining the State Housing 
Finance Agency’s written consent if required; and 

153



-104- 
60187061.1 

9.9.7 So long as the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest continues to be 
“Pledged Collateral” under the LP Pledge, any amendment to (i) this section, (ii) any 
other provision herein which would materially affect the Warehouse Lender’s rights and 
priorities under the LP Pledge, or (iii) the identity of the Asset Manager, the Asset 
Management Fee, the Disposition Fee or any other fee payable to the Asset Manager, or 
the terms of payment thereof, shall require the prior written consent of the Warehouse 
Lender. 

9.9.8 The Warehouse Lender is an intended third party beneficiary of this 
Section. 

Section 9.10 Voluntary Withdrawal.  Notwithstanding anything in this Article 9 to the 
contrary, the Limited Partner shall have the right to withdraw from the Partnership without the 
General Partner’s consent at any time after the Limited Partner has paid in full its Capital 
Contribution.  The Limited Partner shall provide the General Partner with ten (10) days’ prior 
written notice of the effective date of such withdrawal.  At the Limited Partner’s request, the 
General Partner shall cooperate with the Limited Partner by taking such actions as the Limited 
Partner determines are necessary or advisable in order to effectuate such withdrawal. 

ARTICLE 10: TRANSFER OF GENERAL PARTNER’S PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS 

Section 10.1 Voluntary Transfers. 

10.1.1 Subject to the provisions of the Subordinate Cash Flow Loan 
Documents, The Partnership shall not recognize any Voluntary Transfer of a General 
Partner’s Partnership Interest and any such attempted Voluntary Transfer shall be 
invalid and ineffective as to the Partnership and the Limited Partner, unless and until:  
(i) the proposed transfer is of all the Partnership Interest owned by such General Partner; 
(ii) the Limited Partner has received a written instrument of transfer of all such 
Partnership Interest, which instrument shall be signed by the General Partner and the 
transferee and shall contain the name and address of the transferee and the transferee’s 
express acceptance of an agreement to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of 
this Partnership Agreement; (iii) the General Partner has paid or caused to be paid all 
costs related to such Voluntary Transfer, including, without limitation, the 
reimbursement of all legal fees and expenses incurred by the Partnership in connection 
with such transfer; (iv) such Voluntary Transfer will not result in the termination of the 
Partnership for federal income tax purposes; (v) such Voluntary Transfer will not result 
in the Partnership being classified as an “association” which is taxable as a corporation 
for federal income tax purposes; (vi) the Partnership receives an opinion of legal counsel 
to the effect of clause (v); and (vii) the Limited Partner has consented in writing to such 
Voluntary Transfer, which consent may be withheld or given, in the sole discretion of 
the Limited Partner. 

10.1.2 Upon compliance with this Section 10.1, such transfer of a General 
Partner’s Partnership Interest shall bind the Partnership and all the Limited Partners and 
no such Voluntary Transfer shall cause the termination of the Partnership.  In addition, 
effective as of the date of full compliance with the requirements of this Section 10.1, the 

154



-105- 
60187061.1 

transferee of a General Partner’s Partnership Interest shall be admitted as a new General 
Partner of the Partnership and shall be vested with all the powers and obligations with 
respect to the management of the Partnership as are granted to and placed upon the 
transferor General Partner under this Partnership Agreement. 

Section 10.2 Involuntary Transfers.  An Involuntary Transfer of a General Partner’s 
Partnership Interest at such time as there is more than one General Partner shall not dissolve the 
Partnership, but rather the business of the Partnership shall be continued without interruption and 
all of the management powers and authority granted herein to the General Partner making such 
Involuntary Transfer shall automatically be placed upon the remaining General Partner(s), unless 
the Limited Partner otherwise elects within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of such 
Involuntary Transfer to dissolve the Partnership and have the Partnership’s affairs and business 
wound up and terminated pursuant to Article 11.  An Involuntary Transfer of a General Partner’s 
Partnership Interest when there is no other General Partner in existence shall dissolve the 
Partnership and the Partnership’s affairs and business shall be wound up and terminated under 
Article 11, unless the Limited Partner agrees in writing to the continuation of the business of the 
Partnership and the appointment of a new General Partner pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 10.3. 

Section 10.3 Continuation of Partnership After Involuntary Transfer of General 
Partner’s Partnership Interests.  Upon an Involuntary Transfer of the last remaining General 
Partner’s Partnership Interest, the Partnership will dissolve and the affairs and business of the 
Partnership will be wound up and terminated under Article 11, unless within ninety (90) days after 
the occurrence of such Involuntary Transfer, the Limited Partner agrees in writing to the 
continuation of the business of the Partnership and the appointment of a new General Partner.  
Unless such an election is made within such 90 day period, the Partnership may conduct only those 
activities that are necessary to wind up and terminate its affairs and business.  If such an election 
is made within such 90 day period, then:  (a) the reconstituted partnership will continue until the 
end of the term of the Partnership’s existence set forth in this Partnership Agreement; and 
(b) immediately upon its receipt of cash in an amount equal to the greater of (1) $100 or (2) the 
then positive balance in its Capital Account, the former General Partner is automatically (and 
without the need for the execution of any further documentation) deemed to have relinquished its 
entire Partnership Interest, with such relinquished Partnership Interest being automatically 
allocated to the new General Partner. 

Section 10.4 Distributions and Allocations with Respect to Transferred Partnership 
Interests.  If any transfer (whether a Voluntary or Involuntary Transfer) of a General Partner’s 
Partnership Interest is recognized by the Partnership under this Article 10, then all allocations of 
Profits and Losses attributable to the transferred Partnership Interest are divided and allocated 
between the transferor and the transferee by taking into account their varying interests during such 
fiscal period, using any convention or method of allocation selected by the Limited Partner which 
is then permitted under Section 706 of the Code and the Regulations promulgated thereunder.  Any 
distributions of Cash Flow made prior to the effective date of any such transfer are made to the 
transferor and any such distributions made after the effective date of such transfer shall be made 
to the transferee.  Neither the Partnership nor the Limited Partner will incur any liability for making 
allocations and distributions in accordance with the provisions of this Section 10.4. 

155



-106- 
60187061.1 

Section 10.5 Voluntary Withdrawal.  A General Partner may not voluntarily withdraw 
from the Partnership without the prior written consent of the Limited Partner. 

Section 10.6 Removal of General Partner.  The Limited Partner may remove the 
General Partner, or at its election any individual General Partner if there is more than one General 
Partner, for the occurrence of any of the following events (each an “Event of Default”): 

10.6.1 Events of Default. 

(i) Any fraud, gross negligence, malfeasance or intentional misconduct 
of the General Partner; or 

(ii) Any act by the General Partner outside the scope of its duties or 
obligations under this Partnership Agreement or any breach by the General Partner 
of any fiduciary duty to the Partnership or the Limited Partner; or 

(iii) The breach of any representation or warranty of the General Partner 
contained in this Partnership Agreement, including, without limitation, those 
contained in Section 6.3 hereof that has a material adverse effect on the Partnership, 
the Limited Partner or the Project; or 

(iv) The breach by the General Partner of any covenant of the General 
Partner contained in this Partnership Agreement, including without limitation those 
contained in Section 6.3 hereof that has a material adverse effect on the Partnership, 
the Limited Partner or the Project; or 

(v) Any action or inaction by the Partnership, General Partner or any 
Affiliate of the General Partner that does, or with the passage of time would, 
(a) cause the termination of the Partnership for federal income tax purposes (except 
to the extent such action is expressly authorized herein), (b) cause the Partnership 
to be treated for federal income tax purposes as an association taxable as a 
corporation, (c) violate any applicable federal or state securities laws (as they relate 
to the Partnership or the Partnership Interest), (d) cause the Partnership to fail to 
qualify as a limited partnership under the Act, (e) cause the Limited Partner to be 
liable for Partnership obligations in excess of its Capital Contribution, (f) qualify 
as an event of removal or withdrawal with respect to the General Partner under the 
Act, or (g) otherwise substantially reduce tax benefits or substantially increase tax 
liabilities of the Limited Partner and otherwise is not cured by payments made 
pursuant to Section 6.9 hereof; or 

(vi) Any construction cost overruns or Operating Deficits are incurred 
by the Partnership and such cost overruns and Operating Deficits are not funded by 
loans or other sources of funds that are acceptable to the Limited Partner and are 
on terms that do not adversely affect the Projections or financial viability of the 
Project or the Partnership; or 

(vii) A material default occurs under the Construction Loan Subordinate 
Cash Flow Loan, or any Project Documents and such default is not cured or waived 

156



-107- 
60187061.1 

by the Lender (or other applicable non-defaulting party) within thirty (30) days after 
the occurrence of such default, or if such default takes more than thirty (30) days 
to cure, the General Partner has failed to commence diligent efforts to effect a cure 
within such thirty (30) day period and diligently pursue such remedies until the 
default is fully cured (it being acknowledged and agreed that an Event of Default 
under this subsection (vii) exists independently of an Event of Default under 
subsection (ix) hereof and does not merge with subsection (ix) if a foreclosure or 
other creditor’s action is filed in connection with the Construction Loan or 
Subordinate Cash Flow Loans); or 

(viii) The Project or the Partnership is substantially mismanaged and such 
mismanagement has a material adverse effect on the Partnership, the Project, or the 
Limited Partner; or 

(ix) Any Lender to the Partnership or other creditor of the Partnership 
files a foreclosure or other creditor’s action for exercise of control over the Project 
or the rents therefrom, or the filing of a bankruptcy petition or similar creditor’s 
action by or against the Partnership and any such action is not dismissed within 
thirty (30) days; or 

(x) The Partnership fails to deliver 80% of Projected Tax Credits   to 
the Limited Partner with respect to any calendar year; or 

(xi) The General Partner fails to timely and promptly discharge and 
replace the Property Management Agent in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 6.4.9(iv) hereof; or 

(xii) The General Partner fails to timely and promptly remove the 
Accountant and replace it with an accountant that is approved by the Limited 
Partner in accordance with the requirements of Section 8.6.3 hereof; or 

(xiii) Any payment required to be made to the Limited Partner or the 
Partnership by the General Partner pursuant to Sections 4.2.14, 6.4.6(i), 6.4.6(ii),  
and 6.9 is not timely made by or on behalf of the General Partner or any guarantor 
of such obligation; or 

(xiv) The occurrence of an “Event of Default” under the Guaranty 
Agreement; or 

(xv) A General Partner transfers a controlling interest in itself without 
the consent of the Limited Partner as required in Section 6.3.30 of this Partnership 
Agreement; or 

(xvi) The occurrence of an Event of Default as described in Section 8.6.4; 
or 

(xvii) The commencement by a General Partner or a Guarantor of a 
proceeding in bankruptcy or insolvency seeking a compromise, adjustment or other 

157



-108- 
60187061.1 

relief under the laws of the United States or of any state relating to the relief of 
debtors; or 

(xviii) The failure of the General Partner or a Guarantor to obtain the 
dismissal of any case commenced against a General Partner or a Guarantor (i) for 
the appointment of a trustee for such General Partner or Guarantor, or any of its 
property or (ii) in bankruptcy or insolvency or for compromise adjustment or other 
relief under the laws of the United States or any state relating to the relief of debtors; 
or 

(xix) During the Compliance Period, if at any time the General Partner 
has operated the Project in a manner such as that 20% or more of the Tax Credit 
Units fail to qualify for the Tax Credits; or 

(xx) The use by the General Partner of any funds in any of the reserves 
described in Section 6.4.7 above for purposes other than permitted therein; or 

(xxi) The failure of the Partnership Representative or the Designated 
Individual to perform or observe any of the covenants, terms and conditions to be 
performed or observed by the Partnership Representative or the Designated 
Individual, respectively, under Section 6.12 hereof; or 

(xxii)  The commencement of, or the filing of a request by a governmental 
body for, a voluntary or involuntary appointment of a receiver of the Project for 
any violation of Law, including, but not limited to a health, safety or building code 
violation; or 

10.6.2 Effectiveness.  Prior to removing and replacing the General Partner 
for an Event of Default, the Limited Partner shall give the General Partner reasonable 
prior written notice setting forth in detail the Event of Default(s) providing the basis for 
such possible removal and a reasonable opportunity (as determined by the Limited 
Partner in its discretion) to cure such default(s), provided that no opportunity to cure 
such default(s) shall be given where the extent or nature of the default is such that there 
is a likelihood of material loss, liability, or prejudice to the Partnership or the Limited 
Partner, or both, from any delay in removal and replacement.  If the grounds for removal 
justify an immediate removal under the preceding sentence, such removal shall be 
effective upon the delivery of a notice thereof to the specified address in accordance 
with Section 12.1 hereof.  Under all other circumstances, such removal shall be effective 
only after: 

(i) failure by the General Partner to cure the default(s) set forth in the 
notice of removal within the prescribed cure period, if any, 

(ii) a decision by the Limited Partner, in its sole discretion, to remove 
the General Partner, and 

158



-109- 
60187061.1 

(iii) the Limited Partner provides the General Partner with written notice 
of its removal as General Partner, which notice shall specify the date on which such 
removal shall become effective. 

Notwithstanding such removal, the General Partner shall remain liable to the Partnership 
and the Limited Partner for (i) all obligations and liabilities (including, without 
limitation, its obligations to make any payments pursuant to Sections 6.4.6(i), 6.4.6(ii), 
and Section 6.9 of this Partnership Agreement and liabilities resulting from any breach 
of any of the representations and warranties set forth in Section 6.3 of this Partnership 
Agreement) incurred by it as a General Partner before the effective date of such removal 
but is free of any obligations and liabilities incurred on account of Partnership activities 
from and after the time of such removal and (ii) all damages and other amounts 
recoverable or payable hereunder or under applicable law by or to the Partnership or the 
Limited Partner as a result of the occurrence of the event giving rise to such removal.  
From and after delivery of notice of such removal, except as otherwise expressly 
provided in Section 6.5.6, the Partnership shall have no obligation to make any further 
payments to the General Partner or its Affiliates for fees that would otherwise be due 
and payable pursuant to this Partnership Agreement, any other agreement entered into 
by the Partnership and the General Partner or any Affiliate thereof, or in connection with 
the performance of the General Partner’s obligations hereunder. 

10.6.3 Waiver.  Any forbearance by the Limited Partner in exercising any 
right or remedy under this Section 10.6 or any other provision in this Partnership 
Agreement or otherwise afforded by applicable law, shall not be a waiver of or preclude 
the exercise of any other right or remedy, or the subsequent exercise of any right or 
remedy.  The enforcement by the Limited Partner of any right herein shall not constitute 
an election by the Limited Partner of remedies so as to preclude the exercise of any other 
right available to the Limited Partner. 

Section 10.7 Nominee’s Enforcement Powers.  If the Limited Partner holds bare legal 
title, as nominee, to its Partnership Interest and transfers the beneficial interests in the Limited 
Partner’s Partnership Interest to one or more Persons, the General Partner hereby acknowledges 
and agrees that the Limited Partner, in its capacity as nominee, shall be entitled to exercise all 
rights and remedies reserved to the Limited Partner under this Partnership Agreement, including 
without limitation, the right to bring any legal action to enforce the General Partner’s obligations 
hereunder. 

ARTICLE 11: DISSOLUTION, WINDING UP AND TERMINATION 

Section 11.1 Dissolution.  The Partnership will dissolve upon the occurrence of any of 
the following events: 

11.1.1 The expiration of the term of the Partnership’s existence; 

11.1.2 The sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the 
Partnership Property and the Partnership’s receipt of all or substantially all of the 
proceeds therefrom; 

159



-110- 
60187061.1 

11.1.3 The Partners’ mutual election to dissolve the Partnership; 

11.1.4 The Limited Partner’s election to dissolve the Partnership made at 
any time that is more than three years after the end of the Compliance Period; 

11.1.5 The failure of the Limited Partner to agree in writing at the time and 
in the manner provided in Section 10.3 hereof to the continuation of the business of the 
Partnership and the appointment of a new General Partner upon the occurrence of an 
Involuntary Transfer of the last remaining General Partner’s Partnership Interest or the 
removal of the General Partner; or 

11.1.6 The Limited Partner’s election pursuant to Section 10.2 hereof to 
dissolve the Partnership upon the occurrence of an Involuntary Transfer of a General 
Partner’s Partnership Interest, notwithstanding the fact that one or more other General 
Partner is in existence at such time. 

11.1.7 The Limited Partner’s withdrawal pursuant to Section 9.8 or exercise 
of its put right pursuant to Section 9.9, unless the General Partner admits one or more 
substitute limited partners to the Partnership within ninety (90) days after the Limited 
Partner’s withdrawal or exercise of its put right. 

Section 11.2 Winding Up and Termination.  Upon the dissolution of the Partnership, 
the affairs and business of the Partnership will be wound up and terminated, the Partnership’s 
liabilities discharged and the Partnership Property liquidated and distributed in the manner 
hereinafter described.  A reasonable time will be allowed for the orderly winding up of the affairs 
and business of the Partnership so as to enable the Partnership to minimize the normal losses 
attendant to the winding up and termination period.  The winding up and termination of the affairs 
and business of the Partnership shall be supervised and conducted by the Liquidation Manager.  
The Liquidation Manager has the exclusive power and authority to act on behalf of the Partnership 
to wind up and terminate the affairs and business of the Partnership, to sell and convey the 
Partnership Property to such Persons (including, without limitation, any Partner or any Affiliate 
thereof) for such consideration and upon such terms and conditions as it deems necessary or 
appropriate, to discharge the Partnership’s liabilities, to establish any reserves that it deems 
necessary or appropriate for any contingent or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the 
Partnership, and to distribute the liquidation proceeds in the manner hereinafter described. 

Upon completion of the winding up of the affairs and business of the Partnership, the 
liquidation proceeds will be distributed by the Liquidation Manager in the following manner and 
order of priority: 

11.2.1 First, such liquidation proceeds will be applied to the payment of 
debts and liabilities of the Partnership (excluding any Partner loans, including, without 
limitation, any loans the General Partner or its Affiliates made pursuant to 
Section 6.4.6(i) and/or 6.4.6(ii) hereof and the Guaranty Agreement, and any unpaid 
Development Fee) and the payment of expenses of the winding up of the affairs and 
business of the Partnership; 

160



-111- 
60187061.1 

11.2.2 Second, such liquidation proceeds will be applied to the setting up of 
any reserves (to be held by the Liquidation Manager in an interest bearing account) 
which the Liquidation Manager may deem necessary or appropriate for any contingent 
or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the Partnership, provided that at the expiration 
of such time as the Liquidation Manager deems necessary or appropriate, the balance of 
such reserves remaining after payment of such liabilities or obligations will be 
distributed by the Liquidation Manager in the manner hereinafter set forth in this 
Section 11.2; and 

11.2.3 Third, such liquidation proceeds will be paid to satisfy debts and 
liabilities owed to Partners and their Affiliates described in Section 5.2.1 hereof and in 
accordance with the priority set forth therein; and 

11.2.4 Fourth, such liquidation proceeds will be distributed in compliance 
with Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(b)(2) of the Regulations to the Partners in accordance 
with their positive Capital Accounts, after giving effect to all contributions, distributions 
and allocations for all periods, including, without limitation, the allocations to be made 
under Section 4.2.13 hereof. 

Section 11.3 Compliance with Liquidation Requirements of Regulations.  If the 
Partnership is “liquidated” within the meaning of 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g) of the Regulations, then: 

11.3.1 Distributions will be made pursuant to Section 11.2 hereof (if such 
“liquidation” constitutes a dissolution and termination of the Partnership) to the Partners 
who have positive balances in their Capital Accounts in compliance with Section 1.704-
1(b)(2)(ii)(b)(2) of the Regulations; 

11.3.2 If a General Partner has a deficit balance in its Capital Account (after 
giving effect to all contributions, distributions and allocations for all taxable years, 
including, without limitation, the taxable year in which such liquidation occurs), then 
such General Partner will contribute to the capital of the Partnership the amount 
necessary to restore the balance in its Capital Account to zero;  

11.3.3 In addition to the obligations provided in Section 3.2.8, if a Limited 
Partner has a deficit balance in its Capital Account (after giving effect to all 
contributions, distributions and allocations for all taxable years, including, without 
limitation, the taxable year in which such liquidation occurs), then such Limited Partner 
will contribute to the capital of the Partnership the lesser of (1) such deficit balance in 
its Capital Account or (2) the limited dollar amount, if any, of its Capital Account deficit 
which the Limited Partner has expressly agreed in writing to restore to the capital of the 
Partnership pursuant to Section 11.4 hereof; and 

11.3.4 Any such contribution by a Partner shall be made on or before the 
later of (1) the end of the taxable year of the “liquidation” or (2) ninety (90) days after 
the date of the “liquidation”. 

The Partners intend that upon dissolution and liquidation of the Partnership at any time 
following the end of the fifteenth (15th) year of the Compliance Period, the remaining assets of the 

161



-112- 
60187061.1 

Partnership will be distributed in accordance with Section 5.2.2 of this Agreement.  It is the intent 
of the Partners that, upon liquidation of the Partnership in any year following the end of the 
Compliance Period, any liquidation proceeds available for distribution to the Partners pursuant to 
Section 5.2.2 be distributed in accordance with the Partners’ respective positive Capital Account 
balances.  In the event that the positive capital accounts anticipated, upon liquidation, would 
conflict with the intent of the Partners with respect to distribution of proceeds as provided in 
Section 5.2.2, the General Partner may, if necessary to ensure that upon the anticipated liquidation 
date the distribution of proceeds will reflect the split set forth in Section 5.2.2, starting in any year 
after the end of the Compliance Period, notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 4.1 and 4.2 (but 
after all of the allocations provided for in Sections 4.2.2 - 4.2.13 shall have been made) allocate 
the Partnership’s gains, profits and losses (including, without limitation, gross income) in a manner 
that will, as nearly as possible, cause the distribution of liquidation proceeds to the Partners to be 
in accordance both with the Partners’ economic expectations as set forth in 5.2.2 and their 
respective Capital Account balances.  If the Partnership’s gains, profits and losses (including, 
without limitation, gross income) are insufficient to cause the Partners’ Capital Accounts to be in 
such amounts as will permit liquidation proceeds to be distributed both in accordance with the 
Partners’ respective positive Capital Account balances and Section 5.2.2, then liquidation proceeds 
shall be distributed in accordance with the Partners’ respective positive Capital Account balances 
after the allocations described herein have been made. 

Section 11.4 Rights and Obligations of Limited Partner Upon Dissolution.  Except as 
otherwise expressly provided in Section 11.3.2 hereof, the Limited Partner shall look solely to the 
assets of the Partnership for the return of its Capital Contribution.  Except as otherwise elected by 
the Limited Partner pursuant to this Section 11.4, the Limited Partner shall not have any obligation 
to restore any deficit in its Capital Account upon the liquidation of the Partnership.  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Partnership Agreement, the Limited 
Partner may from time to time elect to be obligated to restore a deficit in its Capital Account up to 
a limited dollar amount.  Such election shall be made by the Limited Partner’s delivery of a written 
notice of election to the General Partner no later than March 15 following the taxable year for 
which such election is to be effective and shall specify the dollar amount of the deficit in its Capital 
Account that the Limited Partner agrees to restore.  Such election shall be irrevocable and shall be 
binding on subsequent transferees of the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest. 

Section 11.5 Waiver of Partition.  Each Partner hereby waives any right to partition or 
cause a partition of the Partnership Property. 

Section 11.6 Final Accounting.  The Liquidation Manager shall furnish each of the 
Partners with a statement setting forth the assets and liabilities of the Partnership as of the date of 
the completion of the winding up and termination of the affairs and business of the Partnership.  
Upon completion of the distribution plan set forth in this Article 11, the Liquidation Manager shall 
cause to be executed by the appropriate parties and filed in such public offices as shall be required 
under the Act a cancellation of the Certificate of Limited Partnership, or any amendment thereto, 
of the Partnership and any and all other documents which the Liquidation Manager deems 
necessary or appropriate to effect the dissolution and termination of the Partnership. 

  

162



-113- 
60187061.1 

ARTICLE 12: MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 12.1 Notices and Addresses.  All notices, consents, demands, requests, or other 
communications which may or are required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 
sent by electronic mail, overnight courier or United States mail, registered or certified, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid to the Partnership at the address of the Partnership’s principal 
office and to the Partners at the addresses set forth after their respective names in Article 2.  The 
Partnership and any Partner may change its or his address for the giving of notices, consents, 
demands, requests, or other communications by delivering written notice to the Partnership and to 
all the Partners of its or his new address for such purpose.  Notices, consents, demands, requests, 
or other communications shall be deemed given or served one (1) Business Day after being sent 
by electronic mail, one (1) Business Day after deposit with an overnight courier, or three (3) 
Business Days after deposit in the United States mail registered or certified, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid. 

Section 12.2 Pronouns and Plurals.  All pronouns and any variations thereof shall be 
deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plural, as the identity of the person 
or persons may require. 

Section 12.3 Counterparts.  This Partnership Agreement may be executed and delivered 
in electronic form and in several counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original and all of 
which, taken together, shall constitute one agreement, binding on the parties hereto, 
notwithstanding that all of the parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.  The use of 
electronic signatures provided through DocuSign or other secure eSignature applications shall be 
permitted. 

Section 12.4 Applicable Law.  This Partnership Agreement and the rights of the Partners 
hereunder shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  

Section 12.5 Successors.  This Partnership Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, be 
binding upon, and be enforceable by and against the parties hereto, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns. 

Section 12.6 Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this 
Partnership Agreement in a particular respect shall not affect the validity and enforceability of any 
other provisions of this Partnership Agreement or of the same provision in any other respect. 

Section 12.7 Exhibits.  All exhibits attached hereto or referred to herein are incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

Section 12.8 Limitation of Benefits.  Except with respect to those provisions hereof that 
confer rights to the Warehouse Lender, it is the explicit intention of the Partners that no person or 
entity other than the Partners, the owner(s) of the beneficial interests in the Limited Partner’s 
Partnership Interest and the Partnership is or shall be entitled to bring any action or enforce any 
provision of this Partnership Agreement against any Partner or the Partnership, and that the 
covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this Partnership Agreement shall be solely for 
the benefit of and shall be enforceable only by the Partners, the owners of such beneficial interests 
and the Partnership and their or its respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder).  

163



-114- 
60187061.1 

Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the nominee’s enforcement powers as described in 
Section 10.7. 

Section 12.9 Entire Agreement. Except as provided in Section 9.5 with respect to the 
Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement, this Partnership Agreement contains the 
entire agreement among the Partners with respect to the transactions contemplated herein, and 
supersedes all prior or written agreements, commitments, or understandings with respect to the 
matters provided for herein and therein. 

Section 12.10 Broker’s Commission and Indemnity.  Each of the parties to this 
Partnership Agreement warrants and represents to the others that it has not been introduced to the 
other party by any broker, nor has it been in contact with any real estate or business broker or 
consultant otherwise than as specified in this Partnership Agreement regarding the Project 
Property; and each party to this Partnership Agreement agrees to indemnify and hold the other 
party harmless from all suits, claims, actions, loss or expenses (including reasonable attorney’s 
fees) arising from the claim of any person to a brokerage or other commission in connection with 
this transaction and resulting from contact with or other action, alleged or actual, of the 
indemnifying party. 

Section 12.11 Amendment of Partnership Agreement.  Except as otherwise provided 
for herein, this Partnership Agreement may not be amended in whole or in part except by a written 
instrument signed by the General Partner and Limited Partner. 

Section 12.12 Power of Attorney 

12.12.1 Generally.  The Limited Partner, by the execution hereof, hereby 
irrevocably constitutes and appoints the General Partner its true and lawful attorney-in-
fact, with full power and authority in its name, place, and stead, to execute and 
acknowledge under oath, swear to, deliver, file, and record at the appropriate public 
offices the following documents (which shall not include such documents as may be 
required by law to carry out the provisions of Section 10.6 of this Partnership 
Agreement): 

(i) all certificates and other instruments, including any certificate of 
limited partnership and any amendment thereto, that are required to form, continue, 
or qualify the Partnership as a limited partnership or to transact business under the 
Act; and 

(ii) all amendments to the Certificate of Limited Partnership or other 
instrument that are required to be filed under applicable law. 

The appointment by the Limited Partner of the General Partner as attorney-in-fact shall be 
deemed to be a power coupled with an interest in recognition of the fact that each of the Partners 
under the Partnership Agreement will be relying upon the power of the General Partner to act as 
contemplated by the Partnership Agreement in any filing and other action by it on behalf of the 
Partnership.  The foregoing power of attorney shall survive the dissolution and termination of the 
Limited Partner or the assignment by the Limited Partner of the whole or any part of its Partnership 
Interest hereunder.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to limit the authority of the 

164



-115- 
60187061.1 

General Partner under Article 6 hereof to execute documents and act on behalf of the Partnership 
without execution or action by the Limited Partner. 

12.12.2 Removal for Cause.  The General Partner, by the execution hereof, 
hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Limited Partner its true and lawful 
attorney-in-fact, with full power and authority in its name, place, and stead, to execute 
and acknowledge under oath, swear to, and, if necessary, deliver, file, and record at the 
appropriate public offices such documents as may be required by law to carry out the 
provisions of Section 10.6 of this Partnership Agreement, including without limitation: 

(i) all certificates and other instruments, including any certificate of 
limited partnership and any amendment thereto, that are required to remove the 
General Partner from its role as general partner and replace it with a substitute 
general partner; 

(ii) all amendments to this Partnership Agreement required to remove 
the General Partner from its role as general partner and replace it with a substitute 
general partner; and 

(iii) all other certificates, documents, amendments, and instruments 
required to effectuate the provisions of Section 10.6 hereof. 

The appointment by the General Partner of the Limited Partner as attorney-in-fact shall be 
deemed to be a power coupled with an interest in recognition of the fact that each of the Partners 
under this Partnership Agreement will be relying upon the power of the Limited Partner to act as 
contemplated by Section 10.6 hereof in any filing and other action by it on behalf of the 
Partnership.  The foregoing power of attorney shall survive the dissolution and termination of the 
General Partner or the assignment by the General Partner of the whole or any part of its interest 
hereunder. 

Section 12.13 Third Party Beneficiary.  The parties hereto hereby acknowledge and 
agree that the Asset Manager is a third party beneficiary of this Partnership Agreement. 

Section 12.14 BOE Amendments  In the event that the BOE revises the BOE Regulations 
in a manner that requires an amendment to the Agreement, or the BOE or another government 
agency notifies the Partnership that the Agreement does not comply with requirements for 
obtaining or maintaining the Welfare Exemption, then the Partners shall act in good faith to amend 
the Agreement to the extent necessary in order to obtain or maintain the Welfare 
Exemption.[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 

 

 

 

165



 

S -1 
___________ - Amended and Restated LPA 
60187061.1 

The Partners have executed this Partnership Agreement as of the date first set forth at the 
beginning hereof. 

ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL PARTNER: 

2000 16TH ST MUTUAL HOUSING ASSOCIATION 
LLC,  
a California limited liability company 
 
 
By:       
  Roberto Jimenez, President 
 
MANAGING GENERAL PARTNER: 

2000 16TH ST CACDC ASSOCIATION, LLC,  
a California limited liability company 
 
 
By:       
  Danielle Foster, President 

 

LIMITED PARTNER: 

NEF ASSIGNMENT CORPORATION, 
an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, as nominee 

By:        

Name:        

Its:        

INITIAL LIMITED PARTNER: 

2000 16TH ST MUTUAL HOUSING ASSOCIATION 
LLC,  
a California limited liability company 
 
 
By:       
 Roberto Jimenez, President 
 
INITIAL LIMITED PARTNER: 

2000 16TH ST CACDC ASSOCIATION, LLC,  
a California limited liability company 

166



-2- 
60187061.1 

 
 
By:       
 Danielle Foster, President 

 

 

167



 

Appendix 1 - 1 
60187061.1 

APPENDIX I 

PROJECTIONS 

 

 

168



 

Exhibit A - 2 
60187061.1 

EXHIBIT A 

PURCHASE OPTION AND RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

169



 

Exhibit A - 3 
60187061.1 

 

 

  

170



Exhibit A - 4 
60187061.1 

 

 

 

171



1 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

PURCHASE OPTION AND 
RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL AGREEMENT 

THIS PURCHASE OPTION AND RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL AGREEMENT 
(this “Agreement”) is made as of the [____] day of June, 2025, by and among 2000 16th St 
Associates, LP, a California limited partnership (the “Partnership”), [_____________, a 
______________] (the “Grantee”), 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC, a California limited 
liability company (the “Managing General Partner”), 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association 
LLC, a California limited liability company (the “Administrative General Partner” and with the 
Managing General Partner, the “General Partner”), and is consented to herein below by NEF 
Assignment Corporation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, as nominee (the “Limited 
Partner”). 

WHEREAS, the General Partner and one or more other parties, concurrently with the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement, are entering into that certain Amended and Restated 
Limited Partnership Agreement dated as of the date hereof (the “Partnership Agreement”) 
forming the Partnership or continuing it by amending and restating a prior partnership agreement 
for the purposes of acquiring, rehabilitating or constructing, financing, operating, managing, 
leasing, and otherwise dealing with the real estate described therein, in significant part as low-
income rental housing (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, Grantee has been instrumental in the development of the Project and has 
agreed to guaranty the obligations of the General Partner under the Partnership Agreement 
pursuant to the Guaranty (as defined in the Partnership Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, the General Partner and/or Grantee has performed, or has agreed to perform 
services (the “Services”) relating to the acquisition and syndication of the Project, as defined in 
the Partnership Agreement, which services include procuring permanent financing, securing the 
low-income housing tax credits, and negotiating the Limited Partner’s investment in the 
Partnership, and the Partnership wishes to compensate the General Partner and/or Grantee for the 
performance of such services by entering into this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Project is or will be subject to one or more governmental agency 
regulatory agreements (collectively, the “Regulatory Agreement”) restricting its use to low 
income housing (the “Use Restrictions”); and 

WHEREAS, as a condition precedent to the formation or continuation of the Partnership 
pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, General Partner and Grantee have negotiated and required 
that the Partnership shall execute and deliver this Agreement, and the Limited Partner has 
consented to this Agreement in order to induce the General Partner to execute and deliver the 
Partnership Agreement, induce the General Partner and/or Grantee to perform the Services and to 
induce Grantee to execute and deliver the Guaranty. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the execution and delivery of the Partnership 
Agreement by General Partner, the performance of the Services by the General Partner and/or 
Grantee to the Partnership, execution and delivery of the Guaranty by Grantee, and other good and 

Exhibit A

172



2 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereby agree as follows: 

1. Grant of Option.  The Partnership hereby grants to Grantee an option to either 
(a) purchase the real estate, fixtures, and personal property comprising the Project or associated 
with the physical operation thereof, including assets held for the development, operation or 
maintenance of a Project building to extent permitted by Section 42(i) of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), located at the Project and owned by the Partnership at 
the time of purchase (the “Project Option”), or (b) purchase the Limited Partner’s partnership 
interest in the Partnership (the “Partnership Interest Option”, and together with the Project 
Option, the “Options”) after the close of the fifteen (15) year compliance period for the low 
income housing tax credits for the Project (the “Compliance Period”) as determined under 
Section 42(i)(1) of the Code, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and subject 
to the conditions precedent to exercise of such Options specified herein.  The property described 
hereinabove, which may be purchased under the Project Option is referred to herein as the 
“Property”.  The Limited Partner’s partnership interest in the Partnership described hereinabove, 
which may be purchased under the Partnership Interest Option is referred to herein as the “Limited 
Partner’s Partnership Interest”. 

2. Purchase Price Under Options.  The purchase price under the Project Option or 
the Partnership Interest Option shall be as follows: 

(a) Project Option.  The purchase price under the Project Option shall be the 
greater of the following amounts: 

(i) Debt, Taxes and Limited Partner Obligations.  The sum of:  (a) an 
amount sufficient to pay all debts (including partner loans) and liabilities of the 
Partnership upon its termination and liquidation as projected to occur immediately 
following the sale pursuant to the Option, (b) an amount sufficient to distribute to 
the Limited Partner pursuant to Section 5.2.1(ii) of the Partnership Agreement, cash 
proceeds equal to the state, local and federal taxes projected to be imposed on the 
Limited Partner as a result of the sale of the Project pursuant to the Option, and 
(c) all obligations owed to the Limited Partner pursuant to the Partnership 
Agreement (to the extent not covered in subsections (a) or (b)), including, but not 
limited to any credit adjuster payments pursuant to Section 6.9 of the Partnership 
Agreement; or 

(ii) Fair Market Value.  The fair market value of the Property, which 
shall be appraised as low income housing to the extent continuation of such use is 
required under the Use Restrictions.  The appraisal of the Property shall be made 
by a licensed appraiser who is a member of the Master Appraiser Institute (a “MAI 
Appraiser”) and who has experience appraising tax credit projects in the 
geographic area in which the Project is located.  The MAI Appraiser shall be 
selected by the General Partner, with the prior consent of the Limited Partner, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  The appraisal 
shall be paid for by the Partnership.  If the Partners are unable to agree upon a MAI 
Appraiser, the fair market value of the Property shall be determined by a MAI 

173



3 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

Appraiser agreed upon by a MAI Appraiser selected by the General Partner and a 
MAI Appraiser selected by the Limited Partner, which appraisal shall be paid for 
by the Partnership. 

(b) Partnership Interest Option.  The purchase price under the Partnership 
Interest Option shall be the greater of: 

(i) Fair Market Value.  The fair market value of the Limited Partner’s 
Partnership Interest, which value shall be based on the appraised value of the 
Partnership’s assets, including the value of the Project as low income housing to 
the extent continuation of such use is required under the Use Restrictions and 
Partnership reserve accounts, less any liabilities including all Partnership debt 
(including Partner loans).  The MAI Appraiser may also consider any discounts or 
premiums it determines to be applicable (such as for lack of control or lack of 
marketability), if the appraiser deems such discounts or premiums applicable in its 
sole discretion.  Any such appraisal shall be made by a MAI Appraiser who has 
experience appraising tax credit projects in the geographic area in which the Project 
is located.  The fair market value of the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest shall 
be determined by a MAI Appraiser selected by the General Partner, with the prior 
consent of the Limited Partner, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed.  The appraisal shall be paid for by the Partnership.  If the 
Partners are unable to agree upon a MAI Appraiser, the fair market value of the 
Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest shall be determined by a MAI Appraiser 
agreed upon by a MAI Appraiser selected by the General Partner and a MAI 
Appraiser selected by the Limited Partner, which appraisal shall be paid for by the 
Partnership; or 

(ii) Limited Partner Loans, Taxes and Limited Partner Obligations.  The 
sum of:  (a) an amount sufficient to distribute to the Limited Partner pursuant to 
Section 5.2.1(ii) of the Partnership Agreement, cash proceeds equal to the state, 
local and federal taxes projected to be imposed on the Limited Partner as a result 
of the sale of its Partnership Interest pursuant to the Option, and (b) all obligations 
owed to the Limited Partner pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, including, but 
not limited to all accrued and unpaid interest on any loans that the Limited Partner 
has made to the Partnership and any unpaid portion of any credit adjuster payments 
owed to the Limited Partner pursuant to Section 6.9 of the Partnership Agreement. 

3. Exercise of the Option.  The Options may be exercised by Grantee by (a) giving 
written notice of its intent to exercise an Option (an “Option Notice”) to the Partnership and each 
of its partners in the manner provided in the Partnership Agreement and in compliance with the 
requirements of this Paragraph 3, and (b) complying with the contract and closing requirements 
set forth herein.  Any Option Notice shall be given by Grantee not later than eighteen (18) months 
after end of the Compliance Period and shall specify a closing date (the “Projected Option 
Closing Date”) within six (6) months immediately following the date of said Option Notice.  
Grantee’s purchase under the Option shall close by the Projected Option Closing Date; provided, 
however, that if certain third-party consents or deliverables required for the closing to occur cannot 
be reasonably obtained by the Projected Option Closing Date and in Limited Partner’s reasonable 

174



4 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

judgment Grantee is diligently pursuing said consents or deliverables, the Projected Option 
Closing Date may be extended for time period that in Limited Partner’s reasonable judgment is 
required to obtain said consents or deliverables.  Upon determination of the purchase price, the 
Partnership and Grantee shall enter into a written contract for the purchase and sale of the Property 
or the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest, as the case may be, in accordance with this 
Agreement and containing such other terms and conditions as are standard and customary for 
similar commercial transactions in the geographic area which the Project is located, providing for 
a closing not later than the date specified in the Option Notice.  In the absence of any such contract, 
this Agreement shall be specifically enforceable upon the exercise of either one of the Options.  
The purchase and sale hereunder shall be closed through a deed and money escrow with the title 
insurer for the Project or another mutually acceptable title company, or through an assignment of 
partnership interest, as applicable, not later than twenty-four (24) months after end of the 
Compliance Period.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, if the 
foregoing requirements are not met as and when provided herein, including, without limitation, 
the closing of the Options not later than twenty-four (24) months after end of the Compliance 
Period, the Options shall expire and be of no further force or effect.  Upon the issuance of an 
Option Notice, all of Grantee’s other option or refusal rights herein shall be subordinate to the 
option or refusal right then being so exercised unless and until such exercise is withdrawn or 
discontinued, and upon the closing of any sale of the Project or the Limited Partner’s Partnership 
Interest pursuant to an Option Notice, all of Grantee’s other option or refusal rights shall expire 
and be of no further force or effect; provided, however, that in the event that the Options are 
hereafter held by different parties by reason of any permitted assignment or otherwise, Grantee in 
its assignment may specify any other order of priority consistent with the other terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

4. Grant of Refusal Right.  The Partnership will not sell the Project or any portion 
thereof without first providing the Grantee with a written notice (the “Offer Notice”) offering to 
the Grantee a right of first refusal to purchase the Property (the “Refusal Right”), after the close 
of the Compliance Period, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and subject to 
the conditions precedent to exercise of the Refusal Right specified herein and as required by 
Section 42(i) of the Code.  In addition to all other applicable conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
(a) the foregoing grant of the Refusal Right shall be effective only if Grantee is currently and 
remains at all times hereafter, until (i) the Refusal Right has been exercised and the resulting 
purchase and sale has been closed or (ii) the Refusal Right has been assigned to a Permitted 
Assignee described in Paragraph 9 hereof, whichever first occurs, a qualified nonprofit 
organization, as defined in Section 42(h)(5)(C) of the Code, and (b) any assignment of the Refusal 
Right permitted under this Agreement and the Refusal Right so assigned shall be effective only if 
the assignee is at the time of the assignment and remains at all times thereafter, until the Refusal 
Right has been exercised and the resulting purchase and sale has been closed, a Permitted Assignee 
described in Paragraph 9 hereof meeting the requirements of Section 42(i) of the Code as 
determined in its judgment by tax counsel to the Limited Partner. 

5. Purchase Price Under Refusal Right.  The purchase price for the Property 
pursuant to the Refusal Right (the “Refusal Right Purchase Price”) shall be equal to the sum of:  
(a) the greater of (x) an amount sufficient to pay all debts (including partner loans) and liabilities 
of the Partnership as projected to occur immediately following the sale pursuant to the Refusal 
Right or (y) the minimum purchase price for the Property allowable under Section 42(i) of the 

175



5 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

Code, and (b) all obligations owed to the Limited Partner pursuant to the Partnership Agreement 
(to the extent not covered in subsection (a)), including, but not limited to any credit adjuster 
payments pursuant to Section 6.9 of the Partnership Agreement.  Implicit in the agreement between 
the Partnership and Grantee to the Refusal Right Purchase Price, is an agreement of Grantee to 
assume all debts and liabilities (including taxes) of the Partnership with respect to the Property, 
and any document(s) effectuating the conveyance of the Property by the Partnership to the Grantee 
shall include an express agreement of Grantee to pay said debts and liabilities. 

6. Exercise of the Refusal Right.  The Refusal Right may be exercised by Grantee 
by (a) giving written notice of its intent to exercise the Refusal Right (a “Refusal Right Notice”) 
to the Partnership and each of its partners in the manner provided in the Partnership Agreement 
and in compliance with the requirements of this Paragraph 6 and Section 42(i) of the Code, and 
(b) complying with the contract and closing requirements set forth herein.  Any Refusal Right 
Notice shall be given by Grantee within ninety (90) days after Grantee has received the 
Partnership’s Offer Notice pursuant to Paragraph 4 hereof and Grantee’s Refusal Right Notice 
shall specify a closing date (the “Projected Refusal Right Closing Date”) within twelve (12) 
months immediately following the date of said Refusal Right Notice.  Grantee’s purchase under 
the Refusal Right shall close by the Projected Refusal Right Closing Date; provided, however, that 
if certain third-party consents or deliverables required for the closing to occur cannot be reasonably 
obtained by the Projected Refusal Right Closing Date and in Limited Partner’s reasonable 
judgment Grantee is diligently pursuing said consents or deliverables, the Projected Refusal Right 
Closing Date may be extended for time period that in Limited Partner’s reasonable judgment is 
required to obtain said consents or deliverables.  Upon determination of the Refusal Right Purchase 
Price, the Partnership and Grantee shall enter into a written contract for the purchase and sale of 
the Project in accordance with this Agreement and containing such other terms and conditions as 
are standard and customary for similar commercial transactions in the geographic area which the 
Project is located, providing for a closing not later than the date specified in the Refusal Right 
Notice.  In the absence of any such contract, this Agreement shall be specifically enforceable upon 
the exercise of the Refusal Right.  The purchase and sale hereunder shall be closed through a deed 
and money escrow with the title insurer for the Project or another mutually acceptable title 
company.  If the Refusal Right is exercisable pursuant to this Paragraph 6 and to Paragraph 7, the 
Refusal Right shall expire not less than twenty-four (24) months after end of the Compliance 
Period; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if the 
requirements set forth in this Paragraph 6 and Paragraph 7 are not met as and when provided 
herein, and the Refusal Right does not close within twenty-four (24) months after end of the 
Compliance Period, the Refusal Right shall expire and be of no further force or effect.  Upon the 
issuance of a Refusal Right Notice, all of Grantee’s other option or refusal rights herein shall be 
subordinate to the option or refusal right then being so exercised unless and until such exercise is 
withdrawn or discontinued, and upon the closing of any sale of the Project pursuant to the Refusal 
Right, all of Grantee’s other option or refusal rights shall expire and be of no further force or effect; 
provided, however, that in the event that the a Refusal Right is hereafter held by a different party 
by reason of any permitted assignment or otherwise, Grantee in its assignment may specify any 
other order of priority consistent with the other terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

7. Conditions Precedent.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 
contrary, the exercise of the Options and the Refusal Right granted hereunder shall be contingent 
on the following: 

176



6 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

(a) General Partner.  The General Partner shall have remained in good standing 
as General Partner of the Partnership without the occurrence of any event described in 
Paragraph 10.6 of the Partnership Agreement; 

(b) Regulatory Agreement.  Either (i) the Regulatory Agreement shall have 
been entered into and remained in full force and effect, and those Use Restrictions to be 
contained therein, as heretofore approved in writing by the Limited Partner, shall have 
remained unmodified as to material terms affecting the affordability of the Project or 
income eligibility standards therein, without its prior written consent, or (ii) if the 
Regulatory Agreement is no longer in effect due to reasons other than a default thereunder 
by the Partnership, such Use Restrictions, as so approved and unmodified, shall have 
remained in effect by other means and shall continue in effect by means of covenants 
recorded against the Property; and 

(c) Performance by the General Partner and/or Grantee of the Services.  The 
General Partner and/or Grantee has performed the Services set forth in the recitals of this 
Agreement.  The General Partner and/or Grantee shall have been deemed to have 
performed the Services upon the completion of all of the following: 

(i) The admission of the Limited Partner to the Partnership; 

(ii) The closing of all loans secured by the Project, as described in the 
Partnership Agreement; 

(iii) The acquisition by the Partnership of all the beneficial and equitable 
interest in the land upon which the Project is located; and 

(iv) The receipt by the Partnership of all Forms 8609 (as defined in the 
Partnership Agreement) to be issued in connection with the Project, evidencing the 
low-income housing tax credits projected to be delivered by the Project, as 
described in the Partnership Agreement (as may be adjusted in accordance with 
Section 6.9 of the Partnership Agreement). 

If any or all of such conditions precedent have not been met, the Options and the Refusal 
Right shall not be exercisable.  Upon removal of the General Partner as General Partner of the 
Partnership under Article 10 of the Partnership Agreement, or terminating the Regulatory 
Agreement and the Use Restrictions are not replaced as described in this Paragraph 7, the Options 
and the Refusal Right shall be void and of no further force and effect. 

8. Determination of Price.  Upon notice by Grantee of its intent to exercise either of 
the Options or the Refusal Right, the Partnership and Grantee shall exercise best efforts in good 
faith to agree on the purchase price for the Property or the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest, 
as the case may be, as determined in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  With respect 
to the amounts due pursuant to Paragraphs 2(a)(i)and (ii) and 2(b)i and (ii) of this Agreement, 
Limited Partner shall provide Grantee a statement setting forth said amounts in reasonable detail 
(including an explanation of the basis for and the computation of such amounts), and the amounts 
shown on such statement shall be deemed prima facie correct.  Any agreement on purchase price 
for the Property or the Limited Partner’s Partnership Interest shall be subject to the prior written 

177



7 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

consent of the Limited Partner, which shall not be withheld as to any purchase price determined 
properly in accordance with this Agreement. 

9. Assignment.  Grantee may assign all or any of its rights under this Agreement to 
(a) a qualified nonprofit organization, as defined in Section 42(h)(5)(C) of the Code, (b) a 
government agency, or (c) a tenant organization (in cooperative form or otherwise) or resident 
management corporation of the Project (each a “Permitted Assignee”) that demonstrates its ability 
and willingness to maintain the Project as low income housing in accordance with the Use 
Restrictions, in any case subject to the prior written consent of the Limited Partner, which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld if the proposed grantee demonstrates that it is reputable and credit-
worthy and is a capable, experienced owner and operator of residential rental property, and subject 
in any event to the terms and conditions of the grant and exercise of the Refusal Right and Options 
set forth in this Agreement.  Prior to any assignment or proposed assignment of its rights hereunder, 
Grantee shall give written notice thereof to the Partnership, the General Partner, and the Limited 
Partner.  Upon any permitted assignment hereunder, references in this Agreement to Grantee shall 
mean the Permitted Assignee where the context so requires, subject to all applicable conditions to 
the effectiveness of the rights granted under this Agreement and so assigned.  No assignment of 
Grantee’s rights hereunder shall be effective unless and until the Permitted Assignee enters into a 
written agreement accepting the assignment and assuming all of Grantee’s obligations under this 
Agreement and copies of such written agreement are delivered to the Partnership, the General 
Partner, and the Limited Partner.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Limited Partner’s 
successors and assigns.  Except as specifically permitted herein, Grantee’s rights hereunder shall 
not be assignable. 

10. Amendment of the Agreement.  Except as otherwise provided for herein, this 
Agreement may not be amended in whole or in part except by a written instrument signed by the 
Grantee, the Partnership, the General Partner, and the Limited Partner. 

11. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement shall be liberally construed in accordance with 
the laws of the state in which the Project is located in order to effectuate the purposes of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts or counterpart signature pages, 
which together shall constitute a single agreement.  If any provision of this Agreement, or any 
paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word, or the application thereof, in any circumstance, is 
held invalid or unenforceable, such unenforceability or invalidity shall not affect the validity of 
the remainder of this Agreement, which shall be construed as if such invalid or unenforceable part 
were never included herein. 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

178



S - 1 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this document as of the date first 
set forth hereinabove. 

PARTNERSHIP: ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL 
PARTNER: 

2000 16TH ST ASSOCIATES, LP, 
a California limited partnership 

By: 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association 
LLC, its administrative general partner 
 
 
By:    
        Roberto Jimenez, President 
 
By: 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC, 
its managing general partner 
 
By:    
       Danielle Foster, President 
 
 

2000 16TH ST MUTUAL HOUSING 
ASSOCIATION LLC,  
a California limited liability company 
 
 
By:    
       Roberto Jimenez, President 

GRANTEE: MANAGING GENERAL PARTNER: 

 2000 16TH ST CACDC ASSOCIATION, 
LLC,  
a California limited liability company 
 
 
By:  

Danielle Foster, President 

 

  

179



S - 2 
Sakura - Purchase Option and Right of First Refusal Agreement 
60188925.1 

The undersigned hereby consents to the foregoing Agreement as of the date first set forth 
hereinabove. 

 LIMITED PARTNER: 

 NEF ASSIGNMENT CORPORATION, 
an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, as 
nominee 

By:    
Name:    
Its:    

 

180



 

Exhibit B - 5 
60187061.1 

EXHIBIT B 

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED. 

 

 

 

181



 

Exhibit C 
60187061.1 

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF FINAL LIEN WAIVER AND RELEASE 

 

 

 

182



 

1 
60187061.1 

AFFIDAVIT, UNCONDITIONAL FINAL LIEN WAIVER AND RELEASE 

The undersigned, ___________________________, as “Contractor” under the contract 
(“Contract”) by and between the undersigned and 2000 16th St Associates, LP (“Owner”), has 
furnished or caused to be furnished labor or materials, or both, for the construction of the premises 
owned by Owner which is located at: 2000 16th Street, Sacramento, CA; and known as Sakura 
(“Project”); 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the amount due under the Contract is $ -0- including 
all retainage claims and that the Contract has been paid in full; and 

The undersigned does hereby release the Owner of all claims, demands and actions arising 
out or in connection with the Project.  In addition, the undersigned does hereby waive and release 
any lien or right to lien the Project, including any buildings and improvements, on account of any 
and all labor or materials, or both furnished for or incorporated into the Project; and 

The undersigned certifies to Owner that all subcontractors or suppliers of labor, services, 
material or equipment used, engaged or employed by the undersigned directly or indirectly, have 
been paid in full. The undersigned does hereby acknowledge full performance by the Owner of all 
obligations due or owing to the undersigned under the Contract and other agreements; 

The undersigned further represents that all portions of work furnished and materials 
installed are in accordance with the Contract and that the terms of the Contract with respect to the 
any guarantees will hold for the period specified therein. 

NOTICE:  THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATES THAT 
YOU HAVE BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS.  THIS DOCUMENT IS 
ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU IF YOU SIGN IT, EVEN IT YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID.  IF 
YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A CONDITIONAL RELEASE FORM. 

 CONTACTOR: 

Date:  ___________________, 20__   
a   

 

By:    
Name:    
Title:  Authorized Agent 

 

  

183



2 
60187061.1 

State of   
County of   

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me, the above described person personally appeared and 
known to me, acknowledged that s/he signed this document as the authorized agent or officer of 
the Contractor this _____ day of _________________, 20__. 

  
Notary Public 

Name:    

My Commission Expires:    

[Seal] 

 

 

184



 

Exhibit D 
60187061.1 

EXHIBIT D 

FORM OF GENERAL PARTNER CERTIFICATION 

 

 

 

 

185



 

1 
60187061.1 

GENERAL PARTNER CERTIFICATION 

THIS CERTIFICATION is made and delivered pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated 
Limited Partnership Agreement (the “Partnership Agreement”) of 2000 16th St Associates, LP  (the 
“Partnership”), between the undersigned as General Partners and NEF Assignment Corporation, as 
nominee, as Limited Partner, dated June [_], 2025 (unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms 
used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Partnership Agreement). 

In accordance with Section 3.2(c) of the Partnership Agreement and as an inducement to the 
Limited Partner to fund [the Project Equity] [and] [the Non-Deferred Developer Fee Equity] portion[s] of 
the  __________ Installment of the Limited Partner’s Capital Contribution, the undersigned General 
Partners hereby certify to the Limited Partner as follows: 

(i) Each General Partner has fully complied with all of its covenants and obligations 
set forth in the Partnership Agreement (including, without limitation, those covenants and 
obligations set forth in Section 6.3 of the Partnership Agreement); 

(ii) The representations and warranties of each General Partner set forth in the 
Partnership Agreement are true and correct as of the date of the date of funding of the Capital 
Contribution payments described above (including, without limitation, those set forth in Section 6.3 
of the Partnership Agreement); 

(iii) Each General Partner has fully complied with its obligation to furnish the Limited 
Partner with any reports or other information, in satisfactory form, required to be provided by each 
General Partner pursuant to Article 8 of the Partnership Agreement, it being acknowledged and 
agreed that any penalty assessed against each General Partner under Section 8.6.1 for late delivery 
of reports shall be payable by such General Partner to the Limited Partner from any installment of 
the Developer Fee payable under Section 3.2, and the Limited Partner shall be entitled to deduct 
and pay such penalty amount from any installment due under Section 3.2 and the amount so 
deducted and applied shall be deemed for all intents and purposes to have been applied toward 
payment of the Developer Fee; and 

(iv) There has been no, and there is no imminent nor threatened, material adverse 
charge in the either General Partner’s financial or business condition or operations that affects (or 
with the passage of time will affect) its ability to perform its obligations under the Partnership 
Agreement. 

Each General Partner acknowledges that the due date for payment of the Installment specified 
above shall be not more than thirty (30) days nor less than ten (10) Business Days from the date that the 
Limited Partner confirms that all of the conditions related to the payment of such Installment as set forth in 
Section 3.2 of the Partnership Agreement have been satisfied. 

  

186



2 
60187061.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned General Partner has made and delivered this 
Certification as of the ____ day __________, 20__. 

ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL PARTNER: 

2000 16TH ST MUTUAL HOUSING ASSOCIATION LLC,  
a California limited liability company 
 
 
By:       
 Roberto Jimenez, President 
 
MANAGING GENERAL PARTNER: 

2000 16TH ST CACDC ASSOCIATION, LLC,  
a California limited liability company 
 
 
By:       
 Danielle Foster, President 

 

 

187



 

Exhibit E - 1 
60187061.1 

EXHIBIT E 

DEVELOPMENT FEE AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

188



1 
Sakura - Development Fee Agreement 
60188923.1 

DEVELOPMENT FEE AGREEMENT 

THIS DEVELOPMENT FEE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of June 
[__], 2025, by and between 2000 16th St Associates, LP, a California limited partnership (the 
“Partnership”), Mutual Housing California, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 
(“MHC”) and Capitol Area Community Development Corporation, a California nonprofit public 
benefit corporation (“CACDC” and together with MHC, the “Developer”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the Developer, or its affiliate, as general partner, and NEF Assignment 
Corporation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, as nominee (the “Limited Partner”), 
contemplate entering into, or concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement are 
entering into, that certain Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement forming the 
Partnership or continuing it by amending and restating a prior partnership agreement (said Limited 
Partnership Agreement, together with any amendments that may be executed by the parties thereto 
from time to time, being referred to hereinafter as the “Partnership Agreement”) for the purposes 
of acquiring, rehabilitating or constructing, financing, operating, managing, leasing, and otherwise 
dealing with the real estate described therein, in significant part as low-income rental housing (the 
“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has performed certain services related to the development of 
the project, and will continue to perform development services to the Partnership pursuant to the 
terms and conditions described herein and in the contemplated Partnership Agreement, upon 
execution thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer and the Partnership wish to enter into this Agreement 
describing the scope of such development services performed and to be performed by the 
Developer, for which Developer is entitled to receive payment of a development fee, subject to the 
terms and conditions contained herein and in the Partnership Agreement, upon execution thereof; 
and 

WHEREAS, terms used herein that are not otherwise defined shall have the meaning 
ascribed to them in the Partnership Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto do agree as follows: 

1. Development Services.  Developer shall provide to the Partnership all 
development services necessary and advisable to facilitate the construction and/or rehabilitation 
of the Project.  These development services shall include those services specified in the Partnership 
Agreement, upon execution thereof, such other related development services as the Partnership 
may reasonably request in connection therewith, and those services more fully described in 
Schedule A of this Agreement (collectively, the “Development Services”).  The Developer shall 

Exhibit E

189



2 
Sakura - Development Fee Agreement 
60188923.1 

complete all of the Development Services no later than the last day of the first year of the earliest 
credit period for any building included in the Project as determined under IRC Section 42. 

2. Development Fee.  In consideration of the Developer’s performance of the 
Development Services, the Partnership shall pay to the Developer a total development fee of Six 
Million Twenty-Seven Thousand Fifty-Eight and No/100 Dollars ($[6,027,058].00) (the 
“Development Fee”), pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Partnership Agreement, which payment shall 
be made in accordance with Section 1 hereof and, upon execution of the Partnership Agreement, 
in the manner described therein and shall be subject to the limitations set forth therein. 

3. Fifty Percent Test.  In the event the aggregate basis of any building included in 
the Project and the land on which the building is located (including an allocable portion of the 
development fee hereunder) is, at any time, up to and including the last day of the first full year 
following the year in which Placement in Service occurs, greater than 200% of the amount of tax-
exempt bond obligation which financed such basis, then the Developer Fee shall automatically be 
reduced to the extent necessary to cause such aggregate basis to be less than 200% of the amount 
of such tax-exempt bond proceeds. 

4. Conflicts.  This Agreement is made subject to the terms and conditions of the 
Partnership Agreement, and in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Agreement 
and the Partnership Agreement, upon execution thereof, the Partnership Agreement shall govern 
and control.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed in any way to limit or reduce 
the obligations and liabilities (including, without limitation, all guaranty obligations) imposed by 
the Partnership Agreement on the general partner or any sponsor identified therein. 

5. Defaults.  The occurrence of an event of default, as described in the Partnership 
Agreement, shall, upon execution of the Partnership Agreement, constitute a default by Developer 
hereunder, and this Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the withdrawal, removal, or 
replacement of the Developer, or its affiliate, as general partner of the Partnership. 

6. No Assignment.  Neither the Partnership nor the Developer may assign all or any 
portion of its respective right, title, and interest in this Agreement or its duties and obligations 
hereunder. 

7. Third-Party Beneficiary.  The Limited Partner is an intended third-party 
beneficiary of this Agreement. 

8. Amendments.  This Agreement is subject to amendment only with the written 
consent of the Developer and the Limited Partner. 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

190



S - 1 
Sakura  - Development Fee Agreement – Signature Page 
60188923.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 
and year first above written. 

 

 MHC: 

 MUTUAL HOUSING CALIFORNIA, 
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 

By:    
        Roberto Jimenez, President 

 CACDC: 

 CAPITOL AREA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, 
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
       Danielle Foster, President 
 

 PARTNERSHIP: 
2000 16TH ST ASSOCIATES, LP, 
a California limited partnership 
 
By: 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association 
LLC, its administrative general partner 
 
 
By:    
        Roberto Jimenez, President 
 
By: 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC, 
its managing general partner 

 

By:    
       Danielle Foster, President 
 
 

 

 

191



 

Schedule A - 1 
Sakura - Development Fee Agreement 
60188923.1 

SCHEDULE A 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

Developer has performed or shall perform, and shall continue to perform, the following 
non-exclusive list of services to the Partnership in connection with the development of the Project: 

a. prepare a business plan for the development and operation of the Project, which 
shall be approved in writing by the Limited Partner and set forth in the financial projections 
described in the Partnership Agreement; 

b. select the Project architect, general contractor, construction manager (if any), and 
all other parties rendering services to the Partnership in connection with the rehabilitation or 
construction of the Project and represent the Partnership in the negotiation and administration of 
the contracts between the Partnership and such parties; 

c. cause the Partnership to obtain all governmental approvals required in connection 
with the rehabilitation or construction of the Project; 

d. obtain and maintain community and neighborhood approval of the Project; 

e. obtain and maintain on behalf of the Partnership all insurance coverages that the 
general partner is required to maintain during the Project development period; 

f. cause the Project to be rehabilitated or constructed in accordance with the 
rehabilitation or construction schedule set forth in the projections and maintain all records required 
to obtain all available tax benefits in connection with such rehabilitation or construction work; 

g. adhere to the development budget and the schedule contemplated therein for the 
development of the Project, in order to achieve the financial projections; 

h. notify the Limited Partner in writing of any facts, circumstances, or intended 
actions by Developer that constitute or would constitute a material deviation from the business 
plan, financial projections, or budget approved by the Limited Partner for the development of the 
Project; 

i. furnish the Limited Partner with monthly and quarterly status reports during the 
Project development period in accordance with the Partnership Agreement; 

j. ensure that all violations of building, zoning, fire, health, environmental, and other 
codes or laws are corrected during the course of the rehabilitation or construction work; and 

k. ensure that all other obligations and responsibilities imposed on the general partner 
under the Partnership Agreement with respect to the development of the Project are satisfied. 

192



 

Exhibit F - 1 
60187061.1 

EXHIBIT F 

GUARANTY AGREEMENT 

193



1 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement 
60188924.1 

GUARANTY AGREEMENT 

THIS GUARANTY AGREEMENT (this “Guaranty”) is made as of this [___] day of 
June, 2025, by Mutual Housing California, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 
(“MHC”) and Capitol Area Development Authority, a joint powers authority between the State of 
California and the City of Sacramento (“CADA”, together with MHC, the “Guarantor”), to and 
for the benefit of 2000 16th St Associates, LP, a California limited partnership (the “Partnership”) 
and NEF Assignment Corporation, an Illinois-not-for-profit corporation, as nominee (the 
“Limited Partner”).  The Partnership consists of 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC, a 
California limited liability company, as managing general partner (the “Managing General 
Partner”), 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association LLC, a California limited liability company, 
as administrative general partner (the “Administrative General Partner”, together with the 
Managing General Partner, the “General Partner”), and the Limited Partner, as limited partner. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Partnership is being continued concurrently herewith, pursuant to an 
Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of the Partnership dated as of the date 
hereof (the “Partnership Agreement”), for the purposes of acquiring, rehabilitating or 
constructing, financing, operating, managing, leasing, and otherwise dealing with the real estate 
described therein, in significant part as low-income rental housing (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, capitalized terms appearing in this Guaranty and not otherwise defined herein 
shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Partnership Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the General Partner and/or its affiliate(s) are to receive substantial fees as 
payment for certain services rendered or to be rendered to the Partnership in accordance with the 
Partnership Agreement, as well as a general partner interest in the Partnership and a purchase 
option with respect to the Project or a right to purchase the Limited Partner’s interest in the 
Partnership, and the Guarantor will receive payment of certain fees in connection with and 
otherwise substantially and materially benefit from these transactions; and 

WHEREAS, Guarantor wishes to induce the Limited Partner to invest in the Partnership; 
and 

WHEREAS, in reliance on the obligations of the General Partner and the Guarantor to be 
performed under the Partnership Agreement and this Guaranty, the Limited Partner is investing 
substantial equity for a limited partner interest in the Partnership; and 

WHEREAS, the Limited Partner requires the execution and delivery of this Guaranty as a 
condition of its execution and delivery of the Partnership Agreement and investment in the 
Partnership, but for which the aforesaid fees, general partner interest, and purchase rights would 
not be paid or granted, and the General Partner has caused the Guarantor to execute and deliver 
this Guaranty; and 

Exhibit F

194



2 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement 
60188924.1 

WHEREAS, the Guarantor acknowledges that the Partnership and the Limited Partner are 
the intended beneficiaries of this Guaranty. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged: 

1. Guaranteed Obligations.  The Guarantor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally 
guarantees the General Partner’s full, faithful and timely performance of all of its obligations under 
the Partnership Agreement (collectively, the “Guaranteed Obligations”), including, without 
limitation, the General Partner’s Partnership management duties, its development completion and 
operating deficit guaranties, its guaranties with respect to payment for reduced and delayed tax 
credits and its repurchase obligations. 

2. Guaranty Funding.  No later than ten (10) days’ after notice from the Partnership 
or Limited Partner, the Guarantor shall pay to the Partnership or the Limited Partner, in accordance 
with such notice, all funds that are necessary to ensure full compliance with this Guaranty, 
including any compensation due to the Limited Partner under the Partnership Agreement for 
damages resulting from noncompliance, and shall further pay any and all expenses (including 
without limitation attorneys’ fees) incurred by the Partnership and/or the Limited Partner in the 
enforcement of this Guaranty and the preparation therefor, whether or not an action or proceeding 
to enforce the same shall have been instituted.  By executing and delivering this Guaranty, the 
Guarantor acknowledges and agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of the Partnership 
Agreement, to the extent applicable to it in the performance of its obligations under this Guaranty, 
and to be bound by the provisions thereof.  

3. Guaranty of Payment.  The guaranty made hereunder is of payment and not of 
collection, and Guarantor waives any right to require that any action be brought against the General 
Partner or any other person liable for performance or payment of any of the Guaranteed 
Obligations or that resort first be had to any other security therefor. 

4. Enforcement.  In any right of action that may accrue to the Partnership by reason 
of any obligations guaranteed hereunder, the Partnership and/or the Limited Partner, may, at its 
option, proceed against (a) the Guarantor, together with the General Partner, (b) the Guarantor and 
the General Partner individually, or (c) the Guarantor only, without having first proceeded against 
the General Partner or any other person or entity.  If there is more than one Guarantor or General 
Partner, each of the foregoing remedies may be enforced by the Partnership and/or the Limited 
Partner against any one or more or all of them.  Prior to filing any action against the Guarantor to 
enforce the guaranty made hereunder, excluding any action to enforce Guarantor’s funding 
obligations under Paragraph 2 hereof, the Partnership and/or the Limited Partner shall first give 
the General Partner and the Guarantor a reasonable period of notice with an opportunity to cure 
any failure to perform as required hereunder, which shall be at least ten (10) days except in case 
of emergency, provided that the Partnership or the Limited Partner may terminate the cure period 
at any time if the Partnership and/or Limited Partner determines that the Guarantor has failed to 
exercise diligent, continuous efforts to effect a cure. 

5. Waiver by Guarantor.  Guarantor hereby waives (a) notice of acceptance of this 
Guaranty; (b) any and all other notices to which Guarantor might otherwise be entitled except as 

195



3 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement 
60188924.1 

required herein; (c) any and all defenses arising by reason of any disability of the General Partner 
or any defense of any other person or entity; (d) any and all rights to extension, composition, 
election with respect to any collateral under any provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Code, as now 
existing or hereafter amended from time to time, or any other debtor’s or guarantor’s remedy 
thereunder or under any other federal or state law affecting creditors’ rights; (e) diligence in any 
attempt to enforce the obligations guaranteed hereby, to realize upon any other security therefor, 
or to collect from whomsoever any amount, the payment of which is guaranteed hereby, and any 
right to require that any action be brought against the General Partner or any other person or entity 
or to require that resort first be had to any such security; (f) protection of any such security for the 
payment of the obligations guaranteed hereby; and (g) the observance of any and all formalities 
that might otherwise be required to charge Guarantor with liability hereunder. 

6. Partnership’s Rights.  The Partnership may, at any time and from time to time, 
with or without the consent of, or notice to, Guarantor, and without incurring responsibility or 
liability to Guarantor or impairing or releasing the obligations of Guarantor hereunder: 

a. change the manner, place, or terms of performance or payment of, or renew, 
replace, extend, or otherwise modify any document now or hereafter creating, securing, or 
governing the disbursement of any of the Guaranteed Obligations (including without 
limitation the Partnership Agreement) other than this Guaranty; 

b. sell, exchange, release, surrender, realize upon, or otherwise deal with, in 
any manner and in any order, any property by whomsoever and whenever pledged to 
secure, or howsoever securing, any of the Guaranteed Obligations or any liability 
(including without limitation any of those hereunder) incurred directly or indirectly in 
respect thereof or hereof, or any offset there against; 

c. exercise or refrain from exercising, for any period of time whatsoever, any 
rights against the General Partner or others (including without limitation Guarantor) 
available to the Partnership and/or Limited Partner by law or under any document now or 
hereafter creating any of the Guaranteed Obligations, any other security therefor, or any 
liability (including without limitation any of those hereunder) incurred directly or indirectly 
in connection therewith or herewith (including without limitation failing to attempt to 
collect any of the Guaranteed Obligations); 

d. settle or compromise any of the Guaranteed Obligations, any security 
therefor, or any liability (including without limitation any of those hereunder) incurred 
directly or indirectly in connection therewith or herewith; 

e. accept any further security for payment of the Guaranteed Obligations in 
addition to this Guaranty; and 

f. perform such other acts as may be permitted under the Partnership 
Agreement. 

7. Covenants, Representations and Warranties.  Each Guarantor makes the 
following covenants, representations and warranties, acknowledging that, but for the truth and 
accuracy of the following representations and warranties which shall be given as of the date hereof 

196



4 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement 
60188924.1 

and shall be deemed to be given as of each date hereafter throughout the term of this Guaranty, the 
Limited Partner would not have agreed to acquire a limited partner interest in the Partnership: 

a. the execution, delivery and performance by each Guarantor of this Guaranty 
does not and will not contravene or conflict with any law, order, rule, regulation, writ, 
injunction or decree now in effect of any government, governmental instrumentality or 
court or tribunal having jurisdiction over each Guarantor or any contractual restriction 
binding on or affecting each Guarantor; 

b. there are no facts or circumstances of any kind or nature whatsoever known 
or which should be known to either Guarantor that could in any way impair or prevent each 
Guarantor from performing its obligations under this Guaranty; 

c. all financial information with respect to each Guarantor that such Guarantor 
has given to the Partnership or the Limited Partner in connection with the transactions 
contemplated in this Guaranty and in the Partnership Agreement fairly and accurately 
present its financial condition and results of operations as of the date thereof and for the 
period indicated therein; since the date thereof, there has been no material adverse change 
in the financial condition or results of operations of either Guarantor; and each Guarantor 
shall notify the Partnership and the Limited Partner of any material adverse change in the 
financial condition or, if applicable, results of operations of such Guarantor within thirty 
(30) days after the occurrence of such change; 

d. with the assistance of counsel of its choice, each Guarantor has read and 
reviewed this Guaranty, the Partnership Agreement and such other documents as it and its 
counsel deem necessary or desirable to read; 

e. MHC is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation validly existing 
and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its formation (and all other 
jurisdictions where its failure to be so qualified would have a material adverse effect on its 
financial condition or results of operations) and has the full power and authority to enter 
into and perform its obligations under this Guaranty;  

f. CADA is a joint powers authority between the State of California and the 
City of Sacramento validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction 
of its formation (and all other jurisdictions where its failure to be so qualified would have 
a material adverse effect on its financial condition or results of operations) and has the full 
power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Guaranty; and 

g. this Guaranty has been duly authorized, executed and delivered on behalf 
of each Guarantor and is fully enforceable against each Guarantor in accordance with its 
terms. 

8. Events of Default.  Each of the following shall constitute an event of default 
(referred to herein as an “Event of Default”), whatever the reason for such event and whether it 
shall be voluntary or involuntary or be effected by operation of law or pursuant to any judgment 
or order of any court of any order, rule or regulation of any governmental or nongovernmental 
body: 

197



5 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement 
60188924.1 

a. failure to make any payment due under Paragraph 2 hereof within ten (10) 
days after demand for payment; 

b. any representation or warranty made by Guarantor under this Guaranty or 
any other agreement, report, certificate, financial statement or other instrument referred to 
in and furnished to the Partnership or the Limited Partner in connection with this Guaranty 
shall prove incorrect or misleading in any material respect when made or when deemed to 
have been made; 

c. any default by Guarantor in the performance or observance of any 
agreement or covenant contained in this Guaranty and the continuation of such default 
beyond any applicable notice and cure period described in Paragraph 4 hereof; 

d. the occurrence of any one or more of the following:  the filing by Guarantor 
of a petition for the appointment of a trustee with respect to itself himself or any of its or 
his property; the making by Guarantor of an assignment for the benefit of creditors; the 
commencement by Guarantor of a case in bankruptcy or insolvency or for compromise, 
adjustment or other relief under the laws of the United States or of any state relating to the 
relief of debtors; the failure of Guarantor to obtain the dismissal, within sixty (60) days 
after service upon Guarantor of any case commenced against Guarantor (i) for the 
appointment of a trustee for Guarantor, or any of its property or (ii) in bankruptcy or 
insolvency or for compromise, adjustment or other relief under the laws of the United 
States or of any state relating to the relief of debtors; or the failure of Guarantor to generally 
pay its or his material debts as such debts become due; or 

e. the making or attempted making by Guarantor of a fraudulent transfer 
within the meaning of the Uniform Fraudulent Transfers Act. 

9. Subrogation.  Until the Guaranteed Obligations have been performed and paid in 
full, the Guarantor shall have (a) no right of subrogation against the General Partner in connection 
with this Guaranty and any payments made by the Guarantor hereunder and (b) no right to 
participate in realization upon any security for any of the Guaranteed Obligations. 

10. Subordination.  Any indebtedness of the General Partner and/or the Partnership to 
the Guarantor now or hereafter existing is hereby subordinated to the General Partner’s 
performance of the Guaranteed Obligations and Guarantor’s obligations under this Guaranty.  Any 
such indebtedness of the General Partner and/or the Partnership to Guarantor, upon written demand 
of the Partnership or the Limited Partner, shall be collected and received by Guarantor in trust for 
the Partnership and shall be paid over to the Partnership or the Limited Partner on account of the 
Guaranteed Obligations without impairing or releasing the obligations of Guarantor hereunder, 
provided that while no default exists in the payment of the Guaranteed Obligations, Guarantor may 
apply to its own account any payments made to it on account of any indebtedness of the General 
Partner and/or the Partnership to Guarantor. 

11. Absolute Guaranty.  This Guaranty is an absolute, irrevocable, present, and 
continuing one, and the Limited Partner’s agreement to acquire a limited partner interest in the 
Partnership shall be conclusively presumed to have been made in reliance hereon. 

198



6 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement 
60188924.1 

12. Primary Obligation.  This Guaranty is a primary obligation of Guarantor.  No 
irregularity, unenforceability, or invalidity of any of the documents creating the Guaranteed 
Obligations or of any other document, item, matter, action, or circumstance shall impair, release, 
or be a defense to this Guaranty. 

13. Defenses.  Guarantor has no, or hereby waives any, present defense whatsoever to 
any action or proceeding at law or otherwise that may be instituted on this Guaranty, except for 
any defense other than disability that the General Partner may have at law or under the Act. 

14. Limited Partner Enforcement.  In the event the General Partner fails to perform 
any of the Guaranteed Obligations and the Partnership fails to enforce diligently the Guarantor’s 
obligations under this Guaranty, the Limited Partner shall, after giving the General Partner and the 
Guarantor reasonable notice and an opportunity to cure such failure as may be required under 
Paragraph 4 hereof, have all rights and remedies available to the Partnership hereunder or at law 
or in equity to enforce the Guarantor’s guaranty obligations hereunder and to recover any and all 
damages for Guarantor’s breach thereof. 

15. Notices.  Whenever the Partnership, General or Limited Partner thereof, or the 
Guarantor desires to give any notice to any other such party, it shall be sufficient for all purposes 
herein if such notice is personally delivered or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier 
or registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid.  Any notice given in the manner 
provided herein shall be deemed to have been given on the day it is personally delivered, on the 
next business day following the date given to an overnight courier or three (3) business days after 
the date it is deposited in the United States mail.  The Guarantor’s address for receiving notices is 
set forth beneath the Guarantor’s signature on the signature page of this Guaranty and any 
Guarantor may change its or his address for receiving notice by delivering written notice of such 
change to the Partnership and the Limited Partner in the manner provided herein.  Notices to the 
Partnership and the Limited Partner shall be addressed in the manner provided in Section 12.1 of 
the Partnership Agreement. 

16. Governing Law.  The place of execution and delivery of the Partnership 
Agreement and this Guaranty and the place of performance under the Partnership Agreement being 
the Project State, this Guaranty shall be construed and enforced according to the laws of that State. 

17. Interpretation.  If any provision of this Guaranty, or any paragraph, sentence, 
clause, phrase, or word, or the application thereof, in any circumstances, is held invalid, the validity 
of the remainder of this Guaranty shall be construed as if such invalid part were never included 
herein.  The headings in this Guaranty are for convenience or reference only and shall not be 
construed in any way to limit or define the content, scope, or intent of the provisions hereof.  As 
used in this Guaranty, the singular includes the plural, and masculine, feminine, and neuter 
pronouns are fully interchangeable, where the context so requires. 

18. Multiple Parties.  If there is more than one Guarantor, each of them has executed 
and delivered this Guaranty; references herein to “Guarantor” shall mean all such Guarantors, 
individually and collectively, and their obligations hereunder shall be joint and several.  If there is 
more than one General Partner, each of them is identified on the signature page hereof, and 
references herein to “General Partner” shall mean all such General Partners, individually and 

199



7 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement 
60188924.1 

collectively, and the obligations of each of the Guarantors hereunder shall be joint and several with 
respect to performance by all such General Partners under the Partnership Agreement. 

19. Successors and Assigns.  This Guaranty shall be binding on, and the term 
“Guarantor,” as used herein, shall include the successors, assigns, legal representatives, and other 
transferees of Guarantor, including successors by consolidation.  This Guaranty shall inure to the 
benefit of the Partnership’s and the Limited Partner’s successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives. 

20. Termination.  This Guaranty shall terminate and be of no further force or effect at 
such time as the Partnership has terminated and all of the Guaranteed Obligations have been fully 
performed or paid. 

21. Jury Trial Waived.  GUARANTOR HEREBY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL 
BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF 
OR RELATING TO THIS GUARANTY, ANY OTHER PROJECT DOCUMENT, OR THE 
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, 
TORT OR ANY OTHER THEORY).  GUARANTOR CERTIFIES THAT NO 
REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS 
REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD 
NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER. 

 

(signature page follows) 

 

200



S - 1 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement - Signature Page 
60188924.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Guarantor has caused this Guaranty to be duly executed 
as of the date first written above. 

Address for Notices: GUARANTORS: 

Mutual Housing California 
3321 Power Inn Road, Suite 320 
Sacramento, CA 95826 

MUTUAL HOUSING CALIFORNIA, 
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 

 

By:  _________________________________ 
Name:  ______________________________ 
Title:  _______________________________ 
 

Capitol Area Development Authority 
1522 14th Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

CAPITOL AREA DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 
a joint powers authority between the State of California 
and the City of Sacramento 

 

By:  _________________________________ 
Name:  _______________________________ 
Title:  ________________________________ 

 

  

201



S - 2 
Sakura - Guaranty Agreement - Signature Page 
60188924.1 

  

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 

State of California 
County of  ) 

 
 

On  before me,    
(insert name and title of the officer) 

 
personally appeared  , 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in 
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

 
 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 

Signature   (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document. 

202



 1 
 
480.036/653647 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 25 – 15  
 

Adopted by the Capitol Area Development Authority May 23, 2025 
 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTIONS 
RE: SALE, TRANSFER & FINANCING OF SAKURA 

 
 At a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Directors of Capitol Area Development 

Authority, a joint powers agency (the “Agency”) held on May 23, 2025, the following 
resolutions were adopted: 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency is the fee owner of the real property located at the East ½ of 

Lot 2, all of Lots 3 and 4 in the Block bounded by 15th and 16th, T and U Streets, in the 
City of Sacramento, California (the “Property”); 

 
WHEREAS, 2000 16th St Associates, L.P., a California limited partnership (the 

“Partnership”) desires to develop, own and operate a residential affordable housing 
development for low income persons (the “Project”) on the Property; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency deems it to be in the best interests of 

the Agency to sell the Property to the Partnership for the approximate purchase price of 
$3,280,000 (the “Purchase Price”) which will be paid by the Partnership obtaining a seller 
takeback loan from the Agency in the amount of the Purchase Price, and to enter into any 
and all documents necessary to sell and transfer the Property to the Partnership, including 
but not limited to a purchase and sale agreement, a grant deed, assignment and assumption 
agreements, and any other agreements and to take all actions necessary to sell and transfer 
the Property to the Partnership; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency deems it to be in the best interests of 

the Agency to provide a seller takeback loan to the Partnership in the amount of the 
Purchase Price (the “Seller Takeback Loan”) and to enter into any and all documents 
required in connection with the Seller Takeback Loan, including but not limited to loan 
agreements, promissory notes, deeds of trust and any other agreements or security 
instruments necessary to consummate the Seller Takeback Loan; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency deems it to be in the best interests of 

the Agency to provide a gap loan to the Partnership in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000 
(the “CADA Gap Loan”) and to enter into any and all documents required in connection 
with the CADA Gap Loan, including but not limited to regulatory agreements, loan 
agreements, promissory notes, deeds of trust and any other agreements or security 
instruments necessary to consummate the CADA Gap Loan; 

Attachment 2

203



 2 
 
480.036/653647 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Partnership desires to borrow: (i) an amount not to exceed $35,000,000 

(the “TE Bond Loan”) funded from the proceeds of tax exempt bonds issued by California 
Public Finance Agency (“CalPFA”), and (ii)  an amount not to exceed $10,000,000 (the 
“Taxable Bond Loan”) funded from the proceeds of taxable bonds issued by CalPFA 
(collectively, the “Bonds”) which will be purchased or funded from one or more loans 
from First Citizens Bank (“FCB”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency may be required to guaranty certain obligations of the 

Partnership with respect to the project financing, including but not limited to execute 
payment and completion guaranties and indemnities (collectively, the “Guaranty”) in favor 
of FCB; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency deems it to be in the best interests of 

the Agency to cause the construction of the Project by the Partnership as a means of 
improving the physical condition of the Project and furthering its purpose of developing 
and operating low income housing including by entering into the transactions described 
herein, to approve and authorize the Project, to guaranty certain obligations of the 
Partnership and to execute the Guaranty in favor of FCB; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Agency shall sell the Property to 

the Partnership for the Purchase Price, and shall enter into any and all documents 
necessary to sell and transfer the Property to the Partnership, including but not limited to a 
purchase and sale agreement, a grant deed, assignment and assumption agreements, and 
any other agreements and to take all actions necessary to sell and transfer the Property to 
the Partnership; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Agency shall provide the Seller Takeback Loan and 

the CADA Gap Loan to the Partnership, and shall enter into any and all documents 
required in connection with the Seller Takeback Loan and the CADA Gap Loan, including 
but not limited to regulatory agreements, loan agreements, promissory notes, deeds of trust 
and any other agreements or security instruments necessary to consummate the Seller 
Takeback Loan and the CADA Gap Loan; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Agency shall assist in the Partnership’s obtaining 

the TE Bond Loan and the Taxable Bond Loan and shall enter into any and all agreements, 
including but not limited to the Guaranty and shall take any and all further actions 
necessary in connection with the Partnership’s obtaining the TE Bond Loan and the 
Taxable Bond Loan; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That any and all acts of any officer of the Agency or any 

person(s) designated and authorized to act by any officer, which acts would have been 

204



 3 
 
480.036/653647 

authorized by the foregoing resolutions except that such acts were taken prior to the 
adoption of this Resolution be, and they hereby are, severally ratified, confirmed, 
approved and adopted as acts in the name and on behalf of the Agency;  

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Executive Director or any officer of the Agency, 

acting alone, on behalf of the Agency in its sole capacity, shall execute any and all 
necessary documents, including but not limited to a purchase and sale agreement, a grant 
deed, assignment and assumption agreements, regulatory agreements, loan agreements, 
promissory notes, deeds of trust, guaranties, environmental indemnities, and any other 
agreements or security instruments, and shall take any and all further actions necessary to 
consummate the activities described in this Resolution;  

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Secretary or any Board Officer of the Agency is 

authorized to execute and certify any form of resolution required by any lender, investor, 
regulator or other third party involved in the transaction, so long as the Executive Director 
and counsel to the Agency determine that the substance of such resolutions does not 
materially conflict with the substance of this Resolution.  

 
The foregoing Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of 

Directors of Capitol Area Development Authority held on May 23, 2025. 
 

 
 

 
        __________________________ 
        Ann Bailey, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Tara Gandara 
Secretary to the Board of Directors  

  
 

205



1 
 
480.036/653648 

RESOLUTION NO. 25 – 16  
 

Adopted by the Capitol Area Development Authority May 23, 2025 
 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTIONS 
RE: SYNDICATION OF SAKURA 

 
At a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Directors of Capitol Area Development 

Authority, a joint powers agency (the “Agency”) held on May 23, 2025 the following 
resolutions were adopted: 

 
WHEREAS, 2000 16th St Associates, L.P., a California limited partnership (the 

“Partnership”) desires to develop, own and operate a residential affordable housing 
development for low income persons (the “Project”) on the real property located at the 
East ½ of Lot 2, all of Lots 3 and 4 in the Block bounded by 15th and 16th, T and U 
Streets, in the City of Sacramento, California (the “Property”); 
 

WHEREAS, 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC, a California limited liability 
company (“LLC”), an entity formed by Capitol Area Community Development 
Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (“CACDC”), an 
organization affiliated with the Agency, is entering into an amended and restated 
agreement of limited partnership (the “Partnership Agreement”) for the Partnership, as the 
managing general partner, together with 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association LLC, a 
California limited liability company, as the administrative general partner and NEF 
Assignment Corporation, its affiliates, successors, and assigns, as the investor limited 
partner (collectively the “Limited Partner”);  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Agency deems it to be in the best interests of 
the Agency to assist CACDC, LLC and the Partnership in the syndication of the limited 
partnership interests with the Limited Partner and to enter into any and all agreements 
required by the Partnership or the Limited Partner, including but not limited to one or 
more guaranty agreements and any other agreements and to take any and all further actions 
necessary in connection with the syndication of the limited partnership interests; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Agency shall assist CACDC, LLC 

and the Partnership in the syndication of the limited partnership interests with the Limited 
Partner and shall enter into any and all agreements required by the Partnership or the 
Limited Partner, including but not limited to one or more guaranty agreements and any 
other agreements and to take any and all further actions necessary in connection with the 
syndication of the limited partnership interests; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That any and all acts of any officer of the Agency or any 

person(s) designated and authorized to act by any officer, which acts would have been 

Attachment 3

206



2 
 
480.036/653648 

authorized by the foregoing resolutions except that such acts were taken prior to the 
adoption of this Resolution be, and they hereby are, severally ratified, confirmed, 
approved and adopted as acts in the name and on behalf of the Agency;  

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Executive Director or any officer of the Agency, 
acting alone, on behalf of the Agency, in its sole capacity, shall execute any and all 
necessary documents, including, but not limited to, guaranty agreements, and any other 
agreements or security instruments, and shall take any and all further actions necessary to 
consummate the activities described in this Resolution;  

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Secretary or any Board Officer of the Agency is 
authorized to execute and certify any form of resolution required by any lender, investor, 
regulator or other third party involved in the transaction, so long as the Executive Director 
and counsel to the Agency determine that the substance of such resolutions does not 
materially conflict with the substance of this Resolution.  

 
The foregoing Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of 

Directors of Capitol Area Development Authority held on May 23, 2025. 
 

 
 
        __________________________ 
        Ann Bailey, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Tara Gandara 
Secretary to the Board of Directors  

 

207



1 
 
480.036/653763 

RESOLUTION NO. 25 – 04  
 

Adopted by the Capitol Area Community Development Corporation May 23, 2025 
 

CAPITOL AREA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
CORPORATE, LLC AND PARTNERSHIP  

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTIONS AND GRANTING OF AUTHORITY 
RE: ACQUISITION AND FINANCING OF SAKURA 

 
 At a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Directors of Capitol Area Community 

Development Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the 
“Corporation”) held on May 23, 2025 the following resolutions were adopted: 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporation is the sole member and manager of 2000 16th St CACDC 

Association, LLC, a California limited liability company (the “LLC”); 
 
WHEREAS, the LLC is the managing general partner of 2000 16th St Associates, L.P., 

a California limited partnership (the “Partnership”), along with 2000 16th St Mutual 
Housing Association LLC, a California limited liability company (“AGP”), as the 
administrative general partner of the Partnership, and the LLC and the AGP each as the 
initial limited partners of the Partnership; 

 
WHEREAS, Capitol Area Development Authority (“CADA”) owns a fee interest in 

that certain real property located at the East ½ of Lot 2, all of Lots 3 and 4 in the Block 
bounded by 15th and 16th, T and U Streets, in the City of Sacramento, California (the 
“Property”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, on behalf of the Corporation, 

acting in its capacity as the sole member and manager of the LLC, in its capacity as the 
managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to be in the best interest of the 
Partnership to purchase the Property from CADA for the approximate purchase price of 
$3,280,000 (the “Purchase Price”) which will be paid by the Partnership obtaining a seller 
takeback loan from CADA in the amount of the Purchase Price, to enter into a purchase 
and sale agreement with CADA with respect to the Property (the “PSA”) and to execute 
the PSA and any other documents necessary in connection with purchasing the Property, 
including, but not limited to, assignment and assumption agreements, and any other 
agreements and to take all actions necessary to purchase the Property from CADA; 

 
WHEREAS, the Partnership desires to develop, own and operate a residential 

affordable housing development for low income persons (the “Project”) on the Property; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, on behalf of the Corporation, 

acting in its capacity as the sole member and manager of the LLC, in its capacity as the 

Attachment 4

208



2 
 
480.036/653763 

managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to be in the best interest of the 
Partnership to obtain: (i) a loan in an amount not to exceed $35,000,000 (the “TE Bond 
Loan”) funded from the proceeds of tax exempt bonds (the “Tax-Exempt Bonds”) issued 
by California Public Finance Agency (“CalPFA”), and (ii) a loan in an amount not to 
exceed $10,000,000 (the “Taxable Bond Loan”) funded from the proceeds of taxable 
bonds (the “Taxable Bonds”, and together with the Tax-Exempt Bonds, the “Bonds”) 
issued by CalPFA, which Bonds will be purchased by First Citizens Bank (“FCB”), and 
deems it to be in the best interests of the Partnership, the LLC and the Corporation to enter 
into any and all documents required in connection with the Bonds, the TE Bond Loan and 
the Taxable Bond Loan, including, but not limited to, regulatory agreements in connection 
with the Bonds, loan agreements, promissory notes, deeds of trust, pledge agreements, 
assignment agreements, and any other documents necessary to consummate the TE Bond 
Loan and the Taxable Bond Loan.   

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, on behalf of the Corporation, in 

its capacity as the sole member and manager of the LLC, deems it to be in the best 
interests of the LLC to assist the Partnership with obtaining the TE Bond Loan and the 
Taxable Bond Loan, and to enter into any and all documents required by FCB or CalPFA 
in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, security agreements, pledge 
agreements, assignment agreements, and any other agreements necessary to assist the 
Partnership in obtaining the TE Bond Loan and the Taxable Bond Loan; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation deems it to be in the best 

interests of the Corporation to cause the construction of the Project by the Partnership as a 
means of furthering its purpose of developing and operating low income housing including 
by entering into the transactions described herein and to approve and authorize the Project; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 

manager of the LLC, acting as the managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to 
be in the best interests of the Partnership to borrow a permanent loan from the Department 
of Housing and Community Development (“HCD”) in an amount not to exceed 
$26,000,000 under HCD’s AHSC program (the “HCD AHSC Loan”) and to enter into any 
and all documents required in connection with said loan, including but not limited to 
standard agreements, regulatory agreements, loan agreements, promissory notes, deeds of 
trust, and any other documents necessary to consummate the HCD AHSC Loan; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 

manager of the LLC, acting as the managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to 
be in the best interests of the Partnership, for the Partnership to borrow Sacramento 
Municipal Utility District funds from Mutual Housing California in an amount not to 
exceed $600,000 (the “Sponsor Incentives Loan”) and to enter into any and all documents, 
including but not limited to a loan agreement, promissory note and deed of trust, and any 

209



3 
 
480.036/653763 

other agreements or security instruments necessary to obtain the Sponsor Incentives Loan, 
and consummate the activities contemplated in this Resolution and Granting of Authority; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 

manager of the LLC, acting as the managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to be 
in the best interests of the Partnership to borrow a seller takeback loan from CADA in the 
amount of the Purchase Price (the “CADA Seller Takeback Loan”) and to enter into any and 
all documents, including but not limited to a loan agreement, promissory note, deed of trust, 
and any other agreements or security instruments necessary to obtain the CADA Seller 
Takeback Loan, and consummate the activities contemplated in this Resolution and Granting 
of Authority; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 

manager of the LLC, acting as the managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to be 
in the best interests of the Partnership to borrow a gap loan from CADA in an amount not to 
exceed $4,000,000 (the “CADA Gap Loan”) and to enter into any and all documents, including 
but not limited to a regulatory agreement, loan agreement, promissory note, deed of trust, and 
any other agreements or security instruments necessary to obtain the CADA Gap Loan, and 
consummate the activities contemplated in this Resolution and Granting of Authority; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 

manager of the LLC, acting as the managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to be 
in the best interests of the Partnership to enter into certain fee waiver and/or deferral 
documents with Sacramento Area Sewer District (“SASD”), including but not limited to a fee 
waiver agreement, a fee waiver deed of trust, and any other agreements or security instruments 
necessary to consummate the activities contemplated in this Resolution and Granting of 
Authority; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the Partnership shall purchase the 

Property from CADA for the Purchase Price which will be paid by the Partnership 
obtaining a seller takeback loan from CADA in the amount of the Purchase Price, shall 
enter into the PSA and any other documents necessary in connection with purchasing the 
Property, including, but not limited to, assignment and assumption agreements, and any 
other agreements and shall take all actions necessary to purchase the Property from 
CADA; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Partnership shall borrow: 
 
(i)             the TE Bond Loan; 
(ii) the Taxable Bond Loan; 
(iii) the HCD AHSC Loan; 
(iv) the Sponsor Incentives Loan; 
(v) the CADA Seller Takeback Loa; and 

210



4 
 
480.036/653763 

(vi) the CADA Gap Loan 
 
and shall enter into any and all documents necessary to consummate said loans, 

including, but not limited to, regulatory agreements, loan agreements, promissory notes, 
deeds of trust, standard agreements, disbursement agreements, environmental indemnity 
agreements, security agreements, supplemental agreements, replacement reserve 
agreements, tax certificates, pledge agreements, covenants, conditions and restrictions, 
assignment agreements, purchase and transfer agreements, and any other documents 
necessary to consummate the TE Bond Loan, the Taxable Bond Loan, the HCD AHSC 
Loan, the Sponsor Incentives Loan, the CADA Seller Takeback Loan and the CADA Gap 
Loan (collectively, the “Loans”); 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Partnership shall enter into certain fee waiver and/or 

deferral documents with SASD, including but not limited to a fee waiver agreement, a fee 
waiver deed of trust, and any other agreements or security instruments necessary to 
consummate the activities contemplated in this Resolution and Granting of Authority; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the LLC shall assist the Partnership with obtaining the 

TE Bond Loan and Taxable Bond Loan, and shall enter into any and all documents 
required in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, security agreements, pledge 
agreements, assignment agreements, and any other agreements necessary to assist the 
Partnership in obtaining the TE Bond Loan and the Taxable Bond Loan; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That any and all acts of any officer of the Corporation or any 

person(s) designated and authorized to act by any officer, which acts would have been 
authorized by the foregoing resolutions except that such acts were taken prior to the 
adoption of this Resolution and Granting of Authority be, and they hereby are, severally 
ratified, confirmed, approved and adopted as acts in the name and on behalf of the 
Corporation, on its own behalf and in its capacity as sole member and manager of the 
LLC, on its own behalf and in its capacity as the managing general partner of the 
Partnership;  

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the President, or any officer of the Corporation, acting 

alone, on behalf of the Corporation, on its own behalf and in its capacity as the sole 
member and manager of the LLC, on its own behalf and in its capacity as the managing 
general partner of the Partnership, shall execute any and all documents necessary to obtain 
the Loans and to consummate the other transactions described herein, including, but not 
limited to, the PSA, guaranties, environmental indemnities, deeds of trust, promissory 
notes, loan agreements, regulatory agreements, security agreements, pledge agreements, 
assignment agreements, supplemental agreements, fee waiver agreements, replacement 
reserve agreements, tax certificates, covenants, conditions and restrictions, standard 
agreements, disbursement agreements, purchase and transfer agreements, and any other 

211



5 
 
480.036/653763 

agreements or security instruments, and shall take any and all further actions necessary to 
consummate the activities described in this Resolution and Granting of Authority;  

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Secretary or any other officer of the Corporation is 

authorized to execute and certify any form of resolution required by any lender, investor, 
regulator or other third party involved in the transaction, so long as such officer and 
counsel to the Corporation determine that the substance of such resolutions does not 
materially conflict with the substance of this Resolution and Granting of Authority.  

 
The foregoing Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of 

Directors of Capitol Area Community Development Corporation held on May 23, 2025. 
 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Danielle Foster, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Tara Gandara 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 

212



 
 

1 
480.036/653671 

RESOLUTION NO. 25 – 05  
 

Adopted by the Capitol Area Community Development Corporation May 23, 2025 
 

CAPITOL AREA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 CORPORATE, LLC AND PARTNERSHIP  

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTIONS AND GRANTING OF AUTHORITY 
RE: SYNDICATION OF 2000 16TH ST ASSOCIATES, L.P. 

  
At a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Directors of Capitol Area Community 

Development Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the “Corporation”) 
held on May 23, 2025, the following actions were authorized: 
 

WHEREAS, the Corporation is the sole member and manager of 2000 16th St CACDC 
Association, LLC, a California limited liability company (the “LLC”);  

 
WHEREAS, the LLC is the managing general partner of 2000 16th St Associates, L.P., a 

California limited partnership (the “Partnership”), along with 2000 16th St Mutual Housing 
Association LLC, a California limited liability company (“AGP”), as the administrative general 
partner and the LLC and the AGP each as the initial limited partners (in their capacity as limited 
partners, collectively, the “Limited Partner”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporation, acting as the sole member and manager of the LLC, acting 

as the managing general partner of the Partnership, is developing the low-income housing project 
(the “Project”) described in a letter of intent dated [April 4], 2025 (the “Letter of Intent”) made 
by NEF Assignment Corporation, its affiliates, successors, and assigns, as the investor limited 
partner (“NEF”), in the manner and pursuant to the terms and conditions described in the Letter 
of Intent, through a limited partnership in which the LLC will serve as managing general partner, 
the AGP will serve as administrative general partner and NEF will invest as limited partner; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 
manager of the LLC, deems it to be in the best interests of the LLC to enter into an amended and 
restated agreement of limited partnership (the “Partnership Agreement”) for the Partnership as 
the managing general partner, together with AGP as the administrative general partner and NEF 
as the investor limited partner; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 
manager of the LLC, acting as the managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to be in 
the best interests of the Partnership to transfer a 99.99% limited partnership interest to NEF (the 
“Syndication”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 
manager of the LLC, acting as the managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to be in 
the best interests of the Partnership to allow the Limited Partner to withdraw from the 

Attachment 5

213



 
 

2 
480.036/653671 

Partnership as the initial limited partner upon closing of the Syndication; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 
manager of the LLC, acting as the managing general partner of the Partnership, deems it to be in 
the best interests of the Partnership to enter into any and all agreements, including but not limited 
to a development agreement, a partnership management agreement and any other types of 
agreements and to take any and all further actions necessary to close the Syndication; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 

manager of the LLC, deems it to be in the best interests of the LLC to enter into a general partner 
pledge and security agreement, an unconditional guaranty and any other types of agreements and 
to take any and all further actions necessary to close the Syndication; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation, acting as the sole member and 

manager of the LLC, deems it to be in the best interests of the LLC to withdraw from the 
Partnership as an initial limited partner upon admission of NEF, as the investor limiter partner; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:  That the Partnership: (i)  shall transfer a 

99.99% limited partnership interest to NEF, (ii) shall allow the Limited Partner to withdraw from 
the Partnership as the initial limited partner upon closing the Syndication, and (iii) shall enter 
into any and all agreements, including but not limited to a development agreement, a partnership 
management agreement and any other types of agreements and to take any and all further actions 
necessary to close the Syndication; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the LLC shall enter into an amended and restated 

agreement of limited partnership, a general partner pledge and security agreement, an 
unconditional guaranty and any other types of agreements and shall take any and all further 
actions necessary to close the Syndication; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the LLC shall withdraw from the Partnership as the 

initial limited partner upon the admission of NEF as the investor limited partner; 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED: That the President, or any officer of the Corporation, acting 

alone, on behalf of the Corporation, in its sole capacity, in its capacity as the sole member and 
manager of the LLC and in the LLC’s capacity as the managing general partner of the 
Partnership, shall execute any and all necessary documents, including, but not limited to, 
guaranty agreements, indemnities, a development agreement, a partnership management 
agreement, an amended and restated agreement of limited partnership, a general partner pledge 
and security agreement and any other agreements or security instruments, and shall take any and 
all further actions necessary to consummate the activities described in this Resolution; 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That all actions taken in connection with the Syndication by 

the President or any officer of the Corporation, acting in its sole capacity and/or in its capacity as 
the sole member and manager of the LLC, in its sole capacity and/or in its capacity as the 

214



 
 

3 
480.036/653671 

managing general partner of the Partnership, prior to the date of these resolutions is hereby 
approved and ratified; 

 
 FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the Secretary or any Board Officer of the Corporation is 
authorized to execute and certify any form of resolution required by any lender, investor, 
regulator or other third party involved in the transaction, so long as the President and counsel to 
the Corporation determine that the substance of such resolutions does not materially conflict with 
the substance of this Resolution and Granting of Authority.  
 
The foregoing Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of 
Directors of Capitol Area Community Development Corporation held on May 23, 2025. 

 
 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Danielle Foster, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Tara Gandara 
Secretary to the Board of Directors  

 

215



AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

1 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

D
R

AF
T 

 

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor 
where the basis of payment is a Stipulated Sum 

 

AGREEMENT made as of the «TBD » day of «TBD » in the year «two thousand twenty- 
five » 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 

 
BETWEEN the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

 

 
 

and the Contractor: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

 

 
 

for the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 

 

 
 

The Architect: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

 
 
 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document 
has added information 
needed for its completion. 
The author may also have 
revised the text of the 
original AIA standard form. 
An Additions and Deletions 
Report that notes added 
information as well as 
revisions to the standard 
form text is available from 
the author and should be 
reviewed. 

This document has important 
legal consequences. 
Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its completion 
or modification. 

The parties should complete 
A101®–2017, Exhibit A, 
Insurance and Bonds, 
contemporaneously with this 
Agreement. AIA Document 
A201®–2017, General 
Conditions of the Contract 
for Construction, is 
adopted in this document by 
reference. Do not use with 
other general conditions 
unless this document is 
modified. 

 

 
 

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows. 
 
 
 

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any 
portion of this AIA® Document 
to another electronic file is 
prohibited and constitutes a 
violation of copyright laws 
as set forth in the footer of 
this document. 

«2000 16th St Associates, LP »« » 
«3321 Power Inn Road, Suite 320 » 
«Sacramento, CA 95826»« » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 

«Tricorp Group, Inc. »« » 
«2540 Warren Drive, Ste A » 
«Rocklin, CA 95677 » 
«CA Contractor’s License 999443 » 

«Sakura Apartments» 
«2000 16th Street, 1514 & 1516 T Street, 
«Sacramento, CA 95811 
APN: 009-0151-006, -007, and -008. » 

«Kuchman Architects PC» 
«2203 13th Street» 
«Sacramento, CA 95818» 
« » 

Attachment 6

216

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

2 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 
 

1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT 
 

3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
 

4 CONTRACT SUM 
 

5 PAYMENTS 
 

6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
 

8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT A INSURANCE AND BONDS 

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary, and other 
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed 
in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract, and 
are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. The Contract represents the 
entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. An enumeration of the Contract Documents, other than a Modification, appears in 
Article 9. 

 
ARTICLE 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT 
The Contractor shall fully execute the Work described in the Contract Documents, except as specifically indicated in 
the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of others. 

 
ARTICLE 3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
§ 3.1 The date of commencement of the Work shall be: 
(Check one of the following boxes.) 

 
[ « » ] The date of this Agreement. 

 
[ « » ] A date set forth in a notice to proceed issued by the Owner. 

 
[ « X » ] Established as follows: 

(Insert a date or a means to determine the date of commencement of the Work.) 
 

«The Date of Commencement shall be (2) calendar days after issuance of the Notice to Proceed, 
which shall not be issued until Owner has secured all necessary approvals for construction permits, 
and financing has closed. (See also Addendum B-1, items 3, 4 and 5.) » 

 
If a date of commencement of the Work is not selected, then the date of commencement shall be the date of this 
Agreement. 

 
§ 3.2 The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement of the Work. 

 
§ 3.3 Substantial Completion 

217

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

3 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

§ 3.3.1 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall 
achieve Substantial Completion of the entire Work: 
(Check one of the following boxes and complete the necessary information.) 

 
[ « X » ] Not later than « nineteen (19) months » ( « 578 » ) calendar days from the date of commencement of 

the Work. 
 

[ « » ] By the following date: « » 
 

§ 3.3.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work 
are to be completed prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, the Contractor shall achieve Substantial 
Completion of such portions by the following dates: 

 

Portion of Work Substantial Completion Date 
  

 

§ 3.3.3 If the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion as provided in this Section 3.3, liquidated damages, 
if any, shall be assessed as set forth in Section 4.5. 
(See item 3.4 of Addendum A for added paragraph) 

 
ARTICLE 4 CONTRACT SUM 
§ 4.1 The Owner shall pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor’s performance of the 
Contract. The Contract Sum shall be «$29,000,000 » , subject to additions and deductions as provided in the 
Contract Documents. 

 
§ 4.2 Alternates 
§ 4.2.1 Alternates, if any, included in the Contract Sum: 

 
Item Price 

  
 

§ 4.2.2 Subject to the conditions noted below, the following alternates may be accepted by the Owner following 
execution of this Agreement. Upon acceptance, the Owner shall issue a Modification to this Agreement. 
(Insert below each alternate and the conditions that must be met for the Owner to accept the alternate.) 

 
Item Price Conditions for Acceptance 

 

§ 4.3 Allowances, if any, included in the Contract Sum: 
(Identify each allowance.) 

 
Item  Price 
See TBD – List of 
Allowances & Clarifications 

 
§ 4.4 Unit prices, if any: 
(Identify the item and state the unit price and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.) 

 
Item  Units and Limitations  Price per Unit ($0.00) 
Additions by Change Order will be cost plus 
5% for overhead and profit plus 1% for 
insurance and 1% for bonds. 
Deductions by Change Order will be at cost 
plus 1% bond only. 

  

 
 

§ 4.5 Liquidated damages, if any: 

218

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

4 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

(Insert terms and conditions for liquidated damages, if any.) 
 

 «See item 4.5 of Addendum A - Modifying AIA A101-2017»  
 

§ 4.6 Other: 
(Insert provisions for bonus or other incentives, if any, that might result in a change to the Contract Sum.) 

 

 «  »  
 

ARTICLE 5 PAYMENTS 
§ 5.1 Progress Payments 
§ 5.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Owner by the Contractor, the Owner shall make 
progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the Contractor as provided below and elsewhere in the 
Contract Documents. 

 
§ 5.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of 
the month, or as follows: 

 

 

§ 5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the « last » day of a 
month (see 5.1.3 of Addendum A for added verbiage), the Owner shall make payment of the amount certified to the 
Contractor not later than the « twenty fifth » day of the « following » month. If an Application for Payment is 
received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment of the amount certified shall be made by 
the Owner not later than « thirty » (« 30 » ) days after the Architect receives the Application for Payment. 
(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.) 

 
§ 5.1.4 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the 
Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Contract 
Sum among the various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form, and supported 
by such data to substantiate its accuracy, as the Architect may require. This schedule of values shall be used as a 
basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment. 

 
§ 5.1.5 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end 
of the period covered by the Application for Payment. 

 
§ 5.1.6 In accordance with AIA Document A201™–2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, and 
subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be computed as 
follows: 

 
§ 5.1.6.1 The amount of each progress payment shall first include: 

.1 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to completed Work; 

.2 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and 
suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction, or, if approved 
in advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing; and 

.3 That portion of Construction Change Directives that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s 
professional judgment, to be reasonably justified. 

 
§ 5.1.6.2 The amount of each progress payment shall then be reduced by: 

.1 The aggregate of any amounts previously paid by the Owner; 

.2 The amount, if any, for Work that remains uncorrected and for which the Architect has previously 
withheld a Certificate for Payment as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A201–2017; 

.3 Any amount for which the Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier, 
unless the Work has been performed by others the Contractor intends to pay; 

.4 For Work performed or defects discovered since the last payment application, any amount for which 
the Owner may withhold payment, or nullify a Certificate of Payment in whole or in part, as 
provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A201–2017; and 

« » 

219

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

5 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

.5 Retainage withheld pursuant to Section 5.1.7. 
 

§ 5.1.7 Retainage 
§ 5.1.7.1 For each progress payment made prior to Substantial Completion of the Work, the Owner may withhold the 
following amount, as retainage, from the payment otherwise due: 
(Insert a percentage or amount to be withheld as retainage from each Application for Payment. The amount of 
retainage may be limited by governing law.) 

 

 

§ 5.1.7.1.1 The following items are not subject to retainage: 
(Insert any items not subject to the withholding of retainage, such as general conditions, insurance, etc.) 

 

 

§ 5.1.7.2 Reduction or limitation of retainage, if any, shall be as follows: 
(If the retainage established in Section 5.1.7.1 is to be modified prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, 
including modifications for Substantial Completion of portions of the Work as provided in Section 3.3.2, insert 
provisions for such modifications.) 

 

 

§ 5.1.7.3 Except as set forth in this Section 5.1.7.3, upon Substantial Completion of the Work, the Contractor may 
submit an Application for Payment that includes the retainage withheld from prior Applications for Payment 
pursuant to this Section 5.1.7. The Application for Payment submitted at Substantial Completion shall not include 
retainage as follows: 
(Insert any other conditions for release of retainage upon Substantial Completion.) 

 

 «150% of value of Punchlist at Substantial Completion »  
 

§ 5.1.8 If final completion of the Work is materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor, the Owner shall pay 
the Contractor any additional amounts in accordance with Article 9 of AIA Document A201–2017. 

 
§ 5.1.9 Except with the Owner’s prior approval, the Contractor shall not make advance payments to suppliers for 
materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site. 

 
§ 5.2 Final Payment 
§ 5.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the 
Contractor when 

.1 the Contractor has fully performed the Contract except for the Contractor’s responsibility to correct 
Work as provided in Article 12 of AIA Document A201–2017, and to satisfy other requirements, if 
any, which extend beyond final payment; and 

.2 a final Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Owner. 
 

§ 5.2.2 The Owner’s final payment to the Contractor shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the 
Owner’s final Certificate for Payment, or as follows: 

 

«10% 

«No retention shall be held on General Conditions, Insurance and Bond Premiums, costs for early material 
procurement 

« Upon Contractor's request, reduce to 5% at 50% construction completion, Contractor shall notify Owner not less 
than 30 days prior to such request and is the reduction is subject to Owner and Lender approval. 
  
Subject to lender approval and following submission of applicable closeout documents, retention shall be released 
fully for structural concrete, ground improvements, demolition, and site grading scopes within 30 days of completion 
and acceptance of scope of work » 

220

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

6 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

 
§ 6.2 Binding Dispute Resolution 
For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017, the 
method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows: 
(Check the appropriate box.) 

«Artemis Construction   » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 

 «  »  
 

§ 5.3 Interest 
Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate stated 
below, or in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where the Project is 
located. 
 
(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.) 

 

« 5 » % « » 
 

ARTICLE 6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
§ 6.1 Initial Decision Maker 
The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201–2017, unless 
the parties appoint below another individual, not a party to this Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision Maker. 
(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker, 
if other than the Architect.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

[ « » ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201–2017 
 

[ « X » ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 
 

[ « » ] Other (Specify) 
 

« » 
 

If the Owner and Contractor do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in 
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court 
of competent jurisdiction. 

 
ARTICLE 7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 7.1 The Contract may be terminated by the Owner or the Contractor as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document 
A201–2017. 

 
§ 7.1.1 If the Contract is terminated for the Owner’s convenience in accordance with Article 14 of AIA Document 
A201–2017, then the Owner shall pay the Contractor a termination fee as follows: 
(Insert the amount of, or method for determining, the fee, if any, payable to the Contractor following a termination 
for the Owner’s convenience.) 

 

 « Balance of earned unpaid fee for the project »  
 

§ 7.2 The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201–2017. 
 

ARTICLE 8 MISCELLANEOUS  PROVISIONS 
§ 8.1 Where reference is made in this Agreement to a provision of AIA Document A201–2017 or another Contract 
Document, the reference refers to that provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions of the Contract 
Documents. 

221

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

7 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

»  

»See 8.7.1 of Addendum A for added paragraph 
See 8.7.2 of Addendum A for added paragraph 
See 8.7.3 of Addendum A for added paragraphs  

 
 

§ 8.2 The Owner’s representative: 
(Name, address, email address, and other information) 

 

 « Ryan Cassidy, Vice President of Real Estate» 

 
 
§ 8.3 The Contractor’s representative: 
(Name, address, email address, and other information) 

 

 

§ 8.4 Neither the Owner’s nor the Contractor’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ prior notice to the 
other party. 

 
§ 8.5 Insurance and Bonds 
§ 8.5.1 The Owner and the Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance as set forth in AIA Document A101™– 
2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of payment is a Stipulated Sum, 
Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds, and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 

 
§ 8.5.2 The Contractor shall provide bonds as set forth in AIA Document A101™–2017 Exhibit A, and elsewhere in 
the Contract Documents. 

 
§ 8.6 Notice in electronic format, pursuant to Article 1 of AIA Document A201–2017, may be given in accordance 
with a building information modeling exhibit, if completed, or as otherwise set forth below: 
(If other than in accordance with a building information modeling exhibit, insert requirements for delivering notice 
in electronic format such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and whether and how the system will be 
required to generate a read receipt for the transmission.) 

 

 «  
 

§ 8.7 Other provisions: 
 

 «  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE 9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
§ 9.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents: 

.1 AIA Document A101™–2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor 

.2 AIA Document A101™–2017, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds 

.3 AIA Document A201™–2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction 

.4 Building information modeling exhibit, dated as indicated below: 
(Insert the date of the building information modeling exhibit incorporated into this Agreement.)» 

 
 

«2000 16th St Associates, LP» 
«3321 Power Inn Road, Suite 320 » 
«Sacramento, CA 95826» 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
 

«Chris Cormier, President/CEO» 
«Tricorp Group, Inc. » 
«2540 Warren Drive, Ste A » 
«Rocklin, CA 95677 » 

222

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

8 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

 
.5 Drawings 

 
Number  Title  Date 
See Attachment Four – 
Enumeration of Plans and 
Specifications 

  

 
.6 Specifications 

 
 

Section  Title  Date  Pages 
See Attachment Four – 
Enumeration of Plans and 
Specifications 

    

 

.7 Addenda, if any: 
 

Number Date 
  

 
Portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements are not part of the Contract Documents  
unless the bidding or proposal requirements are also enumerated in this Article 9.  

 
.8 Other Exhibits: 

(Check all boxes that apply and include appropriate information identifying the exhibit where 
required.) 

 
[ « » ] AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, dated as indicated below: 

(Insert the date of the E204-2017 incorporated into this Agreement.) 
 

« » 
 

[ « » ] The Sustainability Plan: 
 

Title  Date  Pages 

 
[ « X » ] Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract: 

 
Document  Title  Date  Pages 
See Addendum B-1 – Supplemental 
Conditions 

    

 
.9 Other documents, if any, listed below: 

(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AIA 
Document A201™–2017 provides that the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, 
sample forms, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal 
requirements, and other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or 
proposals, are not part of the Contract Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. Any such 
documents should be listed here only if intended to be part of the Contract Documents.) 
« 
Addendum A – Modifying AIA A 101, 2017 
Addendum A-1 – Modifying AIA A 101, 2017 Exhibit A 
Addendum B – Modifying AIA A201, 2017 
Addendum B-1 – Supplemental Conditions 
Attachment One – List of Allowances & Clarifications 
Attachment Two – List of Exclusions 
Attachment Three – Estimated Cost Breakdown 

Pages  

 

 
 

  

 

 

223

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


AIA Document A101 – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. 
All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract 
Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 11:37:03 ET on 11/25/2024 under Order 
No.2114533832 which expires on 05/13/2025, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with 
the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 

9 

User Notes: (1664578412) 

 

 

Attachment Four – Enumeration of Plans & Specifications 
Attachment Five – Legal Description of Property 
Attachment Six – Preliminary Construction Schedule 

 

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. 
 
 

OWNER: 
 
2000 16th St Associates, LP 
a California limited partnership 
 
By: 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association, LLC, 
 a California limited liability company, 
 its Administrative General Partner 
 
By: Mutual Housing California, 
  a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, 
its sole member/manager 
 
  By:   _____________________________ 
                      Craig Adelman 
   CEO 
 
By:  2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC 
 a California limited liability company, 
 its Managing General Partner 
 
By: Capitol Area Community Development Corporation, 
  a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, 
  its sole member/manager 
 
  By: _____________________________ 
   Danielle Foster 
   President 

 

CONTRACTOR: 
TRICORP GROUP, INC. 

 
 

By:   
Chris Cormier 
President/CEO 
CA Contractor’s License [999443] 

224

mailto:docinfo@aiacontracts.com


 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE/INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE 
(Mutual Housing California) 

 
 I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly elected Secretary of Mutual Housing 
California, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the “Corporation”), which is the sole 
member and manager of 2000 16th St Mutual Housing Association LLC, a California limited liability 
company (the “LLC”), which is the administrative general partner of 2000 16th St Associates, L.P., a 
California limited partnership (the “Partnership”), and that: 
 
1. Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is a correct and complete copy of certain resolutions which were 
duly adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Directors”) of the Corporation and which resolutions: (i) 
have not been amended or supplemented in any respect and are in full force and effect on the date hereof; 
(ii) require no further Corporate action or resolution or consent of the Directors to be effective; and (iii) 
are not inconsistent with the Corporation’s bylaws, the LLC’s operating agreement or the Partnership’s 
limited partnership agreement. 
 
2. Attached hereto as Exhibit “B” is a correct and complete copy of the Amended and Restated 
Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, together with all amendments thereto, as filed with the 
Secretary of State of the State of California, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
3. Attached hereto as Exhibit “C” is a complete and correct copy of the Bylaws of the Corporation, 
together with all amendments thereto, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
4.  Attached hereto as Exhibit “D” is a complete and correct copy of the Articles of Organization of 
the LLC, together with all amendments thereto, if any, as filed with the Secretary of State of the State of 
California, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
5. Attached hereto as Exhibit “E” is a complete and correct copy of the Operating Agreement of the 
LLC, together with all amendments thereto, if any, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
6. Attached hereto as Exhibit “F” is a complete and correct copy of the Certificate of Limited 
Partnership of the Partnership, together with amendments thereto, if any, as filed with the Secretary of 
State of the State of California, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
7. Attached hereto as Exhibit “G” is a complete and correct copy of the Amended and Restated 
Agreement of Limited Partnership of the Partnership, together with all amendments thereto, if any, which 
are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 

Attachment 7

225



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

8. The persons named below hold offices of the Corporation listed below and, pursuant to the 
attached resolutions, and each such person, acting alone, is authorized to execute and deliver certain 
documents on behalf of the Corporation, on its own behalf and in its capacity as the sole member and 
manager of the LLC, on its own behalf and its capacity as the administrative general partner of 
Partnership, and the signatures set forth below opposite each person’s name is such person’s genuine 
signature. 
 
 
NAME  OFFICE/POSITION   SIGNATURE 
 
Craig Adelman Chief Executive Officer 

 
 

 

Corinne Morrison 
 
 

Chief Financial Officer 
 

 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my signature and the seal of the Corporation 
this    day of ____________________. 
 
 
 
      By:       
      Name:  ______________________ 
      Title:  Secretary 

226



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

EXHIBIT A 
RESOLUTIONS 

227



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

EXHIBIT B 
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

228



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

EXHIBIT C 
BYLAWS 

229



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

EXHIBIT D 
ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION 

230



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

EXHIBIT E 
OPERATING AGREEMENT 

231



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

EXHIBIT F 
CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

232



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142) 
 
480.036/654142 

EXHIBIT G 
AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

233



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 8 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CADA (654133) 
 
480.036/654133 

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE/INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE 
(Capitol Area Development Authority) 

 
 I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly elected Secretary of Capitol Area 
Development Authority, a joint powers agency (the “Agency”), and that: 
 
1. Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is a correct and complete copy of certain resolutions which were 
duly adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Directors”) of the Agency and which resolutions: (i) have 
not been amended or supplemented in any respect and are in full force and effect on the date hereof; (ii) 
require no further Agency action or resolution or consent of the Directors to be effective; and (iii) are not 
inconsistent with the Agency’s Joint Powers Agreement. 
 
2. Attached hereto as Exhibit “B” is a correct and complete copy of the Joint Powers Agreement of 
the Agency, together with all amendments thereto, if any, which are in full force and effect on the date 
hereof. 
 
3. The persons named below hold offices of the Agency listed below and, pursuant to the attached 
resolutions, each such person, acting alone, is authorized to execute and deliver certain documents on 
behalf of the Agency, on its own behalf, and the signatures set forth below opposite each person’s name is 
such person’s genuine signature. 
 

Attachment 8

234



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 8 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CADA (654133) 
 
480.036/654133 

 
 
NAME  OFFICE/POSITION   SIGNATURE 
 

Danielle Foster Executive Director  

   

   

   
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my signature and the seal of the Corporation 
this    day of ____________________. 
 
 
 
      By:       
      Name:  ______________________ 
      Title:  Secretary 

235



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 8 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CADA (654133) 
 
480.036/654133 

EXHIBIT A 
RESOLUTIONS 

236



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 8 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CADA (654133) 
 
480.036/654133 

EXHIBIT B 
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

 
 

237



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE/INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE 
(Capitol Area Community Development Corporation) 

 
 I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly elected Secretary of Capitol Area Community 
Development Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the “Corporation”), which is 
the sole member and manager of 2000 16th St CACDC Association, LLC, a California limited liability 
company (the “LLC”), which is the managing general partner of 2000 16th St Associates, L.P., a 
California limited partnership (the “Partnership”), and that: 
 
1. Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is a correct and complete copy of certain resolutions which were 
duly adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Directors”) of the Corporation and which resolutions: (i) 
have not been amended or supplemented in any respect and are in full force and effect on the date hereof; 
(ii) require no further Corporate action or resolution or consent of the Directors to be effective; and (iii) 
are not inconsistent with the Corporation’s bylaws, the LLC’s operating agreement or the Partnership’s 
limited partnership agreement. 
 
2. Attached hereto as Exhibit “B” is a correct and complete copy of the Articles of Incorporation of 
the Corporation, together with all amendments thereto, if any, as filed with the Secretary of State of the 
State of California, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
3. Attached hereto as Exhibit “C” is a complete and correct copy of the Bylaws of the Corporation, 
together with all amendments thereto, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
4. Attached hereto as Exhibit “D” is a complete and correct copy of the Articles of Organization of 
the LLC, together with all amendments thereto, if any, as filed with the Secretary of State of the State of 
California, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 

 
5. Attached hereto as Exhibit “E” is a complete and correct copy of the Operating Agreement of the 
LLC, together with all amendments thereto, if any, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
6. Attached hereto as Exhibit “F” is a complete and correct copy of the Certificate of Limited 
Partnership of the Partnership, together with amendments thereto, if any, as filed with the Secretary of 
State of the State of California, which are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
7. Attached hereto as Exhibit “G” is a complete and correct copy of the Amended and Restated 
Agreement of Limited Partnership of the Partnership, together with all amendments thereto, if any, which 
are in full force and effect on the date hereof. 
 
8. The persons named below hold offices of the Corporation listed below and, pursuant to the 
attached resolutions, and each such person, acting alone, is authorized to execute and deliver certain 
documents on behalf of the Corporation, on its own behalf and in its capacity as the sole member and 
manager of the LLC, on its own behalf and its capacity as the managing general partner of Partnership, 
and the signatures set forth below opposite each person’s name is such person’s genuine signature. 
 

Attachment 9

238



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

 
 
NAME  OFFICE/POSITION   SIGNATURE 
 

Danielle Foster President  

Marc de la Vergne Vice President  

Noelle Mussen Chief Financial Officer  

Tara Gandara Secretary  
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my signature and the seal of the Corporation 
this    day of ____________________. 
 
 
 
      By:       
      Name:  ______________________ 
      Title:  Secretary 

239



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

EXHIBIT A 
RESOLUTIONS 

240



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

EXHIBIT B 
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

241



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

EXHIBIT C 
BYLAWS 

242



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

EXHIBIT D 
ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION 

243



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

EXHIBIT E 
OPERATING AGREEMENT 

244



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

 
EXHIBIT F 

CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

245



 

Secretary’s Certificate/Item 7 - Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140) 
 
480.036/654140 

EXHIBIT G 
AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

 

246



 
May 14, 2025 
 
TO:   Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA) Board of Directors  
 
SUBJECT: May 23, 2025 Board Meeting 
 AGENDA ITEM 8 
 THIRD AMENDMENT TO SITE 5A DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AUTHORITY AND FREMONT/DOWNTOWN 
SACRAMENTO PARTNERS, L.P. AND MEMORANDUM OF THIRD 
AMENDMENT 

 
CONTACT:    Marc de la Vergne, Director of Sustainability, Placemaking and Special Projects  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Board adopt a resolution (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive Director 
to execute a Third Amendment (Attachment 2) to the Site 5A Disposition and Development 
Agreement between CADA and Fremont/Downtown Partners, L.P. and a Memorandum of Third 
Amendment (Attachment 3).  
 
BACKGROUND 
On June 2,1998 the Board of Directors approved by Resolution No. 98-15 the Disposition and 
Development Agreement for development of Site 5A (16th Street between 0 and P Streets) as a 
mixed-use development of multi-family rental housing and ancillary neighborhood commercial retail 
space. This development is known as the Fremont Building. The developer was Shasta-Downtown 
Sacramento Mixed Use Development, LLC.  
 
On June 11,1999, the Board of Directors approved Amendment 1 to the Disposition and 
Development Agreement (DDA) revising the form of the required corporate guaranty for the 
project. The project cost was $9,803,853. The project included a CADA loan to the project of 
$570,000, which was CADA’s sales price to the developer. Below is the project description.   
 

Table 1 – Project Description 
 

Residential Units 69 
Site Square Feet 38,400 
Building Gross Square 
Feet 

98,976 

Net Residential Square 
Feet 

64,650 

Average Unit Square Feet 937 
Common Areas Square 
Feet 

10,921 

Retail Gross Square Feet 12,295 
Parking Spaces 69 
Affordable Units 11 

247



2 
 

 
The building has been managed by the Garibaldi Company since project completion in 1998. 
 
On August 5, 1999, the Board authorized Amendment 2 to the DDA approving a change to the DDA 
Schedule of Performances and authorizing Sotiris Kolokotronis to provide the project guaranty. 
 
In 2002, Shasta decided to close its Sacramento offices and dissolve the LLC and its ownership 
position was assigned to Fremont/Downtown Sacramento Partners, LP, which continues to own the 
building today. In January 2002, Shasta/Downtown Sacramento Mixed Use Development, LLC 
assigned its interest in the development documents (DDA) to Fremont/Downtown Sacramento 
Partners, L.P.  
 
In 2006, as part of an earlier project refinancing, CADA and the project owner agreed on a 
$778,155 payoff amount for the CADA loan balance, which the owner made in October 2006, 
bringing the loan balance to zero. 
  
In 2012, the Garibaldi Company assumed Sotiris Kolokotronis’s position as limited partner and co-
general partner of Fremont/Downtown Sacramento Partners, LP. 
  
In April 2025, the Garibaldi Company requested that CADA provide Fremont/Downtown Sacramento 
Partners, LP with certain assistance through another amendment to the DDA, which it requires in 
connection with a proposed refinancing of the project’s permanent loan. That assistance is 
described below.  
 
ANALYSIS 
Fremont/Downtown Sacramento Partners, LP is seeking to refinance its permanent loan at this 
time. The current loan is with Freddie Mac and was originated by Walker Dunlop. This loan matures 
7/1/25.  The new loan will be with Fannie Mae and is also being originated by Walker Dunlop. The 
new loan will have a 7-year term. As part of the underwriting process, Fannie Mae has reviewed the 
owner’s DDA for this project. 
  
As a condition of refinancing the project loan, Fannie Mae is requiring 1) removal of CADA’s right to 
purchase the property in the case of an owner default within the DDA’s terms, and 2) modifications 
to the DDA’s insurance term. 
 
To enable staff to evaluate this request and make a recommendation to the Board, CADA’s counsel 
recommended CADA consider two questions: 1) what is the likelihood of a default happening that 
would trigger the need for CADA to exercise its right under the current, unamended DDA, to 
purchase the property, and 2) would CADA be interested in purchasing the property following a 
default?  
 
The DDA requires timely annual payment to the County of Sacramento of all property taxes owed 
and requires that at all times the assessed value of the property may not fall below a minimum 
threshold amount of $7,070,000.  This provision was included in the current DDA so that CADA 
would be able to rely on minimum annual property tax increment flow from the property to support 
anticipated future CADA projects. The provision will remain in the DDA.  While the Third 
Amendment eliminates CADA’s right to repurchase the property for any default under the DDA, a 
failure to pay the required annual property taxes and a failure to show the assessed value exceeds 
the minimum threshold assessed value, is extremely unlikely.  CADA staff have reviewed the County 
of Sacramento’s property tax records for the property and copies of the owner’s tax bills and 
confirmed that the owners have consistently been paying the required property taxes, that the tax 
payments have consistently exceeded the DDA-required annual floor amount, and that the 
assessed value of the property is double the threshold that would trigger a tax payment to CADA. 

248



3 
 

The annual property tax payments have consistently matched the required County’s billed amounts, 
and the assessed value of the property each year has exceeded the required $7,070,000 floor.  
Currently, the assessed value of the property is $14,126,151.  Based on this decades-long payment 
record and based on the assessed value’s performance since the 1998 project completion, staff 
believes the likelihood of a property tax default happening is extremely small, effectively eliminating 
the need for CADA to repurchase the project.   
 
Regarding the repurchase provision in the current DDA and whether CADA would consider a 
repurchase, even if the DDA were not amended as is being requested, it is doubtful that staff would 
recommend a repurchase in the unlikely event that the developer failed to pay the required amount 
of property tax. A January 2025 appraisal commissioned by the owner valued the property at 
$27,400,000, which is nearly four times the original assessed value, making a hypothetical 
acquisition a very expensive proposition.  Furthermore, CADA’s development priorities do not 
currently include purchasing completed, mostly market-rate, apartment properties.  
 
For these reasons, staff recommends the Board approve the proposed Third Amendment to the 
DDA which strikes Section 9.5 of the DDA, which gave CADA this right to repurchase. This change 
is contained in Section 3 of the Third Amendment, included as Attachment 2.  
 
Fannie Mae’s second request, is for a modification to the DDA’s insurance language to state that in 
the event of a casualty, the owner would be required to restore the property to a good and 
tenantable condition subject to the rights contained in the loan refinance documents of Fannie Mae. 
While this modification is minor and standard for lenders to request, at issue, is the application of 
insurance proceeds. Lenders like having the option of paying off the loan or having the borrower 
re-build with insurance proceeds.  This contradicts what the DDA currently says, so with the 
amendment, CADA is subordinating to what the lender requires for using the insurance proceeds. 
These modifications can be found in Section 2 of the Third Amendment, included as Attachment 2. 
 
Staff and CADA’s counsel support this request by Fannie Mae. 
 
POLICY   
CADA’s policy is to require Board approval of any amendments to project Disposition and 
Development Agreements.  Staff and CADA’s counsel concur on the recommendation that the 
Board approve the requested Third Amendment (Attachment 2) to the DDA, as it allows for the 
refinancing of a thriving community asset that makes regular contributions to CADA’s tax revenue.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
As discussed above, there is no significant risk of a financial impact associated with the 
recommended action.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 
There are no environmental issues associated with this recommended action. It is exempt as an 
administrative action.  
 
CADA STRATEGIC PLAN 
The proposed action addresses the following 2024-2029 CADA Strategic Plan goals:  
 

1. Develop and Collaborate on a variety of housing types and creative projects. 
 
The recommended action supports this goal by providing support to the project owner’s effort to 
refinance its permanent project loan.  Refinancing the loan will enable the owner to secure 
permanent financing for the project at a rate that it finds attractive and that will support the 

249



4 
 

financial viability of the project along a critical corridor within the CADA area of responsibility, the 
16th Street Corridor.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 25-17 
2. Third Amendment to the Disposition and Development Agreement Between CADA and 

Fremont/Downtown Sacramento Partners, L.P., Site 5A 
3. Memorandum of Third Amendment 

250



 Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 25 – 17 

Adopted by the Capitol Area Development Authority May 23, 2025 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO  

EXECUTE THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE DISPOSITION AND  
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (DDA) BETWEEN CADA AND  

FREMONT/DOWNTOWN SACRAMENTO PARTNERS, L.P. FOR  
SITE 5A AND TO EXECUTE THE MEMORANDUM OF THIRD  

AMENDMENT TO THE DDA 
  
WHEREAS, on June 2, 1998 the Board of Directors approved the Disposition and Development 
Agreement (DDA) for development of Site 5A (16th Street between O and P Streets) as multi-
family rental housing and retail space, with developer Shasta-Downtown Mixed Use Development, 
LLC;  
 
WHEREAS, on June 11, 1999 and August 5, 1999, respectively, the Board approved Amendments 
1 and 2 to the DDA; and in April 2025 the project owner requested that CADA approve an 
amendment to the DDA that would enable it to secure a Fannie Mae refinancing of its permanent 
loan;  
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of refinancing the project loan, Fannie Mae is requiring 1) removal 
of CADA’s right to purchase the property in the case of an owner default within the DDA’s 
terms, and 2) modifications to the DDA’s insurance term; 
 
WHEREAS, Developer’s consistent payments since 1998 of the required annual property taxes 
due to the County of Sacramento and the maintenance of a required minimum property assessed 
value have fully met the annual requirements of the DDA; 
 
WHEREAS, Developer’s past performance under the DDA suggests that risk of a default of the 
project’s annual property tax and assessed value provisions in the future is highly unlikely; and 
 
WHEREAS, Fannie Mae’s requested changes to the DDA’s insurance provisions are minor and 
standard for lenders to request. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Capitol Area Development Authority that the 
Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director, or her designee to: 1) execute the 
Third Amendment to the DDA for Site 5A with Fremont/Downtown Sacramento Partners, L.P. and 
2) execute the Memorandum of Third Amendment to the DDA. 
 

_____________________________  
           Ann Bailey, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 

____________________________ 
Tara Gandara 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 

251



4902-3496-5058.5 010080.020   

THIRD AMENDMENT TO DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This Third Amendment to Disposition and Development Agreement ("Third 
Amendment") is entered into on May __, 2025, by and between Capitol Area Development 
Authority, a California joint powers agency (“Authority”), and Fremont/Downtown 
Sacramento Partners, L.P., a California limited partnership (“Developer”). Authority and 
Developer are each individually referred to as a "Party," and collectively as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 
 

 A. On or about June 12, 1998, Authority and Developer’s predecessor, 
Shasta/Downtown Sacramento Mixed Use Development, LLC (“Shasta”), entered into that 
certain Disposition and Development Agreement – Site 5A, for the development of certain real 
property located at 16th & P Streets known as the Fremont Apartments, as amended by that 
certain First Amendment to Disposition and Development Agreement dated September 13, 
1999 (the “First Amendment”), and that certain Second Amendment to Disposition and 
Development Agreement dated September 13, 1999 (“Second Amendment”), collectively 
referred to herein as the “DDA”.     

 B. In January 2002, Shasta assigned its interests in the DDA to Developer, who is 
the current owner of the Property. 

 C. Developer is refinancing the Property and has requested that Authority agree to 
certain changes to the DDA. Authority and Developer wish to enter into this amendment to 
implement those changes, which were approved by Authority. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and 
agreements of the Parties set forth hereinbelow, together with other good and valuable 
consideration received by each of the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by each of the Parties, the Parties do and hereby covenant and agree as set 
forth below. 

AGREEMENT 

 1. Definitions.  All capitalized terms shall have the meaning defined in the DDA 
unless expressly defined to the contrary herein. 

 2. Modification of Restoration Rights. The second sentence of Section 8.1 is hereby 
deleted and replaced with the following:  

In  the  event  of  a  casualty,  Developer  shall,  with  due  diligence,  restore  the 
Property to a good and tenantable condition and fit for use by residential and 
commercial tenants in accordance with the Agreement, subject to provisions of 
this Section, Section 7.3 hereof, and subject to the rights contained in the loan 
documents of senior lender Fannie Mae and of any subsequent senior lender. 

 3. Termination of Authority’s Option to Acquire Property. Section 9.5 of the DDA is 
hereby terminated. 

Attachment 2

252



2 
4902-3496-5058.5 010080.020  

4. No Other Amendments. The Parties agree that there are no other amendments 
to the DDA other than the amendments contained in this Third Amendment, and that all other 
terms and conditions of the DDA are in full force and effect. 

5. Conflict. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the DDA and this Third 
Amendment, the Parties intend that the terms and conditions contained in this Third 
Amendment shall control and prevail. 

6. Authority. Each of the Parties of this Third Amendment personally represents and 
warrants that he or she has full authority to sign this Third Amendment on behalf of the Party for 
which he or she signs. 

7. Counterparts. This Third Amendment may be executed in counterparts, and may 
be delivered by facsimile or other means of electronic transmission, each of which shall be 
deemed an original. 

8. Memorandum of Third Amendment. Upon execution of this Third Amendment, 
the Parties shall cause to be recorded against the title of the Property a Memorandum of Third 
Amendment to Disposition and Development Agreement in a commercially reasonable form 
approved by the Parties. 

(Signatures on Next Page) 

253



3 
4902-3496-5058.5 010080.020  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Third Amendment in 
one or more counterparts, on the date(s) set forth below. 

 

AUTHORITY: 

Capitol Area Development Authority,  
a California joint powers agency   
 
By:  _____________________________   Date: ____________________ 
 Danielle Foster, Executive Director 
 
 
 
DEVELOPER: 
 
Fremont/Downtown Sacramento Partners, L.P., 
a California limited partnership 
 
By:    ____________________    Date: ____________________ 
Name: ____________________ 
Title: ____________________ 
 
 

 

254



4936-7191-7379.2 010080.020  1 
 

No recording fee required pursuant to  
Government Code Section 27383. 
 
Recording Requested by and     
When Recorded Return to: 

Capitol Area Development Authority 
1522 14th Street  
Sacramento, California 95814 
Attention: Executive Director 
______________________________________________________________________ 

    SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE 
 

MEMORANDUM OF THIRD AMENDMENT TO  
DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

SITE 5A 
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF THIRD AMENDMENT TO DISPOSITION AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is made May __, 2025, by and between the Capitol Area 
Development Authority, a California joint powers agency (“Authority”), and Fremont/Downtown 
Sacramento Partners, L.P., a California limited partnership (“Developer”). 

Authority and Developer are parties to that certain Disposition and Development 
Agreement dated June 12, 1998, as amended by that certain First Amendment to Disposition and 
Development Agreement dated September 13, 1999 (the “First Amendment”), and that certain 
Second Amendment to Disposition and Development Agreement dated September 13, 1999 
(“Second Amendment”), and that certain Third Amendment to Disposition and Development 
Agreement dated May __, 2025 (“Third Amendment”) (collectively, the “DDA”), the terms and 
conditions of which are hereby incorporated by this reference as if set forth in full herein.   

A Memorandum of Disposition and Development Agreement, dated August 9, 1999, was 
recorded on September 13, 1999 as Instrument No. 19990913062 in the Official Records of the 
Office of the Sacramento County Recorder. 

The DDA controls the development and use of that certain real property, including 
improvements thereto, situated in the City of Sacramento, County of Sacramento, State of 
California, and legally described as follows: 

[See Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof] 
 
 
 
AUTHORITY: 
 
Capitol Area Development Authority,  
a California joint powers agency 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 

Danielle Foster, Executive Director 

Attachment 3

255



4936-7191-7379.2 010080.020  2 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 
Fremont/Downtown Sacramento Partners, L.P., 
a California limited partnership 
 
By:    ____________________     
Name: ____________________ 
Title: ____________________ 
 
 

256



 

4936-7191-7379.2 010080.020  

MEMORANDUM – Exhibit A 

(Legal Description of Property) 

Real property in the City of Sacramento, County of Sacramento, State of California, described 
as follows: 
 
 
All of Lot 1, the West one-half of Lot 2, the West one-half of Lot 7 and all of Lot 8, in the block 
bounded by “O” and “P”, 16th and 17th Streets of the City of Sacramento, according to the map 
or plan thereof. 

257



May 16, 2025 

TO: Capitol Area Community Development Corporation (CACDC) Board of Directors  
SUBJECT: May 23, 2025, Board Meeting 

AGENDA ITEM 9 
APPOINTMENT OF THE VICE PRESIDENT 

CONTACT PERSON: Tara Gandara, Contracts and Office Manager/Board Secretary 
[CADA]/Secretary [CACDC] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Staff recommends the Capitol Area Community Development Corporation (CACDC) Board of 
Directors adopt the attached resolution (Attachment 1) appointing the Vice President of the CACDC. 

SUMMARY 
CADA recently underwent an internal reorganization in which a new staff member was appointed to 
the Deputy Executive Director role, overseeing Development staff. Accordingly, staff is 
recommending that the new Deputy Executive Director, Josh Palmer, be appointed as CACDC’s Vice 
President.   

BACKGROUND 
The CACDC was established in 2014 for the purpose of facilitating implementation of the Transition 
Plan, then under discussion with the State, which would have allowed the Capitol Area 
Development Authority (CADA) to transition its organizational form from a joint powers authority to 
a nonprofit organization. While discussions regarding the Transition Plan have terminated, the 
CACDC has proven to be a useful legal entity for certain actions that benefit the community, the 
purpose for which the CACDC was established. 

On November 25, 2014, the CACDC received a determination of federal tax-exempt status from the 
IRS and on December 23, 2014, the CACDC received a finding of state tax-exempt status from the 
California Franchise Tax Board. 

Staff recommends that Josh Palmer be appointed as Vice President and all other staff members and 
board members remain the same. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Not Applicable. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
Not Applicable. 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 25-06

258



Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 25 – 06  
 

Adopted by the Capitol Area Community Development Corporation (CACDC) May 23, 2025 
 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  

CAPITOL AREA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  
APPOINTING THE VICE PRESIDENT 

 
  

WHEREAS, CADA named a new Deputy Executive Director, Josh Palmer; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends the CACDC Board appoint Josh Palmer as the CACDC Vice 
President. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Capitol Area 
Community Development Corporation hereby appoints Josh Palmer as Vice President of CACDC. 

 
 
 
 
             
       Danielle Foster, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Tara Gandara, Secretary 

259



It e m 1 2( A) 

 1  

C A D A Str at e gi c Pl a n  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9)               
A d o pt e d M ar c h 2 0 2 4  – A n n u al Pr o gr e ss R e p ort – M a y 2 0 2 5  
                           
 
Hi st or y a n d C o nt e xt:  
As a cit y -st at e j oi nt p o w ers a ut h orit y, C A D A w as i ni � all y e st a blis h e d t o i m pl e m e nt t h e o bj e c � v e s of t h e 
C a pit ol Ar e a Pl a n a n d l at er, t h e R Str e et C orri d or Pl a n, wit h s p e ci fi c o bj e c � v es r el at e d t o t h e u p k e e p a n d 
pr o visi o n of a v ari et y of h o usi n g t y p e s a n d t hri vi n g r et ail. T h e m aj orit y of t h e sit es i d e n � fi e d i n t h e 
C a pit ol Ar e a Pl a n f or r ei n v est m e nt h a v e b e e n d e v el o p e d or ar e i n pr o c e ss, pr o vi di n g t h e o p p ort u nit y f or 
C A D A t o f urt h er it s r ol e as a t h o u g ht p art n er wit h t h e St at e a n d Cit y, a n d ot h er c o m m u nit y p art n ers, 
b ot h i nsi d e a n d o ut si d e it s t w o pr oj e ct ar e as as S a cr a m e nt o f a c es a pi v ot al p oi nt i n it s hist or y.  
 
T h e Cit y is n o w o ut of w h at h as b e e n t h e m o st c h all e n gi n g � m e s of t h e C O VI D -1 9 P a n d e mi c, a p eri o d 
w h e n n o n -ess e n � al b usi n ess e s w er e s h ut d o w n f or a p eri o d of � m e a n d m a n y e m pl o y e e s  s hi � e d t o 
w or ki n g fr o m h o m e. W hil e s o m e w or k ers h a v e r et ur n e d t o b ei n g  d o w nt o w n r e g ul arl y, n ot all h a v e 
r et ur n e d t o a n o ffi c e d e s k a n d m a n y c o n � n u e t o w or k fr o m h o m e t w o or m or e d a ys a w e e k. T his s hi � i n 
t h e w or kf or c e h as r e d u c e d t h e a v er a g e n u m b er of p e o pl e d o w nt o w n d uri n g t h e w e e k b y 4 5 % a n d l e d t o 
m a n y cr e a � v e dis c ussi o ns o n m et h o ds f or bri n gi n g m or e r e si d e nt s, art, a n d e v e nt s d o w nt o w n as w a ys t o 
o ffs et t his si g ni fi c a nt l o ss t o t h e l o c al e c o n o m y. C A D A is p ois e d  t o b e p art of t his r e s p o ns e a n d pri d e s 
it s elf o n i n n o v a � o n a n d c oll a b or a � v e pr o bl e m-s ol vi n g. Wit hi n t h e l ast y e ar, C A D A h as cr e at e d a mi d dl e -
i n c o m e h o usi n g pr o gr a m t o s p e ar h e a d t his e ff ort  of e x p a n di n g h o usi n g o p � o ns wit hi n t h e C e ntr al Cit y 
a n d is p ar � ci p a � n g i n t h e D o w nt o w n S a cr a m e nt o P art n ers hi p -l e d c o n v ers a � o ns, wit h s u p p ort fr o m t h e 
Ur b a n L a n d I ns �t ut e ( U LI),  o n r e -i m a gi ni n g t h e d o w nt o w n.    
 
O ur 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 9 Str at e gi c Pl a n ali g ns wit h o ur missi o n a n d wit h t h e Cit y of S a cr a m e nt o ’s r e c e ntl y-a d o pt e d 
2 0 4 0 G e n er al Pl a n, w hi c h “ s e e ks t o f o st er a m or e s ust ai n a bl e, e q uit a bl e, a n d pr os p er o us cit y f or 
all. ” ( S a cr a m e nt o 2 0 4 0 G e n er al Pl a n, P a g e 1-1, A d o pt e d b y t h e S a cr a m e nt o Cit y C o u n cil o n 2/ 2 7/ 2 0 2 4) 
T h e pl a n's visi o n is f or S a cr a m e nt o t o b e a m o d el of e q uit a bl e a n d s ust ai n a bl e gr o wt h, i n pr o vi di n g a 
r a n g e of h o usi n g o p � o ns, a n d  t o a ct as a r e gi o n al c e nt er f or c ult ur e, di v ersit y, f o o d, a n d p ar ks . 
 
As C A D A s hi � s t h e f o c us of m a n a gi n g it s e xis � n g p or � oli o e v e n m or e t o w ar d s ust ai n a bilit y u p gr a d e s a n d 
l o n g-t er m ass et m a n a g e m e nt d uri n g t his p eri o d, t h e or g a ni z a � o n will c o n � n u e t o i n n o v at e i n pr o vi di n g a 
v ari et y of h o usi n g t y p e s, l e n d e x p er �s e a n d l e a d ers hi p t o l o c al p oli c y dis c ussi o ns a n d d e v el o p m e nt 
m o d el o p p ort u ni � e s, s u p p ort a v ari et y of c o m m u nit y e v e nt s a n d c o n n e c � o n, a n d o ff er hi g h -q u alit y 
pr o p ert y m a n a g e m e nt. C A D A will w or k str at e gi c all y i n ali g n m e nt wit h its f o u n di n g a g e n ci e s, t h e St at e of 
C alif or ni a a n d t h e Cit y of S a cr a m e nt o, a n d c o m m u nit y p art n ers t o c o -cr e at e t h e n e w est v ersi o n of t his 
t hri vi n g cit y.  
 
O v er vi e w  of t h e 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 9 Str at e gi c Pl a n:  
T his d o c u m e nt w or ks i n c o n gr u e n c e wit h t h e or g a ni z a � o n ’s B usi n e ss Pl a n t h at d et ails t h e pr oj e ct s a n d 
a c � o n st e ps wit hi n e a c h of o bj e c � v e s a n d str at e gi e s b el o w, a n d C A D A ’s A n n u al R e p ort t h at s u m m ari z e s 
or g a ni z a � o n al a c c o m plis h m e nt s e a c h y e ar wit hi n e a c h o bj e c � v e ar e a.  
 
C A D A ’s 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 9 Str at e gi c Pl a n f o c us e s o ur a t e n � o n t o t h e f ul fill m e nt of o ur missi o n i n t h e f oll o wi n g 
w a ys:  

I. E ns ur e Fis c al Str e n g t h a n d O p er a � o n al E x c ell e n c e 
II. D eli v er C o m m u nit y D e v el o p m e nt L e a d ers hi p  
III. Pr o vi d e P oli c y a n d I n n o v a � o n L e a d ers hi p  
I V. B e a n E m pl o y er of C h oi c e  

260



It e m 1 2( A) 

 2  

 
Vi si o n St at e m e nt : T hr o u g h i n n o v a � v e p art n ers hi ps a n d cr e a � v e c o m m u nit y d e v el o p m e nt s ol u � o ns, 
b usi n e ss e s a n d r e si d e n t s t hri v e. 
 
Mi s si o n St at e m e nt : B uil d a n d m ai nt ai n vi br a nt, s ust ai n a bl e, mi x e d-us e n ei g h b or h o o ds t h at s u p p ort 
C alif or ni a ’s c a pit al cit y. 
 
T a g Li n e : C A D A C ul � v at e s C o m m u nit y 
 
V al u e s : T h e C A D A t e a m f o c us e s o n o ur pri ori � e s a n d o n e a c h ot h er i n t h e d eli v er y of o ur missi o n.  

1.  A c c o u nt a bilit y : W e li v e o ur et hi cs as i n n o v a � v e c o m m u nit y d e v el o p m e nt l e a d ers, tr a ns p ar e ntl y 
w or ki n g t o a c hi e v e e x c ell e n c e i n c o nstr u c � o n, pr o p ert y m a n a g e m e nt, pl a c e m a ki n g, a n d 
s ust ai n a bilit y, w hil e r e s p o nsi bl y u �li zi n g o ur r e s o ur c e s.  

2.  C u st o m er S er vi c e : W e ar e c o m mi t e d t o cr e a � n g a n d m a n a gi n g q u alit y s p a c e s i n w hi c h p e o pl e 
li v e, w or k, a n d t hri v e. O ur c ust o m er s er vi c e is r e s p o nsi v e a n d r eli a bl e f or cli e nt s, p art n ers, a n d 
c o -w or k ers.  

3.  T e a m w or k : W e c oll a b or at e a n d d e m o nstr at e e m p at h y, u �li zi n g o ur di v ersit y of t al e nt s a n d 
p ers p e c � v e s as o ur str e n gt h w hil e s u p p or � n g e a c h ot h er i n o ur d ail y t as ks a n d pr of e ssi o n al 
gr o wt h, m a ki n g C A D A a n e m pl o y er of c h oi c e.  

 
S u st ai n a bilit y St at e m e nt:  
It is o ur pri orit y t o cr e at e, r e n o v at e, a n d m ai nt ai n r e si d e n � al a n d c o m m er ci al b uil di n gs, str e et s c a p e s, 
a n d p ar ks t h at c o ntri b ut e t o a h e alt h y, s ust ai n a bl e, a ff or d a bl e, a n d a tr a c � v e S a cr a m e nt o. It is o ur g o al 
t o r e d u c e o ur c ar b o n f o ot pri nt a n d w at er us a g e a n d b o o st o ur r esili e n c e i n t h e f a c e of t h e m o u n � n g 
i m p a ct s of cli m at e c h a n g e a n d a c hi e v e a m or e e q uit a bl e a n d s ust ai n a bl e f ut ur e f or o ur t e n a nt s, 
e m pl o y e es, a n d p art n ers, i m pl e m e n � n g n e w t e c h n ol o gi e s a n d i n n o v a � o n.  
 
Di v er sit y, E q uit y a n d I n cl usi o n ( D EI) St at e m e nt:  
C A D A is c o m mi t e d t o a d v a n ci n g di v er sit y, e q uit y, a n d i n cl usi o n. W e r e c o g ni z e t h e hist ori c al a n d c o m pl e x 
cir c u mst a n c e s of bi as a n d i n e q uit y t h at h a v e i m p a ct e d m a n y ar e as of s o ci et y, i n cl u di n g f or m er 
e m pl o y m e nt a n d h o usi n g pr a c � c e s, t hr o u g h o ut t h e c o u ntr y a n d wit hi n S a cr a m e nt o. T hr o u g h o ur 
p oli ci e s, a c � o ns, a n d tr ai ni n g t h at m a k e us a n e m pl o y er of c h oi c e, a n d o ur c o m m u nit y d e v el o p m e nt 
pr oj e ct s a n d pr o gr a m s t h at pr o vi d e c o m m er ci al a n d h o usi n g o p p ort u ni � e s, c o m m u nit y s p a c e s, a n d 
n ei g h b or h o o d a c � v a � o n, w e w or k t o f urt h er pri n ci pl e s of di v ers it y, e q uit y, a n d i n cl usi o n.  
 
W e ar e c o m mi t e d t o e q uit y wit hi n o ur or g a ni z a � o n a n d c o m mit t o:  

1.  I n cr e asi n g o ur or g a ni z a � o n al c a p a cit y t o b e a n e m pl o y er t h at l e a ds i n di v ersit y, e q uit y, i n cl usi o n, 
a n d b el o n gi n g.  

2.  C o m m u ni c a � n g i n w a ys t h at w el c o m e c o m m u nit y  v oi c e s a n d a ut h e n � c n arr a � v e s.  
3.  F or gi n g p art n ers hi ps t o e n h a n c e a n d pr o m ot e e ff ort s t h at r e s ult i n e q uit a bl e o ut c o m e s.  
4.  Ali g ni n g c urr e nt r e s o ur c e s wit h a c � vi � e s t h at f urt h er r e d u c e i n e q ui � e s, eit h er dir e ctl y or 

i n dir e ctl y. 
 
D e fi ni � o n of K e y P erf or m a n c e I n di c at ors ( K PI s):  Q u a n � fi a bl e m e as ur e m e nt s t h at h el p g a u g e C A D A ’s 
p erf or m a n c e t o w ar d s t h e o bj e c � v e s of o ur str at e gi c pl a n.  
 
 
 
 

261



It e m 1 2( A) 

 3  

O bj e c � v e I: E n s ur e Fi s c al Str e n gt h a n d O p er a � o n al E x c ell e n c e  

 
R a � o n al e: M ai nt ai ni n g a str o n g fi n a n ci al f o o � n g all o ws C A D A t h e fl e xi bilit y t o i ni � at e n e w d e v el o p m e nt 
pr oj e ct s, i n cr e as e n ei g h b or h o o d a c � v a � o n, a tr a ct a n d r et ai n a hi g h -q u alit y t e a m, a n d d eli v er o n o ur 
missi o n i m p er a � v es.  
 
Str at e gi e s  

A.  F urt h er or g a ni z a � o n al e ffi ci e n c y w hil e m ai nt ai ni n g a hi g h l e v el of pr o gr a m d eli v er y.  
B.  M a xi mi z e e xis � n g s o ur c e s of r e v e n u e i n b al a n c e wit h C A D A ’s missi o n a n d p u bli c p oli c y 

o bj e c � v e s.  
C.  P urs u e n e w f or m s of r e v e n u e t o s u p p ort e x p a nsi o n of C A D A ’s i m p a ct. 

 
K e y P erf or m a n c e I n di c at ors  

  C o st a n d e ffi ci e n c y g ai ns.  
  R e v e n u e i n cl u di n g gr o wt h i n n e w s o ur c e s.  
  L o w er v a c a n c y r at e s.  
  C ust o m er s a �sf a c � o n , i n cl u di n g i nt er n al a n d e xt er n al c ust o m ers. 
  I m pr o v e d w or ki n g pr a c � c es a n d c o or di n a � o n . 

 
A c � vi � e s a n d Ti m eli n e s Tr a c k e d i n O p er a � o n al B u si n e s s Pl a n  

1.  I m pl e m e nt c o m pr e h e nsi v e s o � w ar e s ol u � o ns t h at str e a mli n e w or k pr o c e ss e s. ( 2 0 2 4) 
a.  W or ki n g wit h c o ns ult a nt S o � R e s o ur c e s, C A D A s h ortlist e d a n d i nt er vi e w e d t w o s o � w ar e 

pr o vi d ers t o tr a c k a n d i nt e gr at e a c c o u n � n g, l e asi n g a n d m ai nt e n a n c e f u n c � o ns.  C A D A 
st a ff is r e c o m m e n di n g s el e c � n g M RI as it h as t h e b e t er s o � w ar e s ol u � o n t o m e et 
C A D A ’s n e e ds.  

2.  C o or di n at e st a ff o n b o ar di n g a n d tr ai ni n g t o e ns ur e f ull a d o p � o n of s yst e ms, pr o c e ss e s, a n d 
v al u e s.  ( 2 0 2 4) 

a.  T h e i m pl e m e nt a � o n of B a m b o o H R h as str e a mli n e d st a ff o n b o ar di n g b y pr o vi di n g n e w 
st a ff t h e a bilit y t o e asil y fill o ut p a p er w or k a n d a c c e ss a g e n c y p oli ci e s, tr ai ni n g m at eri als, 
a n d ot h er d o c u m e nt s t hr o u g h a “ o n e st o p s h o p ” di git al e x p eri e n c e. St a ff ar e c o n � n ui n g 
t o fi n d n e w w a ys t o u �li z e t h e B a m b o o H R pl a � or m a n d it s n e w f e at ur e s, as w ell as 
w or ki n g o n i m pl e m e nt a � o n of a J o b S h a d o w pr o gr a m t o all o w n e w a n d c urr e nt st a ff 
m e m b ers t o b e c o m e f a mili ar wit h st a ff a n d d e p art m e nt s wit hi n t h e a g e n c y  o ut si d e of 
t h eir d ail y r ol e. T h e J o b S h a d o w pr o gr a m will st art i n s u m m er 2 0 2 5. As p art of t h e 
i nt er vi e w pr o c e ss, t h e E x e c u � v e Dir e ct or r e vi e ws or g a ni z a � o n al missi o n a n d v al u e s wit h 
j o b c a n di d at e s t o e ns ur e ali g n m e nt. 

3.  I m pl e m e nt di git al c o m m u ni c a � o ns a n d s er vic e s f or t e n a nt s t h at s u p p ort s o ur c o m mit m e nt t o 
di v ersit y, i n cl usi o n, e q uit y, a n d b el o n gi n g.  ( 2 0 2 4) 

a.  C A D A ’s n e w s o � w ar e s yst e m, o n c e i m pl e m e nt e d b y t h e e n d of 2 0 2 5, will pr o vi d e a 
r o b ust t e n a nt p ort al t h at will e n a bl e C A D A r e si d e nt s t o m or e e ffi ci e ntl y tr a c k 
m ai nt e n a n c e n e e ds t h e y r e p ort t hr o u g h t h e s yst e m, tr a c k t h eir t e n a nt a c c o u n � n g, a n d 
r e c ei v e C A D A al erts o n m ai nt e n a n c e a n d ot h er m a t ers.  T h e n e w s o � w ar e will als o o ff er 
a r o b ust i nt erf a c e t o t h o s e wis hi n g t o a p pl y f or C A D A h o usi n g w hi c h will e n a bl e t h e m t o 
tr a c k t h e st at us of t h eir a p pli c a � o ns a n d s e e w h at i nf or m a � o n C A D A n e e ds as t h e 
pr o c e ss m o v e s f or w ar d.  F or C A D A ’s a ff or d a bl e pr o gr a m t e n a nt s, t h e s yst e m will m a k e it 
p o ssi bl e t o m or e e ffi ci e ntl y tr a c k t e n a nt i n c o m e r e c er � fi c a � o ns a n d t h e i nf or m a � o n t h at  
is n e e d e d al o n g t h e w a y.  

4.  Str e a mli n e t ur n o v er of v a c a nt u nit s a n d c o m m er ci al s p a c e s.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  

262



It e m 1 2( A) 

 4  

a.  C A D A h as r e w or k e d it s L e asi n g St at us R e p ort ( L S R) t o b e m or e t h or o u g h a n d us er -
fri e n dl y. It n o w cl e arl y i d e n � fi e s t h e s p e ci fi c l e v el of r e h a bilit a � o n  t h at e a c h u nit 
r e q uir e s. St a ff r at es  n e wl y v a c a nt  u nit s fr o m 1 t o 5 , wit h 1 i n di c a � n g t h at a u nit is r e a d y 
t o b e cl e a n e d a n d m ar k et e d a n d  u nit s wit h a 5 r e q uiri n g a c o m pl et e r e h a b , o � e n 
i n cl u di n g d e m oli � o n d o w n t o t h e st u ds. T his i nf or m a � o n pr o vi d e s  L e asi n g a  b e t er  � m e 
e x p e ct a n c y f or e a c h u nit t ur n , all o wi n g t h e m t o pl a n f or t h e m ar k e � n g a n d l e asi n g of 
e a c h u nit .  

b.  C A D A h as als o  c o n � n u e d t o b al a n c e t h e us e of c o ntr a ct ors a n d i n -h o us e st a ff f or 
c o m m er ci al t ur n o v ers . T his b al a n c e d a p pr o a c h  h as l e d t o gr e at er e ffi ci e n c y a n d h as 
s h ort e n e d t h e t e n a nt i m pr o v e m e nt � m eli n e dr a m a � c all y. Wit h o ut si d e c o ntr a ct ors b us y 
o n ot h er j o bs, C A D A  r e c e ntl y c o m pl et e d a n i n -h o us e  t e n a nt i m pr o v e m e nt f or Ir o n R o ot s 
Fit n e ss i n l e ss t h a n t hr e e w e e ks. C A D A will c o n � n u e t o i d e n �f y t e n a nt i m pr o v e m e nt 
e ffi ci e n ci e s w h er e a p pli c a bl e  a n d will b al a n c e o v er all w or k fl o w b as e d o n M ai nt e n a n c e 
st a ffi n g n e e ds a n d a v ail a bilit y.  

5.   U p d at e p oli ci e s a n d pr o c ess e s t o str e a mli n e c o ntr a c � n g a n d l e asi n g pr a c � c e s.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  
a.  T h e B o ar d a ct e d t o u p d at e t h e E x e c u � v e Dir e ct or ’s a ut h orit y t o a p pr o v e c o ntr a ct s of 

$ 1 0 0, 0 0 0 or l ess. Str e a mli ni n g t h e v e n d or q u ali fi c a � o ns a n d c o ntr a ct s pr o c e ss is 
c urr e ntl y u n d er w a y.  

b.  L e asi n g is  u p d a � n g p oli ci e s a n d pr o c e d ur e s t o m a k e t h e l e asi n g e x p eri e n c e m or e 
e ffi ci e nt a n d us er -fri e n dl y. T his i n cl u d es usi n g lis � n g pl a � or m s t o b o o st visi bilit y, 
g at h eri n g pr o s p e ct t e n a nt f e e d b a c k t o a d dr e ss a n y fri c � o n p oi nt s, a n d gi vi n g t h e t e a m 
u p d at e d tr a i ni n g a n d r e s o ur c e s t o e ns ur e c o nsist e n c y a n d r e s p o nsi v e n e ss t hr o u g h o ut 
t h e l e asi n g pr o c e ss.  

6.  P urs u e r e v e n u e wit hi n e xis � n g r e si d e nt r e nt al assist a n c e a n d r el at e d pr o gr a m s.  ( 2 0 2 4) 
a.  L e asi n g h as m a d e t ar g et e d r e nt a dj ust m e nt s b as e d o n m ar k et d at a, bri n gi n g C A D A u nit s  

cl o s er t o m ar k et r at e s o n a v er a g e w hil e s �ll k e e pi n g i n mi n d  t h e risi n g c ost of li vi n g a n d 
r e si d e nt r et e n � o n. U nit s alr e a d y ali g n e d wit h m ar k et r at e s w er e n ot i n cr e as e d t o h el p 
m ai nt ai n a ff or d a bilit y f or c urr e nt r esi d e nt s. C A D A is als o  p art n eri n g wit h c o m m u nit y 
n o n -pr o fit a g e n ci e s, e st a blis hi n g f ull i m pl e m e nt a � o n of S H R A v o u c h er h ol d ers, a n d 
u p d a � n g o ur i n -h o us e r e nt al assist a n c e pr o gr a m t o o ff er b ot h s h ort -t er m h el p f or 
u n e x p e ct e d h ar ds hi ps a n d l o n g er -t er m s u p p ort f or r esi d e nt s wit h o n g oi n g n ee ds.  

7.  C o nsi d er n e w gr a nt f u n di n g o p p ort u ni � es.  ( 2 0 2 5) 
a.  S ust ai n a bilit y  

i. C A D A a p pli e d f or C alif or ni a E n er g y C o m missi o n f u n di n g t hr o u g h S M U D f or 
e n er g y e ffi ci e n c y u p gr a d e s t o S o m ers et P ar ksi d e.  S M U D h as i nf or m e d C A D A 
t h at C E C d et er mi n e d t h at t h e r e q u e st e d u p gr a d e s ar e n ot eli gi bl e u n d er C E C 
g ui d eli n e s s o S M U D is i n v es � g a � n g h o w t o pr o vi d e f u n di n g t hr o u g h it s o w n 
s o ur c e s.  

ii. C A D A h as a p pli e d f or a n d will r e c ei v e assist a n c e fr o m a n E V pr o vi d er, C h ar g i e, t o 
i nst all E V c h ar g ers at all p ar ki n g s p a c e s at fi v e C A D A pr o p er � e s.  T h e y i n cl u d e 
1 5 2 2 N  Str e et , 1 7t h Str e et C o m m o ns, S o m ers et P ar ksi d e, P ar k M a nsi o n a n d t h e 
L o m b ar d, a n d 1 5 0 6 1 5 t h Str e et/ 1 4 2 4 P Str e et.   

iii. C A D A h as i n v e s � g at e d t h e a v ail a bilit y of f u n di n g f or r e pl a c e m e nt of st a n d ar d 
el e ctri c st o v e s wit h i n d u c � o n st o v e s, i n s el e ct e d b uil di n gs. U nf ort u n at el y, p u bli c 
f u n di n g f or t his t y p e of c o n v ersi o n is n ot a v ail a bl e f or a n y of C A D A’s b uil di n g 
e x c e pt f or S o m ers et P ar ksi d e, w hi c h is t h e o nl y C A D A b uil di n g l o c at e d i n a 
d e si g n at e d l o w -i n c o m e c e ns us tr a ct.  

b.  D e v el o p m e nt  

263



It e m 1 2( A) 

 5  

i. C A D A u �li z e s l a n d a n d f u n di n g t o l e v er a g e l o c al, st at e, f e d er al a n d pri v at e l o a ns 
a n d gr a nt s t o d e v el o p a ff or d a bl e h o usi n g pr oj e ct s. O n t h e M o n ar c h pr oj e ct, 
$ 9 8. 9 milli o n  i n o ut si d e fi n a n ci n g w as l e v er a g e d a n d o n t h e S a k ur a pr oj e ct, 
a n ot h er $ 4 5. 7 milli o n  w as br o u g ht t o t h e p art n ers hi p f or d e v el o p m e nt. T h e Cit y 
of S a cr a m e nt o pr o vi d e d $ 3. 3 milli o n of t h e M o n ar c h f u n di n g as a gr a nt t o C A D A.  

ii. C A D A w as a w ar d e d $ 1 0 0, 0 0 0 fr o m t h e Cit y of S a cr a m e nt o f or us e i n t h e Mi d dl e - 
I n c o m e Pr o gr a m.  

c.  Art  
i. C A D A w as a w ar d e d a $ 1 0, 0 0 0 gr a nt fr o m M a y or St ei n b er g ’s o ffi c e i n s u p p ort of 

t h e “ C o m e t o Y o ur S e ns es ” art e x hi bit at 8 0 8 O Str e et. St a ff c o n � n u e s  s e e ki n g 
gr a nt f u n di n g t o s u p p ort c o m m u nit y art.  

8.  S e e k fi n a n ci al p art n ers hi ps a n d cr e a � v e f u n dr aisi n g t h at f urt h er C A D A’s missi o n.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9) 
a.  I n t h e s ust ai n a bilit y r e al m, C A D A h as s e c ur e d f u n di n g t hr o u g h a S M U D pr o gr a m t o f u n d 

e n er g y e ffi ci e n c y pr oj e ct s at 1 3 1 7 O Str e et a n d is w or ki n g t o i d e n �f y a d di � o n al 
pr o p er � e s t h at will q u alif y f or f u n di n g.   

b.  I n d e v el o p m e nt a n d pr o gr a m mi n g, C A D A h as s e c ur e d f u n di n g t hr o u g h t h e Cit y of 
S a cr a m e nt o f or a d mi nistr a � o n of t h e Mi d dl e -I n c o m e Pr o gr a m a n d w as a w ar d e d t h e $ 3. 3 
milli o n o n M o n ar c h dir e ctl y as a gr a nt t o l o a n t o t h e pr oj e ct, wit h r e p a y m e nt c o mi n g 
b a c k t o C A D A.  C A D A is als o p art n eri n g wit h S M U D, S a c R T, C L T R E, A C E R ail, S E T A, a n d 
ot h ers t o p urs u e st at e f u n di n g s o ur c e s f or a ff or d a bl e h o usi n g, tr a ns p ort a � o n, a n � -
d is pl a c e m e nt, w or kf or c e tr ai ni n g, a n d a p art m e nt r etr o fits. 

c.  F or s m all b usi n e ss a n d c o m m er ci al s p a c e s, C A D A is c o n � n ui n g r el a � o ns hi p b uil di n g wit h 
C o m m u nit y D e v el o p m e nt Fi n a n ci n g I ns �t u � o ns, t h e St at e Tr e as ur er ’s O ffi c e, Al c h e mist 
a n d ot h ers t o s u p p ort e m er gi n g e ntr e pr e n e urs.  

d.  I n t h e art s, C A D A is b uil di n g it s r el a � o ns hi p wit h t h e Cr o c k er Art M us e u m a n d w as p ai d 
b y Cr o c k er t o e x hi bit t h e Br e at hi n g Li g ht art pi e c e i n M ar c h 2 0 2 5.  

 

O bj e c � v e II: D eli v er C o m m u nit y D e v el o p m e nt L e a d ers hi p  

 
R a � o n al e: O ur missi o n is f ul fill e d, a n d o ur visi o n is a c hi e v e d b y C A D A t a ki n g a l e a d ers hi p r ol e i n 
c o nstr u c � o n, pr o p ert y m a n a g e m e nt, e n vir o n m e nt al s ust ai n a bilit y, a n d pl a c e m a ki n g i n S a cr a m e nt o.  
 
Str at e gi e s  

A.  D e v el o p a n d c oll a b or at e o n a v ari et y of h o usi n g t y p e s  a n d cr e a � v e p r oj e ct s, i n cl u di n g pr oj e ct s 
o ut si d e of C A D A ’s pr oj e ct ar e as t h at: 1) ali g n wit h St at e a n d Cit y c o m m u nit y d e v el o p m e nt g o als; 
2) i n fl u e n c e cit y pri orit y c orri d ors or ar e as; 3) pr e s e nt a u ni q u e o p p ort u nit y f or p o si � v e i m p a ct; 
4) c o m e wit h dir e ct or i n -ki n d s u p p ort fr o m a p u bli c, n o n -pr o fit, or P BI D p art n er ; a n d/ or 5) c a n 
b e a c c o m m o d at e d wit h o ut n e g a � v el y i m p a c � n g ot h er or g a ni z a � o n al pri ori � es a n d 
c o m mit m e nt s t hr o u g h t h e us e of e xis � n g or e x p a n d e d r e s o ur c e s. 

B.  I n cr e as e h o usi n g a v ail a bilit y b y r e d u ci n g v a c a nci e s a n d e x p a n di n g pr oj e ct s.  
C.  S e q u e n c e  C a pit al I m pr o v e m e nt Pr oj e ct s ( CI Ps) a n d pri ori � z e pr oj e ct s t h at ar e s ust ai n a bl e a n d 

f u n c � o n al f or C A D A’s r e si d e n � al a n d c o m m er ci al t e n a nt s.  
D.  D e m o nstr at e o ur c o m mit m e nt t o e n vir o n m e nt all y s ust ai n a bl e pr a c � c e s  t h at r e d u c e C A D A’s 

c ar b o n f o ot pri nt, r e d u c e w at er c o ns u m p � o ns, a n d i n cr e as e o ur c o m m er ci al a n d r e si d e n � al 
b uil di n gs ’ r e sili e n c e i n t h e f a c e of cli m at e c h a n g e i m p a ct s. 

E.  I d e n �f y a n d f u n d pl a c e m a ki n g art w or k a n d e v e nt s t h at a c � v at e , str e n gt h e n , a n d i n cr e as e t h e 
a tr a c � v e n e ss a n d li v a bilit y of  n ei g h b or h o o ds.  

 
 

264



It e m 1 2( A) 

 6  

K e y P erf or m a n c e I n di c at ors  
  N u m b er of pr oj e ct s p er y e ar , l o c a � o ns a n d c o m m u nit y b e n e fit s 
  T y p e of pr oj e cts a n d l e v els of a ff or d a bilit y (t e n ur e a n d i n c o m e l e v els)  
  D e cr e as e d � m eli n e f or u nit t ur n o v ers a n d f e w er u nit s o n m ai nt e n a n c e h ol ds  
  M ai nt e n a n c e r e s p o ns e � m e  
  S e q u e n c e a n d c o m pl e � o n of CI Ps  
  T e n a nt s ur v e y r e s ult s  
  E n er g y us a g e r e p ort c ar d  
  C o ntr a ct or a n d s u p pl y c h ai n mil e s  
  W ast e r e d u c � o n a n d r e c y cli n g r at e s  
  N u m b er of art w or k  a n d str e et s c a p e  i nstall a � o ns  
  N u m b er of s p o ns or e d/ c o -s p o ns or e d n ei g h b or h o o d a n d t e n a nt e v e nt s  
  N ei g h b or h o o d/t e n a nt e v e nt a t e n d a n c e a n d e x p eri e n c e  
  B u d g et p erf or m a n c e  
  D EI c o m mit m e nt m etri c s  

 
A c � vi � e s a n d Ti m eli n e s Tr a c k e d i n O p er a � o n al B u si n e s s Pl a n  

1.  S e e k o p p ort u ni � e s f or f urt h eri n g o w n ers hi p h o usi n g a n d h o usi n g s er vi n g a r a n g e of i n c o m e 
l e v els t o cr e at e di v ers e a n d i n cl usi v e n ei g h b or h o o ds. ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9) 

a.  C A D A h as p art n er e d o n fi v e mi d dl e -i n c o m e pr oj e ct s t ot ali n g 4 4 5 h o usi n g u nit s a n d is 
c urr e ntl y i n dis c ussi o n o n p o ssi bili � e s  f or f urt h eri n g o w n ers hi p o p � o ns d o w nt o w n. 

2.  R e d u c e a v er a g e r e si d e n � al u nit t ur n o v er � m e b y 5 0 % a n d r e d u c e M ai nt e n a n c e h ol ds o n u nit s.  
( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  

a.  I n M a y of 2 0 2 4, C A D A M ai nt e n a n c e a n d L e asi n g st a ff b e g a n t o r e w or k t h e L e asi n g St at us 
R e p ort ( L S R) wit h t h e g o al of e n a bli n g gr e at er cl arit y a n d m or e t h or o u g h c o m m u ni c a � o n 
b et w e e n t h e d e p art m e nt s. O v er t h e l ast y e ar, C A D A h as i m pr o v e d o v er all e ffi ci e n c y a n d 
h as r e d u c e d m ai nt e n a n c e h ol ds b y t w o w e e ks o n a v er a g e. T his h as all o w e d L e asi n g t o 
r e d u c e t h e v a c a n c y r at e fr o m 1 3. 4 % i n M a y 2 0 2 4 t o 8 % i n M a y 2 0 2 5.  

3.  Str e a mli n e m o v e -o ut i ns p e c � o ns a n d r ef err als t o t h e M ai nt e n a n c e D e p ar tm e nt  t o s p e e d u p 
w or k or d ers a n d  r e d u c e r e p e at w or k i n u nit s t o r e a d y t h e m f or l e asi n g. ( 2 0 2 4) 

a.  Wit h i m pr o v e d c o m m u ni c a � o n, M ai nt e n a n c e a n d L e asi n g st a ff ar e a bl e t o i d e n �f y s c o p e 
a n d � m eli n e f or r e q uir e d w or k. B ot h L e asi n g a n d M ai nt e n a n c e st a ff h a v e m a n a g e d t o 
r e d u c e t h e o v er all h ol d � m e of e a c h u nit b y t w o w e e ks o n a v er a g e.   

4.  D e fi n e a n or g a ni z a � o n al ‘h o usi n g u nit st a n d ar d ’ a m o n gst M ai nt e n a n c e, L e asi n g, a n d M ar k e � n g 
t e a m s t o e ns ur e c o nsist e n c y i n u nit i ns p e c � o ns a n d si g n-o ff f or m ar k e � n g a n d l e asi n g u nit s.  
( 2 0 2 4) 

a.  M ai nt e n a n c e a n d L e asi n g st a ff h a v e a gr e e d t o a h o usi n g st a n d ar d r e q uir e d f or e a c h u nit. 
As a r es ult, C A D A is a bl e t o q ui c kl y i d e n �f y w hi c h u nit s r e q uir e s p e ci fi c r e h a bilit a � o n. 
T h e m aj orit y of u nit t ur ns h a v e r e c ei v e d s o m e u p gr a d es. T y pi c all y, t his u p gr a d e is t h e 
L a mi n at e  Vi n yl Pl a n k ( L V P) fl o ori n g. C A D A st a ff h as wit n e ss e d a n i n cr e as e d us ef ul lif e of 
t h e fl o ori n g alr e a d y, as a r es ult of t h e L V P u p gr a d e fr o m c ar p et.  

5.  Str e a mli n e a n d pl a n v e n d or assi g n m e nts t o r e d u c e w ait � m e f or o ut si d e c o ntr a ct w or k or d ers 
a n d m at eri als.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  

a.  St a ff is c urr e ntl y w or ki n g wit h C A D A a t or n e ys at Kr o ni c k t o cr e at e a pr ef err e d v e n d or 
list f or c o ntr a c � n g. It is C A D A’s g o al t o i d e n �f y t h e b est c o ntr a ct ors t hr o u g h a n R F Q a n d 
R F P pr o c e s s, e ns uri n g t h e hi g h e st q u alit y of w or k c o m pl et e d i n a � m el y f as hi o n  a n d f or a 
c o m p e � � v e pri c e .  

6.  I m pl e m e nt a di git al m at eri als i n v e nt or y tr a c ki n g s yst e m. ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  

265



It e m 1 2( A) 

 7  

a.  O n c e C A D A h as i m pr o v e d a n d m o v e d i nt o it s n e w w ar e h o us e/ m ai nt e n a n c e o ffi c e  a n d 
C A D A h as m a d e it s tr a nsi � o n t o t h e n e w M RI s o � w ar e s yst e m , M ai nt e n a n c e  will t ur n it s 
a t e n � o n t o i m pl e m e n � n g a f ull i n v e nt or y tr a c ki n g s yst e m.  I n t h e m e a n � m e, 
M ai nt e n a n c e h as b e e n s or � n g t hr o u g h c urr e nt i n v e nt or y a n d or g a ni zi n g it m or e 
e ff e c � v el y f or tr a c ki n g.  

7.  C o n d u ct a c o m pr e h e nsi v e n e e ds ass e ss m e nt of all C A D A b uil di n gs t o i nf or m l o n g t er m pl a n ni n g.  
( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  

a.  C A D A hir e d M o ni q u e D a vis -D e R o b er �s t o p erf or m t his ass e ss m e nt, w hi c h w as 
c o m pl et e d i n A u g ust 2 0 2 4. M ai nt e n a n c e st a ff us e d t his a n al ysis t o i nf or m it s Mi d -Y e ar 
B u d g et R e visi o n r e c o m m e n d a � o n t o t h e B o ar d a n d is d oi n g s o a g ai n as t h e F Y 2 5/ 2 6 
b u d g et is pr e p ar e d. K e y g o als i n cl u d e e ns uri n g t h e pl a n ni n g a n d b u d g e � n g of  f u n ds 
n e c e ss ar y t o c o m pl et e  L e v el 1 a n d 2 pri orit y pr oj e ct s fr o m t h e ass e ss m e nt.  St a ff will 
i n c or p or at e L e v el 3 a n d 4  pr oj e ct s  as pr o gr e ss is m a d e o n L e v els 1 a n d 2  a n d b as e d o n 
b uil di n g e n er g y a n d pr oj e ct n e e ds.  

8.  I d e n �f y o p p ort u ni � e s t o bri n g m or e h o usi n g o nli n e t h at a d dr e ss e s l o c al n e e ds a n d e n g a g e i n a 
mi ni m u m of t w o a c � v e d e v el o p m e nt pr oj e ct s p er y e ar.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9) 

a.  I n 2 0 2 4 a n d i nt o 20 2 5, C A D A h as b e e n m o nit ori n g t h e c o nstr u c � o n b y D & S 
D e v el o p m e nt of t h e C y pr e ss pr oj e ct at 1 4 t h & N  Str e ets ; s e c uri n g fi n a n ci n g a n d b uil di n g 
p er mit s f or S a k ur a at 1 6 t h & T Str e et s a n d M o n ar c h at 8 t h & R  Str e et s ; a n d e n g a gi n g i n 
pr e d e v el o p m e nt pl a n ni n g f or  a n e w a ff or d a bl e r e nt al h o usi n g pr oj e ct . B y J ul y 1 st, C A D A 
will b e u n d er c o nstr u c � o n o n S a k ur a a n d M o n ar c h, t ot ali n g 3 7 5 u nit s a n d will b e i n 
p art n ers hi p o n 3 2 3 mi d dl e i n c o m e u nit s a n d 1 4 4 m ar k et r at e u nit s i n t h e C y pr e ss a n d 
mi x e d i n c o m e h o usi n g  pr oj e ct s , f or a t ot al of 8 4 2 u nit s u n d er c o nstr u c � o n.  

9.  E n g a g e c o m m u nit y p art n ers i n i d e n �f yi n g d e v el o p m e nt a n d pl a c e m a ki n g o p p ort u ni � e s.  ( 2 0 2 4-
2 0 2 9) 

a.  C A D A h as p art n er e d wit h t h e Mi dt o w n Ass o ci a � o n ( M A) a n d t h e Cit y ’s P ar ks 
D e p art m e nt i n d e si g ni n g a n d f u n di n g c o nstr u c � o n of a n e w r estr o o m a n d st or a g e f a cilit y 
i n Fr e m o nt P ar k a n d will als o assist M A wit h s o m e f u n di n g f or it s pl a n n e d c or n er 
pl a n � n gs i n Fr e m o nt P ar k , t h e Bl o o m Pr oj e ct. 

b.  C A D A p art n er e d wit h t h e Cit y of S a cr a m e nt o i n bri n gi n g t h e C o m e t o Y o u r S e ns es s p a c e 
t o lif e i n a s p a c e a dj a c e nt t o t h e Y M C A’s n e w d o w nt o w n l o c a � o n at 8 t h & O Str e et s.  

c.  C A D A c o n � n u e d it s w or k wit h t h e C alif or ni a N at ur al R e s o ur c e s A g e n c y i n a n o n g oi n g 
c h al k art m ur al pr o gr a m c e nt er e d i n t h e b uil di n g ’s n ort h pl a z a at 8 t h & O Str e ets.  

d.  C A D A w or k e d wit h Atl as L a b, C art wri g ht E n gi n e eri n g, a n d t h e Cit y of S a cr a m e nt o o n t h e 
d e si g n w or k f or a pl a n n e d r e c o nstr u c � o n of t h e 1 4 t h & O Str e et s i nt ers e c � o n, 
c o m pl e � n g t h e p er mit d e si g n r e vi e w pr o c e ss f or t h e c or n er b ul b -o uts, o ut d o or  s e a � n g 
ar e as, irri g a � o n, a n d pl a n � n gs.  T h e n it t ur n e d it s a t e n � o n t o i d e n �f yi n g a d ur a bl e, 
a tr a c � v e a n d l o w -m ai nt e n a n c e d e si g n f or f o ur cr e a � v e cr o ss w al ks wit h p a v er m a n d al as 
a n d a c e ntr al m a n d al a t o b e sit u at e d i n t h e mi d dl e of t h e i nt ers e c � o n .  T his pr oj e ct will 
f urt h er a c � v at e t h e i nt ers e c � o n, r e d u c e st or m w at er r u n o ff, i n cr e as e bi o di v ersit y, 
i m pr o v e tr a ffi c s af et y, a n d g e n er all y m a k e t h e i nt ers e c � o n m or e a tr a c � v e a n d all uri n g.  

e.  C A D A is w or ki n g wit h a t e a m l e d b y Y ell o w Bri c k R o a d t o d e si g n a p ar ki n g 
l ot/ p erf or m a n c e s p a c e/ v e n d or l o c a � o n f or l o c al ar �sts, f o o d v e n d ors, a n d e v e nt s.  T h e 
h o p e is t o cr e at e a m o d el t h at c a n s er v e t o h el p ot h er pr o p ert y o w n ers i n S a cr a m e nt o 
a c � v at e v a c a nt a n d u n d er u �li z e d  pr o p er � e s.  

f. C A D A is w or ki n g wit h t h e  St at e D e p art m e nt of G e n er al S er vi c e s ( D G S) a n d t h e E a m e s 
f a mil y o n a c o n c e pt t o b e a u �f y t h e st at e p ar ki n g g ar a g e o n t h e 9 0 0 bl o c k of O Str e et 
wit h m ur al art a n d R a y E a m e s bi o gr a p h y i nf or m a � o n.  

266



It e m 1 2( A) 

 8  

1 0.  E st a blis h a n d tr a c k pl a ns f or e n er g y us a g e r e d u c � o n i n e xi s � n g b uil di n gs a n d s ust ai n a bl e 
d e v el o p m e nt i n f ut ur e pr oj e ct s.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9) 

a.  Cr e at e d a n d m e as ur e d a n n u all y wit h t h e C A D A r e p ort t o t h e st at e o n e n er g y us a g e.  
1 1.  R e pl a c e us e of b o tl e d w at er wit h i nst all e d w at er s yst e m s ( e. g., M ai nt e n a n c e D e pt).  ( 2 0 2 4) 

a.  C A D A h as iss u e d r e us a bl e m u gs, w at er b o tl e s a n d l ar g e w at er c u ps wit h it s n e w l o g o t o 
e v er y st a ff m e m b er. M ai nt e n a n c e is i m pl e m e n � n g a s yst e m f or l ar g e w at er j u gs t o r e fill 
w at er c u ps t o a v oi d si n gl e -us e w at er b o tl e s a n d A d mi n is pr o vi di n g m u gs f or h ot d ri n ks 
r at h er t h a n dis p os a bl e c u ps. 

b.  C A D A is als o i m pr o vi n g us a g e of w at er t hr o u g h o ut t h e or g a ni z a � o n a n d r e d u ci n g w at er 
w ast e b y r e pl a ci n g t urf wit h w at er -e ffi ci e nt pl a nt s a n d s wit c hi n g t o s m art w at er s yst e m s 
i n t h e f oll o wi n g ar e as: 

i. 1 4 t h & O Str e ets  
ii. 1 3 t h &  O  Str e ets  
iii. 1 3 0 0 bl o c k of O  Str e et  
i v. 8 0 0 bl o c k of O  Str e et  
v.  1 0 t h Str e et C o m m er ci al  
vi.  1 4 2 0 O  Str e et  
vii.  1 4 2 1 1 5 t h Str e et  
viii.  Fr e m o nt P ar k st or m w at er pl a nt ers  – 1 6 t h Str e et b et w e e n P a n d Q Str e ets  

1 2.  R e d u c e p a p er us a g e t hr o u g h o ut or g a ni z a � o n.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9) 
a.  C A D A h as i n cr e as e d us e of o nli n e l e as e si g ni n g s o � w ar e, w hi c h h as r e d u c e d p a p er 

us a g e. Wit h t h e n e w l e asi n g s o � w ar e t hr o u g h M RI, C A D A will f urt h er r e d u c e p a p er 
us a g e t hr o u g h t h e r e si d e nt p ort al t h at all o ws f or l e as e r e n e w als, m ai nt e n a n c e r e q u e st s, 
o nli n e a p pli c a � o ns, d o c u m e nt s u b mi t als a n d m or e.  

b.  T h e B a m b o o H R pl a � or m pr o vi d e s e m pl o y e e s t h e a bilit y t o el e ctr o ni c all y a c c e ss a n d si g n 
all p ers o n n el d o c u m e nt s, i n cl u di n g o n b o ar di n g d o c u m e nt s, b e n e fit e nr oll m e nt f or ms, 
t a x d o c u m e nt s, a n n u al si g n-o ffs a n d e m pl o y e e h a n d b o o ks, r e s u l � n g i n a s u bst a n � al 
r e d u c � o n of p a p er us a g e f or p ers o n n el fil e s. 

1 3.  I ns �t ut e M ai nt e n a n c e D e part m e nt  tr ai ni n g i n b uil di n g h e a � n g, c o oli n g, p o w er g e n er a � o n, a n d 
li g h � n g s yst e m s t h at s u p p ort cli m at e r e sili e n c y. ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  

a.  M ai nt e n a n c e h as st art e d tr ai ni n g k e y st a ff i n H V A C e x p er �s e a n d is pl a n ni n g t o d o 
a d di � o n al tr ai ni n g t his S u m m er/ F all o n c e v a c a n ci e s ar e fill e d a n d st a ffi n g is i n pl a c e.  

1 4.  P ur c h as e, b uil d o ut a n d o c c u p y a n e w M ai nt e n a n c e D e p art m e nt w ar e h o us e a n d 
M ai nt e n a n c e/ Ass et M a n a g e m e nt o ffi c e t h at stri v e t o b e  z er o n et e n er g y ( Z N E) . ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 7)  

a.  I n 2 0 2 4, C A D A c o m pl et e d t h e p ur c h as e of a w ar e h o us e pr o p ert y at 5 2 5 S Str e et.  Si n c e 
t h e n, it h as c o m pl et e d a c o n c e pt u al d esi g n f or t h e w ar e h o us e a n d m ai nt e n a n c e o ffi c e 
p or � o ns of t h e b uil di n g, as w ell as f o r t h e gr o u n ds.  N e xt st e ps will i n cl u d e s e c uri n g 
c o ntr a ct or i n v ol v e m e nt i n pri ci n g t h e pr oj e ct, v al u e e n gi n e eri n g t h e pr oj e ct if n e c e ss ar y 
t o a c hi e v e t h e b u d g et, a n d t h e n s u b mi � n g t h e d e si g n t o t h e Cit y f or p er mit r e vi e w a n d 
a p pr o v al.  

1 5.  S ei z e o p p ort u ni � e s t o i m pr o v e p u bli c s p a c e s a n d/ or i n c or p or at e e v e nt s, p u bli c art, mi ni 
m us e u m s, a n d S a cr a m e nt o ’s c ult ur e a n d hist or y i nt o a n ei g h b or h o o d.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9) 

a.  Pl a q u e s Pr o gr a m - st a ff is w or ki n g o n a hist ori c al pl a q u e s pr o gr a m t h at pr o vi d e s 
c o nsist e nt st or yt elli n g a n d hist or y r e fl e c � o n at C A D A pr o p er � e s.  

b.  Fr e m o nt P ar k st or m w at er pl a nt ers - c o ntr a ct ors h a v e i nst all e d t h e pl a nt s, i m pr o vi n g t h e 
b e a ut y a n d s ust ai n a bilit y f e at ur e of t h e pl a nt ers.  

c.  O Str e et Pl a n i m pl e m e nt a � o n - st a ff c o n � n u e s m ul � pl e pr oj e ct s d o w n O Str e et t o 
c o n � n u e it s s e ns e of pl a c e a n d c o m m u nit y e nj o y m e nt, w hil e h o n ori n g S a cr a m e nt o 
c ult ur e a n d hist or y.  

267



It e m 1 2( A) 

 9  

d.  M o n ar c h a n d S a k ur a - st a ff h as pl a ns t o i n c or p or at e art a n d S a cr a m e nt o hist or y i nt o 
t h e s e b uil di n gs t o f urt h er o bj e c � v e s t o pr o vi d e a s e ns e of pl a c e. 

1 6.  I m pl e m e nt pr oj e ct s t h at f urt h er c o m m u nit y d e v el o p m e nt g o als of s m all b usi n ess i n c u b a � o n, 
c o m m u nit y -b uil di n g a n d e d u c a � o n, pl a c e m a ki n g a c � vi � e s, a n d n ei g h b or h o o d d e v el o p m e nt. 
( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9) 

a.  I n a d di � o n t o t h e pl a c e m a ki n g n ot e d a b o v e, st a ff h o st e d t h e C o m e t o Y o ur S e ns es 
e x hi bit l ast wi nt er, pr o vi di n g c o m m u nit y b uil di n g a n d pl a c e m a ki n g.  

b.  St a ff is w or ki n g i n p art n ers hi p wit h Al c h e mist C D C t o pl a c e n e w f o o d e ntr e pr e n e urs i nt o 
C A D A b usi n e ss l o c a � o ns , li k e M ez a C alif or ni a  w h o is g oi n g i nt o t h e f or m er Si m o n ’s 
s p a c e.  

c.  St a ff als o w or ks dili g e ntl y wit h s m all l o c al a n d di v ers e b usi n e ss st art -u ps t o pr o vi d e t h e m 
l a u n c h p a d s p a c e i n o ur c o m m u nit y, i n cl u di n g: Li g ht s, C a m er a, C a pit al  m e di a c o o p er a � v e 
t o pr o vi d e c o m m u nit y m e di a a c c e ss, Ir o n R o ot s c o m m u nit y fit n e ss s p a c e, A n c h or & Tr e e 
c o ff e e c oll e c � v e, a n d S a p h a K af e  vi et n a m e s e f o o d.  

d.  C A D A p ar � ci p at e s a n n u all y i n t h e C h al k It U p art f e s � v al, S a c O p e n St u di o s, a n d 
Mi dt o w n S e c o n d S at ur d a y e v e nt s, all w or ki n g t o f urt h er a s e ns e of  c o m m u nit y.  

e.  St a ff p ar � ci p at e s i n U LI F or u m s gr o u ps a n d c o n v ers a � o ns, p ar � ci p at e s i n gr a d u at e 
st u d e nt dis c ussi o ns - S a c St at e a n d U C D a vis, h o st e d a t o ur at t h e H o usi n g C A c o nf er e n c e 
i n M ar c h a n d a t o ur wit h t h e S a cr a m e nt o H o usi n g Alli a n c e. C A D A als o p ar �ci p at es 
r e g ul arl y i n St at e a n d Cit y st a ff tr ai ni n g visit s o n c o m m u nit y d e v el o p m e nt a n d a ff or d a bl e 
h o usi n g. St a ff c o m pl et e s s p e a ki n g e n g a g e m e nt s a n d t e a c h e s a ff or d a bl e h o usi n g 
s e mi n ars a n d l e ct ur e s r e g ul arl y.  

 
 

O bj e c � v e III: Pr o vi d e P oli c y a n d I n n o v a � o n L e a d er s hi p  

 
R a � o n al e:  C A D A is w ell -p osi � o n e d t o b e  a l e a d er i n a d v o c a � n g f or p u bli c h o usi n g p oli c y a n d  t o a d v a n c e 
i n n o v a � v e d e v el o p m e nt pr oj e ct s a n d pr a c � c e s. W e h a v e t h e e x p eri e n c e d st a ff, i nsi g h � ul B o ar d of 
Dir e ct ors, tr ust e d r e p ut a � o n, a n d str o n g r el a � o ns hi ps n e c e ss ar y t o l e a d, p art n er, a n d s h ar e i nf or m a � o n. 
 
Str at e gi e s  

A.  I n fl u e n c e p u bli c p oli c y t h at a d v a n c e s C A D A’s missi o n , p ar � c ul arl y r el at e d t o l o c al a n d st at e 
h o usi n g p oli c y c o n v ers a � o ns , wit h a c o m mit m e nt t o pr o vi di n g a v ari et y of h o usi n g t y p e s (t e n ur e 
a n d a ff or d a bilit y), r e m o vi n g b arri ers t o h o usi n g d e v el o p m e nt, pr es er vi n g a n d e x p a n di n g 
c o m m u nit y d e v el o p m e nt f u n di n g o p p ort u ni � e s, a n d f urt h eri n g i n n o v a � v e c o m m u nit y 
d e v el o p m e nt, pl a c e m a ki n g, a n d e v e nt s pr a c � c e s.  

B.  T ell a n e ff e c � v e st or y t h at c o m m u ni c at es  C A D A ’s c o m m u nit y v al u e  o n it s o w n a n d i n 
c oll a b or a � o n wit h l o c al p art n ers . 

 
K e y P erf or m a n c e I n di c at ors  

  N u m b er of C A D A pr oj e ct t o urs  
  S u m m ari e s of l o c al a n d st at e p oli c y dis c ussi o ns a n d b ills 
  N u m b er of d e v el o p m e nt pr oj e ct s, str e ets c a p e s, art a n d e v e nt s wit h f u n di n g p art n ers hi ps  
  N u m b er or p er c e nt a g e of f a v or a bl e p oli c y m e as ur es p ass e d/s e c ur e d  
  A m o u nt of l e v er a g e d r e s o ur c e s i n c o m m u nit y d e v el o p m e nt pr oj e cts  
  A m o u nt of n e w c o m m er ci al/r et ail s q u ar e f o ot a g e  
  N u m b er of n e w h o usi n g u nit s  
  I n cr e as e d n u m b er of p art n ers / l e v el of c oll a b or a � on 
  I n cr e as e d p u bli c s u p p ort of C A D A i ni � a � v e s 

268



It e m 1 2( A) 

 1 0  

  I n cr e as e d p o si � v e visi bilit y of C A D A ( m e di a, e xt er n al c o nt e nt pr o m o � o ns, et c.) 
 
A c � vi � e s a n d Ti m eli n e s Tr a c k e d  i n O p er a � o n al B u si n e s s Pl a n 

1.  U �li z e  t h e C A D A n e wsl e t er , s o ci al m e di a, a n d m e di a o utl et s t o c o m m u ni c at e C A D A ’s w or k a n d 
d eli v er y of missi o n, e ns uri n g a v ari et y of f or m at s f or a c c e ss a n d i n cl usi o n. ( 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 9) 

a.  C A D A u �li z e s it s n e wsl e t er a n d s o ci al m e di a  pl a � or m s r e g ul arl y f or e v e nt s a n d r esi d e nt 
u p d at e s. C A D A is r e d e si g ni n g t h e n e wsl e t er a n d u p d a � n g it s a p pr o a c h t o e ns ur e gr e at er 
u �li z a � o n a n d a c c e ss.  

2.  M a n a g e C A D A a n d C A C D C b r a n d t hr o u g h l o g o, w e bsit e, a n d ot h er o ut w ar d f a ci n g m at eri als. 
( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  

a.  C A D A h as c o m pl et e d it s l o g o u p d at e a n d is c o m pl e � n g all n e c ess ar y br a n d u p d at es f or 
t h e or g a ni z a � o n. T h e C A D A w e bsit e r e d e si g n is u n d er w a y a n d pr oj e ct e d t o b e 
c o m pl et e d d uri n g F Y 2 5/ 2 6.  

b.  C A C D C is i n t h e pr o c e ss of a f ull r e br a n d a n d l o g o r e d e si g n. St a ff a n � ci p at e s r oll o ut of 
t h e s e u p d at es i n S u m m er 2 0 2 5. 

3.  D e v el o p m at eri als ar o u n d n e w pr oj e cts, pr o gr a m s, a n d e v e nt s t h at hi g hli g ht C A D A ’s w or k a n d 
c ul � v at e c o m m u nit y. ( 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 9) 

a.  Fri e n dl y o n e -p a g e h a n d o uts ar e d e si g n e d a n d u p d at e d o n C A D A pr oj e ct s. St a ff s e e ks 
m e di a o utl et s, c o m m u nit y p art n ers hi ps, r esi d e nt p o s � n gs, fl y ers, a n d ot h er cr e a � v e 
o utl et s f or pr o gr a m s a n d e v e nt s.  

4.  D e v el o p e d u c a � o n al  m at eri als f or l o c al a n d st at e a u di e n c e s t h at c o m m u ni c at e n e c e ss ar y 
i nf or m a � o n t o i nf or m p oli c y a n d f u n di n g dis c ussi o ns a n d f urt h er i n n o v a � v e pr oj e ct s a n d 
p art n ers hi ps. ( 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 9) 

a.  St a ff is e x pl ori n g h a vi n g m ul � pl e m e di u m s f or C A D A ’s A n n u al R e p ort t his y e ar a n d 
c o n � n u e s t o i m pr o v e a n d fi n e t u n e c o m m u ni c a � o n d o c u m e nt s as it w or ks t o r e br a n d 
u n d er t h e Str at e gi c Pl a n  a n d u p d at e d l o g o.  

5.  A ut h or A n n u al R e p ort s t h at hi g hli g ht C A D A’s or g a ni z a � o n al p ur p o s e a n d o ut c o m e d eli v er y e a c h 
y e ar. ( 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 9) 

a.  St a ff is e x pl ori n g h a vi n g m ul � pl e m e di u m s f or C A D A ’s A n n u al R e p ort t his y e ar a n d 
c o n � n u e s t o i m pr o v e a n d fi n e t u n e c o m m u ni c a � o n d o c u m e nt s as it w or ks t o r e br a n d 
u n d er t h e Str at e gi c Pl a n a n d u p d at e d l o g o.  

 
 

O bj e c � v e I V: B e a n E m pl o y er of C h oi c e  

 
R a � o n al e: A c ult ur e of e x c ell e n c e a n d a c c o u nt a bilit y r e q uir e s i n v e st m e nt i n o ur p e o pl e.  
 
Str at e gi e s  

A.  E x p a n d t e a m w or k.  
B.  D e m o nstr at e a c ult ur e of a c c o u nt a bilit y at all l e v els of t h e or g a ni z a � o n.  
C.  D e v el o p e x c ell e n c e i n all t e a m m e m b ers, pr o vi di n g t h e m t h e r e s o ur c es n e c e ss ar y t o s u c c e e d . 
D.  O ff er c o m p e � � v e b e n e fit s a n d s al ar y t h at a tr a ct a n d r et ai n q u ali fi e d i n di vi d u als.  
E.  S u p p ort l o n g -t er m sust ai n a bilit y t hr o u g h l e a d ers hi p s u c c e ssi o n pl a n ni n g of t h e B o ar d a n d 

or g a ni z a � o n.  
F.  N urt ur e a str o n g or g a ni z a � o n al c ult ur e.  
G.  H a v e f u n a n d s h o w e m pl o y e e a p pr e ci a � o n.  

 
K e y P erf or m a n c e I n di c at ors  

  E m pl o y e e r ef err als  

269



It e m 1 2( A) 

 1 1  

  C a n di d at e e n g a g e m e nt r at e s  
  T ur n o v er  
  C o st p er hir e  
  E m pl o y e e “ n et pr o m ot er s c or e ”, a m e as ur e m e nt of e m pl o y e e l o y alt y a n d s a �sf a c � o n  

 
A c � vi � e s a n d Ti m eli n e s Tr a c k e d i n O p er a � o n al B u si n e s s Pl a n  

1.  I m pl e m e nt Str at e gi c Pl a n a n d a c c o m p a n yi n g e m pl o y e e r e c o g ni � o n pr o gr a m  a n d p erf or m a n c e 
e v al u a � o n t o ols  t o f urt h er or g a ni z a � o n al c ult ur e a n d t e a m w or k. ( 2 0 2 4) 

a.  C A D A h as a s p otli g ht pr o gr a m t h at r e c o g ni z e s C A D A st a ff f or o ut st a n di n g w or k t h at 
hi g hli g ht s C A D A ’s st a ff-a d o pt e d s h ar e d v al u e s. S p otli g ht r e ci pi e nt s r e c ei v e gi � c ar ds a n d 
ar e p ut i nt o a r a ffl e f or l a r g er pri z e s.  

b.  St a ff e v al u a � o n t o ols n o w i n c or p or at e or g a ni z a � o n al v al u e s a n d t h e str at e gi c pl a n.  
2.  O ff er r e g ul ar tr ai ni n gs f or st a ff a n d s p e ci ali z e d tr ai ni n g as n e e d e d t o f ost er gr o wt h a n d 

a c c o m plis h or g a ni z a � o n al o bj e c � v e s. ( 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 9) 
a.  St a ff r e c ei v e s r e g ul ar r e q uir e d tr ai ni n gs a n d is o ff er e d a d di � o n al ar e as f or gr o wt h wit hi n 

t h eir gi v e n r ol e a n d/ or wit hi n t h e or g a ni z a � o n. S p e ci fi c all y, t his y e ar L e asi n g h as 
r e c ei v e d e x p a n d e d a ff or d a bl e h o usi n g a n d c o m m er ci al l e asi n g tr ai ni n gs a n d 
M ai nt e n a n c e h as r e c ei v e d e x p a n d e d H V A C tr ai ni n g. T h e s e tr ai ni n gs s u p p ort st a ff gr o wt h 
a n d or g a ni z a � o n al e ffi ci e n ci e s.  

3.  I d e n �f y o p p ort u ni � e s f or C A D A st a ff cr o ss-d e p art m e nt al c oll a b or a � o n a n d l e ar ni n g. ( 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 5)  
a.  C A D A is i m pl e m e n � n g a j o b -s h a d o wi n g pr o gr a m  a n d t hr o u g h m a n a g e m e nt 

r e or g a ni z a � o n of t h e di visi o ns is n o w c o or di n a � n g t o g et h er m or e t h a n e v er. F or 
e x a m pl e, L e asi n g a n d M ai nt e n a n c e h a v e w e e kl y m e e � n gs t o c o or di n at e o n u nit 
t ur n o v ers a n d v a c a n ci e s.  

4.  J o b s h ar e a n d cr o ss-tr ai ni n g f or M ai nt e n a n c e a n d L e asi n g st a ff t o h el p wit h n e e d e d b a c k-u p s kills 
a n d s u c c e ssi o n pl a n ni n g.  ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 5)  

a.  C A D A is r e vi e wi n g t h e n e e d f or s u c c e ssi o n pl a n ni n g g a ps a n d will pr o vi d e s o m e cr o ss -
tr ai ni n g t hr o u g h t h e j o b s h a d o w pr o gr a m. C A D A r e c e ntl y tr ai n e d/ c er � fi e d t w o 
a d di � o n a l m ai nt e n a n c e e m pl o y e e s i n H V A C i n a d di � o n t o a r e c e ntl y-hir e d H V A C 
t e c h ni ci a n a n d l e asi n g a g e nt s will s o o n b e cr o ss-tr ai n e d i n b ot h m ar k et a n d a ff or d a bl e 
h o usi n g l e asi n g.  

5.  St a ffi n g a n d s p a c e n e e ds e v al u a � o n o n a n o n g oi n g b asis wit h st a ff t ur n o v er a n d s hi � s i n o ffi c e 
s p a c e l o c a � o ns  t o e ns ur e a p pr o pri at e r e s o ur c e distri b u � o n. ( 2 0 2 4-2 0 2 9) 

a.  C A D A r e c e ntl y u n d er w e nt a r e or g a ni z a � o n of st a ff a n d is r e cr ui � n g f or t w o p o si � o ns i n 
M ai nt e n a n c e. O n c e t h e s e p o si � o ns ar e fill e d, st a ff will c o n � n u e t o e v al u at e t h e n e e d f or 
a n y st a ffi n g c h a n g e s a n d/ or a d di � o n al st a ff. C A D A is als o t e s � n g t h e us e of i nt er ns f or 
a d di � o n al s u p p ort t o st a ff a n d c o n n e c � o n wit h t h e c o m m u nit y e d u c a � o n  

6.  Cr e at e st a ffi n g m a n u als f or d e p art m e nt s, as n e e d e d, t o e ns ur e c o nsist e n c y, c o or di n a � o n, a n d 
o n b o ar di n g c a p a cit y. ( 2 0 2 4 -2 0 2 5)  

a.  Or g a ni z a � o n al c ust o m er s er vi c e pr o c e d ur e s w er e i m pl e m e nt e d a n d all st a ff w er e 
tr ai n e d. 

b.  P oli ci e s a cr o ss d e p art m e nts ar e b ei n g u p d at e d a n d/ or i ns �t ut e d as n e e d e d t o e ns ur e 
cl e ar c o m m u ni c a � o n a n d c o or di n a � o n a cr o ss d e p art m e nt s.  

7.  D e v el o p a B o ar d tr ai ni n g bi n d er t o s u p p ort n e w m e m b ers a n d l e ss e n t h e l e ar ni n g c ur v e. ( 2 0 2 5 -
2 0 2 6)  

a.  C A D A st a ff will b e w or ki n g o n t his bi n d er i n F Y 2 5/ 2 6.  
 

270



It e m 1 2 ( B) 
 

 
M a y 1 5, 2 0 2 5  
 

T O:   C a pit ol Ar e a D e v el o p m e nt A ut h orit y ( C A D A) B o ar d of Dir e ct or s   
 
S U B J E C T:  M a y 2 3, 2 0 2 5  Bo a r d M e e ti n g  
 A G E N D A I T E M 1 2  – T R A N S M I T T A L  B 
 S T A T U S O F V A C A N T P O S I T I O N S A S R E Q U I R E D B Y A B 2 5 6 1   
 
C O N T A C T P E R S O N:    Jill A z e v e d o, O p er ati o n s Dir e ct or    

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N : 
I nf or m ati o nal  onl y . 
 
B A C K G R O U N D  
C alif or ni a St at e A s s e m bl y Bill ( A B) 2 5 6 1 w a s a p pr o v e d o n S e pt e m b er 2 2,  2 0 2 4, a n d a d d e d § 3 5 0 2. 3 
t o t h e G o v er n m e nt C o d e. T hi s l a w r e q uir e s p u bli c a g e n ci e s t o pr e s e nt t h e st at u s of t h eir v a c a n ci e s 
i n a p u bli c  h e ari n g b ef or e t h eir g o v er ni n g b o d y at l e a st o n c e p er fi s c al y e ar. T h e pr e s e nt ati o n m u st 
b e m a d e pri or t o  t h e a d o pti o n of a fi n al b u d g et f or t h e u p c o mi n g fi s c al y e ar. 
 
D I S C U S S I O N  
T hi s r e p ort i s pr e s e nt e d t o c o m pl y wit h § 3 5 0 2. 3 of t h e G o v er n m e nt C o d e. If t h e n u m b er of j o b 
v a c a n c i e s wit hi n a si n gl e b ar g ai ni n g u nit m e et s or e x c e e d s 2 0 % of t h e t ot al n u m b er of a ut h ori z e d 
f ull-ti m e p o siti o n s, t h e a g e n c y m u st, u p o n r e q u e st of t h e r e c o g ni z e d e m pl o y e e or g a ni z ati o n, 
i n cl u d e s p e cifi e d i nf or m ati o n d uri n g a pu bli c h e ari n g. C A D A d o e s n ot h a v e a n y b ar g ai ni n g u nit s a n d 
i s t h er ef or e e x e m pt fr o m t hi s r e q uir e m e nt. 
 
T h e a g e n c y i s c urr e ntl y i n t h e pr o c e s s of r e cr uiti n g f or t w o o p e n p o siti o n s,  t h e F a ciliti e s 
M ai nt e n a n c e S u p eri nt e n d e nt a n d t h e M ai nt e n a n c e Offi c e M a n a g er  p o siti o n. I nt er vi e w s ar e 
s c h e d ul e d f or t hi s w e e k  a n d  st aff  e x p e ct s  t h e r e cr uit m e nt s t o c o n cl u d e n o l at er t h a n S u m m er 2 0 2 5.   
 
T h e a g e n c y  m u st al s o i d e ntif y a n y c h a n g e s t o p oli ci e s, pr o c e d ur e s or r e cr uit m e nt a cti viti e s t h at 
i m p a ct t h e a g e n c y’ s eff ort s t o r e d u c e it s v a c a n ci e s. T h er e h a v e b e e n n o c h a n g e s t o a n y 
r e cr uit m e nt p oli ci e s or pr o c e d ur e s at t hi s ti m e. 
 
F I N A N C I A L I M P A C T  
N o n e.  
 
E N V I R O N M E N T A L I S S U E S  
N o n e.  
 

271



(i n cl u di n g n o n c a s h c o ntri b uti o n s)

P A G E 1 of 5

M AI L T O:
R e gi str y of C h ariti e s a n d F u n dr ai s er s
P. O. B o x 9 0 3 4 4 7
S a cr a m e nt o, C A 9 4 2 0 3- 4 4 7 0

S T R E E T A D D R E S S:
1 3 0 0 I Str e et
S a cr a m e nt o, C A 9 5 8 1 4

F ail ur e t o s u b mit t hi s r e p ort a n n u all y n o l at er t h a n f o ur m o nt h s a n d fift e e n d a y s aft er t h e e n d of t h e

or g a ni z ati o n' s a c c o u nti n g p eri o d m a y r e s ult i n t h e l o s s of t a x e x e m pti o n a n d t h e a s s e s s m e nt of a

mi ni m u m t a x of $ 8 0 0, pl u s i nt er e st, a n d/ or fi n e s or fili n g p e n alti e s. R e v e n u e & T a x ati o n C o d e s e cti o n

2 3 7 0 3; G o v er n m e nt C o d e s e cti o n 1 2 5 8 6. 1. I R S e xt e n si o n s will b e h o n or e d.
W E B SI T E A D D R E S S:
w w w. o a g. c a. g o v/ c h ariti e s

N a m e of Or g a ni z ati o n

Li st all D B A s a n d n a m e s t h e or g a ni z ati o n u s e s or h a s u s e d

A d dr e s s ( N u m b er a n d Str e et)

Cit y or T o w n, St at e, a n d ZI P C o d e

T el e p h o n e N u m b er E- m ail A d dr e s s

Si g n at ur e of A ut h ori z e d A g e nt Pri nt e d N a m e Titl e D at e

3 2 9 2 9 1
0 5- 0 1- 2 4

S T A T E O F C A LI F O R NI A D E P A R T M E N T O F J U S TI C E
R R F- 1
( R e v. 0 1/ 2 0 2 4) ( F or R e gi str y U s e O nl y)

T ot al R e v e n u e
N o n c a s h C o ntri b uti o n s T ot al A s s et s

S e cti o n s 1 2 5 8 6 a n d 1 2 5 8 7, C alif or ni a G o v er n m e nt C o d e
1 1 C al. C o d e R e g s. s e cti o n s 3 0 1 - 3 0 7, a n d 3 1 0

A N N U A L R E GI S T R A TI O N R E N E W A L F E E S C H E D U L E ( 1 1 C al. C o d e R e g s. s e cti o n s 3 0 1 - 3 0 7, a n d 3 1 0)
M a k e C h e c k P a y a bl e t o D e p art m e nt of J u sti c e

T ot al R e v e n u e F e eT ot al R e v e n u e F e eT ot al R e v e n u e F e e

L e s s t h a n $ 5 0, 0 0 0

B et w e e n $ 5 0, 0 0 0 a n d $ 1 0 0, 0 0 0

B et w e e n $ 1 0 0, 0 0 1 a n d $ 2 5 0, 0 0 0

$ 2 5

$ 5 0

$ 7 5

B et w e e n $ 2 5 0, 0 0 1 a n d $ 1 milli o n

B et w e e n $ 1, 0 0 0, 0 0 1 a n d $ 5 milli o n

B et w e e n $ 5, 0 0 0, 0 0 1 a n d $ 2 0 milli o n

$ 1 0 0

$ 2 0 0

$ 4 0 0

B et w e e n $ 2 0, 0 0 0, 0 0 1 a n d $ 1 0 0 milli o n

B et w e e n $ 1 0 0, 0 0 0, 0 0 1 a n d $ 5 0 0 milli o n

Gr e at er t h a n $ 5 0 0 milli o n

$ 8 0 0

$ 1, 0 0 0

$ 1, 2 0 0

P A R T A - A C TI VI TI E S

F or y o ur m o st r e c e nt f ull a c c o u nti n g p eri o d ( b e gi n ni n g e n di n g ) li st:

$ $ $

Pr o gr a m E x p e n s e s$ T ot al E x p e n s e s$

P A R T B - S T A T E M E N T S R E G A R DI N G O R G A NI Z A TI O N D U RI N G T H E P E RI O D O F T HI S R E P O R T

N ot e:All q u e sti o n s m u st b e a n s w er e d. If y o u a n s w er " y e s " t o a n y of t h e q u e sti o n s b el o w, y o u m u st att a c h a s e p ar at e p a g e
pr o vi di n g a n e x pl a n ati o n a n d d et ail s f or e a c h " y e s " r e s p o n s e. Pl e a s e r e vi e w R R F - 1 i n str u cti o n s f or i nf or m ati o n r e q uir e d. Y e sN o

I d e cl ar e u n d er p e n alt y of p erj ur y t h at I h a v e e x a mi n e d t hi s r e p ort, i n cl u di n g a c c o m p a n yi n g d o c u m e nt s, a n d t o t h e b e st of m y k n o wl e d g e
a n d b eli ef, t h e c o nt e nt i s tr u e, c orr e ct a n d c o m pl et e, a n d I a m a ut h ori z e d t o si g n.

C h e c k if:

C h a n g e of a d dr e s s

A m e n d e d r e p ort

Or g a ni z ati o n r e q u e st s e m ail n otifi c ati o n s

St at e C h arit y R e gi str ati o n N u m b er

C or p or ati o n or Or g a ni z ati o n N o.

F e d er al E m pl o y er I D N o.

1.D uri n g t hi s r e p orti n g p eri o d, w er e t h er e a n y c o ntr a ct s, l o a n s, l e a s e s or ot h er fi n a n ci al tr a n s a cti o n s b et w e e n t h e or g a ni z ati o n

a n d a n y offi c er, dir e ct or or tr u st e e t h er e of, eit h er dir e ctl y or wit h a n e ntit y i n w hi c h a n y s u c h offi c er, dir e ct or or tr u st e e h a d

a n y fi n a n ci al i nt er e st ?

2.D uri n g t hi s r e p orti n g p eri o d, w a s t h er e a n y t h eft, e m b e z zl e m e nt, di v er si o n or mi s u s e of t h e or g a ni z ati o n' s c h arit a bl e pr o p ert y

or f u n d s ?

3.D uri n g t hi s r e p orti n g p eri o d, w er e a n y or g a ni z ati o n f u n d s u s e d t o p a y a n y p e n alt y, fi n e or j u d g m e nt ?

4.D uri n g t hi s r e p orti n g p eri o d, w er e t h e s er vi c e s of a c o m m er ci al f u n dr ai s er, f u n dr ai si n g c o u n s el f or c h arit a bl e p ur p o s e s, or

c o m m er ci al c o v e nt ur er u s e d ?

5.D uri n g t hi s r e p orti n g p eri o d, di d t h e or g a ni z ati o n r e c ei v e a n y g o v er n m e nt al f u n di n g ?

6.D uri n g t hi s r e p orti n g p eri o d, di d t h e or g a ni z ati o n h ol d a r affl e f or c h arit a bl e p ur p o s e s ?

7.D o e s t h e or g a ni z ati o n c o n d u ct a v e hi cl e d o n ati o n pr o gr a m ?

8.Di d t h e or g a ni z ati o n c o n d u ct a n i n d e p e n d e nt a u dit a n d pr e p ar e a u dit e d fi n a n ci al st at e m e nt s i n a c c or d a n c e wit h

g e n er all y a c c e pt e d a c c o u nti n g pri n ci pl e s f or t hi s r e p orti n g p eri o d ?

9.At t h e e n d of t hi s r e p orti n g p eri o d, di d t h e or g a ni z ati o n h ol d r e stri ct e d n et a s s et s, w hil e r e p orti n g n e g ati v e u nr e stri ct e d n et a s s et s ?

A N N U A L R E GI S T R A TI O N R E N E W A L F E E R E P O R T
T O A T T O R N E Y G E N E R A L O F C A LI F O R NI A

1 5 2 2  1 4 T H  S T R E E T

S A C R A M E N T O ,  C A   9 5 8 1 4 3 6 6 5 6 7 2

0 6 , 2 9 7 , 4 7 0

0 2 1 1 1 0 9

C O R P O R A T I O N
C A P I T O L  A R E A  C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T

4 7 - 1 1 5 8 8 0 7

C F ON O E L L E  M U S S E N ,  C P A

9 1 6 - 3 2 4 - 8 4 9 4

X

X

X

0 7 / 0 1 / 2 0 2 3 0 6 / 3 0 / 2 0 2 4

X

X

N M U S S E N @ C A D A N E T . O R G

X

X

X

X

0
1 5 5 , 4 7 2 1 5 8 , 0 9 7

It e m 1 2( C)

272



S T A T E O F C A LI F O R NI A
C T- T R- 1
( R e v. 0 1/ 2 0 2 4)

D E P A R T M E N T O F J U S TI C E
P A G E 1 of 4

( F or R e gi str y U s e O nl y)
M AI L T O:
R e gi str y of C h ariti e s a n d F u n dr ai s er s
P. O. B o x 9 0 3 4 4 7
S a cr a m e nt o, C A 9 4 2 0 3- 4 4 7 0

S T R E E T A D D R E S S:
1 3 0 0 I Str e et
S a cr a m e nt o, C A 9 5 8 1 4

W E B SI T E A D D R E S S:
w w w. o a g. c a. g o v/ c h ariti e s

N a m e of Or g a ni z ati o n

A d dr e s s ( N u m b er a n d Str e et)

Cit y or T o w n, St at e a n d ZI P C o d e

Si g n at ur e of A ut h ori z e d A g e nt Pri nt e d N a m e Titl e D at e

3 2 9 2 9 5
0 5- 0 1- 2 4

S e cti o n 1 2 5 8 6, C alif or ni a G o v er n m e nt C o d e
1 1 C al. C o d e R e g s., S e cti o n 3 0 1

( F O R M C T - T R - 1)

F or a n n u al a c c o u nti n g p eri o d ( b e gi n ni n g e n di n g )

I h er e b y d e cl ar e u n d er p e n alt y of p erj ur y t h at I h a v e e x a mi n e d t hi s r e p ort, i n cl u di n g a c c o m p a n yi n g d o c u m e nt s, a n d, t o t h e b e st of m y
k n o wl e d g e a n d b eli ef, t h e c o nt e nt i s tr u e, c orr e ct a n d c o m pl et e a n d I a m a ut h ori z e d t o si g n.

C o m p e n s ati o n of Offi c er s/ Dir e ct or s

T ot al R e v e n u e l e s s T ot al E x p e n s e s

St at e C h arit y R e gi str ati o n N u m b er

C or p or ati o n or Or g a ni z ati o n N o.

F e d er al E m pl o y er I. D. N o.

C a s h

S a vi n g s

I n v e st m e nt

L a n d/ B uil di n g s

Ot h er A s s et s

$

$

$

$

$

$

A c c o u nt s P a y a bl e

S al ar y P a y a bl e

Ot h er Li a biliti e s

$

$

$

$

$

T O T A L LI A BI LI TI E S

T O T A L A S S E T S

T ot al A s s et s l e s s T ot al Li a biliti e s

C a s h C o ntri b uti o n s

N o n c a s h C o ntri b uti o n s

Pr o gr a m R e v e n u e

I n v e st m e nt s

S p e ci al E v e nt s

Ot h er R e v e n u e

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

C o m p e n s ati o n of St aff

F u n dr ai si n g E x p e n s e s

R e nt

Utiliti e s

S u p pli e s/ P o st a g e

I n s ur a n c e

Ot h er E x p e n s e s

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

T O T A L R E V E N U E

T O T A L E X P E N S E S

A N N U A L T R E A S U R E R' S R E P O R T
A T T O R N E Y G E N E R A L O F C A LI F O R NI A

B A L A N C E S H E E T

A S S E T S LI A BI LI TI E S

F U N D B A L A N C E

R E V E N U E S T A T E M E N T

R E V E N U E E X P E N S E S

N E T R E V E N U E

C A P I T O L  A R E A  C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T
C O R P O R A T I O N

1 5 2 2  1 4 T H  S T R E E T

S A C R A M E N T O ,  C A   9 5 8 1 4

0 2 1 1 1 0 9

3 6 6 5 6 7 2

4 7 - 1 1 5 8 8 0 7

0 7 / 0 1 / 2 0 2 3 0 6 / 3 0 / 2 0 2 4

1 , 8 9 5 , 8 5 3 .

1 , 1 0 1 , 6 1 7 .

3 , 3 0 0 , 0 0 0 .

6 , 2 9 7 , 4 7 0 .

4 , 4 6 9 .

4 , 4 6 9 .

6 , 2 9 3 , 0 0 1 .

- 1 5 8 , 0 9 7 .

1 5 8 , 0 9 7 .

1 5 8 , 0 9 7 .

N O E L L E  M U S S E N ,  C P A C F O

It e m 1 2( C)

273



It e m 1 2 ( D)

M O N T H: M ar c h 2 0 2 5

N o c all s r e c ei v e d f or t h e m o nt h: X

D at e R e si d e nt  C o nt a ct  I nf o Pr o bl e m / O ut c o m e / St aff  I n v ol v e d Mi n s

C as e Ti m e ( Mi n ut es) 0

Writ e u p of I ss u es ( Mi n ut es) 0

T ot al Mi n ut es 0

T ot al H o urs 0

M o nt hl y O m b u d s m a n R e p ort

274



It e m 1 2 ( D)

M O N T H: A pril 2 0 2 5

N o c all s r e c ei v e d f or t h e m o nt h: X

D at e R e si d e nt  C o nt a ct  I nf o Pr o bl e m / O ut c o m e / St aff  I n v ol v e d Mi n s

C as e Ti m e ( Mi n ut es) 0

Writ e u p of I ss u es ( Mi n ut es) 0

T ot al Mi n ut es 0

T ot al H o urs 0

M o nt hl y O m b u d s m a n R e p ort

275



A P A R T M E N T S T A T U S R E P O R T 

A P A R T M E N T S T A T U S R E P O R T 
C u r r e n t 

M o n t h - E n d

P r e vi o u s 

M o n t h - E n d

L a s t Y e a r 

M o n t h - E n d
2 0 2 5 2 0 2 4 2 0 2 3

C U R R E N T M O N T H S T A T U S - O C C U P I E D U N I T S 4 / 2 5 / 2 5 3 / 2 8 / 2 5 4 / 2 6 / 2 4
M o n t hl y 

A v e r a g e

M o n t hl y 

A v e r a g e

M o n t hl y 

A v e r a g e

T o t al U ni t s 7 7 9 7 7 9 7 7 9 7 7 9 7 7 9 7 6 9

O c c u pi e d 7 0 4 7 1 1 6 8 9 7 0 6 6 9 3 7 0 7

P e r c e n t a g e O c c u pi e d 9 0 % 9 1 % 8 8 % 9 1 % 8 9 % 9 2 %

P e r c e n t a g e L e a s e d * 9 2 % 9 3 % 9 2 % 9 3 % 9 6 % 9 6 %

* a dj u s t e d f o r u n r e n t a bl e u ni t s

C U R R E N T M O N T H S T A T U S - V A C A N T U N I T S 4 / 2 5 / 2 5 3 / 2 8 / 2 5 4 / 2 6 / 2 4
M o n t hl y 

A v e r a g e

M o n t hl y 

A v e r a g e

M o n t hl y 

A v e r a g e

V a c a n t 7 5 6 8 9 0 7 0 8 7 6 2

V a c a n t:  R e n t e d P e n di n g M o v e - I n 1 1 1 0 1 4 1 1 1 5 8

V a c a n t:  U n a v ail a bl e U ni t s 4 6 4 9 5 5 3 7 7 0 2 1

V a c a n t:  U ni t s A v ail a bl e t o R e n t 1 7 9 1 3 1 2 2 7 3 3

O n - N o ti c e:  U ni t s t o V a c a t e Wi t hi n 3 0 D a y s 3 4 8 4 1 6 6

C U R R E N T M O N T H A C T I V I T Y - T O T A L 4 / 2 5 / 2 5 3 / 2 8 / 2 5 4 / 2 6 / 2 4 Y T D Y T D Y T D

# of M o v e - O u t s / % of T o t al U ni t s 1 4 1 4 1 5 6 % 1 0 % 1 6 %

# of M o v e - I n s  / % of T o t al U ni t s 1 3 2 0 8 7 % 8 % 2 5 %

# of N e w R e n t al s 1 4 1 3 1 7 5 0 1 2 6 2 0 4

# of 3 0 - D a y N o ti c e s R e c ei v e d / % of T o t al U ni t s 3 3 8 4 % 1 7 % 1 7 %

# of U ni t s b r o u g h t t o m a r k e t  / % of M o v e - O u t s 1 4 1 3 1 4 % 4 5 % 9 7 %

It e m 1 2( E)

276



C A D A A F F O R D A B L E H O U S I N G 

S T A T I S T I C S: A p ril 3 0, 2 0 2 5

C A D A 

R e n t -

A s si s t e d

O t h e r / 

A d di ti o n al 

A s si s t e d 

U ni t s

T o t al 

A s si s t e d 

U ni t s

M a r k e t -

R a t e 

U ni t s

T o t al 

U ni t s

S c a t t e r e d Si t e U ni t s: 3 6 5 0 8 6 4 9 7 5 8 3
S p e ci al M a n a g e m e n t U ni t s: 3 7 5 0 3 7 5 4 0 4 1 5
1 7t h Str e et C o m m o n s 1 2 0 1 2 1 7 2 9

S o m er s et P ar k si d e 2 6 0 2 6 0 2 6

Bi el e Pl a c e 3 4 0 3 4 1 3 5

Fr e m o nt/ Wil s hir e 1 2 0 1 2 2 0 3 2

1 6 1 9 Q R o o mi n g H o u s e 1 5 0 1 5 1 1 6

S o nri s a/ 1 3 2 2 O St I n v e st or s L P 5 7 0 5 7 1 5 8
T h e T err a c e s 6 0 0 6 0 0 6 0
A R Y Pl a c e 1 5 9 0 1 5 9 0 1 5 9

T O T A L C A D A - O W N E D U N I T S: 4 1 1 5 0 4 6 1 5 3 7 9 9 8

M A N A G E D A F F O R D A B L E / M A R K E T %: 4 6 %

C A D A - D E V E L O P E D     

R E N T A S S I S T E D U N I T S

T a x 

C r e di t
O t h e r

T o t al 

Aff o r d a bl e 

U ni t s

M a r k e t 

U ni t s

T o t al 

U ni t s

St a nf or d P ar k T o w n h o m e s 0 0 0 5 0 5 0
1 5 0 0 Q Str e et 0 2 2 4 6
1 7t h & O Str e et s 0 0 0 3 3
1 7t h a n d N Str e et s 0 0 0 1 8 1 8
D elt a Vi ct ori a n s 0 0 0 8 8
Wi e s e T o w n h o m e s 0 0 0 3 3
A d m ail E x pr e s s B uil di n g 0 0 0 7 7
G o v er n or' s T err a c e 0 0 0 4 4 4 4
S o m er s et P ar k si d e C o n d o mi ni u m s 0 0 0 7 5 7 5

S ar at o g a T o w n h o m e s 0 0 0 3 6 3 6
Fr e m o nt B uil di n g 0 1 1 1 1 5 8 6 9
C a pit ol P ar k H o m e s 0 9 9 5 5 6 4
Fr e m o nt M e w s 4 9 0 4 9 7 0 1 1 9
L e g a d o d e R a v el 0 0 0 8 4 8 4
Sit e 9 B D u pl e x 0 0 0 2 2

W ar e h o u s e Arti st L oft s ( W A L) 0 8 6 8 6 3 0 1 1 6
1 6 P o w er h o u s e 0 0 0 5 0 5 0
T h e E vi v a 0 0 0 1 1 8 1 1 8

T O T A L C A D A - D E V E L O P E D U N I T S: 4 9 1 0 8 1 5 7 7 1 5 8 7 2

D E V E L O P E D A F F O R D A B L E / M A R K E T % 1 8 % 8 2 % 1 0 0 %

C A D A - O W N E D U N I T S: 4 1 1 5 0 4 6 1 5 3 7 9 9 8
C A D A - D E V E L O P E D U N I T S: 4 9 1 0 8 1 5 7 7 1 5 8 7 2
T O T A L C A D A U N I T S: 4 6 0 1 5 8 6 1 8 1 2 5 2 1 8 7 0

T O T A L A F F O R D A B L E / M A R K E T % 3 3. 0 5 % 6 7 % 1 0 0 %

T O T A L C A D A - M A N A G E D & D E V E L O P E D A F F O R D A B L E H O U S I N G U N I T S

It e m 1 2(F )

277



It e m 1 2  ( G) 
 

 
C A P I T O L A R E A D E V E L O P M E N T A U T H O R I T Y  

 
 

C o m m e r ci al Li s ti n g s ( C u r r e n t V a c a n ci e s )  
 

A p ril  2 0 2 5  
 
 
 
A d d r e s s:        1 4 1 3 - 1 5 1 6 t h S t r e e t  
F or m er  T e n a nt:       ( E m pt y) Si m o n’ s B ar a n d Grill  
F ut ur e T e n a nt:      M e z a C alif or ni a  
 
T e n a nt I m pr o v e m e nt s h a v e b e e n c o m pl et e d, c urr e ntl y a w aiti n g si g n -off fr o m H e alt h D e p art m e nt. 
T e n a nt i s l o o ki n g i nt o f o o d “ p o p -u p s ” i n t h e m e a nti m e, utili zi n g t h e Al c h e mi st f o o d tr ail er a n d i s 
pl a n ni n g a n o p e ni n g b y J ul y 1, 2 0 2 5.  
 
A d d r e s s:         15 2 0  1 6 t h S t r e e t , S ui t e D 
C urr e nt T e n a nt:       ( E m pt y) F or m er U ni v er sit y of B e er B u si n e s s Offi c e  
 
St aff c o nti n u e  t o s e e k t e n a nt s f or t hi s s p a c e.  
 
A d d r e s s:         14 0 9 1 6 t h S t r e e t  
F or m er  T e n a nt:       C L T R E Cl u b  
C urr e nt  T e n a nt:      Ir o n R o ot s Fit n e s s 
 
Ir o n R o ot s Fit n e ss c o nti n u e s t o m a k e a p o siti v e i m p a ct si n c e t h eir o p e ni n g l a st m o nt h i n bri n gi n g 
str e n gt h a n d m o bilit y cl a s s e s t o t h e c o m m u nit y. T h e y ar e pl a n ni n g a gr a n d o p e ni n g a n d fr e e 
c o m m u nit y e v e nt i n J u n e.   
 
A d d r e s s:        1 3 3 1 O S t r e e t  
F or m er  T e n a nt:       S o ci et y Bi str o  
C urr e nt T e n a nt:      S a p h a K af a e  
 
St aff r e c e ntl y a p pr o v e d a n d si g n e d  a l e a s e t r a n sf er fr o m S o ci et y Bi str o  t o S a p h a K af a e. T h e n e w 
t e n a nt, S a p h a K af a e will bri n g T h ai f u si o n i n a r a n g e of br e a kf a st a n d l u n c h off eri n g s  t o t h e s p ac e . 
T h e y pl a n t o st art off eri n g a n e w m e n u b e gi n ni n g mi d -M a y.   
 
 
 
  

278



It e m 1 2 ( H) 
 

 C a pit ol Ar e a D e v el o p m e nt A ut h orit y  
 C A D A N e i g h bor h o o d I n ci d e nt R e p ort  

A pril  2 0 2 5: 
  
 
 
 
 
R e si d e nti al br e a k -i n s, v a n d ali s m, t h eft, di st ur b a n c e s: 
 

•  4/ 0 6/ 2 5:    1 4 2 8 1 4 t h St:  C o urt e s y p atr ol f o u n d a n i n di vi d u al sl e e pi n g o n t h e pr o p ert y. P atr ol r e q u e st e d t h e 
i ndi vi d u al l e a v e t h e pr o p ert y , w hi c h h e di d wit h o ut i n ci d e nt.  

•  4/ 0 7/ 2 5:    1 0 0 1 -3 5 Q St:  C o urt e s y p atr ol f o u n d a n i n di vi d u al sl e e pi n g o n t h e pr o p ert y. P atr ol r e q u e st e d t h e 
i n di vi d u al l e a v e t h e pr o p ert y, w hi c h h e di d wit h o ut i n ci d e nt.  

•  4/ 0 8/ 2 5:    1 5 0 6 1 3 t h St:  C o urt e s y p atr ol r e c ei v e d a c all st ati n g s o m e b o d y s m ell e d s m o k e i n t h e b uil di n g. 
P atr ol arri v e d a n d f o u n d a n i n di vi d u al o ut si d e, u n d er t h e st air c a s e b ur ni n g i n c e n s e. P atr ol e s c ort e d t h e 
i n di vi d u al off of t h e pr o p ert y wit h o ut i n ci d e nt. 

•  4/ 1 2/ 2 5:    1 3 2 2 O St:   C o urt e s y p atr ol f o u n d t h e b a c k g at e pr o p p e d o p e n  a n d cl o s e d it .  
•  4/ 1 7/ 2 5:    1 4 1 4 O St:  C o urt e s y p atr ol f o u n d a n i n di vi d u al tr yi n g t o o p e n t h e g ar a g e d o or. I n di vi d u al fl e d 

w h e n h e s a w p atr ol a p pr o a c hi n g.  
•  4/ 2 0/ 2 5:    1 3 2 2 O St:  C o urt e s y p atr ol f o u n d a n i n di vi d u al l oit eri n g o n t h e pr o p ert y. P atr ol a s k e d t h e 

i n di vi d u al t o l e a v e, w hi c h h e di d wit h o ut i n ci d e nt.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
C o m m e r ci al br e a k- i n s, v a n d ali s m, t h eft, di st ur b a n c e s: 
 

•  4/ 0 6/ 2 5:    1 4 2 6 1 4 t h St:  Alt er ati o n s b y Pr o:  C o urt e s y p atr ol f o u n d t h e d o or u nl o c k e d. P oli c e c a m e o ut a n d 
c h e c k e d e v er yt hi n g a n d t h er e w a s n o b ur gl ar y. Aft er h o ur s st aff w a s n otifi e d t o c o nt a ct o w n er t o l o c k u p.  

•  4/ 0 6/ 2 5:    7 0 1 S St:  C A D A M ai nt e n a n c e W ar e h o u s e:  C o urt e s y p atr ol f o u n d t h e al ar m g oi n g off i n si d e t h e 
b uil di n g. T h e y c h e c k e d t h e ar e a a n d di d n ot fi n d a n y pr o bl e m s.     

 
 
 
R e c a p of P h o n e C all s t o L y o n s S e c urit y S e r vi c e d uri n g t h e m o nt h of  A pril  20 2 5: 
 
 
T h er e w er e  2 5  c all s d uri n g t h e m o nt h of A pril : 
 
1 4  call s w er e t o r e p ort n oi s e . 
2 c all s w er e t o r e p ort a g ar a g e d o or l eft o p e n. 
1 c all  w a s t o r e p ort a p er s o n r e q u e sti n g m e di c al h el p . 
1 c all w a s t o r e p ort a b uil di n g fr o nt d o or br o k e n . 
1 c all w a s t o  r e p ort a s u s pi ci o u s v e hi cl e o n t h e pr o p ert y . 
3 c all s w er e t o r e p ort s o m e o n e sl e e pi n g o n a pr o p ert y . 
1 c all w a s t o r e p ort a l e a k i n t h e b uil di n g. 
1 c all w a s t o r e p ort t h e s m ell of s m o k e i n a b uil di n g . 
. 

279



C A PI T O L A R E A D E V E L O P M E N T A U T H O RI T Y

F Y 2 0 2 4 - 2 0 2 5

C o nt r a ct L o g a s of 5/ 1 4/ 2 0 2 5

D A T E
C O N T R A C T 

N U M B E R

T y p e of 

S er vi c e
C O N T R A C T O R P R O J E C T L O C A TI O N A M O U N T A C C O U N T E S B

4/ 4/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 5 6  M aj or C o n st M o u nt ai n R o ofi n g S y st e m s R o of R e pl a c e m e nt 1 3 3 0 O Str e et $ 8 6, 1 8 1. 0 0 1 0- C 2 3- 5 8 2 0- C 2 8 4- 1 0- 0 0 7. 3 Y

4/ 4/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 5 7  M aj or C o n st T H P M e c h a ni c al L L C H V A C U nit R e pl a c e m e nt s 1 5 1 5 8t h Str e et $ 1 7 0, 8 4 0. 0 0 1 0- C 2 5- 5 8 2 0- C 5 1 5- 0 1- 0 1 5. 7 Y

4/ 7/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 4- 0 0 6. 2  M ai nt e n a n c e Elit e S er vi c e E x p ert s, I n c. F Y B a c k- U p Pl u m b er ( C h a n g e Or d er # 2)  V ari o u s L o c ati o n s $ 3 5 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 8 7 Y

4/ 7/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 2- 0 2 9. 1  M ai nt e n a n c e R. F. M a c D o n al d C o.
F Y B oil er s R e p air & R e pl a c e - E xt n ( C h a n g e 
Or d er # 1)

V ari o u s L o c ati o n s ( N o S o nri s a) $ 4 9, 5 0 0. 0 0 
1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 4 0 ( R e p air s)
1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 8 7 ( M ai nt e n a n c e)

N

4/ 8/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 4- 0 5 8. 1  M ai nt e n a n c e Elit e S er vi c e E x p ert s, I n c.
F Y F ull- Ti m e A p art m e nt P ai nti n g - E xt n 
( C h a n g e Or d er # 1)

V ari o u s L o c ati o n s $ 3 5, 0 0 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 3- 5 4 2 1 Y

4/ 9/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 4- 0 0 2- A. 1  M ai nt e n a n c e R e b uil dit, I n c.
F Y C o u nt ert o p R e pl a c e m e nt - A m e n d m e nt 

( 7/ 1/ 2 0 2 4- 9/ 3 0/ 2 0 2 4) ( C h a n g e Or d er # 1)
V ari o u s L o c ati o n s $ 4 3, 6 5 6. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 9 3 Y

4/ 9/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 0 0 9. 1  M ai nt e n a n c e
Vill ar a B uil di n g S y st e m s ( Vill ar a 
C or p/ Vill ar a M e c h a ni c al)

F Y H V A C M ai nt e n a n c e & R e p air ( C h a n g e 
Or d er # 1)

V ari o u s L o c ati o n s $ 4 0, 0 0 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 4 0 N

4/ 9/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 0 0 7. 1  M ai nt e n a n c e
R o s e vill e Fl o ori n g, I n c. ( C alif or ni a 
R e n o v ati o n/ R C O Fl o ori n g)

F Y Fl o ori n g ( 1 0/ 0 1/ 2 0 2 4 - 0 6/ 3 0/ 2 0 2 5 ) 

( C h a n g e Or d er # 1)
V ari o u s L o c ati o n s $ 3 5 0, 0 0 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 9 1 N

4/ 9/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 5 8  C o n s ulti n g  Tri c or p Gr o u p, I n c. S e w er S ur v e y 5 2 5 S Str e et $ 4 8 5. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 3- 4 5 0 5- C 5 5 5- 0 1 N

4/ 1 1/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 5 9  C o n s ulti n g  S oft R e s o ur c e s L L C M RI I m pl e m e nt ati o n a n d S u p p ort S er vi c e s 1 5 2 2 1 4t h Str e et $ 2 7, 9 0 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 1- 4 2 6 5 N

4/ 2 1/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 1 9. 2  A d mi n- Mi s c  M a p ur u n g a P h ot o gr a p h y P h ot o gr a p h y ( C h a n g e Or d er # 2) V ari o u s L o c ati o n s $ 2, 4 5 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 1- 4 2 1 1 N

4/ 2 2/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 0 8 1. 4  M ai nt e n a n c e 2- G o B uil di n g M ai nt e n a n c e
B uil di n g Cl e a ni n g ( S u p pl e m e nti n g 
R S R St affi n g ) ( C h a n g e Or d er # 4)

1 4 2 8 1 4t h Str e et, 1 3 1 6 N Str e et, & 
1 3 1 6, 1 3 1 7, 1 3 2 7 O Str e et

$ 5, 7 9 5. 7 8 1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 8 7 Y

4/ 3 0/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 6 0  M ai nt e n a n c e Elit e S er vi c e E x p ert s, I n c. E m er g e n c y W at er E xtr a cti o n 1 5 0 0 N Str e et # 2 0 1 $ 8 5 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 8 7- R 5 4 0- 0 1 Y

4/ 3 0/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 6 1  M ai nt e n a n c e Elit e S er vi c e E x p ert s, I n c. E m er g e n c y Pl u m bi n g R e p air 1 3 2 5 1 5t h Str e et $ 9 9 8. 6 3 1 0- 0 0 3- 5 2 9 2- R 5 3 3- 0 8 Y

5/ 2/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 6 2  C o n s ulti n g  H alfti m e S p a ( N ol a n M arr er o) St aff W ell n e s s Pl a n C h air M a s s a g e s  ( 3 
M o nt h s)

1 5 2 2 1 4t h Str e et & 7 0 1 S Str e et   $ 2, 4 0 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 1- 4 1 0 2 N

5/ 9/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 6 3  M ai nt e n a n c e 2- G o B uil di n g M ai nt e n a n c e A p art m e nt P ai nti n g ( A p art m e nt T ur n s)  V ari o u s L o c ati o n s $ 1 5, 0 0 0. 0 0 1 0- 0 0 1- 5 2 8 7 Y

5/ 9/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 3- 0 5 1. 2  C o n s ulti n g  Atl a s L a b Ur b a n D e si g n S er vi c e s ( C h a n g e Or d er # 2) 1 4t h & O Str e et s $ 1, 1 0 0. 0 0 1 0- D 0 9- 4 7 5 8- D 8 0 1- 0 0 Y

5/ 9/ 2 0 2 5  C 2 5- 1 6 4  C o n s ulti n g  El e m e nt Str u ct ur al E n gi n e er s, I n c. Str u ct ur al R e vi e w 1 0 0 1- 3 5 Q Str e et $ 6, 5 0 0. 0 0 3 6- 0 0 2- 4 5 0 4- R 5 3 6- 0 1 Y

P a g e 1 of 1

It e m 1 2(I)

280



I n v e st m e nt R e p o rt 
M A R C H 2 0 2 5  

H i s t o r i c  C i t y  H a l l

9 1 5  I  S t r e e t ,  3 r d  F l o o r

S a c r a m e n t o ,  C A  9 5 8 1 4

9 1 6 - 8 0 8 - 5 1 6 8

J o h n C ol vill e, Cit y T r e a s u r e r 

Q u a rt e rl y I n v e st m e nt 

C o m mitt e e M e eti n g  
 T h u r s d a y, A p ril 2 4 , 2 0 25 

1 0: 0 0 A M -1 1: 0 0 A M  

Offi c e of t h e Cit y T r e as u r e r - Cit y of S a c r a m e nt o  

It e m 1 2( K )

281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338


	CADA-CACDC Board Agenda - 05.23.2025
	Item 2 - DRAFT CADA-CACDC Board Meeting Minutes 04.18.2025
	DRAFT CADA-CACDC Board Meeting Minutes 04.18.2025
	CADA Reso 25-12
	CADA Reso 25-13
	CADA Reso 25-14


	Item 5 - Financial Forecast 2025
	Staff Report - Financial Forecast 2025
	Attach 1 - Capitol Area Forecast
	Attach 2 - General Fund Development Detail
	Attach 3 - R Street Area Forecast
	Attach 4 - R Street Development Projects


	Item 6 - CIP - May 2025
	Staff Report - CIP - May 2025
	Attach 1 - CIP 5-Year Excel

	Item 7 - Sakura Closing
	Sakura Closing Staff Report
	Attach 1 - Sakura LPA  Exhibits (60187061)
	Attach 2 - CADA Reso 25-15 - Sale & Financing (653647)
	Attach 3 - CADA Reso 25-16 - NEF Syn (653648)
	Attach 4 - CACDC Reso 25-04 - Acq & Financing (653763)
	Attach 5 - CACDC Reso 25-05 - NEF Syn (653671)
	Attach 6 - Sakura AIA A101 - 2017 Std Agreement Btwn Owner & Contractor
	Attach 7 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_MHCal (654142)
	Attach 8 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CADA (654133)
	Attach 9 - Incumbency and Secretary's Certificate_CACDC (654140)


	Item 8 - Fremont Building DDA Amendment
	Staff Report - Fremont Building DDA Amendment
	Attach 1 - CADA Reso 25-17
	Attach 2 - Fremont Site 5A - Third Amendment to DDA - Clean 5-14-25
	Attach 3 - Fremont Site 5A - Memorandum of Third Amendment to DDA


	Item 9 - CACDC Appointment of VP
	CACDC Staff Report - Appointment of VP
	Reso 25-06 - Appointment of VP


	Item 12 - Transmittals
	A - 2024-2029 Strategic Plan Progress Report - May 2025
	B - Status of Vacant Positions
	C - CACDC Tax Form RRF-1
	D - Ombudsman Report - March 2025
	D - Ombudsman Report - April 2025
	E - ASR - April 2025
	F - Affordable Recap - April 2025
	G - Commercial - April 2025
	H - Neighborhood Incident Rept - April 2025
	I - Contracts Log - April and May 2025
	K - Monthly Investment Report - March 2025




